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ST. JAMES’S PLACE
WEALTH MANAGEMENT

St James's Place pIc 15 the FTSE 100 hsted Parent Company cj' the St. James’s Place
Wealth Management Group The Group provides high quality wealth management

advice, nvestment mandgement and related services to busiesses and individuals
across the UK, through its representatives — The St James’s Place Partnership

St. James’s Place Wealth Management Group manages £58.6 bulhon of chent funds

At the heart of the sustained growth m our busmness 1s the importance we place on
mantamning long lasting relationships with our Partners and clients and serving
them well. Our approach was once agamn publicly endorsed during the last twelve
months, when we won several industzy awards that were voted  for by clients, members

cf the public and feHow mdustry peers
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SUMMARY OF THE YEAR

NUMBER OF CLIENTS
525,800 49%

2014: 484,000

FUNDS UNDER
MANAGEMENT

£58.6bn413%

2014: £52.0bn

GROSS INFLOW OF FUNDS
UNDER MANAGEMENT

£9.24bna17%

2014: £7.88bn

NET INFLOW OF FUNDS
UNDER MANAGEMENT

£5.78bn414%

2014: £5.09bn

PARTNERSHIP NUMBERS
2,064 46%

2014: 2,132

DIVIDEND
(PENCE PER SHARE)

27.96pa20%

2014: 23 30p per share

PROFIT BEFORE
SHAREHOLDER TAX

£151.3mw17%

2014: £182 9m

EEV OPERATING
PROFIT

£660.2ma11%

2014: £596.4m

CLIENTS

PARTNERS

Growth in client numbers contributed
to the mecrease m mvestment of new
funds The quality of the client
outcome, as reflected i client

Qur proposition contirrued to
be attractive to advisers 1 the year
and we Saw rmprovements i quality,
both 1n terms of business credentials

retention and feedback, continued and qualifications.
to be strong
FUNDS FINANCIAL

Visit us online

Our websita and iPad app
contamn a full investor relations
sectron with news, reports,
heasts, financial calendar and

In another successful year, new
business from chients combmed with
posttve growth i underlymng
mvestments, resulting 1n an increase
m funds under management

Growth m cltents and Partners
combined with positave mvestment
performance to underpm the finanaal
resuits and continued growth of
the busmess

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

David Bellamy
Chief Executive

‘Despite the continued uncertainty in world
stock markets, St. James’s Place has once

again achieved strong growth across all qf
the key aspects c_:f the business.’

In many ways, 2015 was a quite extraordinary year From the continuation of the Greek bailout saga to the ¢risis in
Synia and Iraq, mcluding the rise of ISIS and the atrocities comrmtted by its supporters across the world and the
desperate images of migrants m Turkey, the Mediterranean and throughout Europe Closer to home, we had what
for marry was a surprise result in the UK general election, and an equally surprising leadership result for the Labour
Party The year ended with severe flooding n the North, wrth those dreadful scenes of disruption to many famihes,

but where we saw how a great community spiit and resthence can endure A difficult time for many people and a

volatile one for markets

Despite the continued uncertainty 1n world stock markets, St Jarnes's Place (S]P) has once agan achieved strong
growth across all of the key aspects of the business Gross mflows were 17% higher at a record £9.24 bilhon which,
when combined with the sustaned hugh retention of chents and their investments, resulted 1n record net inflows in
the twelve months of £5 78 billon, takang funds under management to £58 6 billion, up 13% for the year

Our success has been and contimues to be blt on our fundamental belief that for most people their finances and
wealth are personal and they want to be treated 1n a aghly personalised way and by someone they trust Indeed, we
see a growmg demand for sound, personal, financial planning advice as individuals begm to fully comprehend the
financzal imphication of wncreased hife expectancy whilst being faced with mereasingly complex options 1n respect of

ther pension funds

Registered No 03183415
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As nvestor behaviours adapt to this changing retirement
tandscape and the prolonged enviromment of low interest rates,
we have continued to evolve our mvestment approach, through
the introduction of new investment funds, the Strategic Income
and Diversified Bond funds, launched 1n November to provide
mncreased mvestment diveraification for chents Alongside

the evolution of our investment management approach, the
acquisition of Rowan Dartington Holdings Lymited, a specralist
stockbroking and discretionary investment service, broadens
our range of supplementary investment services, to include
advisory portfolio management, direct equity, trust and chanty
portfolio management We plan to make these enhanced services
available to our existing clents later 1n the spring, whalst
enabling our Partners and advisers to access new clients who
value such services

At the other end of the spectrum, we recognise the
mtergenerational challenges that some of our chents tell us they
face 1n trying to help their offspring, particularly 1n relation

to owning their own homes or funding education So1n 2018,
in addition to lecking to enhance our estate planning services
through & more formahsed probate service and expansion of our
long term eare offermgs, we will explore with cur third party
providers bespoke mortgage and protection products to meet
this need

Financial Performance

The strong growth 1n new business and funds under
management are reflected in the finanaal results in all
measures However, the results were negatively impacted
by a sigmficant £14 2 million increase in our levy to the
Financial Services Compensation Scheme

The figures also reflect our continued strategic investments
mcluding the §]P Academy, our Asian operattons and our back
office infrastructure development

The operating profit on a European Embedded Value (EEV) basis
was £660 2 milhon (2014 £596 4 mllion) which reflects the
above factors, together with a positive expenence and operating
assumption change

The profit before sharcholder tax, on an Internationat Financral
Reporting Standards (IFRS}) basis of £151 3 milhon (2014

£182 9 million} was also impacted by the negative £21 7 milhen
change m the movement of certain accounting intangible

assets and labihties The underlying profit for the year was
£163 7 million compared with £173 & mallion for the prior year

A more detailed commentary on the financial results 1s included
i the CFO's Report on pages 18 and 19 and the Financial
Review on pages 20 to 32

Dividend

At the half year we increased the intenm dividend by 20% and
said 1t was our intention to increase the final dividend at a simalar
rate Consequently, and supported by the continued strang
performance of the business, the Board has proposed a final
drvidend of 17 24 pence per share, up 20%, which brings the full
year dividend to 27 96 pence per share, also up 20%

The final dividend for 2015, subject to approval of shareholders
at our AGM, will be paid on 13 May to shareholders on the
regster at the close of business on 8 Apnil As usual, a Dividend
Rewnvestrment Plan continues to be available for shareholders

Clients

At the heart of our sustamed growth 1s our commitment to
achreving the best possible outcome for our chents and the
importance we place on mantaining long lasting relattonships
with them and serving them and our Partners well 'We firmly
believe that this highly personalised approach continues to have a
very important place in UK financial services today and wall do
so 1 the future

However, we are not at all complacent and every year we take
the opportumty to seek feedback, from our clients directly,

1n response to their annual Wealth Account statement The
research carried out1n the last two months once again shows a
consistently high advocacy score, where 95% of our chents
confirmed that they would recommend St James's Place to
others, with around 60% having already done so Simalarly,
when asked to assess our proposition m terms of value for
money, 79% of our chents sard excellent or good, with a further
19% describing it as reasonable

I saxd earlrer that for most people thewr finances and wealth are
personal and these survey results, together wath the direct contact
our Partners mantain with chents, reassures us that our chents
value the personal face-to-face relationship they provide Last year,
largely through the strong advocacy of our exasting chents, a
further 54,000 new chents were mtroduced to St James’s Place,
talang the total number of chents to over 525,000

Investment Management

Stock markets started 2015 very positively, reaching record
highs in both the US and UK before retreating over the
remainder of year on coneerns of slowing global growth and n
particular in respect of China

Year on year stock markets fell with the FTSE 100, for example,
down 4 9% 1n caprtal terms albeit the return mcluding dividends
was only marginally negative

Agamnst this backdrop the relative performance of our funds was

good and 1n particular all our portfolios made a positive return,
with the Balance Income portfoho, for example, up 3 2%

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

CONTINUED

Low mnterest rates continue to present a challenge for income
seeking wmvestors In recognition of this, as I menticned earher,
we launched two new mcome focused funds in November

Frrstly, the Daversified Bond fund which aims to provide an
attractive level of income by investing across a broad umverse of
global fixed-interest markets The fund combines three
corplementary investment strategies managed by Payden & Rygel,
Brigade Capital Management and TwentyFour Asset Management

The second new fund is the Strategic Income fund which aims to
generate a lngher level of ncome than tradittonal fixed-interest
and equity funds Thus fund blends four independent investment
strategies managed by MidOcean Credit Fund Management,
Schroders, BlueBay Asset Management and TwentyFour Asset
Management and predominantly mvests in high-yielding
fixed-1nterest assets whilst having some exposure to global
equity markets

With the addition of these new funds and specialist mvestment
managers, our mvestment proposition for clients now includes
70 carefully selected managers from around the world

Market volatlity and continued global uncertamty underlne the
umportance of drversification, which remains one of our core
wnvestment principles By comtnumng to develop our investment
approach, so that it takes account of a changing investment
world, we are confident we can help our chents fulfil ther long
term financal goals

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

The St. James’s Place Partnership

Increasing the number of Partners and providing them with the
tools and support to delrver high quality outcomes for clients 15 one
of the key drivers to achieving our long term growth objectives

In 2015, alongside the impressive financal results, I am therefore
pleased to report that through the continued acqusition of hughly
estabhshed advisers, the integration of new Partners in Asia and
the success of our extended Academy programme, the size of the
Partnership increased to 2,264, whlst our total quahfied adviser
communmity mcreased by 10% to 3,113

The sustaned growth in our Partner and adviser community
bears tesimony to the reputation that we have bult for both the
quality of our chent propesition and the level of support and
development our Partners and advisers recerve

As our Partmer practices grow and the adminsstration of therr
chents’ affairs becomes mereasngly complex, we will lock to
find ways to make 1t easier for our Partners, advisers and their
support staff to serve their clients well and build even more
successful businesses Thes 15 the driver belund our mvestment 1n
our back-office developmeat and the extension of our Academy
concept to the trawning of speciahst support staff for our
existing Partners

This community of around 4,000 pecple performs a variety of
roles for Partoers and we plan to deepen our relationship with
these teams m. 2016 so as to help wrth the smooth running of our

Partners’ businesses

Alongaide these mitiatives, we are investing 1n additicnal space
for our London offices and we will be opening a new office, in

Canary Whari, in May

Our business in Asia 1s making good progress and we continue to
focus our overseas efforts here such that whilst we wall continue

to explore an entry 1ato the Middle East, 1if we do decade to
enter, 1t's unhkely we wall do so until 2017

Registered No 03183415




‘Back-office’ Admnistration

In 2014, we embarked on one of the most significant developments
m our back office for some titme The 1nitial phase saw the
unsfication of our two mayor back office teams, in Craigforth and
Essex, cormng together under the management of IFDS

That was followed by the development of a new software
platform, called ‘Bluedoor’, for the combined admumstration
teams and towards the end of last year, we began the migration
of our business to the new platform, starting with our umt trust
and ISA busmess, which was successfully completed 1n October

Thus year our focus 15 on pensions and we anhcipate launching
our new retirement account on the platform later 10 the summer

The St. James’s Place Foundation

and Community Engagement

2015 was agan a record year for fund raising for our Foundation
Raising funds for those less fortunate has always been at the heart
of the Group’s culture, and the collective efforts of the whole of
our commumty, including employees, Partners, suppliers and
others connected to St James’s Place, resulted in over £3 §
rullion being raised which, when matched by the Company,
meant over £7 mithon for the Foundation The cumulative total
raised to date 1s now approaching £50 milhon, and we were
again able to support over 600 charitable projects in the year

Our cultural driver of ‘doing the right thing” runs through the
whole orgamsation, underpinmung all our interactions with our
local and extended commumties Qur continued membershep
of FTSE4GOOD recogmses the positive nature of our work in
these areas We’re proud of the sigmficant contribution we
make through our Foundation and our other imitratives,
mcluding our structured programumes for surnmer mterns

and Apprenticeships We are also commutted to mamtaining
our Living Wage accreditation, being one of only 20 FTSEIQ0
companies to achieve this status

Finally, we're also very proud of the contribution that cur whole
community makes to their communities, not least through the
wide varety of fund raising events for the Foundation that took
place throughout the year

Further details of our CSR activities are set out on pages 48
to 54 and an update on the Foundation 15 provided on pages 5§_
to 59

Partuers and Employees

The strength and continued growth of the business 15 due 1n no
smeall part to the hard work and dedication of ‘cur Partners, ther
staff and ali of our employees and admimistration support teams

On behalf of the Board and shareholders I thank everyone
connected with 5t James's Plece for thear contmbuhon to
these results and for their continued enthusiasm, dedication
and commitment

Outlook

We have once agam achieved strong growth across all of the key
aspects of the business and are well placed to achieve further
growth 12016 and beyond

David Bellamy
Chuef Executive
22 March 2016

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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MARKET OVERVIEW

The UK Wealth Market

St James’s Place’s prime target market 1s UK individuals with
between £50,000 and £5 million 1 investeble assets There
were esttmated to be 9 6 mullion such individuals at the end
of 2015 and, over the next five years, the number 1s projected
to grow by 4% per annum to 11 9 milhon Thewr mvestable
assets are projected to grow from £1 6 tnlhon to £1 9 trilhon

1n this tme

Advice-led Sector

In Nevember 2015 the FCA reported 30,600 UK financial
advisers m our core target recruitment groups of bank and ,
financial advisers focussing on wealth management, the total
having declined by 19% from over 38,000 at the end of 2011
With 3,113 advisers at the end of 2015, 8t James’s Place now
represents over 10% of the UK’s financial adviser population

Based on 2014 funds under management of £52 bilhon, we
ranked first in the 2015 Private Asset and Wealth Managers
(PAM) Directory by Assets under Management, having grown
by £7 7 billion 11 the previous 12 months (+17%) This growth
rate was the largest n volume and the second largest in
pevcentage of any 1n the top 10 and represented 41% of the
total growth of the top 40 wealth managers in that year

‘We were also 1dentafied as the largest ISA manager by the
Investment Association m August 2015 with £10 9 bulion ISA

funds under management

Wealth Solutions
The pensions market 15 In a state of flux The steady decline in

the number of open Defined Benefit schemes 1o the UK means
that relying on a company pension will soon be a thing of the
past Alongside thus, due to the increase i bife expectancy, the
old age dependency ratio (number of elderly peaple expressed
as a proportion of the working age population) 15 expected to
increase from 34% to 50% by the middle of the century with
successive governments taking steps to put back the State
Pension Age 1n order to curb the pressure on state pensions
The expectation 15 that the fametable of change wall be brought
forward and the upper retirement age could be increased to 69

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

The government 15 also trying to encourage individuals to
provide for their own future, complementing the new Auto-
Enrolment regime with changes to make pensions savings more
appealing The Spring budgets of both 2014-and 2015 mntroduced
radical changes to mcrease flexability in the use of Defined
Contribution pension savings removal of the obligation to take
an annuity at age 75, access from age 55 by pension wnvestors to
their pension funds with the freedom to choose between taking
an mcome, a lump sum or combinations of the two mncluding the
whole amount (subject to ncome tax), the 55% pension ‘death
tax’ has been abolished There are many other changes which
both hberate the savers and comphcate the deasion making
process Whlst the government has offered access to free
gmdance provided by the Citizens Adwvice Bureau and the
Pensions Advisory Servace, the UK savings ratio 1s at 1ts lowest
for years, and the need for encouragement to save and for hohstic
financial advice has never been greater

The March 2015 mcrease 1n anmual allowance for ISAs to
£15,240pa and the 1ntroduction of the ability to switch both
ways between cash and stocks & shares means ISAs are becoming
a significant way to accumulate wealth 1n a tax efficent way

Pensions represented 40% of our new business in 2015, with a
further 34% from Umt Trusts and ISAs All of these changes
wll have sigmificance for our business over the next few years

Numszr oF UK iNprvipuals (000s)
with between £50k and £5m of liquid assets

Registered No 03183415




OUR BUSINESS MODEL

St james’s Place plc 15 a FTSE 100 Iisted Company The business 15 centred on the UK
and seeks to attract clients from the mass affluent and high net worth markets

CLIENTS PARTNERS FUNDS FINANCIAL
Value for
To delzver To continue” To 1ncrease Chents
positive to grow and funds under
outcomes to L__ develop the | nanagement
an increasimng Partnership
pogmlatlon
of clients Value for
Shareholders

SJP 15 a wealth management business, the Group’s advisers, the
St James's Place Partnershup, PI‘O?I&C clients with a financtal
planming service and face-to-face advice, and clients’ wealth

1 managed through the Group’s distinctive Investment
Management Approach (IMA) Almost uniquely withm the UK
wealth management market, this vertically integrated model
means that the Group 15 directly responsible for the whole
offering, inchiding advice, management of investments and any
related services

The Partnership 1s critical to the success of the busmess

Partners are able to attract chents and, through building trust,
develop long term relationshups, supporting chents with ther
financal needs over tme This relationship-based approach1s
greatly valued by the Group’s clients, no more so than 1n periods
of financial uncertamty The Group’s experience 15 that there 1s
an mcreasing demand for trusted advice from expenienced
advisers, backed by a strong brand and an organisation which
takes responsibility for all aspects of the service

As a result, the Group 1s able to attract and retain retail funds
under management from which it recerves an annual
management fee This 15 the principal source of income for the
Group, and 1t grows with additional new business andalsoasa
result of growth i markets and the success of our approach to
investment management

Attracting new funds under management 1s core to the success
of the Group, and growth 1n new business anses as a result of
both inereasing Partner numbers and also encouraging further
developmment by existing Partners By providing an attractive
proposition, the Group 15 able to recruit new members to the
Partnershup, and the provision of hugh quality support enables
Partners to grow both their own busmesses and ours

Group expenditure 15 carefully managed with clear objectives
set and yith a particular focus on managing fixed costs

Many activities are cutsourced so we can benefit from industry
specralists and expenses that vary with business levels.

Such expenses include the costs of chient admimstration and
mvestment administration, the costs of which can then be met
from margns 1z our products Overall, 2 small proportion of
expenditure 18 required to maintan exasting funds, but the
majority 1s invested in supporting and growing the Partnership
and acquiring new funds

Profits emerge from the busmess principally as a result of the

annual management income from funds under management
exceeding expenses

5T JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCQUNTS 2015
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: BUSINESS MODEL IN ACTION

CLIENTS '

Putting chents at the heart of everythimng we do 15 core to our
culture and enables us to work together torun a genumely client-
focussed business It 15 important for clients to have a clear
understandmng of the level of service they can expect from ther
Partrer, so they can be confident that this will meet their needs.

The level of ongong service 15 agreed between the Partner and
the chent and, most umportantly, 1s talored appropniately to the
level of care and attention they require Clear and robust systems
and controls are m place to enable us to dehver the agreed level
of service and support the delvery of positive chent cutcomes

Dehvenng a postiive client experience 15 mteg‘ra] to any
successful and productive business It requires an effective
business plan, robust infrastructure and processes that work
The result 1s satisfied clients who understand the ongoing service
that they recerve and whose expectations are met, ar exceeded

We aclueve this primanly through the activity of the St. James's
Place Partnership (see page 9) Qur Partners recognse that no
one client’s objectives or circumstances are the same as
another’s, and so tallor the advice and service to surt them
Chents often continue the working relationship with their
Partner over many years, appreciating a source of trusted advice
as their financial needs evolve over the years

In order to ensure that our busmess continues to be chent-
focused, sentor Tanagsment MonItors all areas of the business
which can affect the chent experience Momtoring covers all
stages of the chent hfe-cycle, mduding the smtability of advice,
admmistration, 1nvestment experience, chent feedback and,
rarely, chent complants

Our annual Wealth Account survey, which we have now been

runnmg for five years, continues to be an wvaluable opportunity

to get feedback from chents, with over 47,000 responses to the

2015 questionnaure recerved an the end Response to a survey has

agan been sought from chents i Q1 2016 and haghlights mclude

*  92% receive the right amount of face-to-face communication
from their Partner, and 95% know that they can requesta
meeting at any ttme

*  79% rated the proposition as exther good or excellent value
for money, with a further 19% describing it as reasonable

+  95% of clients would recommend St James’s Place to others,
with an mcreased proportion of around 60% already having
done so (2014 46%)

= 78% of those stall saving for retirement feel ether very or
farrly confident that their current pension, savings and
mvestment plans wall be sufficient to cover their living
expenses and desired lifestyle in retirement, compared with
94% of retired chents

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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Our survey confirmed that the majority of our chents are aware
of the various changes in pension frecdom rules in recent years
but, as 1 previous years, most believe they will be unaffected
and do not expect to change their retrement plans However,
another area of concern for many of them was the ‘inter-
generational’ challenge, andin particular their desire to support
younger members of thewr fam:ly

Despite recerving much posiive feedback from clients, we never
become complacent and 1n 2016 we will continue to seek
umprovements to the service and all round expenence for clhents

CLENT GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION
As of 30 June 2015

Overseas Chents 2%

Registered No 03183415



BUSINESS MODEL IN ACTION

PARTNERS

Members of the St James's Place Partnershup play the leading
role 1n delivering our wealth management service

Our Partners, so called because of the way they workin
partnership with both their clients and their colleagues, are some
of the most expenenced and able professionals worlang m wealth
management today St James's Place has chosen to promote

our services exclusively through the Partnership, reflecting the
confidence we have in Partmers’ abihity to build and maintain
long-term working relationships with their clients, and so

to be able to provide sound financial advice The exclusive
arrangement also provides clients with clarity of responsibility 1n
relation to thewr financial dealings St James’s Place works hard
to support these chent-Partner relationships, placing them at the
heart of all we do

Estabhishing long-term relationships 1s key Chentsneed to be
able to place a high degree of rehance on finanaal advice and so
beng able to call upon the services of long-term advisers who
understand their individual personal circumstances 1s important
But 1t 15 also important that clients are dealt with mn the ‘way they
would choose’ and not samply 1n a single prescnibed way Our
Pariners are located throughout the UK, enabling face-to-face
advice to be delivered wherever they may be Long term
relationships clearly work for clients but are also good for
business, with 90% of our new busmess eshmated to come from
exusting chents and therr referrals

New Partners are provided with a document entitled “What 1t
means to be a member’ This sets out a philosophy and some
principles We behieve the shared commitment to living up to
these principles 1s what gives the Partnership 1ts competitive
edpe and makes it a group of professionals that other advisers
aspire to jom Qur principles emphasise mntegrity, trust,
openness, partnership and teamwork and are designed to guide
indrvidual and corporate actions, deasions and standards across
our comrrm.mty

Given the 1mpartance of our Partners, we are commtted to
prowdmg ongong professional development to ensure they
remain appropriately quahfied, techmeally able and equipped

to deliver a first class service 'We also encourage and provide
support for Partners who choose to pursne further qualifications,
with many Partners having plans to progress to Chartered

Status As a result of the professionalism of our Partners,

we are happy to guarantee the surtabihty of the advice that

they give when recormending any of the wealth management
products and services provided by compames m the Group

Growth in the Partnership 15 2 crucl long-term ob_]ectwé

In addition to our existing successful recruitment proposibon
we continued to develop the St James’s Place Academy This
provides an opportumty for suitable second-careensts to recerve
training and assistance to build a Partner business withus We
now have three regional centres in London, Manchester and
Solihull, and are operung one mn Edinburgh in February Dunng
2015 we enrolled over 100 new students and expect to increase
this to around 12010 2016 Also 1 2015, we graduated -

49 Academy Partpers following the two year programme and
expect this to nse in 2016 1n Line with our regional expansion
Around half of our new students are from non-financal
backgrounds and the average age, at 38, 15 ten years younger
than the average Partner

In addition, our Next Generation Academy (uutjally aimed at
bringing sons and daughters of exasting Partners 1nto thewr
businesses) also supports growth and builds succession for our
existing successful businesses So far we have enrolled over
140 new students cnto this programme — now widened to
include non-family, with an average age of 27 To date, 61 of
these students have progressed to become fully qualified and
authorised members of the Partnership

The Henley Group, a successful IFA business based 1n Hong
Kong, Shangha and Singapore, which we purchased in 2014,
has now been rebranded St James's Place Wealth Managemnent
and has already grown to 83 advisers working across the three
offices with nearly 5,000 chents and £460 milhon assets under
advice It extends our geographical scope and provides a new
region for recruntment

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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BUSINESS MODEL IN ACTION

FUNDS

At the heart @r the proposition to our clients 1s
our Investment Management Approacﬁ

Investment success 1s criical to future financial well-beng, but 1t
15 & field which presents a umque problem futme performance

1s unpredictable As a result, when chients choose investment
managers, no matter how successful hustorically, they can never
be sure that they have made the right choice, and even if they have,
1t may not continue to be the right chorce over the years to come

We beheve that our Investment Management Approach (IMA)
addresses these perenmal challenges We do not place chents’
mnvestments i the hands of an ‘in-house’ team of fund managers,
mdeed, we employ no fund managers of our own and so avord
that conflict Instead, we choose fund managers from the many
fund management firms that exst throughout the world

The responsibility of selecting the range of funds and fund
managers that are made available to the chients of St James’s.
Place at any one time falls upon the Investment Commuttee
The Commuttee 15 made up of a small group of executives and
four ‘independent’ investment experts, and 15 advised by
respected independent mvestment research consultancues,
including Stamford Assocates, Redington and AON Consulang

The Investment Commmttee meets regularly to momtor
performance and considers detatled reports from our consultants
and each fund manager Ifa change 1n the marketplace calls for
the addition of another manager, the Committee will select one

Equally, 1f the Commuttee’s monitoring activity leads to a loss

of confidence 1n the ability of an esasting manager to perform in
the future, then 1t will replace them Wiath nearly £60 billion of
client assets invested in St James’s Place funds and products,

the Commuttee 15 also mindful of 1ts stewardship responsibilities,
and actively momitors and promotes engagement by all of our
fund managers

Successful long term nvestment also depends on judicicus
dversificatton The Investment Cornnttee provides llustrations
as to how to do ths through the provision of Portfohos, which
combine various managers’ funds in proportions depending on the
broad investment objective Ultumately, however, the rght solution
for each client can only be achieved through the face-to-face advice
process, which is the responsihty of their individual Partner

Alongside our IMA, during 2015 we entered into an agreement
to acquire Rowan Dartington, which speciahses in Discretionary
Fund Management (DFM) mchiding direct equuty, trust and
chanty portfoho management Subsequent to the year-end we
recerved regulatory approval for the acquisiion which 15 now
uncondihional The firm employs around 100 people across 10
regional offices with funds under management of over £1 1 billion
Ths will both broaden the range of investment options we can
offer exasting chients and enable us to participate more fully 1n the
substantial DFM sector of the UK wealth market:

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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BUSINESS MODEL IN ACTION
OUR PEOPLE

‘We are a relationship business

where people are our most
important asset.’

Thus statement 15 a core cultural belief and a fundarnental element of the success of St James's Place Members of
our commumty tend to share core values that are highly compatible wath the values that are central to the business
and established at the outset — expertise, wtegnity and discretion They are passionate about our business and believe
m hard work and dedication Age, race, colour, creed, sexuality, disability and gender are irrelevant ment and
expenience are of greatest unportance They treat each other with mutual respect, openness and fairness and are
driveri by a desire to ‘do the right thing’ by all our stakeholders

Ths 15 our culture, which 1s central to our success We are therefore proactive 1n buwlding and renforcing 1t

For thus most rmportant of business differentiators 1t1s the Board that provides both ‘tone at the top’ and oversight
The Board 1s commuited to being consistent and clear-sighted m 1ts leaderstup and support of the culture,

and m particular the prinaiple that *St James’s Place will seek to do the right thing for its chients and for all sts
stakeholders’ In a world where the reputation of the financal services 1ndustry 1s constantly under pressure,

we aspire to create an authentic alternative which clents and suppliers can trust, and which the communities

we are part of can appreciate and respect However, we recognise that we won't always get everything right, and so
we also behieve 1n acknowledging mistakes made, rectifying them and learmng from them

Regustered No 03183415




Our people are a sustminable compentive advantage, so we aim
to attract the best and help them fulfil their potential We secure
thesr commitment by providing them with an interesting and
challenging career withun a first class working environment

We reward them competitively, as well as encouraging equaty
ownership, including 1n the Partnership We are a Living Wage
employer and have commtted to meeting the hving wage for all
our emplayees and supphers

We recognuse that as our business grows we will have to take
care with cur culture Qur employee numbers now exceed
1,300 1n the UK (1,400 worldwide) and the number of Partners
exceeds 2,000 (over 3,000 advisers) with over 4,000 support
staff, and these numbers will continue to grow 1n future years

-
To ensure coptinwty of our culture, we ensure thatall
employees and Partners jomung the business are selected for thewr
fit with our corporate values, as well as their competency, and
that they are given a full induction as the first step in their career
with our business This mcludes receiving a booklet entitled
‘Our Approach’, which gives guidance on the culture and values
of St James's Place, and the employee handbook includes a
statement about our Code of Ethies We believe 1t 1s i/mportant
that our commumty knows and understands our objectives,
mcluding the ethos behind the St James’s Place brand and how
1ts mntegrity and values should be maintained 'We also encourage
shared commtment to the St James’s Place Foundation

Maintaining freshness of commitment to our culture 13
promoted through a varsety of activities including an Annual
Company Meeting, employee and Partner Surveys, regular
Partner meetings, feedback opportunsties for employees with
Directors and a Leadershup Conference for senior management
They all provide opportuntties to renew our jornt understanding
and encourage commitment to our shared culture, as well as
ensurmg a common awareness of the financial and economec
factors affecting the Company's performance

13

QOur regular employee survey, which we conduct every other year,
provides important insights, crucially on employee engagement
The most recent survey was in 2014 and we recerved a strong
survey response rate of 87% (compared to 86% 1n 2012) Qur
overall engagement score was 87%, which was sigmficantly
higher than the financal services benchmark of 72% We plar to
continue with the bi-annual process, which means our next survey
will be 1n 2016 Asaresult of the strong engagement we also have
low levels of staff turnover, bang 10%1n 2015 (2014 5%) for

the UK busmness, and the proportion of UK employees that are
temporary staff 15 just over 4% (2014 7%) {(m 2016 we will reflect
expenence of our Asian business as well)

Information about the breakdown of employees by gender 1s
shown below

MANAGERS &
DECISION MAKERS

BOARD
DIRECTORS

303 AMale

No change % women wncreased from
16% to 19%
TOTAL
EMPLOYEES

665 Female
697 Male

% women consistent at 49%
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OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY EXPLAINED

Our key bustness objectave 15 growth 1 funds under management (FUM)
through offering a hgh quahty service to clients Growth m FUM (and Net Inflows)
requizes growth 1 Gross Inflows and retention of FUM

Our growth sirategy for delivering increasing
Gross Inflows mvolves

— Growing the size of the Partnership, and
— TImproving Partner productivity

/

Our support strategy for deliverig sustained retention

of FUM mvolves
— Delwvering ligh quality service to Partners and chents, and
- Drving consistent good investment performance

As aresult of pursuing these strateges for over 20 years, we have
burlt strong relationships with our Partners and chents, and we
benefit from strong chent and Partner loyalty and advocacy This
provides a strategic advantage over our compettors, and as a result
we have expenenced Gross Inflows growth of 15-20% pa over
the longer term, with FUM doubling every five years Weare
confident that, with this strategy, we can continue to dehver
simular growth in FUM in the medim-term (up to five years)

1

DELIVER POSITIVE
OUTCOMES TO CLIENTS

What this means:

Through our face-to-face based advice service, we
aim to help chents m a way which reflects ther
personal circumnstances

Our approach 1s based on development of long-
term relationships, founded on trust By
continually seeking to enhance our processes and
make 1mprovements to the client experience we
achieve chent satisfaction, leading to strong
retention and hugh levels of chent advocacy Asa
result, we are able to attract new clients through
both referrals and mtroductions

Our focus for 2016:

- Ensuring the underlymng admmstration of our
client offering meets all expectations

- Introduce a new retirement account proposttion

- Integrate the Rowan Dartington DEM offering
as part of our holistic client offering

- Extend our relationship with Metro Bank and
the services they provide for our chients

- Develop our offering for supporting chents
wanhing to make ‘mter-generational’ financral
arra.ugements

2

GROW PARTNERSHIP AND
DEVELOP EXISTING PARTNERS

‘What this means:

Through providimg an attractive proposition we
are able to recruit new members to the
Partnership, and by providing high quality support

we can help them to grow

Our Partners play the leading role mn debivermng
our wealth management service. Expanding thewr
number 15 central to our growth aspirations Our
support for them mcludes ongong professional
development as well as support systems and
mnfrastructure, to ensure they are equipped to
deliver a first class service to thexr chents

Our focus for 2016:

- Contimue to attract high quality advisers to
jom the Partnership .

- Support existing Partners in gammng further
quabfications, including Chartered Status

- Expand our exishng regional acadermes
iutative to mclude Edinburgh and enhance
our next generation (succesaon) academny

- Secure cur presence 1 Asia

- Integrate Rowan Dartington mto our Partner
Proposmon

QOur Clentsp 8 «
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INCREASE FUNDS
UNDER MANAGEMENT

What this means:

Management of chient funds 1s at the heart of our
business They are managed through our
distinctive Investment Management Approach
(IMA)

Overali FUM growth 15 driven by successful
Partners supporting satisfied chents, underpmned
by conaistent delivery of the IMA

Focus on delivermng for chents has resulted in
doubiing of FUM over the past five years, as well
as in the five years preceding that Funds under
management has historically increased orgamically
through 15 to 20% growth (over the longer term)
through gross inflows, market leadng retention
experience and superior mvestment returns

Our focus for 2016:

- Continuing focus on the IMA proposition, and
‘select, monitor, change’

- Broadening of the mvestment proposrhion

- Review our ‘stewardship’ focus

- Integratzon of the DFM option mto our overall
approach to mnvestment management

4

ACHIEVE SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN PROFITS

‘What this means:

The princpal source of income for the Group 1s
annual management income from funds under
management As aresult, 1t grows with new
business and with growth m nvestments

Profits, and ultimately dividends, reflect expense
management as well

Sustamable growth m profits involves effective
management of expenditure, both ongong and
development, m order to achteve increasing FUM.
Current year events will inevitably impact the result
in any one year, but focus on building the underlying
fundameantals will lead to growth m profits

Our focus for 2016:

- Manage expense growth to around 10% p.a

- Expenditure focused on safely delivermg our
strategy, including acheving 15-20% growth n
gross mflows

- Idvestment m the busmess to sapport long-term
growth

- Embedding the new Solvency Il regulatory

regune

DOUBUIDAON) l r uonepanoy el § samrel 10 |

Investment Management Approach p 10 4
~~ +

Financal KPIs p 17 P
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OUR OBJECTIVES AND RELATED
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

CLIENTS

TO DELIVER POSITIVE OUTCOMES TO AN
INCREASING POPULATION OF CLIENTS

Progress During 2015

2015 was another successful year as the business continued to
grow Chent numbers grew by 9% contributing to the mcrease
1n mvestment of new funds The quality of the client outcome,
as reflected 10 chent retention and feedback, contimued to be

as strong as ever

CLient NUMBERS

N

Our bustness model 13 based on managing chent wealth and so the number
of clients 13 a key measure of the health of the business Aswellas
reflecting past performance, 1t also indicates future opportumty, as aur
expenence suggests that aver 20% of new business comes from exishing
clients or thesr referrals In 2015, we were pleased that chient nnmbers
ncreased from 484,000 to 525,800 -

CrLEvt RETENTION

Our business1s long-term and client retention feeds directly mto the
finanaal resule However, 1t 15 also an indication of mmmum standards
having been met 'We are therefore dehighted that retention was again
above 95%, continwung the trend 1n recent years

CLIENT ADVOCACY

Qur reputation 1s vitally ruportant to our business model and thus 1s best
expressed through the &xperience of our clients Qur anmal Wealth
Account survey typically recelves over 40,000 responses and provides an
excellent snap-shot of client expenence Inrecent years we have monitored
the trend of responses to the question *Would yourecommend 5t James's

Place to anyone else?’

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

PARTNERS

TO CONTINUE TC GROW AND
DEVELCP THE PARTNERSHIP

Progress During 2015

Our proposition continued to be attractive to advisers i the year
which, alongside development of the existng commmmnity, led to
improvements 1n quality both in terms of business credentials
and quahfications The Partnership also welcomed graduates
from the Academy initiative and new recruits in Asia

NumBser OF PARTNERS

Without our Partners, we would have no chents We were therefore pleased
to deliver growth ahead of our long-term asprations, supported by Academy
Partners and recrintment n Asa Partner numbers grew from 2,132 m 2014

to 2,264 thus year

ParTNER RETENTION

Partner rerention reflects Parmers' controung satisfaction wath eur
proposition but also the maintenance of thesr quahity agaimst the standards
we require We are therefore pleased to note that retention has remained at
the high level of 96% when compared with the prior year

Gross INFLOWS PER PARTNER

Productivity of Partners 15 a measure of their success as business pecple, but
also feeds 1nto success for the Company We are pleased that i 2015
individual adviser productivity continned to increase, leading to an overall
ncrease in gross nflows {updated thit yea: fiom angle premiums to reflect
our funds based metrics) per Partner from £3 9 milhon to £4 2 milhon

Registered No 03183415




FUNDS
TO INCREASE FUNDS UNDER
MANAGEMENT (FUM)

Progress During 2015

In another successful year, new business from clients combined
with positive growth in undertying imvestments resulted i an
merease in total FUM to £58 6 ilion, growth of 13% over the
year This growth feeds through directly to the financial
performance 1n the year

Fuvps UNDER MANAGEMENT

The profitablity measures of the Group are ulnmately driven by the income
we ¢arn from FUM The FUM have exhibited compound annual growth of
17% aver the last ten years

Gross INFLOWS

Gross inflows 1s the gross new mvestment and pensicas business (prinapally
single premium) recerved during the year We uum to grow Gross Inflows by
15-20% per anowm over the long term, which we agawn achieved in 2015

Ner InrLows

Retention of funds 15 a result of satisfied clients and 15 essennial if the FUM
15 tg continue to grow Growth of 14%n the year was higher than we had
expected and reflected lower levels of withdrawal, parucularly due to
pension clients extending retirement and mvestment dients remaimng
mvested through volanle markets

17

FINANCIAL
TO ACHIEVE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH IN
REPORTED PROFIT ON ALL MEASURES

Progress During 2015

Our business model 1s ssmple and 15 aligned with the needs of
both our chents and our Partners Strong performance in those
areas combined with positive investment performance to
underpin the financal results We are pleased to reporta
continuation of the trend of recent years

EEV OperATING PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The EEV reporting basis assesses the full value of the emergence of
shareholder cash returns over the long term New business (Gross Inflows) 1s
the most significant underlying driver of EEV Operating Profit, but postne
experience variances and operating assumption changes also contributed to
the growth of 11% year on year

ProFrT BEFORE SHAREHOLDER Tax

Whlst steady grawth in the fundamentals of the business underpinned the
2015 result of £151 3 mullion, there were & number of larger non-operanonal
e costs that impacted the result These included an increase n the FSCS
levy, an inc1case 1n the investment in aur hack office infrastructure and the
negative contribution from movements in DAC/DIR/PVIF mtangibles

DiIviDEND

Growth in profit measures, paticularly cash, means the Company Is able to
racrease the level of didend We are pleased to confirm an increase of 20% m
divadend in the year, bringing the total increase over the last § years to 366%

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT

Andrew Croft
Chuef Financial Officer

As highlighted earlier, 2015 was
another year of strong operating

perz_'ﬁ:vrmance with growth in all the
business ﬁfndamentals.’

The financial results reflect this operating performance but they were also impacted by both a sigmificant increase
in the levy charged by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS levy} and the higher costs assocated with
anumber of strategrc investments we are makang n the business, laying foundations for the future

The ESCS levy for the year was £20 1 million (£15 9 nullion post tax), an increase of £14.2 milhon compared to the
prior year charge of £5 9 million (£4 7 million post tax)

The costs assocated with our strategic mvestments include the Academy at £5 5 mllion (2014 £4 1 rmullion),
our Asian operations at £7 5 millon (2014 £3 6 milhon) and our back office mnfrastructure development at

£18 1 mllion (2014 £11 9 mllon)

The additional FSCS levy and these investment costs affect all the profit measures

Finanaal Results
We continue to report our results on both IFRS and EEV bases, as well as providing further detal on the cash

' result, reflecting cash emergence from the business D etailed explanation and analysis of these measures 15 provided

on pages 20 and 21

IFRS Result
We present both the Profit before shareholder tax, which removes the impact of pohcyholder tax, and Underlying

profit before shareholder tax, which adjusts the Profit before shareholder tax for movements 1n intangible assets and
habilities (DAC/DIR/PVIF see page 27)

ST JAMES'S PLACE FLCANNUAL REPOR1 AND ACCOUNTS 2015 Registeied No (3183415




We regard Underlying profit as the most appropriate measure,
based upon IFRS, for assessing operating performance

The performance on these measures 1s noted 1n the table below.

2015 2014

£Millhion £'Mithon

Profit before shareholder tax 151.3 182 %
Underlying profit before

shareholder tax 163.7 173 6

Both measures have been impacted by the £14 2 milhon increase
i the FSCS levy together with the higher costs associated with
qur mvestment 1n laying the foundations for the future In
addition the Profit before shareholder tax result has also been
adversely affected by a reducton of £21 7 milhon 1 contribution
from movements in the DAC/DIR /PVIF adjustments

Cash Result

At£182 1 milkon (2014 £173 8 mullion), the Underlymg cash
result for the year was-up 59, reflecting the strong underlying
growth n mcome from Funds under Management (up 18%),
partially offset by the additional FSCS levy (£11 2 mulhon post-tax)
together with the Acedemy and Asian expenditure For
comparison, if we were to adjust for the increase in the FSCS Ievy,
the Underlying Cash Result would have been some 11% higher

Tekung into account the cost of our investment into the back
office infrastructure and other iming vanances, the Cash result
was £171 5 millron (2014 £165 1 mallion}

EEV Result

The new business profit of £440 7 million (2014 £373 1
milhon) was up 18% reflecting the strong gross inflows, whilst
the Operating profit for the period was £660 2 milhon (2014
£596 4 rmthen)

The Operating profit reflects not only the Ingher new business
profit but alsc a further posiive expenience vartance and a
positive operating assumption change, partially offset by the
higher FSCS levy and investment costs The 2015 result 1s also
negatively impacted by a lower opening sk discount rate (5 0%
n 2015 vs 6 2% 1n 2014}, resulting in a lower contribution from
the unwind of discount rate of some £41 4 million less than that
expected if the discount rate was unchanged

The net asset value per share increased 12% over the year to
737 3 pence (2014 657 3 pence).

Dividend
At the half year we mcreased the interim dividend by 20% and
commented 1t was our intention to mcrease the final dividend at

a strnilar rate

Given the continued strong performance of the busness, the
Board has proposed a final dividend of 17 24 pence per share, up
20% Ths provides for a full year dividend of 27 96 pence per
share, also growth of 20%, and represents a payout ratwo
compared to underlying cash of 80% However, if we adjust the
underlying cash result to remove the increase in the FSCS levy,
then the payout rabo would be 76%

It 1s our intention to continue our policy of increasing the
dividend in line with the underlying performance of the

business

Capital and Solvency Il

‘We conunue to manage the balance sheet prudently to ensure the
Group’s solvency 15 maintaned safely through the economuc cycle
Thas 15 important not enly for the safeguarding of our chents’
assets, but also to ensure we can maintain returns to shareholders

The start of 2016 sees the mtroduction of a new regulatory
solvency regime known as Solvency II The underlymng driver of
the new Solvency I regulation 13 to focus attention on risk and
risk management Whilst the regulations introduce extensive
new valuation and reporting requirements, some presentational
changes and a number of moving parts, 1t has not altered our
business or risk profile, and our solvency position rerains both
robust and secure

After talang account of the £50 § milhon cost of the proposed
final diidend, we are reporting Solvency Il free assets at the
Group level of £809 2 million compared to corresponding
Solvency I free assets of £440 2 mailion,

The new Solvency 11 solvency ratio at the Group level 15 151%
{156% before the final proposed dividend)

Concluding Remarks .
2015 was another strong financial performance which has
enabled the Board to propose a 20% increase 1 the dividend

Our core business and 1ts financals are 1n good shape. As noted
in my opening remarks, we have already been laying strategic
foundations for the future, which now includes the acquusition of
the discretionary fund. management busimess Rowan Dartington
‘We are well set for further growth, and continung to increase
the return to shareholders

Andrew Croft
Chief Fainancial Offscer
22 March 2016
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Model

The Group’s strategy 15 to attract and retain retail funds under
management {FUM) on which we receive an annual management
fee This 1s the princpal source of ncome for the Group, from
whach we mvest i growth and development of the Partnership,
acquiring new funds under management and meeting the
expenses of the business

The level of income 15 dependent on the'level of chient funds and
asset values In addinon, since much of our business does not
generate net cash in the first sux years, the level of income wall
merease as a result of new business from six years ago becoming
cash generative This deferral of cash generation means the
business always has six years’ worth of funds in the ‘gestation’
pertod (Analysis of the FUM from whuch income 1s generated 1s
presented in Section 1)

Group expenditure 15 carefully managed with clear targets set for
growthin establishment expenses i the year Many other
expenses increase with busmess levels and are met from margins
m the products However, the Group also vests 1n new chent
services, computer systems and other corporate inthatives, all of
whach are reported as development expenditure (Analys:s of the
Expenses 15 presented 1n Section 2)

A small proportion of Group expenditure is required to support
management of existing funds, but the majonity of expenditure 15
mvestment m growing the Partnership and acquiring new funds
The resulting new business 1s expected to generate Income for an
average of 14 years, and provide a good return on the nvestment

(see page 23)

As the business matures, the proportion of the cash emergence
from the ex1sting business required to support the acqusitzon of
new business 1s reducing Thas has resulted in strong growth mn
underlymg cash emergence in recent years whch has ulomately
fed through to growthm the dividend

5T JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Profit Measurement

In hne with statutory reporting requirements we report profits
assessed on an IFRS basis However, given the long-term nature
of the business and the high level of investment m new busmess
generation each year, management believes the IFRS result does
not provide an easy guide to the cash likely to emerge 1n future
years, nor does it reflect the total economic value of the business
‘We therefore complement our statutory IFR S8 reporting with
additional analysis

Farstly, we provide additional analysis m relation to the tax
reported under IFRS The IFRS methodology requires that the
tax recogmsed m the financial statements should include the tax
ncurred on behalf of policyholders 1n our UK life assurance
company Since the policyholder tax charge 15 unrelated to the
performance of the business and 1s paid on to HMRC,
management believes it 15 useful to separately dentify the profit
before shareholder tax This measure reflects the IFRS profit
before tax, adjusted for tax paid on behalf of policyholders

Secondly, the IFRS standards promote recogmnon of profits in
line with the provision of services and so, for long-term business,
some of the mnitial cash flows are spread over the hfe of the
contract through the use of mtangble assets and habilites
{known as DAC — Deferred Acqusition Costs and DIR ~
Deferred Income) Due to regulation change m 2013 there was 2
step change 1n the progression of these 1tems, which resulted 1n
sigmificant accounting presentation changes desprte the
fundamentals of our vertically-integrated busimess remaimng
unchanged We therefore prcseﬁt an addiional ‘non-GAAP’
underlymg profit measure which 15 derived from the IFRS
result by adjusting for these mtangibles Management beheves
this adjusted IFRS result provides the most useful measure of
operating performance

Thirdly, the cash result and underlying cash result are the
principal measures that the Board considers when determinmg
the dividend payment to shareholders as they best reflect the cash
generated by the busmess
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The Board starts by consdering the underlyng cash result, which
most clearly reflects the impact of the primary drivers of the
business (being FUM and expenses as described i Sections 1 and
2} This s desived from the underlying profit measure, principally
by adjusting for differences between deferred and current tax,
share option costs and some solvency reserve impacts

Other cash flows are taken 1nto account 1 the Cash result, not
least tax settlement timing vanances and changes in solvency
reserving requirements Allowance 15 also made for the cost of
the back-office infrastructure development

These two measures are presented with a breakdown explaining
the sources of profit based on the key drivers of the business,
with the aim of assisting investors to understand the
development of profits The Board also beheves 1t 15 useful to
understand the contribution to profits from just the in-force
business as this reflects the value being generated by the exising
business, and so the breakdown 1dentifies the new busmess
mmpact and makes clear the ongoing contribution from the
estabhshed business

Nesther the cash result nor the underlying cash result should be
confused with the IFRS cash flow statement which 1s prepared
1n accordance with IAS 7 and disclosed on page 118

Finally, we also present an embedded value result Management
believes this approach 1s particularly useful for investors seelang
to assess the full value of the long-term emergence of
shareholder cash returns, since it includes an asset in the
valuation reflecting the net present value of the expected future
cash flows from the business This type of presentation 1s also
commonly referred to as a ‘discounted cash flow’ valuation

Our embedded value 15 besed on the EEV principles, which
were set out as an industry standard by the Chuef Finanaal
Officers (CFQO} Forum in 2004

Many of the future cash flows derve from fund charges, which
change with movements 1n stock markets Since the impact of
these changes 15 unrelated to the performance of the business,
management beleves that the EEV operating profit
(refiecting the EEV profit before tax, adjusted to reflect only
the expected investment performance and no change 1n
economue basis) provides the most useful measure of
performance in the year

We have provided an analysis of the FUM development in
Section ! and Expenses in Section 2 Section 3 proudes a
commentary on the performance of the busmess on the IFRS
basis whilst Sections 4 and 5 provde further detadl on the Cash
and EEV results Finally, Section 6 covers the Solvency and
Capital Management
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

SECTION 1: FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

This section starts with analysis of the movement n the funds under management of the Group Thus 15 followed by information about
the mcome the Group earns from managing these funds, together with the profile of these earnings, and finally a geographical and

segmental analys:s of the funds under management

Movement in Funds Under Management
During 2015 we have seen gross new funds of £9 24 bilkon, growth of 17% and 2 net inflow of funds under management of

£5 78 bilhon (2014 £5 09 hilhon), growth of 14% Investment return has also been positive although not as strong asin the prior
year Nevertheless, piven the strong net nflow, and the positive investment performance, funds under management mcreased to

£58 61 billion

Analysis of the development of the funds under management 15 provided mn the following tables

Year Ended 31 December 2015 Note Investment Pension uT/ISA Total
£Bilhon £Billion £Bilhon £Bilhon
Opening funds under menagement 21.14 18 08 12.79 5201
Gross flows 2.45 366 3.13 9,24
Net investment return 0.19 038 0.25 082
Regular income withdrawals and maturities (0.48) {0.62) - (1.10)
Swrrenders and part surrenders 2 (0.78) (0.64) (0.94) (2.36)
Closing funds under management 22.52 20 86 15.23 58 61
Netinflows 1.19 240 2.19 5.78
Implied surrender rate as a percentage of average
36% 3.3% 6.7% 4.3%

funds under management

In addition, there 15 a further £430 million of funids under management 1n thurd party funds within our Asta business

Year Ended 31 December 2014 Nate Investment Pension UT/ISA Tatal
£'Billien £'Billion £'Billion £Bllen
Opemng funds under management 18 74 15 36 10 20 44 30
Gross inflows 270 2 43 275 788
Net investment return 0 87 117 058 2 62
Regular income withdrawals and maturites 1 (0 43) ©42) - (0 85)
Surrenders and part surrenders 2 (074 (0 46) 74 (194
Closing funds under management 21 14 18 08 12 79 52 01
Net mflows 153 155 201 509
Implied surrender rate as a percentage of average
3 % 2 8% 6 4% 4 0%

funds under management

In addition, there was a further £449 milhion of funds under management 1n third party funds withun our Asia busmess .

Notes

1 Regularincome withdrawalare those ameuats sclected by cllents which arc pald cut by way ol periodic income The withdrawals bave been assmmed in the caloulation of the embedded value new
buuness profic
Maturties are those sums paid out where the plan hasreached the selected maturity

new buosiness profit
2 Surrenders and part surrenders are thase amounts where chients have chosen to withdraw money from thelr plin Surrenders are assumed to occur in the caleulation of the cmbedded value new

business profit bated on sctual eaperieace, updated on an ennual basls, by plan dusation apd the age of the client. The mmplied sorrender ratc shown in the table above fs very much s stmple svenge
and reflects anly recent experience Whilst it could be compared with the long term assumptions underlying the alenlation of the embedded value, it should not be assumed that small movements Ia

this rate wiliresult [na ehange to the long term embedded vatue assumptions

datc (e g retirement date) The expected maturitics have been sssumed [n the calcutstion of the embedded value

Fees on Funds Under Management
As noted at the start of this Financial Review, our financial model 15 to attract and retam retail funds under management (FUM}) on

which we receive an annual management fee
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The net annual management fee retamed by the Group 1s ¢ 0 77% post tax However, due to our product structure, investment and
pension business does not generate net cash in the first six years Consequently, the level of mcome we are receming today 1s not fully
representative of the expected earnings from the funds we are managing, and these earnings will increase as a result of the new
business from six years ago becoming cash generative This deferral of cash generation means there 1s always six years’ worth of

business m the ‘gestation’ period

Our product structure mvolves an early withdrawal charge that reduces to zero over the first six years of the bife of the policy Thus
allows us to establish an opening hability net of the outstanding withdrawal charge that would apply if the policy were to be encashed

As the withdrawal charge reduces to zero over the first six years of the policy, so the hability to the policyholder 1s enhanced by
increasing their funds by 1% per annum In other words, there 15 a cost which offsets the anmual management fee above Thas s

known as the “unwind’ of the withdrawal charge

As a result thys business does not make a meamingful contribution to the cash result unbi year seven The table below provides an
estmated current value of the funds under management where the early wathdrawal charge applies

Year Total

£Billion
2010 20
2011 24
2012 27
2013 37
2014 39
2015 45
Total 19.2

These funds under management are not yet generating meome within the cash result but wall do so once the six year early withdrawal
charge 15 fully unwound This £1% 2 billion represents appromimately a third of the total funds under management whach, 1f all the
busmess reached the end of the early withdrawal charge period, would contribute an additional £147 7 million to the annual post-tax

cash result

Although, as noted above, a proportien of the new chent funds do not generate a meamngful net income to the Group wathun the first
six years, the Group does incur costs associated with attracting these new funds and therefore the Directors believe it 15 useful to
provide details of the economic return we expect will be generated from the new business In other words, the business case for the
mvestment 1n attracting new clients and funds under management

As detailed later 1n this review on page 29, a net cost of £84 2 mallion (2014 £62 7 mullhion) has been incurred to attract the
£9 24 buhon of gross new funds (2014 £7 88 billion) The mcrease m thus net cost has been impacted by a sigmficant mcrease 1n

the FSCSlevy

We regard tlus as an investment 10 new business which we expect to generate income in the future significantly exceeding this cost
and therefore provide posiave returns far shareholders The table below provides details of the new business added during the
reporting pertods and different measures of valung the investment

Year Ended . Year Ended
31 December 31 Deczmber

2015 2014
Gross inflows (£'Billion}) 9.24 788
Post-tax investment i new business (£’Milhon) (84 2) (627)
Post-tax present value of expected profit from mvestment (£'Million) 358.9 298 4
Cost of new business (% of new money invested)* 0 9% 0 8%
New business margn (% of new money invested) 4 8% 4 7%
Cash payback period (years) 5 4
Internal rate of return {net of tax) 22 1% 26 1%

*  The Investment a3 a percentage of pet fnflow of funds under management was | 5% compared with t 2% for 2004
~
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Geographical and Segmental Analysis
The table below provides a geographical and segmental analysis of funds under managementat the end of each year

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

£B:llion % of total £'Ballion % of total
UK Equities 15.6 27% 149 29%
North American Equities 131 22% 104 20%
Fixed Interest 8.8 15% 71 14%
European Equities 62 11% 60 11%
Asa & Pacafic Equitics 419 8% 48 9%
Cash 46 8% 4 4 8%
Property 22 4% 15 3%
Alternative Investments 1.3 2% c9 2%
Other 1.9 3% 20 4%
Total 58.6 100% 520 100%

SECTION 2: EXPENSES

Management Expenses
The table below provides the usual breakdown of the management expenditure (before tax) for the combned financal services activitzes

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Nots 2015 2014
£Mallzon £'Millon
Pard from pelicy morgins and advice charges
Partner remuneraticn i 518.5 455 4
Investment expenses 1 121.9 124 6
Third party admimstration 1 56.6 44 3
697.0 624 3
Durect expenses
Other performance related costs 2 94.3 868
Establishment costs 3 139.4 125 1
Academy costs 4 5.5 41
Other development costs 5 211 156
Back office infrastructurc costs 6 181 192
Regulatory fees 7 7.5 61
FSCS levy 8 201 59
Contribution from third party product sales 9 {25.4) (22 4)
280.6 2331
Total 977.6 857 4
Notes

1 Thesc costsarc met from corresponding policy margins and wny variationin them from changes [n the volumes of new business or the level of the stock markets does not der:Ctl)' impact the

profitability of the Group
2 Otherperformance related costs, for both Partacrs and ersployees, vary with the lovel of new business and operating profit performance of the business
3 Establishment costsare the runaing easts of the Group's infrastructare and are relatively fixed in nature in the short term, elthough they yre subject to inflatronary increases These costs will
increase as the infrastructure expands to manage the higher number of clients, the growang oumber of advisers and increasing business volames
The growth in establishment cxpenses durlng the year was higher than our origmal expectations a5 x consequence ofan increase In expend:ture associated with the high level of adviser recrultment
in the year together with the costs relating to the higher bosiness volomes
Dunng 2016 we will be cxpanding our presenée la Londan wath a new offite opening in Canary Wharfas wel! ws taking additional space In out existing London locanoms Reflecting this
Iditionsf expenditure, we expeet establish p in 2016 10 by ¢ 11% (B 5% before theac additional property cotts)

.
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4  The Academy coatinnes to be an important strategic Envestment for the future The additione] expenditare duving 2015 refleeted both the increased number of Academy parti
with the expansion of the programme vo Manchester and Solthull 2016 spend will socresse [orther to #n expested £7 5 million, reflecung continued Academy ntakes in Lum:lun lddlmmal

Intakes in Manchester and Solchell, plus car Brst Academy intake in Edinbrrgh,

5 Other development costs represest the cpenditure stsodated with the en-golng devel inoarl proposition, corp Initiatives, technology improvements sod other system
develop Theze ted to £21 1 million Jor the year (2014 £15 6 mﬂ.hon) Indluded within thesc costs {s £1 6 mullion 1n relation to due diligence and transsction costs of our
i of Rowan Dy
E) -

We will continae to mvest iz the besiness snd anticipate development speed in 2016 to be tn line with the previoos year

& The costs of the back office investment, programme and related costs were £18 | million (2014 £11 9 mallion)
The change programme bas contluued to progress well during 2015, albeit the project 1 running behind and costing more than our arlginal plan Daring the final quarter of last year we
undertook full migration of the wnut crust and {5A business onto the new system. Tha was a significant milestone for the project and we will start to sec the benefits accrue In 2016 (within the EEV
resnlt an assunrption change has been made to reflect the lower charges which now apply to the existing bunness)
Having succensfully completed this phase of the project, during 2018 we will launch a new retirement account and plan the migration of the existing pension and drawdawn business, once the
penslons lindscepe is clear Ag we continue to develop the rystem snd migrate the existing business we will incur further lovestment expeaditure and anticipate costs for 2016 of 2 mmilar smount
152015

7  The regulatory costyrepresent the fees payable to the regulatory bodies of £7 § millan (2014 £6 1 million), we expect 2016 costs to increase to same £8 § million

8 Thisrepresents our required contribution to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme of £20 1 million (2014 £5 9 milllon)
The Ley draver of this inerease relates to our share of cumpenzation claims made by the FSCS in relation to external fasdures within the life and pension intermediary regulatory category Whilst we
are anticipating @ further elevated levy In 2016 (our current estintate s for a levy of ¢.£16 O millica), we expect s mere normalised level in fistiore years.

9  Contributien from thurd party product aew busincss reflects the net incomve received from wealth management business of £10 0 million (2014 £9 0 miltion), from group pension business of £0 9
mullfon (2014 £0 B rillion) and from protection business of £14 5 rullion (2014 £12 € million)

The table below provides a reconahation from these management expenses to the total group expenses included in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 114

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3§ December
- 2015 2014
£Mllion £'Million
Expenses per table above 977.6 8574
Reversal of contribution from third party product sales 254 22 4
Other expenses
DAC movement 680 758
Amortisation of PVIF 3.2 32
Investment transaction costs 19.0 206
Share option costs 15.7 114
Share option NI 3.4 27
Acquired IFA operating costs ’ ) 67 60
SjP Asia operating costs 7.5 36
Interest expense 4.4 38
Charitable donations ' 3.5 36
Other 15.7 12 4
147 1 143 1

Total expenses 1,150.1 1,022 5

SECTION 3: INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (TFRS)
The performance of the business and the IFRS result are best understood through the key drivers of FUM and expenses as described
wn the previous sections, together with other miscellaneous cash flows These combine to explamn the Underlying cash result on which

the Underlying profit and the TFRS result develop

The following table starts with the Underlymg cash result (deteiled 1 Section 4 on page 25) and provides a reconaihation to the
Underlying profit result and the IFRS result

The results are reported ‘after tax’ and also ‘before shareholder tax’ In arnving at the profit befare shareholder tax {which 1s
effectively “after policyholder tax’), it 15 necessary to estimate the analysis of the total tax charge between that payable i respect of
pohicykolders and that payable by sharcholders Shareholder tax 1s assessed based on the effective rate of tax that s apphcable to the
shareholders, with the balance being treated as tax 1n respect of pohicyholders Further detail 1s provided on page 28 of this review

and 1 Note 8 on page 135
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

SECTION 3: INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (1FRS) continued

2015 2014
Before Before
Shareholder Shareholder
Tax After Tax Tax After Tane*
£ivhlhon £Mllton £'Mllion £'Malhon
Underlying cash 197.0 182.1 192 9 173 8
Share options {15.7) (15.0) (14 (11 4)
Deferred tax impacts - 52.1 - 346
Solvency reserves ) (1.8) (18) 74D (74)
Back office infrastructure (18.1) (14.4) (11 9) 93
Variance 2.3 3.8 11 4 06
Underlying profit 163.7 206.8 173 6 180 9
DAC/DIR/PVIF (124) (4.8) 93 70
IFRS profit 151.3 202.0 182 % 187 9

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Decomber

2015 2014

Pence Pence

IFRS basic earmings per share 389 366

IFRS diluted earmings per share 385 359

Underlying basic earnings per share 39.8 352

Underly:ng diluted earnings per share 394 346

Underlymg cash basic earmngs per share 34.6 338

Underlying cash diluted earnings per share 34.2 332

Underlying Profit before Shareholder Tax

- A breakdown%:y segment of the underlymg profit result 13 provided 1n the following table

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Decomber

2615 2014

£¥illion £'Malhon

Life business 174 2 160 7

Unit Trust business 707 612

244.9 2219

Funds management bustness

(212) (109)

Distribution business
Back office infrastructure development {18.1) (11 9)
Other {419 (25 5)

Underlymg profit before shareholder tax 163.7 i73 6

Funds Management
The profit for the year to 31 December 2015 was £244 9 milbion (2014 £221.9 mullion) whch was 10% hagher than the prior year

The increase mainly reflects hagher income from funds under management

Distrtbution Business
St James’s Place 15 a vertically integrated firm, allowing it to benefit from the synergres of combining management of funds with

distribution Therefore, as well as the income generated on the funds under management, there 15 a profit or loss from the
distribution activity In any one year, this result will depend upon the level of new business and expenses
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The 2015 result has been negatively impacted by a ssgmificantly
hagher contnbution to the FSCS, which for the year was

£20 1 mullon (2014 £5 9 million) The Asian business also made
a loss m the year of £7 0 milhon (2014 £1 7 mullion for the part
year 1n 2014) reflecting the corporate mvestment in securing

this business After adjusting for these costs 1n both years, there
was a trading profit of £5 9 milhon in the current year compared
with a trading loss of £3 3 milhon 1n 2014

Back Office Development

Asnoted on page 25, the costs incurred during the year on the
back office development project (known as Bluedoor) were £18 1
msllion (2014 £11 9 mulhon)

Other

Other operations made 2 negative contribution of £41 % milhon
(2014 loss of £25 5 mulhon) The largest contrbutors to the
result are share option activity and strategic investment activity
{other than the back office development :dentified separately
above) The higher share option cost of £15 7 mullion 1n the
current year (2014 £11 4 rmlhon) reflects the launch of a new
Partner share scheme 1n the second half of 2015 The expected
full year share option cost for 2016 15 £19 7 milhion

NI costs assocated with the exercise of share options were also
higher 1n the year at £3 4 mullion (2014 £2 7 mulhon)
Investment 1n strategic developments, including the Academy,
Asta proposttion development and Rowan Dartington, also
increased from £6 4 mallion to £8 4 muilhon

Total

The total underlymg profit before shareholder tax for the year
was £163 7 milhion compared with £173 6 nmullion 1n 2014 The
lower result in 2015 reflects the increase 1n share option costs,
the higher FSCS levy and the back office development costs in
the year Adjusting for these items in both years provides a hke
for like companson of £217 6 rmullion for 2015, up 7 3% from
£202 8 million for the prior year

DAC/DIR/PVIF

As noted 1n the following table, the net movement 1o these
intengibles resulted in a negative contribution to profit before tax
of £12 4 mallion for the year compared with a posttive
contribution to profit of £9 3 million 1n 2014

27

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Before Before
Shareholder Shareholder
Tax After Tax Tax After Tax
£¥allion £Millzon £ Millian £'Million
Amortsation
credit 12 4 i58 283 22 1
Arising on new
business (24.8) (20 6) (19 0y (15 1)
Movement in
year (12.4) (4 8) 93 70

The reduction, year on year, in the amortisation credit before
shareholder tax 1s the consequence of the changes in adviser
charging rules in 2013, whach altered the nature of certan cash
flows m the Group, moving them from long term manufactuning
margins to short term advice margins The posihve contnibution
from the amortisation of accurnulated DAC, DIR and PVIF
balances from prior years has, as anhaipated and reported
previously, reduced during 2015 Tn 2016 we expect 1t to reduce
by a further £20 milhon and become a charge as the amortisation
of outstanding deferred expenses exceeds the recognition of
deferred income Further reductions i future years should be
expected as the lustonc balances are unwound

The smaller reduction 1n the amortisation credit after tax
mcludes a £5 9 millron credit which 1s the impact of the changes
in future corporation tax rates which 1s explained i more detal
in the section on shareholder tax on page 28 The impactis a
credit because the deferred tax Iability assocated wath the DAC
and PVIF balances exceeds the deferred tax hiabihty associated
with the DIR balances

By contrast wath the amortisation credit, the negative
contribution arising on new business has increased during 2016
reflecting the higher new business levels This will continue to
move 1n line with new business volumes

It1s important to note the mntangible and deferred nature of these
items, meamng that they don't reflect the operating performance
of the bustness This 1s why management regards the Underlying
profit measure as the most appropnate measure, based upon
IFRS, for assessing operating performance

Profit before Shareholder Tax

The profit before shareholder tax for the year was £151 3 mulhon
compared with £182 9 mulhion 1n 2014 As the analysis in the
paragraphs above demonstrates, the lower result 1n the current
year reflects the sigmificant mcrease 1 the FSCS levy, the
increased 1nvestment 1n back-office development and other
corporate 1ruhiatives, but also a negative £21 7 million
contrtbution from the movement 1n DAC/DIR/PVIF mtangibles
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Shareholder Tax

The tax reported under IFRS each year 1s impacted by a vanety
of effects, both current and future, particularly one-off events
such as the change in corporation tax rate Therefore, to assist
shareholders, the table below provides a high level analysis of
shareholder tax and the imphed tax rate A more detailed
analysis 15 mcluded 1n Note 8 to the financal statements

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

L£Millron £'Mallion
Expected shareholder tax (29 2) @As7
Recogmition of capatal losses 74.8 395
Other tax adjustments 0.6 12
Corporation tax rate change 4.5 -
Actual sharebolder tax 50.7 50
Expected shareholder tax rate 19.3% 19 5%
Actual shareholder tax rate (33.5%) (2 T%)

The expected shareholder tax princpally reflects the
current UK corperation tax and overseas rates applicable and
will vary from year to year depending upon the emergence of
profit between the different tax regimes which apply to the
St James'’s Place Group companies

In the second half of 2015, management completed the review of
all historic Group compantes,  project that commenced a number
of yearsago During this process management rlentified further
capital losses which 1t 15 expected will be utilised over the next ten
years, albert the actual rate of utihsation will depend on business
growth and external factors, particularly investment market
condiions The rate of utilisation has been tested for sensitwvity to
expergnce and 1t 1s restlent to a range of reasonably foreseeable
scenanos Therefore a further deferred tax asset of £74 8 rulhion
has been established within the IFRS result

A further two reductions in the corporation tax rate (from 20%
to 19% 10 Apnil 2017 followed by a further cut to 18% m April
2020) were announced i the 2015 Summer budget and included
1 the Finance (No2) Act 2015 The impact of these changes on
the deferred tax assets and lhabihiies has been included as a
reduction mn tax of £4 5 milhon

The overall xmpact of the above effects 15 to increase the tax

credit reported mn the profit before shareholder tax result toa
credit of £50 7 mulhon (2014 credst of £5 0 milkon)
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IFRS Profit
The total IFRS result s presented in the table below, grossed up
for the inclusion of tax incurred on behalf of poheyhelders

Year Ended Year Ended
D b 31 D b

2015 2014

EMallion £'Wallion

IFRS profit before tax 174.1 294 4
Pohcyholder tax (22.8) (111 5)
Profit before shareholder tax 151.3 1829
Shareholder tax 50.7 50
202.0 187 9

IFRS profit after tax

In 2015, the IFRS profit before tax for the year was £174 1
mllion (2014 £294 4 mlhon) with the principal contribution to
the.change beng the decrease in the policyholder tax charges
from £111 5 milhon 1n 2014 to £22 8 mlhon n the current year

The policybolder tax charge depends on the level of
underlying pohicyholder taxable benefit determined by growth in
value of the SJP funds The higher charge in 2014 reflects lugher
growthn policyholders’ funds in that year compared to the

current year

The IFRS profit after tax for the year was £202 0 mulion
compared to £187 9 milhon for 2014, which reflects the impact
from the recognition of capital losses as already covered

Analysis of IFRS Assets and Net Assets per Share
The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the IFRS
position at the reporting dates

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

£'Million £'Milhon

Purchased value of in-force* 274 29 4
Deferred acquisinion costs¥* 6272 662 2
Deferred income* - (368 3) (398 7)
Other IFRS net assets 199 8 145 2
Solvency net assets 609.0 5720

Total IFRS net assets 1,095.1 1,010 1

*  nctofdeferred tax

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Pence Pence

2087 194 5

Netasset value per share
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SECTION 4: CASH RESULY
The Cash and Underlying cash results should not be confused wath the IFRS cash flow statement wiich s prepared in accordance

with IAS 7 and disclosed on page 118

The Cash result and Underlying cash result are the principal measures the Board considers when determining the divedend payment to
sharehclders The Board starts by considering the Underlymng cash result, which most clearly reflects the rmpact of the primary drivers of
the business (bemg FUM and expenses as described m Sections 1 and 2) Thiss denived from the Underlymng profit measure, principally
by adjusting for differences between deferred and current tax, share option costs and some solvency reserve impacts

Other cash flows are also taken into account in the Cash result, not least tax settlement tming variances and changes m solvency
reserving requirements Allowance 15 also made for the cost of the back office development In consdering the dividend the Darectors
will take into account the impact of the Cash result on the overall capital position of the Group

The Cash result and Underlying cash result, which are presented after tax, are a combination of the cash emerging from the business
1n force at the start of the year less the investment made o acquire new business during the year The tables and commentary below

provide an indicative analyss of the cash result into these two elements

x

Year Ended 31 December 2015 Note In-Force New Business Total
£'Mailion £'Mulhon £Mllzon
Net annual management fee 1 406 7 33.5 440 2
Unwind of early withdrawal charge 2 (143.1) (18 5) (161.6)
Net income from funds under management 263.6 15.0 2786
Margn arising from new business 3 - 41.7 41.7
Establishment expenses 4 (11.t) (100.2} (111.3)
Development expenses 5 - (21.2) (21 2)
Regulatory fees 6 (0.6) (5-2) (5.8)
FSCSlevy 7 (16) (14.3) {159)
Shareholder mterest 8 86 — 86
Tax relief from capital losses 9 12.1 - 121
Miscellaneous 10 47 - 4.7
Underlying cash result 2663 (84 2) 182.1
Back office infrastructure development 11 (14 4)
Varance 12 3.8
Cash result 1715
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

SECTION 4: CASH RESULT continued

Year Ended 31 Deeember 2014 Note In-Farce  New Business Total

£ Mallion £ Malhon £'Million

Net annual management fee i 344 1 293 373 4
Unwind of early withdrawal charge 2 (121 0) (16 1) (137 1)

2231 132 236 3

Net income from funds under management

- 36 6 366

Margin arismg from new business 3
Establishment expenses 4 @9 (88 5) (58 4)
Development expenses 5 - (15 6) (15 6)
Regulatory fees 6 0 3) “+2) “*7)
FSCS levy 7 (0.5) “2) “7)
Sharehclder interest 8 77 - 77
Tax rehief from capital losses 9 167 - 167
Miscellaneous 10 01 - on
Underlying cash resulit 2365 ©27) 173 8
Back office infrastracture development 11 (23)
Variance 12 06
Cash result i65 1
Notes
Al numbers are expressed after tax at the prevalling tax rave for cach year
doosts e g L advisory fees and Paxtner

1 Thenet annuzl mansgement fee, Thisls the manvficturing margin the Group retaing from funds under management after payment of the
rermnneraton) Broadly speaking the Group retains an average rate of 0 77% {post tax) of funds under management (2014- 0 77% post tax)

The level of net annoal management fee was some 18% higher than last year, reflecting the higher sverage funds under mapagement in 2015

Farther analysis of the FUM generating the net annual management fee, and the outlook, 15 presented in Section 1 on puge 22

Unwind of early withdrawal charge: Thisrelates to the reserving methodology 2pplied to the carly withdrawal charge within the strocture of single premiam life and pension business At the ontset of
the produet wa eseablich a Hability net of the outstanding withdrawal charge which would upply if the policy were tobe encashed As the withdrawal charge reduces by 1% per annum to zero aver the
first six years (the ‘gestation’ period), the liabaliry to the policyholder increases This cost it known as the ‘anwimd of early withdrawal charge’ In practice ft offscts the annul management fec sbove.
Like the net annual management fiee, the umwind of the wathdrawal charge bas increased due to growth In funds under management. H ) the Is also impacted by the fact that the
fands under management added six years ago have completed the withdrawal charge peried

Further commentary on the unwind of the withdrawal charge, together with (nformation oa the FUM still in the gestation period, is prestated 1 Section 1 on page 23

Margin arising from new busness Thists the cash impact of new business in the year, reflecting growth o new business and production rclated expenses

Establishment expenses These are the expenses of running the Group's infrastrucure Further analysis is presented in Section 2 on page 24

Devel P These repr the expenditure on Group develop Further analysls is presented in Secuon 2 on page 25

3
Reguhtory feor Thisveflects the fees payable to the Regrltory bodies Further analysls is presented 1n Section 2 on page 25

FSCS levy- This reflects the Full year levy Further analysisis preseated in Section 2 on page 25

Skarcholder Intercst This Is the assumed income accruing on the investments aad cash held for regulatory purposes together wath the interest received on the surplus capital held by the Groop
Tax relief of capits} losses. In recent years, & deforred tax asscthas been established for historlc capital losses which ure cow regarded as bang capable of utilssation over the medwm term Duning
the year £12 1 mllion tax valng of these losscs has been utilised (2014 £16 7 milllon) benefitimg the cash resule by the same amount, In both years the actual taxlosses wnlised exceeded the

Wom o tn how

expected £8-19 million beoefitin a year
Since the tax losscs have been recognised immediately throagh s deferred tax asset in the IFRS result, atilisation of tax losses in the cash result is offset in the IFRS results because of the reduction
in the deferred tax asset.
10 Mlsccll Thisrep
expenses (due to structural timing differences in the Life company tax computation)
11 Back office infrastrocture These costs relate to a major project which bas combined
system, enabling them to deltver improved service snd improved efficiency for the business Forther analysls is presented in Section 2 an page 25
Variance This refleets varlances In the cash result In 2 year due to the bmpact of actial experience (includiag econamic assumptions changes and investment performance) on msuranoe rescrves; ax
well a3 variances 1n the settlement of tax related Labil k the policyhalders {onit-hinked funds), the shareholder and HMRC [n both years the variances arise mainly from policyholder-

tax charge ellects

the cash Aow of the business not covered {n any of the other categoties, including tax relief ansng from deferred recognition of Insorance business acquisition

aur back offices under one management team and put in place one unified, chent centric administration

Cash Balance Sheet
In addition to presenting an IFRS balance sheet (on page 117) and an EEV balance sheet {on page 188), we believe 1t 15 beneficial to

provide a balance sheet using the approach underlying our cashresult This s because the cash result s adjusted for non-cash items
such as DAC, DIR and deferred tax as well as removing the policyholder interest in the unn-hinked funds

The following table analyses the differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the Cash result balance sheet These adjustments
mclude netting out assets and liabilities of the policyholder interest in umt-linked funds (Adjustment 1), and removal of a number of

sigmficant ‘non-cash’ rtems (Adjustment 2) —1m particular DAC, DIR and deferred tax
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IFRS Cash Result
Balance Adjustraent Adjustment Balance

31 December 2015 Sheet 1 2 Sheet 2014

£Million £Million £Million £'Million £"Million
Assets
Goodwall 101 - - 101 101
Deferred acqusibon costs 7450 - (745 O} - -
Acquired value of 1n force business 336 - (33 6) — -
Developments 43 - - 43 77
Property & equipment 80 — - 80Q 79
Deferred tax assets 2259 - (225 9) - -
Investment property 1,344 9 (1,344 9) - - -
Equitzes 37,9608 (37,960 8) - - -
Fixed mcome securities 8,934 0 (8,850 9) - 83.1 8313
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,269 6 (2,738 6) — 5310 5173
Derrvative inancial instruments 364 1 (364 1) — - -
Remnsurance assets 850 - - 85 ¢ 855
Insurance and investment contract recervables 76 2 - - 76 2 63.5
Other recervables 8910 (472 6) 58 412 6 2926
Cash & cash equivalents 5,325 1 (5,091 6) - 2335 274 3
Total assets 59,2776 (56,8235} (1,010.3) 1,443.8 1,342 2
Liabilities
Insurance contract habilittes 463 5 (376 5) 26) 84 4 892
Other provisions 15 4 — - 15 4 114
Investment contracts 43,1598 (43,115 5) - 443 187
Borrowings 1818 - —- 181 8 843
Derivative financal instruments 2211 (221 1) - - -
Deferred tax habihtes 434 6 837 (140 5) 200 4 263 6
Insurance and 1nvestment contract payables 459 - - 459 504
Deferred income 413 5 - (413 5) - -
Income tax liabilities 29 6 - - 29.6 328
Other payables 660 8 (460 3) (15 199 4 188 6
NAY attributable to unmit holders 12,556 4 (12,556 4) - - -
Preference shares 01 - - 01 01
Total Irabilitres 58,182.5  (56,823.5) (557 7) 8013 7391
Net assets 1,095 1 - (452 6) 6425 603 1

Adjustments

1 Nets out the pohcyholder interest n umt-hinked assets and liabilities

2 Removal of IFRS non-cash adjustments

.

The movement i the Cash result net assets 1s equal to the Cash result adjusted for dividends paid 1n the year and other changes n
equrty excluding the cost of share options (see page 116 — Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equaty)

Gomg forward, the Solvency I regulations no longer apply and therefore we will change the Cash result and the Cash result balance
sheet that we present to reflect the equivalent movement in net assets under the new Solvency 11 regulations — see also page 35
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

SECTION 5: EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE (EEV)
Life business and wealth management business differ from most
other businesses, 1n that the shareholder profit from the sale of a
product emerges over & long period 1n the future We therefore
complement the IFRS result by providmg additional disclosure
on a realistic bass, 1n line with the European Embedded Value
prnciples Thas result brings mte account the net present value
of the expected future cash flows and we beheve this measure 1s
useful to investors when assessing the total economie value of the
Group's operating performance

The table below and accompanying notes summarise the profit
before tax of the combined business The detailed result1s shown
on pages 186 to 196

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£'Million £'Mallion
Life business 4670 467 0
Unait Trust business 274.4 1777
Funds management business 741.4 644 7
Dastribution business (21.2) (109
Back office infrastructure
development (18.1) (11 %)
Qther (41.9) (25 5}
EEVY operating profit 660.2 596 4
Investment return variance (24.4) 802
Economic assumption changes 0.9 70y
EEV profit before tax 636.7 662 6
Tax (116.5) (132 6)
Corporation tax change 478 —
EEV profit after tax 5680 5370
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3] December
2015 2014
Pence Pence
EEV operating profit basic
earnings per share 103 9 931
EEV operating profit diluted
earmings per share 102 8 915§
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EEV Operating Profit

Funds Management Busiuess

The funds management business operating profit has mcreased to
£741 4 milion (2014 £644 7 mallion) and a full analysis of the

result 1s shown below

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Deccmber

2015 2014

£Nallzon £ Million

New busmess contibution 440.7 3731

Profit trom existing busmness

—unwind of the discount rate 172 4 18240

— experience variance 781 785

- operating assumphon change 44.1 30

Investment income 6.1 81
Funds management business

EEV operating profit 7414 644 7

The new business contribution for the year at £440 7
million (2014 £373 1 mulhon) was some 18% higher than the
prior year, reflecting new business growth

The unwind of the discount rate for the year was £172 4
mlhon (2014 £182 Omilhon) The unwind 1s calculated by
multiplying the opening VIF by the discount rate but adjusting to
reflect emergence of profits into cash dunng the year The lower
result in the current year prinaipally reflects the lower operung
ciscount rate, as the opemng VIF balance was higher

The chscount rate 1s based on the risk free rate, which 1s set by
reference to the yield ona UK 10 year gilt at the start of the year
As aresult, the unwind for the current year 1s based on a
discount rate of 5 0% compared with 6 2% for the prior year
Had the current year discount rate been consistent with 2014
then the unwind and operating profit would have been £41 4
mullion higher

There was a very strong positive experience varance during the
year of £78 1 million, which follows a sumilarly strong positive
varance of £78 5 mulhion 1n the prior year As covered on page
28, further captal losses were 1dentified within lnstone Group
companes, and the net present value of the future benefit1s
recogmsed 1n the EEV as a posttive £63 1 milhon experience
varance

The balance of the experience varance reflects continuing
strong retention and other miscellaneous rtems
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There was a large positive operating assumption change in the year of £44 1 mulhon (2014 £3 0 mulhon) The major
contributors to this result are changes to the pension retention assumption and the maintenance expense assumption, as follows

1 Pension retention assumption — For a number of years, retention of pension funds under management has been better than the
EEV operating assumption Following the 2015 annual actuanal investigation, the assumption has been amended to better reflect
experience The maxamum term has also been extended, reflecting the potential for continuation of the business beyond the chent

age of 75
2 Mantenance expense assumption — Dunng 2015 the contract with our third party back office admimstrator was updated to

reflect admimstranion charges for business admimstered on the new Bluedoor admumstration platform Thus resulted mn a change
mn the mantenance expense operating assumption However, 1t will take some time for the remaining business to be migrated to
the new system, and so the valuation also reflects the expected costs of both the future systems development and migration of the

remaning exishing business

The operating assumption change therefore reflects the full cost of the change i tanff on existing business, but we also expect
savings will arise on new busimess costs These are not reflected 1o the embedded value and will emerge within the future new

business contribution

The investment income for the year was lower at £6 1 omlhon (2014 £8 1 million), reflecting the lower risk free interest rate

Distribution Busmess, Back Qffice Development and Other
These items have already been commented on 1n the IFRS section on page 27

Investment Return Variance
The mvestment return variance reflects the caprtabsed nmpact on the future annual management fees resulung from the difference

between the actual and assumed mvestment returns Given the s1ze of our funds under management, a small difference can resultma
large positive or neganve varance

The fall in global stock markets during the second half of 2015 has impacted the investment return on our funds However, n
comparison to the falls expenenced in world stock markets (for example the FTSE 100 fell 4 9%), the mvestment returns on our funds
were only shghtly Jower than allowed for in the calculation of the embedded value Consequently there was a small negative investment
return variance of £24 4 milhon for the year (2014 posttive £80 2 mulhon reflecting the strong market growth in that year)

Economic Assumption Changes
There was a small positive vartance of £0.9 millhion ansing from changes m the economic basis adopted at the year-end (2014 £70

mullion negative)

EEV Profit before Tax
The total profit before tax for the year was £636.7 million, compared with £669.6 mlhon, although the comparison 15 obscured by

the different investment market experience and consequential investment return variance in the two years

Tax
The tax charge at £116 5 million (2014 £132 6 milhon) reflects the underlymg result

A further two reductions in the corporation tax rate {(from 20% to 19% m Apnl 2017 followed by a further cut to 18%1n April
2020} were announced 1n the 2015 Summer budget and included 1n the Finance (No2) Act 2015 The capitahised effect of these

changes has been included as 2 reduction i tax of £47 8 mallion

EEV Profit afier Tax
The EEV profit after tax was £568 0 mlhion (2014 £537 0 mallion) reflecting the movement in EEV profit before tax, but also the

posttive impact of the tax rate change
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

New Business Margin
The largest single element of the EEV operating profit (analysed in the previous section)1s the new business contribution The level of

new business contribution generally moves n line with new busmess levels To demonstrate this hink, and a1d understanding of the
results, we provide additional analysis of the new business margin (‘Margin’) Ths 1s calculated as the new business contribution

drvided by the new money mvested, and 15 expressed as a percentape

" The table below presents the margin before tax from our manufactured busmess based on gross fund flows

Year Ended Year Ended
3t December 31 December
2015 2014
Life business
Investment business
New business contribution (£'Million) 124.9 146 2
New money nvested (£’ Million) 2.,447.0 2,702 ¢
Margin (%) 5.1 54
Pension business
New business contribution (£ Million) 140.6 875
New money mvested (£"Milhon) 3,660.9 2,428 5
Margin (%) 3.8 36
Unit Trust business
New busmess contribution (£’ Million) 175.2 139 4
New money mnvested (£ Milhon) 3,129.9 2,750 7
Margin (%) 5.6 51
Total business
New business contnbution (£’ Million) 440 7 373 1
New money wvested (£'Milhon) 5,237.8 7,881 2
Margin (%) 4.8 47
3.9 38

Post tax margmn (%0}

Overall the margin has increased to 4 8% (2014 4 7%) The changes in margn in the different business lines result from different
drivers The reduction in Investment business margin reflects particular features of the business written m the year The increasen
margin ob Pension business reflects the change in retention assumptions The increase 1 margin on Unit Trust business reflects
revised allocation of expenses as a result of migration of the business to the new administration system

The benefit of lower expenses associated with the new admimistration contract wall reflect in the 2016 results, as an increase in the

new busmess margin for all business 1n future years

Analysis of the EEV Result and Net Assets per Share
The table below provides 2 summarised breakdown of the embedded value position at the reporting dates

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Pecember
2015 2014
£Malkion £ Mllion

Value of m-force
—Life

~ Umt Trust
Solvency I net assets

Total embedded value

2471.6  2,2340
787.6 6112
609 0 5720

3,882 34172
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec b 31 Dx b

2015 2014

Pence Pence

7373 6579

Net asset value per share

SECTION 6: SOLVENCY, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY
The new Solvency Il regulation for European Insurance compames and groups became effective from 1 January 2016 Asa
consequence, this year we are reporting for the last time on the farmbhar Solvency 1 basis, and we are introduaing new reporting on

the Solvency II basis

Solvency 1
‘We have already presented the Cash result net assets of £642 5 million (2014 £603 ! million) 1n the table on page 31 The Solvencyl

net assets at £605 0 mullion (2014 £572 0 milhon) 15 some £33 § pulhon lower, principally due to an amount of additional prudential
reserves {over that required by the UK regulator) arising from the Insh solvency regulations

The table below provides an analysis of the Solvency I posttion between regulated and non-regulated entities, together with an
assessment against both the required mimmum regulatory caprtal and the mnternal capital requirernent set by the Board (referred to

as the Management solvency buffer)

174
fad
2
3
o
3
[¢]
3
I
-
b
g
-

Other
Life Regulated Other Total
£Mallion £°Mullion £’Milhion £Matlion
Solvency I net assets 338 5 98 1 172 4 609 0
Intra-group proposed dividends (140 0) - 140 0 -
Proposed final 2015 dividend (90 5) (50 5)
Solvency I net assets after dividends 198.5 98.1 221.9 518.5
Required minimum regulatory capital 521 262
Solvency ratio 381% 374%
Management solvency buffer 164 3 523
121% 188%

Management solveney ratio

Comparison with previous valuations will show that the Group solvency position remams resihent, reflecting the Group’s low
appetite for market, credit and hquidity sk 1n relation to solvency

The Insurance Groups Directive (IGD)} assessment 15 calenlated by considering the level of net assets in the Group (outside of the
msurance companies) that could be available to suppert the solvency of the insurance company (and other regulated companies)

It therefore represents additional solvency cover over the £198 § mulhon Life company solvency assets identified 1n the table above
At 31 December 2015 the IGD resources were estimated at £250 milhon (2014 £266 Imlhon)

Solvency II
The underlymng driver of the new Solvency Il regulation 1s to focus attention on risk management 'We therefore mtroduce our

Solvency II results by reprising some key themes underpinrung nsk management 1z our business

St James's Place 15 2 simple Wealth Management Group (in contrast with the many complex msurance groups that are also 1mpacted
by Solvency 1), offering manly investment products Our strategy 15 to attract and adoumster retail funds under management, from
which we recerve an annual management fee (we are a fee-based busmess) Our clients can access their investments on demand but,
because we match the surrender value, movements in equity markets, mnterest rates, mortality, morbidity, longevity and currency
rates have bittle smpact on our ability to meet habslities (although they can affect emergence of profit) We also have a prudent capital
management approach and mvest surplus assets i cash, AAA roted money-market funds and UK government secunites The overall
effect has been a resthent solvency posibon and ability to meet habilities, even through adverse market condions
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Solvency II contied
The new regulation introduces extensive new valuation and reporting requirements However, our approach to managng the

busimess 1s unchanged we will continue to match the surrender value on unit-linked business, thereby mitigating both market and
persistency nsk, and ensuring that we will always be able to meet our Labihity to chents

Nevertheless, the new regulation does itroduce changes to the way we report on solvency Farstly, the net assets will be presented
on 2 Solvency I basis and we have provided a reconahation to the Solvency 1 basis in Note 1 below Secondly, we are required to
recogmise a new asset in respect of the expected Value of In-Foree cashflows (VIF), together with a new Rusk Margm (RM) (an
amount reflecting the cost to secure the transfer of the business to 2 third party, ff required) Together the Solvency Il net assets,

VIF and RM will comprise the ‘Own Funds’ (equal to the difference between the Gross Assets and the Technical Provisions) Finally,
we calculate a Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) which reflects the capital required to protect against a range of 11n 200 stresses

Given our symple business we have been able to adopt the Standard Formula approach 1n calculating the SCR, and we have not needed
(or chosen) to adopt any of the Trarsitional Provisions in the calculahon of the technical provistons or SCR

Solvency 1I Opening Balance Sheet
An analysis of the opeming Solvency II posinon for our Group, spht by regulated and non-regulated entittes at the end of 2015,

15 presented 1n the table below

Other

Note Iafe Regulated Other Total

£Million £Millhon £Million £Mallion

Solvency I net assets 1 5535 96 7 1627 812 9
Intra-group proposed dividends {140 O) 1400 -
Proposed final 2015 dividend (90 5) (90 5)
Solvency I net assets (post dividend) 413.5 26.7 2122 722.4
Value of in-foree (VIF) 2 2,306 6 - - 2,306 6
Rask margin 3 (624 0) - - (624 0)
Own funds 2,096.1 96 7 2122 2,405.0
Solvency capital requirement 4 (1,569 6) (26 2) — (1,595 8)
526.5 705 2122 809 2

Solvency II free assets

Notes
1 Shareholder net assets are the tangible assets the Group holds m excess of those assets held to meet the client habihthey To aid

comparison with the Solvency I shareholder assets (shown i this Section on page 35) and the Tash result net assets (shown in
Section 4 on page 31) a reconahation 15 provided m the table below

1

Other

Lafe  Regulated Other Total

£¥allion £Mathan £million £Mallion

Solvency I net assets (Section 6 page 35) ' 338 5 98 1 172 4 6090

Release of Solvency I prudence reserves and other adjustments 370 13 48 335

Cash result net assets (Section 4 page 31) 375 5 99.4 167.6 642.5

IFRS deferred tax asset 170 3 53 175 6
Goodwll and intangibles (14 4) (14 4)

Release of Solvency I reserves 99 99
Other 22 27 42 (7

553.5 967 1627 8129

Solvency II net assets
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2 The value of in-farce represents the expected future emergence of profit, calculated as prescribed by the Solvency Il regulations
Speatfic requirements 1n the Solvency I regulation give nse to differences with the VIF presented 1n the EEV result on pages 32
to 35 and therefore, to a:d understanding, the table below prowides a reconciliation between the two numbers Note, Solvency 11
only apphes to the Iife business and so the unit trust business VIF 15 not reflected n the Solvency 11 own funds assessment

Other

Lfe Regulated Other Total

£'Million £Million £ Mallion £mallion

EEV VIF (Section 5 page 34) 2471 6 787 6 - 3,259 2
Remove UT/ISA VIF (787 6) (787 6)
Change in contract boundares (111 8) (111 8)
Drscounted deferred tax asset (123 8} (123 8)
Add back EEV rsk margin 147 8 147 8
Economic basts differences @311 (31 1)
Adjustment for Solvency I reserves and other items (46 1) (46 1)
Solvency II VIF 2,306 6 - - 2,306.6

The prinaipal differences between the two methods of caleulating VIF are

- The Solvency I approach has not been extended to our Unst Trust and ISA business meamng the sigmificant additional VIF on

this business 15 not reflected

- The Salvency Il methodology requires a very prudent assumption about the ‘contract boundary’ for regular premum business,

resulting in the potential value from all future 1nvestment premiums being discounted

- Under EEV a discounted deferred tax asset 15 assessed in the VIF Under the Solvency II approach the undiscounted deferred

tax asset (calculated in line with the IFRS 12) 15 assessed in the net assets

- Under our EEY approach we make allowance for non-hedgeable risk through ncludmg an explicrt margin in the risk discount
rate of 0 73% (sce page 190) The equivalent requirement m Sclvency 1115 achieved through ensuring assumptions are ‘best

estimate of outcomes’ The exphat addition therefore falls away in Solvency 11

The remaimng difference i the VIF balance 1s made up of a number of smaller powts including the remaoval of Solvency I reserves

and the use of a shightly different econotme basis

3 The assessment of the ‘Risk Margin' 15 » speaific new adjustiment for Solvency If

4 The solvency capital requirement has been calculated using the prescribed rules for the standard formula approach We have not

used an internal model

Solvency Ratios and Sensitivities

In comparing the Solvency I and Solvency 11 positions 1t will be noted that the level of own funds 1s higher under Solvency 11, however
the Solvency Capital Requirement 1s also higher As the following table demonstrates, the merease in the SCR leads to a much lower
value for the solvency ratio, despite the ngher level of free assets Thus 15 2 general feature of Solvency Il and the change to lower

salvency ratios wall be commeon across the industry

1
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Solvency Ratios and Sensitivities continued
Solvency I Solvency 11

£Milhon £Mallon

Net assets before final dividend 609 0 8129
Final proposed dividend (90 °5) (90 5)
Net assets after final divadend 518.5 722.4
Value of in-force (VIF) - 2,306 6
Risk margin — (624 0)
Own funds (A) 5185 2,405.0
Solvency capital requirement (B) (78 3) (1,595 8)
Free assets 440.2 809.2
662% 151%

Solvency ratio (A/B)

The solvency ratios before taking zccount of the final dvadend are 778% under Solvency I and 156% under Solvency 11

The nature of our busmess 1s that much of the Own Funds velue reflects future profits, but the SCR simmlarly reflects loss of future
profits As a result, the solvency ratio can move counter-mtuftively with changes in experience, as the following sensitrvities demonstrate

Solvency II Solvency

Free Assets Ratro

£Malion Y

Ongnal valuation 809 2 151%
10% reduction in FUM 753 6 153%
10% 1ncrease 1 lapse assumption 8320 156%
7772 149%

10% 1ncrease 1n renewal expense assumption

Introducing the Management Solvency Buffer (MSB)
As a result of the counter-intwitive nature of the sensinvities above, we believe a solvency ratio 1s not an appropriate metric on which

to assess the strength of our business and mstead we mtend to use as our metric, the level of assets 1n excess of client unit-linked
lLabiliies Thas wll ensure we are able to meet chent habihties at all ines, and we also mntend to hold a prudent MSB as protection
aganst other risks 'We have assessed the MSB for our Life business as £150 mullion, having takimng mto account a wide range of factors
and information, not least the results from stress and scenario testing carried out as part of cur anoual ORSA {Qwn Rask and
Solvency Assessment) We wall also continue to hold capital within the Group mn respect of the other regulated (but non-insurance)

companies, typically based on 200% of the sectoral requirement

Other
. Life Regu]atca Other Total
£Million £'Million £'Mallion £Mllion

Solvency Il net assets 1 583§ 96 7 162 7 3129
Intra-group proposed dividends (140 0} - 140 0 —
Proposed final 2015 dindend (90 5) (90 5)
Solvency II net assets (post dividend) 413 5 96.7 212.2 722 4 ’
Management Solvency Buffer 1500 523

276% 185%

Management solvency ratio

Tt 15 worth noting that the Solvency Il net assets includes a £170 milhon IFRS deferred tax asset which 1s not immediately fungible
However, we do expect 1t will be uthised over the next ten years, albeit the actual rate of utihsation will depend on business growth
and external factors, particularly investment market conditions More generally, our intention 1s that assets backing the MSB should

be liquid and of hugh credit quality
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I.iquid:lty
Asnoted above, our mvestment policy 15 always to hold assets to match unit-linked rabilities, and to hold any excess 1n assets that are
lrquid and hagh credit quality An analysis of the hqud asset holdings 1s provided below

Holding Name £Milhion £Mallion
UK government galts

2% UK Treasury Index Linked 22/01/2016 125

5 8% UK Treasury 26/07/2016 114

4% UK Treasury 07/09/2016 130

2 5% UK Treasury Index Linked 17/07/2024 179

2% UK Treasury Index Linked 26/01/2035 24 4 79 2
Other government bonds

1 125% Singapore Government Bonds 01/04/2016 39
AAA rated money market funds

BlackRock 1232

Goldman Sachs 371

HSBC 549

Insight 840

JP Morgan ' 870

Lega! & General i 803

Royal Bank of Scotland 80

Scottish Widows 565 5310
Bank balances

Bank of Scotland 738

Barclays 68 3

HSBC 21 4

Lloyds TSB 282

NatWest il1

RBS 129

Santander 74

Others 104 2335
Total 847.6

In the normal course of business, the Company 1s expected to generate regular, positive cashflow from annual management income
exceeding expenses As noted previously, future growth i cashflow 1s driven by new business, but in the short term growth wall

reflect the transition as new business from six years ago becomes cash generative

A further source of iquidrty 15 share option proceeds At 31 December 2015, there were 2 3 milhon share options outstanding under
the various share option schemes which, if exercased, would provide up to £11 0 mllion (2014 £15 4 malhon) of future caprtal and

hquudity for the Company

Funally, as noted at the half-year, the Group has refinanced and extended our borrowing arrangements, providing funding for the
acqusition of Rewan Dartington and comrmtted facilittes for the future should they be required See Note 23 on page 147

The key calls on liqudity wall be payment of the Group dividend and investment to support the business As noted previously, our
policy 15 to increase the dividend 1n line with the underlying performance of the business We believe this wali also enable us to

continue to 1nvEst 1n the business to support our growth aspirations
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RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview and Culture

The St James's Place Group 15 exposed to a wide variety of risks
as a result of 1ts busmess activities and the industry in which 1t
operates, as well as a mumber of external factors and threats
Under the leadership, direction and oversight of our Board,
these risks are carefully managed, contribuhing to cur
compentive advantage and helping us to achieve our business
and client objectives as set out on pages 16 and 17

We do not seek to eliminate risk entirely, rather we seek to
understand our risks fully, and to apply appropniate nisk
management strategies such that all matenal nsks are 1dentified,
and approprately managed or mutigated Risk managementisa
care aspect of decision-malang and 1s embedded 1n our culture
Our framewark 1s speafically designed to manage the rasks that
are 1mportant to our shareholders, Parmers, clients, regulators
and employees, and to provide reasonable assurance against
matertal fivancial misstatement or loss

Risk management and solvency projectons form a key part of the
business planning process, including 1z relation to decisions on

strategic developments, pricing and dividend payments

Risk Appetite
The Board chooses carefully the nisks 1t accepts and those 1t seeks
to lrmit or avord These choces are set outn our Rask Appetite

STRATEGY —KEY OUTCOMES

Statement, which 1s owned by the Board and reviewed at least
ammually In particular it articulates

* Rasks that are actively sought m pursuit of return

* Rusks that are consaously avorded

* Rusks that are reduced through transfer t6 other parties
* Rusks that are rummused through controls

Rusk appetite can and will change over time, sometimes

rapidly as economac and business environment condrtions
change, and therefore the statement1s an evolving document

A comprehensive swite of mdicators enable the Rask Commmittee,
on behalf of the Board, to morutor that the Group remains
within its agreed appetite

Risk Management Framework

The Board, through 1ts Risk Commuttee, takes an active role in
overseeing the Risk Management Framework, for which1tis
responsible This framework 15 the combined processes by
whuch the Group rdentifies, assesses, measures, manages and
mortors the risks that may impact on the successful dehvery
of business objectives

The Group’s ORSA 152 central part of this framework, the mam
elements of which are shown 1n the following diagram

Risl

Risk

Capital |

_-_%

’

Standard
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Governance
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Risk Management Processes

ExBo

Group Risk

Own

Assessmient
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Other ExCos

.

N
-0

Risk Escalation

_ Rlsk Ctlltul'e
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The Board Risk Commuttee (BRC} comprises Independent Non-executive Board members, and 1s responsible for ensuning that a
culture of effective nisk identification and management 1s fostered across the Group A report of 1ts activity duning the year can be

found on pages 77 to 79

The BRC 1s supported by the Executive Board (ExBo), but also by the Group Risk Executive and by Risk Management teams at
Group and local levels, which take the lead 1n ensuning an appropriate framework 1s 1n place and that there 1s on-going development
and co-ordination of risk management within the Group The other executive sub-commuttees of ExBo (the Executive Commttees)
also provide support for the management of risks in their areas of responsibility

The Risk Management Framework 1s grounded in the outcornes which are key to our orgamisation  These are

CLIENTS PARTNERS FUNDS
That we deliver positive That we continue to grow That we treat all of our
outcomesfor our mcreasing and develop the Partnership, stakeholders well
population of clients both numbers and skalls

REGULATORS

FINANCIALS & SHAREHOLDERS

That we are compliant, have an open
and honest relationship with our

regulators and protect pur reputation

That we deliver sustainable
growth 1n reported profits on
all measures

Whlst clearly a simplification of the business model, thus focuses
attention on those thungs that are of greatest importance,

and hence indicates where risk managerment activity should be
focused It also allows the :dentification of the mndviduals within
the Group responsible for managing these risks

Within these outcomes, indicators are used to momtor
performance against nsk appetite Each indicator has an owner
on the Executve Board who 15 accountable for menaging the
associated risks and providing regular reports to the Executive
Board This enables the Executive Board to maintain effective

- oversight of all outcomes, and to manage any conflicts of interest
that arise between them

To ensure a comprehensive risk umverse, there 1s also a
bottom-up element to our framework Each Divasion of the
Group 1s responsible for the dentification, management and
quarterly reporting of its own risks, and 15 supported i ths

by the Risk Management function Each risk 15 assessed by
considenng 1ts potential impact and the likelihood of its
occurrence, with wnpact assessments being made against
financial and non-finangial metrics Esteblishment of appropriate
controls 15 a core part of the nsk management process

Own Rusk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)

Meany of the activities of the Group, and the legal entitiesin

the Group, are regulated We have relatonships with the UK
regulators (PRA and FCA) and the Irish Regulator (Central Bank
of Ireland), and with the local regulators 1n Singapore and

Hong Kong The nature of our activittes and the regulatory focus

results 1n additional risk management sctivities, including, but
not lumted to, stress and scenario tesung, loss event recording,
resolution planning and risk caprtal management activity

The different regulated entines 1n the Group are governed by a
number of specific regulations, however, as an Insurance Group
we are primanly governed by the new Solvency Ii Directive,
which came mto force on 1 January 2016 As part of these
regulations, we are required to undertake an ORSA for the
Group and each insurance company within the Group The Group
has been preparing for the new regulations for a number of years,
and has subnutted preparatery ORSA reports to our regulatars in
2014 and 2015, relating to the periods ended 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014, respectively

The ORSA 15 directed by the Board and 15 intended to be

a comprehensive risk assessment, bringng together an
understanding of the rsks that the Group faces, m the context

of the strategic plan, and how these risks may change over our
plenming period Tt also requires quantitative analysis of the capital
requred, and how 1t mght develop over our planning period

(5 years)

Capatal for our msurance comparues 15 based on the Solvency IT
regulations separate risk based capital assessments are
performed for the other regulated entities As a result of these
activities we have considered the calculation and allocation of
risk capital to all the major risks 1n the Group, and the msurance
companies 1n partrcular, and the adequacy of the capital posiion
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RISK AND RISK MANAGEMEN'T

CONTINUED

Viabihity Statement

In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have assessed the Group’s
current financral position and future prospects over a five year
period, and have a reasonable expectation that the Group will
be able to continue 1n operatton and meet 1ts habilities as they
fall due over the peried of this assessment

In reaching this conclusion the Directors have taken mto account
a number of different strands of work, 1ncluding

« The Busmess Plan and associated ‘2020 Vision' document,

* An assessment of the economc, regulatory, competitive and
sk environment which was carried out as part of the Board's
strategy review process, and

* The latest Group ORSA, which 1s a new requirement under
the Solvency Il Directive, and winch scope 15 summansed i
the section above

As a result of this work the Board has concluded that the business
model remamns appropraate, with ne concerns that would
fundamentally threaten the business model or market This 1s
also supported by the renhence that the Group has demonstrated
over recent years and 1n a variety of different external conditions

A planmng period of five years1s used both 1n medmum term
business plannung and also for the ORSA, and has therefore been
used for the Code requirement as well, reflecting the horizon
over which the Board sets medium term strategy

The ORSA was partrcularly useful 1n assessing viability asithas a
similar purpose and includes a range of stress tests, which have
been performed at the level of the two 1nsurance companies

(St James's Place UK Plcand St James's Place International Plc)
as well as at the level of the Group The stress tests evaluated the
mmpact on the free assets of the Group of a change mn key
assumptions or circumstances In all adverse tests, free assets
were avallable, demonstrating the Group's resthence to adverse
condittons Reverse stress tests have also been performed on
Lquidaty, the results of which indicate that the Group can
reasonably expect to have sufficient hiqud funds to be able to
meet 1ts kabilities over the planming peniod

The Group monttors performance against a range of predeﬁned
mdicators, which will :dentify 1f experience over the planning
pertod differs from risk eppetite or expectations, allowing
management action to be taken

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Internal Control

The internal control environment in St James’s Place 1s built
upon a strong control culture which 15 underpinned by our
Code of Ethics and organisational delegation of responability
The Board has adopted the ‘three lines of defence’ mode! for the
mterna) contro] system, under whach the 1st Line 15 Business
Operations, the 2nd Line 15 Oversight Functions including Risk
Management and Comphance, and the 3rd Line 15 Independent
Assurance The purpose of thus internal control system 15 to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievernent of
objechives relating to cperations, reporting, and compliance

Management has delegated responsibility to implement and
maintain effective cantrols, such that the Group operates within
the risk appetite agreed by the Board The Audit Commuttee, on
behalf of the Board, monttors the effectveness of mternal controls
across all business areas primanly through the outcomes of
independent assurance assignments undertaken by Internal Audit

Control Self-Assessment .
Contro] Self.Assessment (CSA) 15 2 continuous activity, whech has
a formal summary on an annual basis, and formsa key part of our
wternal control system This self-assessment process requires
business areas to review their controls regularly, and sign-cff

on the efficacy, against a standard set of contral statements
Collectrvely these control statements embody the elements
required for an organisation to mamtain a control framework
across the five components of Control Environment, Rusk
Assessrnent, Control Activities, Informnation & Commumnication,
and Monrtoring Activities, as lard down 1n the internationally
accepted COSO control standards

This process 1s beneficial as 1t provides confidence that business
artas can meet their objectives, clanity to support decision
making, and agihty 1n adapting to change and complexity

The annual summary of the control self assessment process
contributes to the year-end Internal Control Evaluaton exeraise
undertaken by Internal Audit as part of the assurance provision
to the Audit Commuttee

Finanaal Reporting Processes
Speafically in relation to the financial reporting processes,
the main features of the mnternal control systems mclude

* Extensive documentation, operztion and assessment of
controls m key risk areas

*  Monthly review and aign-off of all financial accounting data
submutted by outsource providers and the results of all
subsidiaries within the Group

* Formal review of financal statements by semor management,
for both individual companies and the consohdated Group

Registered No 03183415



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The following tables summarise the principal risks and uncertamnties that are inherent within both the Group’s business model and

the market m which we operate These principal risks and uncertainties, the business outcomes on which they impact, and the lngh
level controls and processes through which we aim to mutigate them, are as follows

NON-FINANCIAL RISKS

43

Client
proposition

DESCRIPTION

Chents invanably rely on members of the
St James's Place Partnership for the
provision of n1t1a] and ongoing advice
Farlures 1n the quality of service provided,
and 1n particular any advice falings, could
lead to redress costs, reputattonal damage
and regulatory mtervention

OUTCOME

Clents,
financals
and

shareholders

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

There are many processes in place to mitigate this nsk,
mcluding detailed advice gwidance, Partner traming
and accredrtation, appropriate incentive structures,
quality checlang, chent engagement conducted by

the Clhient Outcomes team and extensive monitoring
of the internal funds and portfolios The Group
guarantees the advice given by Partners and also has
approprate professional mdemmity insurance 1n place

Competition

Competitor activity 1n the adviser-based
wealth managernent market may result in
a reduction 1n new business volumes,
reduced retention of existing business,
pressure on margins for both new and
existang bustness, and the potential loss of
Partners and key employees

Financals
and

shareholders

This risk 15 ritigated through enstring our business 1s
run cfficently, being responave to the needs of our
chients and Partners and seelang continuzl
improvements to processes Charges are benchmarked
agawmnst competitors and competitor actimty momtored
Regular reports are provided to the Executive Board,
allowing action to be taken n a imely manner 1n the
event of a threat to our business model The Group
offers a diversified product range, including both
onshore and offshore mmvestments, and third party
relationships are 1n place to provide access to products
which are not manufectured wathin the Group We
have a proven track record in Partner acqustion and
retention, which we believe would make 1t dufficult for
anew entrant to challenge our posiaon In addition,
our more established Partners often have sxgm.ﬁcant
equity stakes in thewr practices and their abihty to
“access these 1s structured to aid retention

l ] UOTIEPONOT 0BT s,samr'nqw

Regulatory,
legislative

and tax
environment

The nature of the Group 15 such that it
falls under the mfluence of regulators and
legnslators in multiple junsdictions, a
growing number gaven the Group's
expangion mto Asia The risks are
two-fold

- New regulatory, legislative or tax
requirements may result in
mmplementatian costs and disruption to
business

- Failure to comply with esasting or new
apphicable regulations could result in a
fne or regulatory censure

Regulators,
Partners,
chents,
financals
and
shareholders

Regulatory and legislative change 15 largely a nisk
which cannot be mitigated, although the Group seeks
to engage with regulators and policy makers in an open
and constructive manner, with the aim that key 1ssues
impacting the Group are taken 1nto consideration in
the drafting of changes Our governance structures,
management committees and compliance monitoring
activities seek to ensure we remain comphant

with regulation
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RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

NON-FINANCIAL RISKS CONTINUED

—_—

RISK

People and
culture

DESCRIPTION

People and the distinctive culture of the
Group play animportant part mits
success Qver-stretch, the loss of key
Personnel or unwanted changes to culture
may therefore impact on this success

OUTCOME

People

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

Thas risk 1s mitrgated through effective leadershp, the
umplementation of executive and management
development imhatives, forward succession planmng
and regular surveys and consultation groups The latter
enable us to monitor the sentiment of our staff and
Partners and identify any potential adverse inpacts
upon, or trends within, our culture, and respond
appropriately

Partner
proposition,
recruttinent

and
retention

Group products are distributed, and
ongomng advice 15 provided, exclusively
ﬂu-pugh the SJP Partnership Inadequacies
10 the range of products, technology or
services offered by the Partnership may
result i meffimences and frustration,
with consequent loss of Partners and
chent 1rpact, or mability to recrt new
Partners

Partners

The Partner proposition 1s 2n area of continual focus,
with outputs from regular Partner surveys and other
Partner feedback bemng reflected on an ongoing basis
‘We employ a number of specialist managers specyfically
to manage the recrurtment and retention of lugh
quality Partners, and a dedicated semior managemennt
team oversees the SJP Academy, which broadens our
recrmtment streams Formal retention strategies are 1n
place to ensure that, wherever possible, we retain good
quahty and expenenced Partners All recruitment and
retention activity 1s closely momitored

Investment
Management
Approach

Qur approach to investment management
mmay fail to deliver expected returns to
clents of the Group

Chents

We actively manage and monitor the performance of
our investment managers through the Investment
Commuttee which also makes use of firms of
professmional advisers, ncludmg respected independent
nvestment research consultancies, Stamford
Assocates, Redington and AON Consulting, to help
them with thus key task  We offer a broad range of
funds, whuch allows client diversification and mitigates
our new business, persistency and market risks,
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and IT

DESCRIPTION

The Group’s business model involves the
outsourang of edmimstration to third
partes Poor service from, or failure of,
one of these thurd parties, the fulure of an
IT system, or a stgruficant cyber-attack or
fraud, could lead to disruption of services
to clients, reputational damage and profit
impacts Thereis also arisk that chents or
Partners may experience disruption of
service during the mnplementation of our

new third party admumsstration platform

OUTCOME

Clients,
financials
and
ghareholders

45

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

These risks are mitigated by service level apreemnents,
momtoring of adrmymstration providers and an effective
mnformation security control framework, including
regular penietration testing exerases We remamn wnglant
to the mereasing threat ﬁ'om)cyber risks and have also
recently strengthened fraud prevention controls We
mantam close workang relationshups with our
outsourang pariners, who are central to our business
model This enables us 1o work effectively and efficiently
together to deliver the best result In the exireme evert,
all our relationships are governed by formal agreements
wath notice periods and full et management plans and,
¥ requured, strong alternative providers exstn the
market The busness contunaty arrangements of each
outsourcer are also continually tested and improved and
scenano analymsis carned out The nsk of servce
d.lSl'l.lPthl’l. on mmplementation of the new admmistration
Phatform s being mingated through dihgent qualmty
checkimg and phased implementations

Political

Changes m the political landscape could
lead to substantial changes m pohry,
resulting 1n sgmficant development costs
and duruphon to the Group's business
Failure to dehver changes 1o the requred
tumescales may lead to reputanonal
damage and loss of new business

A specific current example of this nisk 1s
the potential of ‘Brexat’ following a
referendum

Financals ,
and
shareholders

In many cases pohitical risk cannot be nutiguted,
althaugh the Group seeks engagement with major
politcal parties and also engages the services of
relevant pubhc relabons and communicanons
consultants, with the aim that key 1ssues umpacting the
Group are taken mto consideranon i the development
of changes

Investor
relations

Failure to commumicate effectrvely with
new and existing shareholders may lead to
falls 1n the share price and reputauonal

damage.

Financials
and
shareholders

Thus risk 15 mutigated through the work of the mnvestor
relations team, whose rermut1s to ensure the
mawmtenance of positive relationships with
shareholders
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RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

FINANCIAL RISKS

Market nsk
—Lass of
Annual

DESCRIPTION

A reduction in funds may anse from
market shocks, poor market performance,
ora widemng of credit spreads

This would reduce future AMC income,
and hence future profits

Tt may also resultn I-E tax mefficiency for
SJPUK plc, as the value of deferred tax
assets depends on having sufficient levels
of future 1nvestment income to provide
rehef for the expenses

Shareholder assets may be used to seed
new funds, leading to direct exposure to
market movements for short periods after
the launch of new funds

OUTCOME

Financrals
and
shareholders

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

The Group accepts the risk of reduced future profits
as a result of market risk within umit hoked and umt
trust funds

A realistic value has been placed on tax rehef
anticipated from deferred expenses, but it 15 accepted
that, following 2 market fall, the recovery of this value
may be deferred over alonger period, thereby reducmg
1ts value

The use of seeding capital 1s approved by the
Executive Board for each indrnidual fund launch, and
shareholder funds are withdrawn as soon as possible,
typically within a few months of launch owing to
predictable fund inflows when new funds are included
m portfolios

Insurance
sk

A reduction i funds under management
owing to poor persistency would reduce
future AMC mcome This may arse from
factors such as changes in the economic
climate, poor mnvestment performance,
competitor activity, or reputztionat
damage to the Group

Adverse mortality or dwsability
experience, 1 particular lugher death
clanns following an incident or
widespread illness, or longer-term
increases in mortality rates, would reduce

future profits

Financials
and
sharcholders

Persistency risk 15 managed through the long-term
relationships between Partners and chents In
particular, Partners keep chents mformed dunng
periods of market volatility, and lower-rask funds and
portfohos are available, with no charges for switching
The Investment Managemenit Approach mvolves
montoring of fund manager performance, and changes
are made where appropriate Some of the key sources
of reputational nisk and related controls are described
1 the table above

Mortality and disabality risk 1s substantially reduced
through the use of reassurance with low retention
Mortahty risk benefits on investment products are
generally bumited to 1% of mvested assets Most sk
deduchons are reviewable and an 1ncrease 1n
reassurance rates would be passed on to chents through
increases to charges and/or premuums within five

years Experience analysisis performed

Expense risk

Increased expenses, i particular ugher
than expected adrmmistration costs,
would reduce future profits

Financials
and
shareholders

Expenses are controlled through contracts with

third party admmmstrators and expense controls at
Group level, so that growth n average per policy
expenses 1s no greater than the rate of mcrease the
average weekly earmumngs index Admmstrabon charges
are reyiewable
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Interest rate
and credit
nisks

DESCRIPTION

Changes in mterest rates or the faflure of
a counterparty may reduce the value of
fixed interest assets held to match future
fixed labtlities, and shareholder assets

Key counterparties inchide reassurers,
banks, money market funds, 1ssuers of
fixed interest secunties, Partners to
whom loans have been granted, and
other debtors

OUTCOME

Finanaals
and

shareholders

47

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS

Asset-hability matching reduces mterest rete sk on
matching assets and no guarantees are offered

Shareholder funds are invested in high credit rating
and ghly hquid cash and cash-equivalent investments,
and only ighly rated reinsurers are used

Partner loans are granted for business purposes, and
are secured againstincome streams on a conservative
multiple and with extensive financial momtormg

A pre-payment has been made to IFDS 1n anticipation
of future benefits arising from the development of the
new Bluedoor adrmumstration system However, the
contract with Bluedoor would enable the Group to
continue to use the Bluedoor system m the event of
farlure of IFDS

Liqudity

nsk

Liquudity 1ssues may arise from client
requests to switch or withdraw money
from umt-hnked funds, and through
events that may require immediate
recourse to shareholder funds

Financials
and

shareholders

Chent funds are invested in deep and hquid markets
and, where investments are less hquud, contractual
terms are mcluded, allowing the flexabiirty to defer
withdrawals Sizeable balances of liquid shareholder
assets are maintamed and the emergence of cash profits
1s monitored Banks’ propensity to lend 1n support of
Partner loans 15 also memtored  Ligmdaty scenano
analysis has been conducted duning 2015, to venfy the
adequacy of the hquidity buffers that are held
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

‘St. James’s Place is committed to growing
our business in a way that considers the

economic, social and environmental impacts

of what we do.”

We understand that responsible management 15 important to all cur stakeholders — shareholders, chents, Partners,
employees, suppliers and the communities 1n whnch we operate

Qur commutment to responsible management was established 1n the founding principles of the Company and 15
expressed in both the ‘Our Approach’ document, which 15 shared with all members of our community, and the
“What 1t means to be a member’ brachure, which sets out the expectations for our Partners We beheve responsible
management continues to be embedded 1n our culture, and reminders and encouragement to live by this phulosophy
are provided regularly through team meetings, and employee and Partner newsletters

By hving up to the expectations estabhshed within our culture, we believe we will be able to demonstrate
trustworthiness, rehability and a commutment to the common good In a world where the reputation of the
financial services mdustry 15 constantly under pressure, we aspire to create an authentic alternative whach all our
stakeholders can trust, and whrch the communities we are part of can appreciate and respect
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Our approacb to
Corporate Soctal Responsibility
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We are constantly seelang to improve our delivery, but recent public
endorsements mclude.,

* Wehave recewved various awards relating to our client offering over the years
Most recently, these have included the Wealth Adviser Award for ‘Best Private
Client Investment Manager’ (thurd year runmng), the Personal Finance Awards
‘Best Financial Adviser’ (mxth year runmnyg), FDs’ Excellence Awards ‘Best
Pension Provider’, City of London Wealth Management Company of the Year
Award and two Financal Tunes/Investors Chromcle Awards for ‘Best Wealth
Manager for Inherstance Tax and Succession Planmng’ and ‘Best Wealth
Manager for Trusts’, -

+  Our business model has been recognsed through wanmng the 2015/16
Britain’s Most Adpured Compames Award 1n our sector, which 1s runin
associanon with Management Today, and

*  Our continued inclusion 1n the FTSE4Good Index, which comprises
companies that meet globally recognised corporate social responsibihty
criteria, recogmsed our positive culture and ongmng commitment to
responsble management

|7 TONRUIOIUY I2T1N ‘] [ FITIWIEIT TEIUBULL 1l
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CONTINUED

CSR Governance
Responsible management 15 central to our culture, and the task of mantaiming this culture (including our CSR ambitions) 15 akey

focus of the Executive Commuttee of the Board, with oversight by the full Board

The Executive Comumuttee of the Board 15 supported.. in this objective (as 1n all of their work) by a number of sub-committees, which

are chatred by Directors or semor management

MANAGING COMMITTEE REMIT

Cur Culture Execntive Commttee of the Board To ensure the strength and mainténance
of the umque culture throughout our
community |
|
CSR cverview, Local Community, CSR Group To co-ordinate the Group's approach to |
Volunteering, Supphers and the CSR and CSR Department with
Environment particular focus on promoting local
community engagement and
epvironmental matters
Investment Managernent Approach Investment Committee To manage our Investment Management
Approach and oversee our fund
managers
The St James’s Place Foundation Foundation Trustees To manage the 5t James’s Place
Foundation, ncluding overseeing
grant-making and compliance with the
charity’s objectives
Community Support

The St. James'’s Place Foundation
We have always recogrused our socal responsibihty to our local commumties and, from the foundmg of the Group, have encouraged

our staff and Partners to use thewr expertise to help local charities and other voluntary orgamsations The desire to provide support to
the less fortunate in society resulted in the establishment of the independent St James's Place Foundation which continues to receive
support from all parts of the 5t James’s Place commumty employees, Parters,-chents, supphers and shareholders Thus has been
another record year for fundraising by members of our commmuruty and as a result the matching grant fram the Company was £4 3
rmilhon (including gift axd) Since 1992, the St James’s Place communtty has raised over £46 6 million for the Foundatzon to
distribute to good causes Additional nformation from the St Jameg’s Place Foundation about 1ts activities 15 provided on pages 56 to

59 or available from its website at www sjpfoundation co uk

Community Volunteering and Support ,
St James's Place has a strong tradition of volunteer support for the work of the Foundation, but more recently we have sought to

recogmse the other commumnity velunteering 1n whch our employees engage In 2015 we were pleased to support 86 employees
(offering over 13,500 hours of commumity support) with grants of up to £1,000 to support their volunteering efforts We are amung
to expand this imtiative further 1n 2016, reachung out to all our UK offices

‘We have also started two new volunteering mibatives Farstly, we have started offening ‘community support team challenges’ These
provide an opportunity for groups of colleagues to undertake community and charity projects togsther, which can also be benefical
1 strengthening teamwork and motivation Over 600 hours of community work have been undertaken this year, working with
causes local to our offices including local chanties, conservation projects, and an NHS trust Secondly, we have been seeking out
opportumties to link the professional skalls of our employees to the professional needs of local chanties, particularly through support

for the Involve Gloucestershire imtiative We plan to build on both of these mitatives during 2016

We also continue to support commmunity organisations and charities loca) to our offices through grants For example, support for core
costs has been given to The Churn Project which works to improve the quality of hfe and well-being of 1solated and disadvantaged
people within Cirencester 'We are also delighted that over 30 of our employees volunteer for The Churn Project, allowing them to

make a direct contribution to the community around thewr place of work
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Emwmployability Skulls ' for Young People

St James’s Place 15 an entrepreneurial orgamsation and we have always been keen thet the next generation should be able to
contribute successfully through employment

Cirencester Callege
St james'’s Place has now been providing support to Cirencester College, a further education college local to our head-office, for over

11 years Dunng that ime, we have been able to offer 69 internshaps to students from Cirencester College, with 26 of them turning
mto full ime employment opportuntties, often 1n our Apprenticeship scheme (see below) However, our main involvernent has been
providing support for the four ‘Academy Programmes’, each designed for students who aspire to work 1n a particular market sector
These programmes are operated 1n conjunction with the national chanity “Career Ready’ and our support includes providing students
with paid summer mnternships as well as providing 14 mentors to provide support and business coaching to many students

Apprenticeships

Worlang in conjunction with Crrencester College, which provides the tramning, our apprenticeshop programme 1s now well
established Qur 2015 September intake of 12 has included a pilot Financial Services apprenticestup alongside our exisung
apprenticeships in Business Admmstration, Marketing, IT and Accountancy A further intake of 12 apprentices1s planned for
September 2016 The value of these opportunities for both the young people and the local commumty has been recogmsed through a
variety of awards ranging from a special award by our local Cirencester Chamber of Commerce, to 2 commendation as a finalist in

the National Apprentice Scheme awards for Newcomer Large Employer of the Year

Cther Employabihity Skalls Tramnimg

We have confinued our work with the charity Young Gloucestershire to provide employabihity skills training for young people i the
area, many of whom are less acadenucally able or from a disadvantaged background A range of volunteers from the Company have
fulfilled roles 23 trustees and mentors and finanmal support has also been provded The support helps the young people to present
themselves in the best possible way to potential new employers through CV skulls, personal presentahion tips and mterview techmques

‘We have also built upon our 2014 pilot with the charity Active Communrhes Network (ACN), workang with inner aity young people,
often from disadvantaged backgrounds Supporting thewr “Urban Stars' programme 1n Tower Hamlets, Poplar, Bermondsey and the
Aylesbury Estate, 58 volunteers from our Field Management Team and the Partnership worked with over 110 young people, helping
themn with bustness planming, CV writing, interview skills and financial education

Thus year we have also looked to support organisations like Young Enterprise and EmployabiliyUK to help young people bridge the
gap between education and work

Finanaal Education
As one of the leading providers of financial advice to individuals and business owners in the UK, we recognise the importance and

value of financial education and tins continued to be a core focus 1n the year Durmg 2015 we ran several of our Year 9 and 6th form
Financial Education courses with schocels delivering s flexible modular programme to fit the PSHE (Personal, Social and Health
Education) and Maths curriculum Our matertal has been delivered by teachers through normal lessons with content tarlored to meet
the students” needs and curnculum requirements But we have also used internal traiming sessions to build up a team of expenenced
employees who can volunteer to support the delivery of the courses This support has allowed other schools to dehver the course on
an mset day for a class or [ull year group, and provides pupils with experience beyond.their teachers

We have also developed our advanced education materral for year 12 and 13 students for use i out-of-school sethngs ‘Working with
OPENhouse 1n Stroud and Young Gloucestershi‘e we have tallored matermals and delivered sess:ons to vulnerable chuldren and young

adults who have 2ddinional educanonal needs and to some who are currently NEET

The Finanaal Education progmrm;u: will be 2 key focus m 2016, when we will seek external accredstation for our programme and
expand dehvery to more schools and aliernative youth work locations across the UK through all our offices This roll out wall be led

by volunteer employees and Partners, hinking our offices with local educational provision

Loughborough University Swimnung
In the buld up to Rio 2016, we are pleased to continue our sponsorship of the I..oughborough Unversity Sw1mmmg programme
Thas enables the squad to recerve additional coaching, and, since our relationship started m 2007, the team have medalled 1n all major

UK and International events mncluding European, Commonwealth, World Championships and the Olympic Games
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CONTINUED

Durng the year, the squad had a strong presence in the FINA World Championslups in Kazan, Russia and the IPC World
Championships in Glasgow Fran Halsall anchored the Great Britam 4 x 100m mixed medley relay team home to clum the gold
medal and a world record at the FINA World Championships m Kazan, Russia Fran said ' think we all stepped up and did a great
swim ‘To swim a world record and be world champion 1s meredible — 1t’s 2 nuce way to start my week " Loughborough’s Rachael

Kelly swam the butterfly leg in the qualifying round and was also awarded a Gold medal

Loughborough’s Paralympic swimmer ElLe Sinmonds OBE won Gold with a new world record 1n the 200m 1ndividual medley at the
IPC Swimmng World Championships in Glasgow Elhe also won a Silver medal and two Bronze medals James Hollis also achieved

new British records m the 50m and 100m butterfly

Suppliers and Supply Chain
St James's Place beheves in treating all our stakeholders fairly We also believe 1n the bengfits to be gained from building long-term

relationships based on mutual trust Asa result, many of our key suppliers have been assocrated with the Group for a number of years
and we have been able to cultwate very strong and mutually beneficial relatenshups, such as our providers of outsourced

admimistration services IFDS, Capita and State Street

More generally, we expect all our supphers to act 1n accordance with the standards embedded m our culture, and will undertake due
diligence on new service providers to ensure we are comfortable with their approach to socally responsible management An
important development for us i 2014 was accreditation with the Living Wage Foundation, which nvolved us working closely with
our supply chamn ‘We are particularly pleased that many of our supphers share our desire to make a postave and lasting difference to
the lives of those less fortunate than ourselves, and we are very grateful to all those who have provided support to the St James's
Place Foundation, both through denations and through active particapation 1n many of the events

St James's Place has always placed great rehance on the support of third party suppliers and the continued success of our business
reflects, amongst other things, our success in cultvating and managing successful relationshps wath supphers We are pleased to have
signed up to the Prompt Payment Code which s encouraged by the Department of Business Innovation and Skalls (BIS) and
demonstrates a commitment to good practice between orgamsations and thewr supphers. Signatores to the Code commzt to paying
thear supplers within agreed and clearly defined terms, and commut also to ensuring that there 1s a proper process for dealing with

v

any 1ssues that may arise

The Environment
St James's Place 1s commutted to managing our environmental impact through effective management of energy systems, travel, water

usage and waste recycling 'We recogruse the effect our business can have on ciimate change and we take a pomtive approach to
managing our business activittes, whlst at the same tume engouraging all Partners and staff to consder their own personal xmpact on

the environment

Oversight of our environmental strategy 1s through a Corporate Social Responsibility Group (CSR Group) with ulamate
responsibility resting with David Bellamy (CEO) The group meets ona monthly basis and reviews environmental performance

!
We measure our environmental data from October to September and the following tables summanse targets and progress, expressed
1 terms of both absolute and normahised CO,e ermssions for our core business activittes wn recent years Core business activities are
defined as those within ‘Operational Contral’ In previous years, we have explicaitly excluded our investment property portfolios
(held on behalf of clients), but 11 2015 we are extending our reporting to include them, and also to include Well to Tank (WTT)

es within the progress table The assessment uses the CarbonNeutral Company Protocol together with the 2015

emussions for all scop
d reporting information calculated by

conversign rates as provided by Defra for all our emission categorzes The data was venfied an

Carbon Clear.

In previous years St James’s Place has purchased carbon credits m order to offset our carbon footprint and achieve ‘carbon neutral
company’ status However, following a review of our environmental strategy 1n 2015, we are now focusing eur efforts on managing
our carbon footprmt directly, and on stewardship of our funds under management including the environmental implications of those

compamies 1 which we invest
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1) Targets
Absglute Emassions Targets
% of % mcrease Base Year
Emissionsm p.a. from Emssions
ID Seape Gescription Scope Base Year Base Year (tonnes COle) Target Year
Absi 1 (Gas and owned vehicles 100% 5% 2013 851 2016
Abs2 2 Electnaty 100% 5% 2013 2,218 2016
Business travel, waste,
Abs3 3 hotel stays, electrcity T&D 100% 5% 2013 3,704 2016
Normalised Emissions Targets
Base Year
Normalhsed
%of % mncrease Emissions
Emissions m pa from (toones CO,e
I Scope Descrrption Scope Base Year Base Year  per'00Qsqit) Target Year
Intl 1 Gas and owned vehicles 100% 0% 2013 303 2016
Int2 2 Electricity 100% 0% 2013 790 2016
Business travel, waste,
Int3 3 hotel stays, electnaty T&D 100% 0% 2013 13 18 2016

In 2014, we set new targets for the next three years for both absolute and normehsed measurements ‘We are targeting that
normalised emissions targets will remain constant, : € anzl mcrease, but mn absolute terms emussions will be hmited toa 5% p a
increase, which compares to forecast business growth of 15% p.a The targets also exphatly take into account the commissioning of a
second head office building in Cirencester This is bemng built to accommodate business growth and 1s due to be completed during the
target period We hope to achieve a BREAM rating of *very good” for the new bulding

Comment

Emissions from gas and owned vehicles have fallen
due to a reduction m the number of Company-owned
cars and reduced maleage

Emussions from electricity have increased this year due to the
mnclusion of our operations 1 Asia, although previous plant
Improvements mean we are still ahead of target

We remain well ahead of our Scope 3 emussions absolute target,
driven marnly by a significant reduction 1n long-haul flights

2) Progress
. Absolute Emssions Progress
Actual
Emissions in
Year % vanance from
1D Scope  (tonnesCOg) Target
Absl 1 Ted -19%
Abs? 2 1,584 -15%
Abs3 3 2,559 -37%
3 (Property Trust
Investments and
Abs3 1 WTT) 12,182 nfa

Two extra Scope 3 categones are being reported this year —
SJF Property Trusts and WT'T for all Scopes
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Normahsed Emissions Progress

CONTINUED

Normalised
Emissions
in Year
(tonnes CO,e % vanance
D Scope  per’000sqft) Eom Target Comment
Intl 1 7 62 -13% In all areas, the reduced floor space compared to the original
expectation has partially offset the impact of the reduction ermssions
Int2 2 6 81 -14% In 2016 new office premises are expected to be added, whuch wall
Int3 3 878 -33% ’ change this analysis

Comparative data for 2013 1s presented as the Base Year information 1n the Target tables above Since then we have seen reductions in
all areas of our carbon footprint, despite conmnng growth i the business Key reasons for the improvements are documented 1n the
table above, but, looking to the future, we anticapate higher Scope 2 emissions in 2016 as a result of takang on additional office

premses m London, and from moving into our new bulding i Cirencester Since the increase will arise from new buildings, we are

expecting that the normalised emussions level wall improve compared to target

3) Emusstons Trend (exc]udmg Investment Property Portfolios and WTT)

Gross Emssions (tonnes CO46)

ID Scope  Actmty 2013 2014 2015
Absl Gas and owned vehicles 851 932 764
Abs? Electricaty 2,218 1,888 1,984
Abs3 Business travel 3,704 2,366 2,559
Total 6,773 5,186 5,307
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APPROVAL OF THE STRATEGIC REPORT

As part of the Annual Report by the Directors 1t1s a statutory requirement to produce a Strategrc Report

The purpose of the report s
‘to mnform members of the Company and help them assess how the Directors have performed their duty under section 172 of the

Companies Act 2006 (duty to promote the success of the Company)’

The objectrve of the report 15 to provide shareholders with 2n analysis of the Company’s past performance, to rmpart msight 1nto 1ts
business model, strategres, objectives and principal nisks and to provide context for the financral statements m the Annual Report

The Directors consider that the report, comprising pages 1 to 54 of this document, meets the statutory purpose and objectives of the
Strategic Report

On behalf of the Board

David Bellamy Andrew Croft

Chief Executrve Chuef Financial Officer
22 March 2016
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ST. JAMES’S PLACE FOUNDATION

Since its jbrmation 23 years ago,

the St. James’s Place Group has

been committed to fostering a
culture g“ giving back’ to those
who need it most.”

Tuscan Peaks Challenge rafsing £115,000

It =5 a philosophy that has contributed much to the nature of our culture, and been a source of great pride Since 1992,
the St James's Place Foundation has recerved nearly £50 milhon for distribution to good causes The overwhelming
majortty of this has come as the result of fundrawsing or donations made by St James’s Place Partners and employees

«of the Company
Funds raised by Partners and employees are matched pound-for-pound by the Company, which also covers all

expenses relating to the runnmg of the Foundation This means that all the funds raised go directly to those
registered charities, at home and overseas, that meet the Foundation’s themes of cherishung chuldren, cornbating

cancer and supporting hospices

More than 85% of St James’s Place Partners and employees give to the Foundation through therr pay or earnings on
a monthly basis, which alone generates over £2 mllion annually, mncleding matching
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Annmal 5t Albany Triathlon snd Duathlon rasing £92,816

Review of 2015

Contimung its record of year on year growth, the St James's
Place Foundation enjoyed another record year for fundraising in
2015, rasing over £7 million for good causes m the UK and
abroad This was achieved in no small part through contributions
from a number of successful major fundrasing events throughout
the year, which represent a vital part of the Foundatzon’s income

Events included the annual Triathlon and Duathlon in St
Albans, which rased £92,816 for Hope and Homes for Children
{and which has now realised £1 5 omllion 1n the last 13 years for
that charity), the Big Walk 2015, centred on Hadrian's Wall,
which raised £65,000, the Tuscan Three Peaks Challenge
realising £115,000, an epic three-day cycle challenge 1n Provence
rawsing £282,000, a world record-breaking skydive for the late
Teenage Cancer Trust Ambassador, Stephen Sutton, 1n which
St James’s Place employees raised £10,000, a further £104,000
from the anpual Summer Swing eventin Cengleton, and
£80,500 from two regional Children of Courage events in
Yorkshire and the Midlands All amounts shown mclude
Company matching

Additionally, Partners and employees showed their generosity
by supporting the refugee crisis .n Europe, and the aftermath of
the Nepal earthquakes at the beginning of the year At the end
of the year, our community had rased over £25,000 for Save
The Chaldren 1 support of the charity’s efforts to help thousands
of displaced cluldren fleeing warfare and confhet in the Middle

Eastn what 1s an ongoing humanitarian crisis Simularly in
Nepal, which holds a specal place mn the hearts of the St Jarnes’s
Place community following the Everest expedition in 2012, the
Foundation has donated £40,000 to youth charities supporting
the needs of farnilies and communinies devastated by the
catastrophic earthquakes whach kalled thousands and destroyed
over 800,000 homes

The Foundation makes donations and grants ranging from a few
hundred to hundreds of thousands of pounds In downg so, the
Foundation seeks to make a real difference 16 the hves of children
and young people at home and overseas Chosen charities are
selected very carefully, with the underlying goal being to make the
biggest difference to as many charities as possible

Any small charity that meets the Foundation’s selection criteria
can apply for a grant1fithas a project that 1s for the direct benefit
of economically disadvantaged or socally margmalised young
people aged 25 or under, the physically disabled, those suffering
from a mental condition, or a life-threatening or degenerative
illness The Foundation also helps those people whose lives have
been adversely affected by illness through the hospice movement,
making grants to hospices to support the cost of complementary
therapy, equpment or spectalist staff
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ST. JAMES’S PEACE FOUNDATION

CONTINUED

Highlighted below are examples of some of the many charities
which have benefited from the Foundation's support in the last
12 months

Making a Positive Difference

Through the Foundation’s giving programmes we arm o
make a positive and lasting difference to the hves of children
1 need both 1n the UK and overseas, and so they can reach
theur full potential, here are some examples of the donations

we have made

Hope and Homes for Children

The Foundation, along term supporter of Hope and Homes for
Children, announced a comrnitment of £600,000 over three
years, starting 1n 2015, to support the charty’s vital workin
Romanua helping children out of orphanages and into lonng
farmly homes The Foundation also donated towards the charty’s
Numb3rs Appeat which, with UK Aid Match, raised over

£4 mllion This will support the chanty’s work n Rwanda and,
across East Africa over the next three years, where the focus wall
be on reducing reliance on orphanages as a means of caring for
children

Philippine Community Fund

The Foundation granted £93,600 to the Phulippine Commumity
Fund (PCF) whuch was set up 13 years ago to improve the
quality of ife for impoverished commumties 1n the 1slands

The PCE works i the most depressed areas of the Phihppines,
providing education, nutrtion, health, medical and farmly-

enhancement programmes

EdUKaid

A grant of £37,000 was awarded by the Foundation to EdUKad
to assist 1ts work mmproving the educational prospects of
depraved children i the poor rural region of Mtwaran
Tanzan1a, benefiting 700 deprived cinldren aged between four

and s1x years

A grast of £37,000 was awarded to EdUKaid

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Envision

Envision inspires young people to gain skalls and confidence,
and the Foundation has awarded £75,000 over a three year
pextod to fund the cost of its Commumty Apprentice Scheme,
helping disadvantaged young people m Bristol Envision’s
projects help young people to design their own local commurnty
programmes, tackling 155ues ranging from street crime to
climate change, and nspiring them to become effective role
models in therr communities

The Art Room

The Foundation granted £77,000 to provide funding for the next
three years for a Deputy Manager at the Northolt Art Room
Ealing, a chanty which offers artas therapy to cluldren and young
adults to raise their self-esteem, self-confidence and independence

Roald Dahl’s Marvellous Chuldren’s Charity

Roald Dahl’s Marvellous Children’s Charity helps to make lhife
better for seriously 11l children and young people in the UK, and
the Foundation donated £84,500 spread gver two years to help
fund the salary costs of a nurse speafically caring for chuldren
who areill The chanty 1s inspired by the behef that every chid
has the nght to a marvellous hfe, no matter how il a cald s, or
how short their life may be

1

A commitment of £255,000 was made to the Panathlon Challenge
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A grant of £500,000 was made to OnSide Youth Zoues

Panathlon Challenge

The Foundation commutted £255,000 to the Panathlon
Challenge, a national charity which provides sporting
opportunities for over 5,000 disabled young people each year
Since 1999, Panathlon has mvested over £5 § mallion in
opportumuties for young people to compete 1n sport

A Lasting Legacy — Funding Capital Projects
Across the UK

Thanks to the record amount raised 1n 2015, and 1n previous
years, the Foundation has been able to consider support for
larger Capitai Projects— those that we believe will help children
1n need over a mumber of years, and leave a lasting legacy for
both disabled and disadvantaged children, and for young people
1 the future In 2015 projects totalhing in excess of £2 million
were completed, including

Smle, Support & Care

£1 2 mlhon to help build a Care Centre 1n Hampshire providing
respite breaks where chuldren and young adults with severe
disabilities can stay with therr familes or carers Established in
1994, Somle, Support and Care provides respite care, across
Hampshire and West Sussex, ranging from several hours per
week for a child with a muld form of autism, through to 24-hour
care for those suffering severe hfe-limiting conditions

OnSide Youth Zones The Way’

£500,000 to help bwnld a state-of-the-art youth centre mn
‘Wolverhampton, providing a vital space for disadvantaged and
disabled young people to engage m hfe-changing actites,
such as sport, fitness, dance, arts, music, media, enterprise
and wellbeing, and self-rmprovement OnSide Youth Zones
spearheads the development of the Youth Zone ‘model” across

the country
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A £2,500 graot was awarded to Support Doga

Local Office Allowances

Local office allowances are small grants made by indhividual
St James's Place offices and are an excellent way of making a
difference 1n their local communities In the last 12 months,
258 local grants were made totalling £449,183, often with
stories that touch the heart

Charlie’s Beach Hut fund

Charlie’s Beach Hut Fund was established in Perranporth,
Cornwall by his parents as 2 permanent memonal to Charhe
Codling, who died at the age of four from‘an incurable brain
tumour The Foundatton'donated £2,000 to support the Fund
with the annual cost of mantainming the hut which provides
famihes of chuldren with ife-hmiting 1llnesses with a relaxmg
environment m which they can forge happy memones

Jacob and Minta

A £2,500 grant from Cirencester to Support Dogs helped bring
Joy to a lonely httle boy called Jacob Trapped in us own world
by autism, the grant funded the arrival of 2 yellow Labrador
dog called Minta, trained as an Autism Assistance dog, which
has transformed hzs ife Boy and dog are the best of friends,
and Minta has proved to be the best possible medicine

Future Plans

Once again, following a record year of fundraising, the
Foundation plans to build on 1ts achievements 1z 2016 to enable
it to contribute and make a difference to even more chantable
projects bothin the UK and abroad A number of exaiting
fundraising events and imtatives are already planned for 2016,
reflecting the wonderful commitment the St James's Place
comrnumty makes to the Foundation every year

If you would like to know more about the St James’s Place
Foundation please visit its website at www sjpfoundation co uk
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BOARD. OF DIRECTORS

Sarah Bates
Chairman

David Bellamy
Chuef Executive Officer

Andrew Croft
Chief Finaneial Officer

Date of Appomtment Chairman Janvary 2014
Non-executive Director, September 2004
Chawr of the Nomunation Committee

Date of Appomntment Chief Executive Officer

September 1897
Jowned St James's Place 1991

Date of Appomtment Chief Financial Officer
September 2004
Jowned St James's Place 1953

Experience

Sarah brings over 30 years' expenence from the
investment and snvestment management sectors,
both executive and non-executive Amaongst her
many roles, she was Jont CIO and CEQ for Invesco
UK and 1ts Institutional Divison between 1959

and 2003 She has also served as Chairman of the
Association of Investment Compamnues from 2011
ta2013 She retains a range of mvestment related
responsibihities which support her Chawrmanship of
St James's Place

External Appointments

Chairman of ] P Morgan Amencan [nvestment
Trust ple, and Witan Pacific Investroent Trust
Non-axecitive director of Worldwide Healthcare
and Polar Capatal Techpology Trust pl¢ Semor
independent director of U and1plc Member of
the investment commuittee of the Universities
Superannuation Fund
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Experience

Dawid has worked in the finanaal services mdustry
since 1973 He joined the Founders of the Company
at the outeet to establish the back office Since then
he has held a number of roles at St “James’s Place,
mcluding Group Operations Director and Managng
Director Heisa Trustee of the $t James’s Place
Foundation

External Appointments
Member of the Financral Conduoct Authortty's
Practitwner Panel

Expenence

Andreaw jomned the Company im 1993 and has been
Chief Financaal Officer since 2004 Having trained
25 an Accountant wath Delaitte Haskans and Sells
(now part of PricewaterhouseCoopers) he then
worked 1n the financial services sector Since
jouung St James's Place he has held a number of
roles wathin the Finance department, assurming the
role of Finance Director in 2002 Heisa Trustee of
the St James's Place Foundation

External Appomntments

Lay member of the Audit, Risk & Investment
Commuttees of the Royal Callege of Surgeons
of England

David Lamb Ian Gascoigne
Managng Director Managing Director
Date of Appontment Executive Drrector Date of Appointment fanuary 2003
December 2007 Joned 5t James's Place 1331 ’
Jomed St James's Place 1992
Experience

Experience

Dawid 13 Menaging Director with responsibiliy

for Private Chent, International and Discrenonary
Fund Management business and the Group’s
ivestment business, including the fund range

He 13 a Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of
Actuaries, having warked in the financal sector
since 1979, and has mgmficant experience i wealth
management, together with wvestment and
portfolio management He s chair of the Investment
Commuttee and a Trustee of the St James’s Place
Foundation

External Appomtments

Non executn e director of The Henderson Smaller
Companits [nvestment Trust ple

Director of the Wealth Management Assocration
Governor of the Umversity of the West of England

v

Tan 1s Managng Director responsible for the
management and development of the Partnership
He has worked in the financtal services industry
mnce 1986 and has considerable expenence in

the financral advisory space Ian is a Trustee of the
St James's Place Foundation

External Appontments
Member of the Advisery Board of Loughborough
Umversity Business School
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Iain Cornish
Senuor Independent Non-executive
Director

eon

Date of Appamtment Sentor Independent
Darector Jamuary 2014

Non-executive Director Qctober 2011

Charr of the Risk Committee

T

Expenence

lain brings experience from both the financial

and regnlatory environments He was a semor
consultant at KPMG, specralising 1n the bankang
and finance sector, and then served as chuef
executive of the Yorkshire Building Soctety

In recent years he has baen an independent director
of the Prudennal Regulation Authority and
charrman of the FSA Practihioner Panel

External Appomntments
Chawrman of Shawbrook Group plc and non-
executive dwrector of Arrow Global Group plc

Sumon Jeffreys

Independent Non-executive Director

L de] |

Date of Appointment Non-executive Directar
January 2014
Chauwr of the Audit Commuttee

Expenence

Simon brings experience of the audibng world and
financial services He was a senior audit partner
with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF from 1986 to
2006 where he also led therr Global Investment
Management practice Between 2006 and 2014,
Sunon was CFO and Chicf Admunistrative Officer
#t Fidelity International and then CFO and Chuef
Operanng Officer at the Wellcome Trust

External Appomtments

Chaorman of AON UK Lymited, non-executive
director and chair of the Audit Commuttees of
Henderson International Income Trust plc and
SmCorp A/S, a hsted Danush financral services
software company $emor Advsor to
Wellcome Trust

Baroness Wheatcroft Roger Yates
Independent Non-executive Director Independent Non-executive Director
omn L1e) |
Date of Appontment Non-execunve Director Date of Appointment Non-executive Director
Apnl 2012 January 2014

Charr of the Remuneratron Compmttes
Experience

Baroness Wheatcroft brings experience of the
media and also the legislature Her career has
mcluded editorial roles at both the Suaday
Telegraph and The Times, as well as betng
editor-in-cluef at the Wali Street Journal, Europe
She 13 a member of the House of Lords Her
finanaal services experience includes previous
appointments as a non-executive director of
Barclays Group plc and Shaftesbury ple

External Appomntments

Non-executive director of Fiat Chrysler
Automobiles Charman of the Financil Tunes
Appointments Committee

Expenence

Roger brings over 30 years of investment
management expenence He started hus career
with GT Management Limted 1n 1981 and has
subsequently held pomtions at Morgen Grenfell,
Invesco and Henderson Group ple, where he was
chief execunve officer Most recently, he was
chayrmah of Electra Private Equity ple unnl

5 Novemnber 2015 and a noa-executive director
of IG Haldings ple, from wiich he resigned on
15 October 2015

External Appontments

Non-executive chairman of Pioneer Global Asset
Managemerit 5 p A

Non-executne director of | P Morgan Elect ple

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

61

Full biographical detals may be found on
the corporate website at www sjp co uk
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CHAIRMAN'’S REPORT

Sarah Bates
Chairman

1 am p]eased we are reporting to you on a
' good set of results for St. James’s Place ple,
its clients, shareholders, Partners, staff and

other stakeholders. 2015 was another year
of political, social and economic turbulence,
but the business has again performed
robustly”

St James's Place has grown steadily since ats foundation 1n 1992 There 1s clearly a significant derand from our
chents for the integrated financial advice and investment approach provided by our Partners Our challenge1s to
continue to deliver the support to our Partners to help them dehver what chents value, m ways which meet or
exceed their expectations This allows us to continue 1 grow through hgh levels of client satisfaction which leads to
hugh levels of retention, mncreasing advocacy and a sound reputation It requires focus on the prowision of face-to-face
advice and the integnity of the investment management appraach, together with the avoidance of unwise diversions
The world around us changes, of course, and sets us challenges from time to tume, and will continue to do so

Successfully managing the growth 1n our community, and nurturing such a pool of talent, 1s a key responsibihity for
any organisation and thas 15 therefore a key area of interest for the Board We look to atiract, develop and retan
talented people of both genders, and indeed of daverse skills and mind-sets 1n a wider sense, so as not to unwittingly
exclude any particular group from the opportunities we can offer or deprive ourselves of people who could bring
benefits to our commumity Last year, I reported that a group led by Jan Gascoigne would look at patterns of female
participation mn our worlkforce, and there 1s more mformation about his progress on page 103 ‘We also continue to
observe the slalls, experience and potential of cur people and baving expanded the Executive Board at the start of
2015 we are building on these foundations We have also been looking at the skalls and experience of the Board and

planning for longer-term succession

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCQOUNTS 2015 Regastered No 03183415




Of course culture 15 key and the Board remains convinced that
mantamng the culture of ‘doing the nght thing” 15 essential for
the successful future of the business That’s not to say that we get
everything right all the time but setting the principle matters

2015 has been a busy year for 5t James's Place, and your Board
has been active 1n 1ts oversight ! noted last year that ‘we are not
great strategic nisk takers', and we have continued to take a
cautious approach, to avoud losing focus or expanding beyond
our experttse Our core business has continued to grow strongly
and 1n 2014 we established our longer term 2020 vision which
exarmined the size of the opportumty available to us by retaiung
that focus Qur relatively small steps into Asia and into the DFM
rmarket make use of our core strengths, and the expertise already
developed within our business However, they also allow us to
expand our areas of activity, and the offering to our clients,
without taking undue risk, and over the longer term they may
provide sgmificant opportunities We have also moved forward
vath the development of the new back-office admimstration
system, which has involved a sgruficant amount of work ona
large programme The Board 1s mindful that rapid development
15 challenging for any organisation and needs careful
management Further developments will therefore only be
considered 1n hight of our low nisk appetrte for stratege risk

‘Whlst our Board has always engaged actively in consideration
of risk management, the introduction of Solvency II, the new
Semor Insurance Managers Regume (SIMRY), and the new
Corporate Governance Code requirements for a ‘robust
assessment of sk’ and a ‘viability statement’, have all resulted
m particular work thus year The Board has spent a considerable
amount of e engaging with and overseeing these processes
As an “insurance group’ we are required to consider our whole
Group m an ORSA This comprehensive assessment of our
ability to dehver to chients over the hfetime of their pohicies also
provides insight into the risks to dehivering for shareholders

We have a conservative approach to managing the balance sheet
with client hiabilities and assets being matched Our risk profile
15 therefore less hke an insurance company and more comparable
with providers of advice and asset management, with our mam
financial nisk bezng the potental loss of future value (1 e loss of
the Embedded Value) Consequently, our key risks are not
financial, but operational and reputattonal, or put another way
delvery to chents and Partners

63

“This year we undertook an external Board evaluation The detail
of the evaluation can be found on page 63, but m summary we
were pleased that the Board was considered to be workang well,
with effective discussions and constructive relaionships We
will, however, continue to learn and adapt our traming and
development programmes are active and being supplemented,
and we can make our paperwork more rigorous

Finally, during the course of the year we noted and partcipated
1n a rumber of public imtiatives seeking to support and develop
Board governance Asa Wealth Management business, we are
interested in these inthatives not only asa corporate body but
also 1n respect of the £58 0 billron of assets we manage on behalf
of our clients The stewardship of these assets 15 very important
and we have been worlung with both our fund managers and
with our corporate advisers to evolve our future approach Our
own ongong dislogue with shareholders 15 equally important
and further detal on our activity in this respect can be found on
page 67 It goes without saying that I am always pleased to meet
with shareholders and please do feel free to contact me duning
the year

2015 has been another good year for St James’s Place and for
your Board, and we are pleased to propose a final divdend of

17 24 pence per share, up 20% 1lock forward to supporting the
busimess i continuing to dehver to chents, Partners, employees
and shareholders in 2016

Sarah Bates
Charrman

22 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Make up of the Board and its Committees

The Board Risk

Sarah Bates (Chairman) Tain Cormsh (Chair)
Dawid Bellamy (CEO) Smnon Jeffreys

Andrew Croft Baroness Wheatcroft
David Lamb Roger Yates

lan Gascoigne

Tain Cormish (SID) Nogmniation

Simon Jeffreys Sarah Bates (Chair)
Baroness Wheatcroft Tain Cornish

Roger Yates Baroness Wheatcroft
Audit Remuneration

Simon Jeffreys {Charr) Roger Yates (Chew)

Iain Cotnish Sitnon Jeffreys

Roger Yates Baroness Wheatcroft
The Role of the Board

Board Leadership

Your Board 15 collectively responsible for the long-term success
of the Company by

* Providing entrepreneurial leadership and direction to the

Company m setting out its strategic aums, visions and values
and overseemng delivery agamnst these,

* Monitoring financia performance and reporting,

* Settng the Company’s nisk appetite, assessing the prncipal
risks facing the Company and ensuring that adequate controls
are i place to manage nsk effectively,

* Ensuring that the appropriate and effectrve succession planning
arrangements and remuneration pohcies are 1n place,

» lmplementing appropriate corporate governance procedures,

* Reviewing major transactions or imtiatives proposed by the
Executives, and

+ Deading the Company’s policy on chanitable and polincal
donations

There 15 a full schedule of matters reserved to the Board and
the Company also mamntaimns a Board Control Manual which
sets out the primary policy and decmon—makmg mechamsms
within the Company This includes terms of reference for the
various Board Commuttees, as well as the Company’s risk
pohcies and risk appetate statement Detailed job descriptions
for each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors are also included

Biographical detals of the Executive and Non-executive Directors
who make up your Board are set out on pages 60 and 61
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Board Organisation and Governance Structure

The Roles of the Charrman and Chief Executive

Sarah Bates was appomted as Chairman of the Board on

1 January 2014 The job descripnions of the Chawrman and
Chief Executive Officer, David Bellamy, and the division of
responsibilities between them are clearly defined and agreed
by the Board As Charrman, Sarah takes responsiility for the
leadership of your Board, ensuring 1ts contrnued effectrveness,
and promoting effecthive communication between the Executrve
and Non-executive Directors, as well as with shareholders
generally. As Chief Executive, David’s primary responsibility
15 to manage the Company via the executive management team
and umplement the strateges adopted by the Board

The Senzor Independent Director

Tain Cornish was appomted Semor Independent Director
Janmary 2014 and hus job description has been agreed by the
Board The Semior Independent Director actsas a sounding
board and confidant for the Chairman and the Non-executive
Directors Tam also ensures he 1s available to nieet with
shareholders and rases any shareholder concerns with the
Board that mght notbe resolved through normal channels

Commuttees

There are four Non-executive Commuttees of the Board Audit, *
Normnation, Remuneration, and Risk The members of each of
these Commuttees are the independent Non-executive Directors,
wrth the exception of the chawr of the Nominathon Commattee,
which 15 the Chazrman of the Company The membershp and
terms of reference of each of these Board Commuttees are
reviewed annually and are available on the corporate website

{www s)p co uk), or on request from the Company Secretary

The Executive Commuttee, (the ‘Executive Board’) comprises
the Executive Directors of the Board and other members of
semor management Itisvia the Executive Board that operational
matters are delegated to management The Executive Board 15
responsible for commumeating and implementing the Group's
business plan objectives, ensuring that the necessary resources
are m place in order to achieve those objectives, and managing
the day-to-day operational activities of the Group The terms of
reference for the Executive Board are also regularly reviewed
and are included 1 the Board Control Manual In addition,
there 13 a Disdosure Commuttee of Executive Directors,
responsible for identifying and determiming matters to be
disclosed to the market
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There are also a number of commuttees below the main Board Comrmttees and these assist the Executive Board in executing its
responsiilities They each have Terms of Reference which set out clearly their delegated authonities and a rght of escalation of matters
outside that remut to the Executive Board A table showing the current supporting governance structure 15 set out below

St. James’s Place plc

Shareholders
{Matters reserved for Sharcholder resolution)

5t. James’s Place plc Board

{Chair: Sarah Bates)
(Matters reserved to Board}

| I 1 I
Audit Commuttee Risk Committee Executive Board Nommation Commuttee Reénune::tuon
(NEDs) (NEDs} (Execs) (NEDs) °(‘;g)‘5)“
(Chair Slmon feffreys) (Charr lain Corrush) {Char Dawid Bellamy) (Chax Sarah Bates) (Chaxr Roger Yates)
Investment
Adwgi:z;:mng Field ExCo Finance ExCo Distribution ExCo ClLent ExCo Committee
(Charr lan Gascoigne) {Charr Andrew Croft) (Charr Ian Gascoigne) (Charr Will Alterman) (IMA)
{Chaz Jan MacKenze) (Char David Lamb)

1roday orfarenc '

Board Composition

Board Size and Composition

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, four independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairman (who was
independent on appointment) There were no changes to the Board during 2015 The Directors” biographies are set out on pages 60
and 61

Independence i

When determimng whether a Non-executive Director 15 independent, your Board conmders each indvadual against the onterm set
out 1 the Code and also considers how they conduct themselves in Beard meetings, wncluding how they exerase judgement and
independent thinking Taking these factors into account, the Board beheves that all the Non-executive Directors continue to

demonstrate their independence

In the Remuneration Report n the 2014 Report and Accounts, we lhighlighted the ownership of New Bridge Street (advisers to the
Remuneration Commuttee) and confirmed the other business relationships that Aon plc (NBS’s parent company) has with the
Company The Board was satsfied that this had no bearing on the independence of NBS as our advisers on remuneration and stated

this on page 77 of the 2014 Report and Accounts

Since the 2014 Report and Accounts, Simon Jeffreys (Non-executive Durector and member of the Remuneration Commattee) has
become Chair of Aon UK Lirmied, part of the Acn Group of Companies which also includes NBS The Board has now examined the
nature of the relationships between Sumon Jeffreys and NBS as a result of hus position at Aon UK Lunited, and 15 satisfied that thes has no

effect on the independence of exther party

3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONTINUED

Duration of Appointments

The Chairman and Non-executive Directors are appointed

for a speaified term and the Executive Directors have service
contracts with the Group {copies of the terms and conditions of
appomtment of all Directors are available for mspection at the
registered office address) However, all Directors are subject to
annual re-election by shareholders

Time Commitments

Non-executive Directors are expected to commut at least 15-25
days per annum and i practice comuit considerably more tune
than this The Board 15 satisfied that each of the Non-executive
Directors commits sufficient time to the business of the
Company and further details of work carried out by the
Nomnation Committee 1 this respect 1s set out on page 81

Since her appomtment 1n January 2014, the Chairman has
devoted a ssgmficant proportion of her tume to the role In
conjunction with the Senior Indep endent Director, she regularly
assesses her various commitments and continues to menage her
portfoho of other activrties to ensure that she has sufficent time
to meet the requirements of the posiion She currently holds
three other non-exeeutive roles and two Chawrmanshrp roles m
other publicly hsted compames, however, the Chawrmanships and
two of the non-executive roles are with Investment Trusts which
generally require less ime commtment than an operational
company, and which provide useful and valuable mvestment
msight to Board discussions She has a full attendance record at
the Company’s Board meetings in 2015 and has also attended
twenty Board Committee meetings 1n addition to spending a
substantial amount of time engaging with the busmess outside
formal Board and Committee meetings The Board 15 satisfied
that she commuts sufficient tme to the business of the Company

Succession Planning and Drversity

The Board has a responsibility to ensure that appropriate
succession plans are in place both for the Board, the Executive
Board and senior management The expansion of the Executive
Board in 2014 and the resiructuring of that Executive Board and
the roles held by 1ts members wath effect from the end of 2015
has provided a robust succession plan for the future and thus,
together with the Board succession plans, will continue to be
reviewed during 2016

The Board also continued to develop 1ts imtiative around patterns
of female participation and divermity in different parts of the Group
and the Partnershup and this will continue to be a focusn 2016

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Board Effectiveness

The Board undertakes a review of 1ts effectiveness each year,
organised by the Charrman. At least once every three years this
1s facilitated by an externa! party and a formal external
evaluation of the Board took place 1n 2015 Further details of the
review and 1ts key findings are set out on page 69

i

Board Training

Induction

An appropriate wnduction programime 1s designed to enable all
new Board Directors to meet senior management, understand
the business and future strategy, visit various office locations and
speak directly to Partners and staff around the country as well as
being introduced to other key stakeholders &

Continumng Professional Development

The Charrman and Company Secretary also ensure the contimung
professional development for all your Directors, based on thewr
indridual requirements, and a List of traung carned out durmg
the year 15 mamntained by the Company Secretary Such tramng
mcludes toprcal issues, visits to head office and other locations to
meet with staff and members of the Partnership and attending
semanars or other events taking place throughout the year In
addition to this, ad hoc training 1s set up m the year to deal wath
individual requests and the Non-executive Directors are able to
attend semnars or conferences which they consider will assist
them 1 carrying out their duties Non-executive Directors are
briefed on the views of majer shareholders at Board meetings and
are provzded with the opportunity to meet with shareholders,

as apprcpnate

Board Functioning

The Chairman 1s responsible for seting the Board Agenda
together with the Chief Executive Officer and the Company
Secretary For each Board meeting, all Board members are
supphed waith an agenda and pack contaimng specific papers on
strategic 1ssues, reports and management information on current
trading, operational 1ssues, comphance, risk, accounting and
financial matters The Chairs of the varous commttees of the
Board report to the Board at each Board meeting and copres of
compmttee meeting rminutes are mcluded (where appropriate) m
the Board packs

To ensure that there 1s suffiment time for the Board to discuss
matters of a mater1al or more discursive nature, Board dinners
are usually held prior to most scheduled Board meetings, which
allows the Directors greater hime to discuss their views

Tn addition to the strategyc discussion at Board meetings, the
Directors attend two separate Strategy Days each year and, during
2015, these focused on some of the areas set out on page 68
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Culture
The Board exercises oversight over the Cornpany’s culture and regularly considers how both employees and Partners adhere to it and

Teviews measures to retain the Group’s culture The manner m which employees and Partners can adhere to the culture 1s set outn a
serzes of ‘Our Approach’ documents, including The Spirit of the Partnership

Company Secretariat
Drrectors have access ta the advice of the Company Secretary at all times, as well as independent professional edvice where needed n

order to assist them m carrying out their duties

Relations with Shareholders
The Compeny maintams close relationships with mstitutional shareholders through dialogue and frequent meetmgs, and meets

regularly with the Group's brokers who facilitate meetlhgs wrth investors and thexr representatives

Dunnyg 2015, shareholder mteraction mcluded giving shareholder roadshows, where the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Fmancial Officer presented the Company’s full year and half year results to investors, attending mvestor conferences and holding
general investor meetings and conference calls

The Chuef Financial Officer provides feedback to the Board on any matersal topcs raised 1 these meetings and Board members also
recewve copies of the latest analysts’ and brokers’ reports on the Company, and will attend sharehelder and/or analyst meetings from
time to time

The Chairman, Seruor Independent Director and other Non-executive Directors are available for consultatton with shareholders on
request and will be available after the Company’s Anmual General Meenng which will be held on Wednesday, 4 May 2016, further
details of which are set out m the Notice of Annual General Meeting The Chairman wrote to major shareholders m 2015, to make
sure they had contact details for her, the SID and the new Charman of the Remuneration Committee, and to ask 1f any major

shareholder had specific comments or queries No such comments or queries were made The Charrman and Non-executive
Directors also attended the Capital Markets Day and post results analysts’ briefings She wall be attending a number of shareholder

meetings with the executive team m 2016

Board Meetings and Focus During 2015

Meetings
During the year, seven formal Board meetings were held and there were

twenty Board Commuttee meetings

two additonal Board Strategy meetings There were also

1xodaw orferenc l

Attendance at both Board and Board Committee meebngs 1s set out below Board and Commuttee Attendance 1 2015
Member . Flc Board Audit Risk Remuneration Nomination
Sarzh Bates 7(7) — - - 3(3)
Dawid Bellamy 7(7 - - - -
Tain Cornish 7(7) 7(7) 7(7) — 33
Andrew Croft 77 - - - —
Ian Gascoygne 7 — - — -
Sumon Jeffreys 707 77 7(7 33 -
David Lamb 7 - — — -
Baroness Wheatcroft 7(7) - 77 3(3) 33
Roger Yates 7(7) T 7{7) 3(3) -

Note Thz camber In brackets denotes the number of meetings that the Board members were eligible to sttegd,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONTINUED

In addition, the 1ndependent Non-executive Directors met
~vwithout the Executive Directors but with the Charrman three
times during the year, and also met once without the Chairman

Board Actvities During 2015

A surnmary of some of the topics considered by the Board during
2015 15 set out below and m the Chairman’s Repart on pages 62
end 63. Reports on the activitzes of each of the Board
Commuttees during 2015 are set out on pages 70 to 83

Highlights of 2015 Board Business
The following provides an overview of the key matters
considered by the Board 1n 2015

Strategy

The Board.

* Discussed possible future financial market behaviours, with
an external speaker,

» Conmidered the strategic direction of1ts Investment
Management Approach talang into account market and
political conditions, the scale of funds under management
together with proposed wdustry and product developments,
r1sks and constraints,

* Recerved regular updates and discussed the changing Tandscape
1 relation to pensions and the Govertment’s Pensions Reforms
together with the Financal Advice Market Review,

« Consdered and approved the acqusition of Rowan Dartington,
a discretionary fund manager, which acqusition has recaved
regulatory approval and wall be completed immnently,

* Approved the launch of 2 new Money Management Account
through Metrobark,

+ Conducted ‘deep dives’ on the strategies relating to
— chents and chent outcomes,
~ the Partnership,

— capaaty and capahihty,
— nisk; and
— expenses

* Rewviewed and approved a new Partner Share Option scheme,

* Recewved updates on progress of the Asian operations, and

» Approved the Company's Business Plan for 2015

Rask Management.

The Board:

+ Undertook a robust assessment of the principal nisks facing
the Group, m accordance with C 2 3 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, mncluding those that would threatenats
busmess model, future performance, solvency or hquidity
(see pages 43 to 47 for description of these r1sks and how they
are being managed or mitigated) and approved the Group’s
Risk Framework and the Group's Risk Appetite Statement
(see also the report of the Risk Commutiee on pages 77to79),
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* Reviewed and approved the ORSA required under the new
Sclvency I! regime, further detauls of which are set out on
page 41,

= Conducted a deep dive on the Company's risk strategy and
progress aganst plan, monrtored the Compary’s risk
nanagement and internal control systems and carnied outa
review of their effectiveness (see page 69 for a report on that
review), and

s Oversaw the project to upgrade the Group’s back-office
administration systems, as discussed an the Report and
Accounts for 2014, and also nisks in relatton to third party

outsourcing arrangements

Governance

The Board:

* Conadered and received tramnuig on the unpending
implementation of the Sentor Insurance Managers Regrme
and approved the Governance Maps for the Group and §JPUK
(2 key requirement of the regime) that were subnutted to the
PRA atthe end of 2015,

* Worked to ensure, via 1ts various reporting forums, that the
Group comphed with all of its oblhigations and responsibihties
under UK Company Law as well as the revised UK Corporate
Governance Code;

*  As noted in the Audit Commuttee report, reviewed the
financial statements and considered they were indeed farr,
balanced and understandable, and that they provide the
necessary clarity required by shareholders to suffimently
understand the business,

* Considered the new requirement for a ‘viability statement’ to
be mcluded 1n the Report and Accounts together with the most
approprate timeframe on which to base 1ts vialahty statement,
further details of which are set cut on page 42,

» Commssoned and partcpated 1n an external evaluation of
the effectiveness of the Board and 1ts Commuttees generally
Details of the evaluation are set out on page 69, and

= Internal individual peer reviews were also conducted with

each Director

Succession and Diversity

The Board-

* Spent considerable time reviewing the Group's succession
plans through the Nomination Commttee, looking to ensure
the contrnued development of semor management and
agreemng to the proposed restructuring of the Executive
Board members’ responsibilities as outhned on page 81, and

* Noted the estabhishment of a group to review patterns of
female participation 1o the orgamisation
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Finance, Regulatory and Statutory

The Board:

* Recewved regular updates on extensive regulatory changes
induding Solvency Il and the Semor Insurance Managers
Regume mentoned above,

= Was presented with a deep-dive on the Group’s expenses,

* Had regular contact with the Group's regulators to ensure
effective and appropriate engagements with them, with the
FCA also attending a Board meeting during the year, and

¢ Approved the Annual Report and the shareholder notice of
Annual General Meeting

Training

During the year all the Directors :1dentified and undertock
relevant training based on thear individual requirements They
also attended a specific traming day covermng SJP products and
services, S]P funds, Governance and Resolution Planming In
addition, duning 2015 the Non-executive Directors identified
areas that they particularly wished to recerve trarung and
development mcluding meeting Partners and visting Locations
and attending Executive Committee meetings

2015 Board Effectiveness Review

Last year we conducted an internal evaluation of the Board’s
effectiveness (the resnlts of which were set out m last year's
Report and Accounts) and I am pleased to say that we have made
good progressin telation to the key actions anising from that
review "This included setting aside tume at future Board meetings
to discuss 1ssues i more depth, and ferther traiming and
development for Non-executive Directors

As mentioned earher in this Report, in 2015 the Board undertook
an external evaluation, which was conducted by Sean O'Hare
from Boardroom Dialogue Boardroom Dialogue also provided
some advice on long term succession planning Sean O'Hare was a
partner n the Human Resource Services Group at PwC but
retired on 31 December 2013 and thus has independence was not
affected He does not have any other connections with, nor has
undertaken any other-work for, the Group

Tlas reiew focused on Wdentifying where the Board was working

well and areas for improvement It was conducted between

Arugust and Décember and connsted of

* 11 interviews with each of the members of the Board, key
executves, the Company Secretary and the Audit Partoer
from PwC,

* Observation of Board and Commttee meetings held over the
period, and

* Areview of the Board and Commuttee agendas, mmutes and
papers for the previous 12 months.

69

The findings of the 2015 review were that the Board was workang
well, considening the nght topics 1n a imely basis with an
appropriate level of challenge The Non-executive Directors were
conscientious and prepared thoroughly for Board and Commttee
meetings and the management team recaived value from, and were
influenced by, the Non-executive Directors’ contribunons

Therefore, overall this was a positive report reflecting that the

Board had made good progress 1o the last three years and there

wWere no major 1ssues or concerns that were not already under

consideration However, to improve Board effectiveness further,

the main areas to focus on were

* Enhanang Board engagement by considering additional
snformal meetings wvolving Board members, keeping
Nen-executive Directors updated on SJP commumnicanons
events and increasing engagement at shareholder meetings,
and continuing to enhance the quality of, and focus on,
strategic discussions,

* Improving meeting administration to streamhne the format
and volume of mformation going to the Board and the

" timehness of papers, improving the scheduhng of certam

Audit Committee meetngs, reviewing attendance by
management at meetmgs and renewing the secretarat
support for the Board Commuttees and the Executave Board,

* Engaging further in Board development by bulding on
the current traiming for Non-executtve Directors throu gh
further briefing sessions on more complex areas of the
business and reviewing and updating the induction process
for Non-executive Directors; and

* Bulding on exasting long term succession pl to ensure
continued discussion on thas topic at Board level and greater
vimbility to the Board of succession plans below the Board and
the Executive Board

The éompa.uy will report on the progress of the above action
plan m the 2016 Report and Accounts.

Durmg 2015, the Charman also assessed the indmvidual
performance of each member of the Board, by way of a
questionnaire and indrvidual discussans, to consider performance
and establish Board related objectrves Traiming and development
needs for 2016 were also identified and the ontput from these
reviews will be taken nto account 1n drawing up the Board
effectiveness plan for 2016

Comphance with the UK Corporate

Governance Code
‘The Board’s statement of comphance with the provisiens of the
UK Corporate Governance Code 201415 set out on page 100
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Symon feffreys
Charr of the Audit Commattee

Role of the Committee m Summary

* To be responsible for the accuracy and integrity of the
Group’s financal statements,

» To oversee the work of the external auditor and consider 1ts
reports,

* To momnitor the work of the Internal Audit function and
ensure 1ts effectiveness,

* To momtor the effectiveness of the systems of mternal contrel
and sk management,

* Toreview, and where appropriate refer on to the Board, any
sigmficant control failures; and

* Toreport to the Board on how the Commuttee has discharged
1ts responsibilites

Audit Committee Members
Simon Jeffreys (Chair)

Tamn Cormish

Roger Yates

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Iam pleased to present the report of the Audit Commuttee of
St Jarnes’s Place ple for the year ended 31 December 2015

As shareholders wall be aware, the Audit Commattee has
numerous obligations to the Board and shareholders, mcludmg
asaisting the Board i 1ts monitoring of both the financial
reporting process, and the effectiveness of the Company’s
mternal control, internal audit and risk management systems

The Committee 15 also responsible for momtoring the statutory
audit of the annual report and the consolidated financial
statermenits, and the independence of the Group's statutory
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (Pw() In carrying dut
these duties, the Commuttee must maintain an effective
relationship with the external audstors and pay due regard to any
findings and conclusons resulting from external mspections of
previous audits and the results of our mternal evaluation of the

effectiveness of prior year andits

A further duty of the Commmttee 1 to provide advice to the Board
that the Company’s financial reports, taken as a whole, provide a
farr, balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
financal position and results, and that they provide the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
financaal posithon and performance, busimess model and strategy

A key activity of the Commuttee in 2015 was reviewng the
anmual and half-yearly Report and Accounts, assocrated
announcements 2ad the external auditor’s reports Engagement
with the Internal Audit function, and particularly development
of the Internal Audit plan for the year, momtoring progress of
the plan and considering the results from all Internal Audit
actiity was also important, as was mamtenance of an
appropnate relationship with the Company’s external auditors

This report sets out how the Commttee has discharged these,
and its other duties, through 2015

Simon Jeffreys
On behalf of the Audn Commutzee
22 March 2016
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Committee Membership During 2015

Commuittee members are unchanged since January 2015 and, i accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, comprise
three independent Non-executive Directors This remains the case as at the date of this report. :Fhe Board 1s satisfied that all
members have the expenience and quahfications necessary to successfully perform thesr roles, noting 1n particular that the Chair of
the Commuttee 15 a qualified accountant and former auditor, and other mermbers also have recent and relevant financial experience

and expertise

Details of sttendance of Comimittee members at the meetings of the Audit Commuttee throtighout the year can be found on page 67
Additional mvited attendees to the meetings during the course of the year included the Chairman, the Chief Finanaal Officer, the
Drirector of Internal Audit, the Carporate Actuary and other members of the Finance team, 2 well as representatives from the
external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP The Chuef Executive Qfficer and the Group Rusk Director both attended a jont

meeting of the Audst and Risk Commuttees held 1n May 2015

Committee Activities During 2015

Frmancal Reporting

The Committes reviewed both the annual and half-year Report and Accounts, together wath the associated reports from the external
auditors An early draft of the Annual Report was discussed at the November meeting and the Committee beld early discusnions on
key disclosures including material assumptions, key judgements, changes since 2014 and sigmificant events and actrvities during 2015
The Commuttee reflected both on postive developments and challenges during the year The topes discussed were driven both by
conmderation: of risk of mus-statement of the accounts, and also by assessment of the scale of risk m the business

Given the nature of our business, there are certamn areas which are always relevant and important, particularly valuahion of assets and
actuzrial reserving assumptions Other topics reflect the business experience m the year During 2015 the activity has mncluded

Area of Focus Activity

Asset Yaluaton (Particularly Property and Derivatives) Further to a request by the Audit Commttee, semor management
presented on asset valuation systems and controls, with particular

focus on property and derivatives, but also outlming the process
of audit of Umt Trusts Asa result the Commuittee was able to
conclude that the processes were appropriate and would provide

reliable financial nformation
Actuanal Reserving Assumptions (Tncluding Persistency In line with practice of recent years, Commuttee members
Assumptions m Relation to EEV and Solvency I1 Reporting} engaged m a separate briefing session to review the experience

analys:s underlying demographic assumptions, end also reviewed

the key ecanomic assumptions to be used 1n valuations This

prompted detailed discussion of the vanous judgements, and

resulted 1n 2 common understanding of, and agreement on

* The unpact of changes in the pension market and chent
behaviour on persistency of pension business, and

* The outlook for future maintenance expenses m hght of the
new admimstrabon contract.

During the course of its regular work, the Commttee reviewed
the relevant pohaes and recerved regular reports from
management and internal/external audit on the controls

Fraud in Revenue Recognition

Management Override of Controls Much of the work of the Commttee was directly or indirectly
focused on management and controls This included review of
systemns of controls, reports on the self-assessment activaty, and
external review, intludmg internal audrt co-sourcing

As this levy was such a sipmficant ttem n the first half of the year,
the Commuttee discussed the approprate level of provision and
potentral ymplications for the busmess 1n the future, concluding
that the reporting was appropriate

FSCS Levy
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Area of Focus

CONTINUED

Activity

Deferred Tax Assets from Legacy Capital Losses

Migration of UT and ISA Busmess to the
Bluedoor Admunistration System

Revised Contract with IFDS

Acquation of Rowar: Dartington

New Partner Share Option Scheme

Followng the identsfication of sigmficant tax losses 1n legacy
comparues, the Commuttee requested mnformation about the
timing of recognitron and reahsanon of this tax asset and

any rsks which could impair rts value The Commuttee also
considered the communication and reportimg of these losses,
mcluding engaging 1n discussion with external advisers, which
enabled 1t to support management's recommended approach
See further detail on page 28

The Commattee also considered the expected use of tax Josses
dentfied 1n earlier years, and reviewed other deferred tax assets

and habilities

The Commuttee discussed the mugration testing strategy and
work, targeted Internal Audst work on this important project
and recerved reports prepared by both management and external
consultants Furthermore, members of the Commuttee attended
governance meetngs to ensure the processes were robust, and
reviewed the results of dry runs The Commuttee concurred
with management’s decasion to mugrate UT and ISA business to
the new systern, which was successfully completed m October

As part of the final approval process for a new contract with
IEDS, the Commttee carrred out an oversight review of
management’s review of the contract and m parbicular the
financals The Committee also discussed the imphcations for
financial reperting, and in particular agreed with management
on the recogmition in the financial statements, and the
recoverability, of a pre-payment for development costs that wall
be recogmsed over the hifetime of the contract

The Comuttee revzewed and agreed the proposed approach
to conschdation of the additional entity and reporting of the
transaction costs and mtangibles

During the year the business deaded to offer a new share
option scheme to S]P Partners to support retention and
[promote productvity of eur most successful Partner businesses
The Committee supported the propesed approach to financial
statement disclosure

Developments m relation to cyber secunty controls were considered by the Risk Commuttee as part of its discussions around the

Group’s risk appetite 1n this area of increasing risk
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This year was also sgmficant for Financial Reporting and Regulatory changes within the mdustry, with a number of key areas for the
Commuttee to consider

Area of Focus Activity

Solvency II (In Comjunctqn with the Risk Committee) Final preparations were made during the year, ready for
implementation in January 2016 The Committee was informed

of progress n the project, mcluding momtoring of the project and
reports by Internal Audxt, and considered the potentsal mmpact oh

corporate reporting The Commuttee also approved the approach

taken to reporting Solvency Il information in the year-end Report
and Accounts

As part of ats regular review of developments in sccounting
standards, the Commttee assessed and supported the move to
adopting FRS 101 for most of the Group compames

UK GAAP Update

As well as momtoring developments with the FRC, the

2014 UK Corporate Governance Code
Commuttee considered the changes required to satisfy the 2014

(Includimg Viabihty Statement)
UK Corporate Governance Code In particular the Commttee
discussed and agreed the approach to the viability statement
EU Audit Directive Although national implementation of the EU Audst Directive 13

yet to be completed, the Cammuttee has anticipated the hkely
implications and has updated the Group’s Pohcy on auditor

mndependence accordingly

New Business Metrics (APE — Annual Prermium Equivalent) Following developments 1n mndustry reporting, the Group
decrded to stop reporting performance on the APE measure

The Committee was mvolved 1n reviewing the proposed chenge
and conmdering any potential risks

Fair, Balanced and Understandable’ Opinion
‘The UK Corporate Governance Code requres the Board to give its opinion as to whether 1t considers the Corpany’s Report and

Accounts, taken as a whole, provide a fawr, balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s position, and that they provide
the mformation necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy

To ad the Board, the Audit Commuttee carined out a formal review of the Report and Accounts in relation to this requrement,
meludimg a consideration of the results of achvities and informaton described ebove In particular, the Commattee reflected on the
following questions

* Does the report present the whole story, including challenges and 1ssues faced as well as Company achievements?

* Does the report acheve consistency between the financial statements and the narrahve sections?

* Are appropnate performance medsures mncluded and dearly explatned?

Are key judgements and eshmation uncertainties in the financial statements explained and are they consistent wath the Audit
Comrmttee report and the nsks the external auditor intends to imnclude 1n 1ts report?

* Does the report have a clear and cohesive structure?

+ Isthe report readable and are the important messages mghhighted 2pproprately?

*  Are explanations of business models, strategies and accounting policies clear?

Following thus review, the Commuttee was able to advise the Board that the Company’s Report and Accounts for the year ended
31 December 2015 are indeed fair, balanced and understandable
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

External Auditor
The Commattee has respensibility for the work of the external audators of the Company

The anditors attended all Audit Committee meetings, and reported on therr work The Chair of the Committee also met regularly
with the Semor Statutory Auditor

The Audrt plan was presented, discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at the October meeting, sethng out the activity
planned and the major risks :dentified Regular progress updates were presented at the November and January meetings, with a full
report presented at the conclusion of the audit 1n February. The Commuttee discussed the findings from the work under the headings
of the major nsks as set out in the original Audst plan and members apphed ther understanding of the scope of work, findings,
judgements and conclusions of the external andit mn their evaluation that the financal statements had been properly prepared

Durng the year the Committee developed a revised Policy orr Auditor Independence The new policy 1s available on the Company
website The policy makes clear the types of non-audit work which are prolubited, and our robust pohcy of only engaging our audrtor
for limated non-audit work, where there 13 no risk of compromising independence, and where 1t 1s appropriate to do so

The pohicy also sets out St James’s Place’s coramrtment to regular rotaton of the auditors, talang mto account both the EUl and
Competition and Markets Authority rules In particular the Cormittee 15 commutted to reviewing the parformance of the auditor every

year, and consrdening whether a change 1s required

The Committee used their expenence and the following addional mformaton to assess the effectiveness, mmdependence and
objectvity of the Company’s external audrtor

Area of Focus Activity
Audmor Effectiveness * The findings of the annual review by the FRC of the mam auditing firms

* The Audit Quality Review report on PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP speafically

* The outcome of the review by the FRC of the 2014 zudit of the Company — the Commuttee
reviewed the comments, discussed them with PwC and was satisfied with the outcome

* The experience and knowledge of the team (with due regard to the requrement for regular
rotation of audit team members)

= Results of an mternal survey of auditor pexformance

* Results of the review of the 2014 Annual Report and Accounts, which was used to inform
the Commuittee'’s review of the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts

Auditor Independence and = Review of the nature and extent of other ‘non-audit’ work undertaken to confirm

Objectivity compliance with cur pohey.
* Review by STP to confirm no hinks or investments with the Company by the Audit Team

* Regular rotation of Audit Team
* Appropriate considerations when recruting a former audit partner

Detailed information on the breakdown of fees paid to our excternal audst firm 15 provided in

Level of Fees
Note 6 of the Accounts on page 134

Ag a result of this work, the Commuttee conduded that the aundit service of Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP was fit for purpose and
provided a robust evaluation of the risks underlying the Company’s financial statements As a consequence 1t was agreed thatit was
not necessary to tender the audit during the year However, since PwC was appomnted as anditor m 2009, 1t 1s expected that, m the
best interests of shareholders, the audit will be tendered during 2016 n respect of the 2017 year-end audit (though ths need not
result 1n a change of audst firm) We wall need to change audt firm at least by 2027 Having rotated our Semor Statutory Auditor mn
2014, we will also at least requure a further rotation by 2019 Taking nto account these plans and disclosure, we believe that we

comply with the provisions of the Statutory Audst Services Order

/
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Internal Audit
The Commuttee 15 responsible for momtoring the work of the Internal Audit function and 115 effectiveness The Director of Audit has

regular access to the Charman of the Audit Commattee and the Board and 15 accountable to the Audit Commuattee

During the year the Commuttee reviewed and approved the Audit Charter, as required by the standards of the IIA (Institute of
Internal Auditors), and confirmed the updated document complies waith the internal audst pohey requirements of the Selvency 11
directive The Internal Audit function also presented penodic reviews of the skills and capabilities wathin the team The Commattee
encouraged the Director of Audit to put in place a formal co-sourang agreement and Deloitte LLP was chosen for this purpose after
2 competrhve selechon process Co-sourcing provides specialist expertise and additional resources to mantain and enhance the level

of assurance

The work plan for the Internal Audit function was agreed at the start of the year, and progress was momtored through the year,

with particular focus on whether the team had the necessary resources to implement the plan m a timely manner The Committee
encouraged an external quahty assessrent of the Internal Audit funchion, which was conducted by independent consultants

This confirmed comphiance with the International IIA standards to which the function 1s benchmarked and the Code for Effective
Internal Audits 1 Financral Services There were a number of minor recommendations to improve the effectiveness and resihence of

the internal audit function and the Cormmttee ensured that appropnate changes were made

Rusk based Internal Audrt work dunng the year has focused on several themes :dentified at the planmng stage with the Commuttee,

for example .
Area of Focus Activity
Governance » Delegations of authority across the Group
* Management of conflicts of interest
Major Change Inthatives * Admunistration system — extensive coverage of the programme

to upgrade the Group’s back-office admmistration systems
» Solvency I1 —speaific audits to ensure preparedness for
comphance m 2016

= Complants handling and case checking of written business

Core Compliance and Regulatory Risk Audits
« Frend contrals

* Rewiew of risk and control management at IFDS and Capita

Management of Third Parties and Qutsourced
* General audtt coverage of other key third parties

Service Providers

Other Key Operational Risks * Busmess conthmnty planmng—mclud.mg oversight of
thord party admmstrators
* Informaton technology — review of data quahty

When recerving regular updates from the Divector of Internal Audit 1o relation to the results from completed audits, the Commttee
paxd careful attention to any areas where the audit led to remedial action bemng recommended The actions ansing were monitored to
ensure completion In practice, 86% (2014 85%) of actsons were completed 1n line wath the original agreed deadlines, with the rest

expected to be completed by appropnately agreed revised deadiines

System of Internal Control
The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system of mternzl controls, the ongoing momitoring of risk and internal

control systems and for reporting on any sigrificant fuling or weaknesses The Audit Committee and Risk Commuttee work closely
together to suppart the Board mn this responsibibity, with'the Board having delegated responsibility to the Audit Commuttee for

Teviewing the effectiveness and monitoning of the ‘risk and internal controls framework’, and responsibility to the Risk Comnnttee
for oversight of nsk management The Risk Commuttee therefore provides regular updates to the Audit Committee on the status of

risk management 1n the Group
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

The Group adopts the ‘three hines of defence model’ as the design bass for 1ts mternal control framework and the process for
reviewing the effectiveness of the framework takes account of this model as follows )

Area of Focus Activity
Frst Line — Operations * Control Self-Assessment attestation from management
: *  Attestation by sgmificant thurd party supplers of outsourced
admimistration services

= CEQ attestation to the Board Audit Committee on the first
line operations.

*  Control assessments
— ‘Rask control’ self-assessments,
— Comphance momtoring, and
— Business assurance ‘thematic reviews’
= Review led by the Controls Manager at half year and year-end
= CEOQ attestation to the Board Audit Commuttee on the second
Lmne, risk management functions.
* Reports from the Board Risk Commuttee

Second Line — Risk Management and Controls

Third Line — Audst * Internal Audit ongoing actvity, mncluding reviews by external
orgamsations, managed by Internal Audit (e g KPMG file

reviews)

* External Audit activaty.
* Internal Audit — Internal Control Evalvation report

-

In summary, the Chuef Executive has ulimate responsibility for the first two hnes of defence and uses hus knowledge of the business,
and that of hus senior menagement team, to provide an opimon on the control systems Separately, Internal Audit provides an
independent opimon (the Internal Control Evaluation rgport), from a third hine perspective, based on Internal Aundit activity
conducted throughout the year and Internal Audit’s further analysis and apprasal of the outputs from a wide range of othex sources

These sources of assurance assist the Audit Commuttee in completing its annual review and enable the Audit Commuttee to attest on

behalf of the Board that 1t has been able to properly review the effectiveness of the Coropany’s system of mternal control n
accordance with the 2014 FRC Guidance on risk management, internal control and related finencial and business reporting The
Audit Commuttee did not :dentfy any ‘sgmficant fathngs or weaknesses’ and 1t has ensured that corrective action 1s being taken on

matters arising from the review

Other Actrvity
The Charr of the Commuttee acts as the key contact for the Whistleblowing Palicy and will be the whustleblowers’ champion under

the Semor Insurance Managers Regime The Comrttee has reviewed whistleblowing arrangements 1n hight of the PRA pohcy
statement m October 2015 and will oversee the amendments and communtcations required prior to the new rules comng anto force

on 7 September 2016

Self-Assessment
As part of the annual process of Board evaluation, the Committee connidered 1ts overall performance during the year Overall the

Commttee judged stself to be effective, but conmderation was given to the possihihity that, as both the Audit and Risk Commuttees
fulfil smilar oversight roles, there could be duphcatton Asa result, formal arrangements have been introduced to further strengthen

the working relationship, including ensuring that the Chairs of the Audit and Rusk Commttees lia1se on agendas

The Commmuttee was also indluded 1a the Board Evaluation process and no matenal 1ssues were highhghted in respect of its operation

"The terms of reference, which were revised 1 2015 and which set out the Commttee’s role and authority, can be found on the

corporate website at www sjp co uk
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REPORT OF THE RISK COMMITTEE

Iain Cornish Y
Charr of the Risk Comnuttes

Role of the Committee in Summary

= To foster a culture of effective rsk identification and
management throughout the Group,

* To provade leadership, direction and oversight of the Group’s
managemnent of risk,

- To review the prinapal risks affecting the Group and the
ways 1 which the nisks are controlled and mbigated,

* To provide oversight of the Own Rask and Solvency
Assessment process, and

* To report any matenal areas of concern to the full Board

Risk Committee Members
lan Cornish (Charr)

Simeon Jeffreys

Baroness Wheatcroft

Roger Yates

Fostering a culture of effective r1sk management 1s of the utmost
importance to the Directors The Risk Commuittee 15 a sub-
commuttee of the Board, the remt of which 15 to assist the Board
m developing this culture, by providing leadership, directior and
oversight of the Group’s mapagement of nsk.

In carrying out this remit, the Committee’s key actrvities 1n 2015

included

= Overseemng preparations for the implementation of the
Solvency I Darective alongsde the Audit Comnmuttee,

* Monttoring and reviewing the effectiveness of nsk
management m the Group and the nsk management
functions,

* Rewiewing the princapal risks and uncertainties affectmg the
Group as well as the risk appetite,

= Consdering reports produced by the Group’s Risk and
Comphance functhions, to montor the ongping comphance
interaction with the Group’s regulators, and

* Recewving presentations from members of senior management
about thesr business areas and reviewing the management of
the assocrated nisks

The following report sets out in more detail the Commuttee’s key
activibes m 2015

Tamn Cornish
On behalf of the Ruisk Commattee
22 March 2016
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REPORT OF THE RISK COMMITTEE

CONTINUED .

Committee Membership During 2015

All members of the Risk Commuttee have considerable financial,
risk and/br other relevant expenience and are ndependent
Non-executrve Directors There have been no changes to the
membershrp of the Risk Commttee during 2015 Detals of
attendance at the meetings of the Risk Commmttee throughout

the year can be found on page 67

Regular attendees at Committee meetings durmng the year N
mcluded the Chief Executive, the Managing Director, the Group
Rask Director, the Chuef Financial Officer, the Comphiance
Officer and the Chuef Actuary As Chairman of the Board, Sarah

Bates also attended all Risk Committee meetings during 2015

Committee Activities During 2015

A key focus for the Comniuttee during 2015 has been oversight of
the mmplementation of Solvency Il requrements The Commttee
set the strategy for the performance of a ingle, Group-wide,
ORSA and had continued mvolvement 1n this progess throughout
the year In particular, the Committee discussed the underlying
basts and assumptions, the nature and results of stress and
scenario tests, the assessment of operational nisks, key nsk
management policies and the content of the Narrative Report,
ORSA report and viabihty statement It also recesved regular
reports on project progress

An important element of the work of the Commuttee s to
conmider reports from semor executives and external consultants
on speatfic topics, mcluding key corporate :mtiatives The
Commuttee spent time discussing management of the assocated
risks, and provided challenge to the executives responsible
Topics considered m 2015 included

* Cyber-security threats, the Group’s defences and 1ndustry
best-prachce The Commuttee considered the Group’s sk
appette, current level of matunty, and developments to
controls and awareness 1n this area of increasmg risk,

* The Group’s financial erime prevention controls The
Commuttee considered the risks associated wath overseas
chents and the due diligence required for such mdividuals,
and receaved an update on finanmal cnime prevention controls
mn the Aman subsidraries. In a separate discussion, the
Committee considered the financial cime prevention
strategy over the next five years, to ensure controls remam
effective 1n hight of a chenging external sk environment and
mncreasing complexaty within the Group;

= The progresston of the project underway to implement the
Group's new admimistration platform The Commuttee
considered the financial and contractual risks associated wath
the development, and focussed on the controls operating
withun the project, including quahty gates in place at key
deasion ponts,

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

= Oversght of third party admmistrators, including the
potential impact on chents of any 1ssues experienced by those
admimstrators and how these are mmgated. The Comnuttee
considered the controls in place to ensure correct handhng
of chient money, discussing the implementation of new chent
assets regulations and the ympact of the new admunistration
platform on the handhng of chent money The nature of the
Group’s overaght of outsourced relationships was also
conmdered,

= The potential risks associated with the acquisition of Rowan
Dartington, with subsequent discussions around the process
of aligmmg the two businesses, following the Board’s decasion
to proceed with the acquisttion,

* The nature of chent complaints and the way in which these
are handled and resolved The Commuttee also considered the
reporting of complamnts, both withun the Group and to
regulators,

* Theapproval process for new Partners, 1n particular the
checks that are carned out during the recruitment process
and subsequent momtorig of new recruts,

* The pohtical landscape in the UK, ingluding the impheahons
of changes to pension legislation and potential impacts on the
Group from a Greek Euro exat or a Briash exat from the EU,
and

¢ The regulatory environment and management of key risks
within the Aian subsidiaries, including the progress towards
full integration of the acquired busness into the 5P Group
and continued enbancements to contrels and resource levels

Thus gave the Committee the opportumty to ensure that risks
are being addressed and to test that the culture of sk
1dentification and management 1= embedded

Oversight of the Risk Management Framework 1s key to delvery
of the responabilities of the Committee Further mformation
about the risk framework can be found on pages 40 to 42 The
framework and associated docurnents are subject to annual
review, and :n 2015, the Commttee has focused on embedding
the changes made 1n 2014. In particular, the risk appetite
statement has been realigned to reflect key drivers of the
bumness clents, Partners, the Investment Management
Approach, shareholders, regulators and onr pecple This
represents an evolution of the exishng staternents, and there has
been no fundamentel shaft in the underlying risk appetite of the
Group The set of mdicators used by the Commuttee to regularly
momntor performance agunst risk appetite has been aligned to
the new statement, as has the record of the top risks to the
Group Both have been regularly reviewed by the Commuttee
durmg the year Further enhancements to the Risk Management
Framework have been 1dentified and will be 1mplemented
during 2016
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The Commrttee 15 supported in 1ts overmght of the Risk

Management Framework by Risk Menagement teams at Group

and local levels, and the Commuttee spends a sgmficant

proportion of ts tume recerving updates from the Group Rask .
Director and the Head of Division — Group Risk, who both have

direct access to the Charrman of the Risk Comnmattee should the

need arise The Commuttee 15 also able to review and provide

challenge on the implementation of risk mitigation in the business '

As part of 1ts oversight of risk management in the busness, the
Commuttee also continued to receive and review reports from a
number of Executive Committees and other functions i the
Group, mcluding

* Reports relating to relevant topics discussed at Group Risk
Executive and Finance Executive Committee meetngs,
where executrve oversight 1s given to the appropriateness and
observance of the Group'’s Rusk Appetite,

* Reports produced by the Comphance Cversight and Business
Assurance functions 1n respect of thematc reviews carned
out to specific areas of the Group’s business,

* Reports from the Group Risk Director on the effectiveness of
the Group's nsk management systems, and

* An annual report from the Money Laundermg Reporting
Officer on the ant-money laundening, bribery and fraud
activities taking place within the Group

Since most of the activity within the Group 1s regulated, the

Comrmttee also considered regular updates on the Group’s

ongomg interactions with regulators, including the Prudential

Regulation Autflonty, Frnanaial Conduct Authority, Central

Bank of Ireland, Monetary Authority of Smpapore, Securities .
and Futures Comrmssion of Hong Kong and Officg of the

Compussioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, and the wider

regulatory wnteractions with firms 1n the financal services

marketplace This allowed 1t to momiter ongomg comphance

wrth regulation

The Commuttee was also included in the Board Evaluation
process and no material wssues were highhphted 1n respect of
its operation

The terms of reference, which were revised in 2015 and whach
set out the Commuttee’s role and authornty, can be found on the
corporate website at www sjp couk
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REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Sarah Bates
Chazr of the Nomination Commattee

Role of the Committee in Summary

* To regularly review Board and Committee composition
and structure,

* Todentfy, report on and recommend for Board approval,
suitable candidates for appantment to the Board,

= To appropriately consider succession planning for Directors
and semor management, taking mto account diversity,
expenience, knowledge and slalls, and

* To report to the Board on the work of the Commttee

Nomination Committee Members
Sarsh Bates (Chazr)

Tain Cormsh

Baroness Wheatcroft

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

The Nomunation Commuttee plays a eructal role i ensuring that
the structure and composition of the Board (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity} 1s approprate to continne

to lead the Group and acineve its strategic objectives

The Commmittee must also ensure that the skalls and attnbutes
necessary at those levels rmmediately below the Board are
also constantly reviewed, 1 order to ensure that there 1s an
appropriate and talented succession pipelme There has been
considerable focus on succession planning m this respect,
contumnung the work carried out last year (and referred to 1n
the 2014 Report and Accounts) and reflected in the further
development of the Executive Committee and the roles of its
members over the last year

The Committee has devoted time to reviewing diversity
within the Group and some good progress has been made
The Commmuttee has also been engaged in the external Board
Evaluation process which has been designed to hughlight what
the Board and 1ts Commuttees do well and any key areas for
umprovement Further detadls of the Board Evaluation can be
found on page 69

Thas report prowdes further details of the work undertaken
dunng the year

Sarah Bates
On behalf of the Nomnation Commuttee
22 March 2016
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Committee Membership During 2015

The members of the Commuittee remmned unchanged during
2015 and up to and including the date of this report Detals of
attendance at the meetings of the Nomnation Commuttee
throughout the year can be found on page 67

Committee Activities During 2015

In 2015, a contznued key area of focus wes reviewing succession
plans for the Executive Good progress has been made m thas
respect and the further restructuring of the Executive Board
and the recrganisation of functional respensibilities at the end of
the year has marked the continued development of a platform for
future succession Suceession plenning wall contmue to evolve

during 2016

The Committes contimed to keep the compostion and structure
of the Board and 1t5 various Commttees under review In
particular, loolang to ensure that the exasting skalls, knowledge,
experience, diversity and mdependence of the varous members
remaned appropriate both now and 1n the future, as well as
considering whether there was any requrement to draw i
additional slalls from elsewhere The Commrttee 1s strll of the
opmion not to set a 25% target for female representation for the
Board in 2016, noting that the level of female representation on
the Board 15 still close to satisfying the target at the present time
and that the Campany has a female Charrman

The Commttee also undertook a review of the mndependence

of the Non-execwtive Directors, and, having satisfied stself that
the existing mx of skills, knowledge, expenence, diversity and
independence and the structure of the Board and Commuttecs
remarn appropriate, the Commttee has not felt it necessary to
make any recommendations to engage addiional Board Members
or change the structure of the Board or 1ts Commttees during
the current year, although 1t will be considering its plans for the
future 1 order to plan for its own refreshment and succession
The proportion of the Board (excluding the Chairman) that
comprises mdependent Directors remams at 50% and the Board
therefore continues to comply with the Corporate Governance
Code (further details are contained on page 100).

The Commttee also reviewed some detailed analysis as to the
sigmficant other commmnent]s of the Non-executive Directors
and how much time they were spending on the Company’s
business and affairs As mentioned on page 66, the Non-
executive Directors are able to, and do, commut sufficient ime
to the Company’s business and, indeed, considerably exceed the
expected number of days they are required to spend

81

Dunmng the year, the Commuttee also concentrated on diversity
within the Group and the Partnership, receiving a number of
reports and statisties from senior management who had carried
outreviews m this area Whilst there 15 female representanon,
a number of measures have been identified to make further
progress and this work will continue during 2016

The Commuttee also discussed the scope of the external Board
Evaluation exercise undertaken by Boardroom Dralogue and
considered the outcome, noting that no matenal 1ssues were
nghhghted n respect of 1ts operation

The terms of reference setting out the Commuttee’s role and

authonity, and which were reviewed and updated m 2015, can be
found on the corporate website at www sjp co uk
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DIRECTORS’

REMUNERATION REPORT

Roger Yates
Char of the Remuneration Commuttee

On behalf of the Board, 1 am pleased to present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for 2015 which sets out how the
Directors’ Remuneration Pohey (the “Policy’) was apphed in
2015 and how 1t will be implemented m 2016 The
Rermuneration Commuttee (the ‘Comnuttee’) beheves that the
Pohcy remains appropriate and should continue to operate for
2016 with no changes proposed The remuneration pobicy table s
ncluded mn this report and 2 full copy of the Policy 1s available on
our webaite www sjp co uk

Remuneration Policy and the Corporate Strategy
The Policy was approved by the shareholders m 2014 and
continued to gperate 1 2015 The Pohcy supports the Group's
business strategy 1n that the major part of remuneration for
Executwves 15 performance-dependent, including both annual and
longer-term measures ahgned to a balanced set of business
objectives There 15 substantral deferral of variable remuneration
mto shares, and requrements for Executives to hold Company
shares, through muntmum shareholding thresholds and a two year
post-vesting sale restraction on Performance Share Plan (PSP)
awards Further detail as to how each element of the Pohcy
supports the strategy 18 set outin the table on pages 96 to 99

5T JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Corporate Performance and Remuneration for 2015
As reported 1n this Annual Report, 2015 has been another year
of strong performance and cur Executives’ reruneration for
2015 reflects this Based on the three-year performance to the
end of 2015, 100% of the Executve Directors’ PSP awards
granted in 2013 will vest in March 2016, as result of relative
total shareholder return (T'SR) and earnings per share (EPS)
growth at or above the upper end of the performance range set
by the Commuttee

The report mcludes disclosure of performance targets and

the ocutcome for the annual bonus for 2015. The Conamittee
determined that 93 3% of the maximum annual bonus should
be payable for 2015, reflecting the strong finanaal results for
2015 and strong progress against strategic objectives set by

the Commmttee at the start of the year, wich are fully explaned
i the report 50% of the bonus 15 deferred into shares for

threg years

Remuneration for 2016
The Commuttee considered the overall remuneration
arrangements for the Executive Directors 1n 2016 1o accordance

with the Pohcy

Following no inerease 1n the base salaries of the Executive
Directors for 2015, the Commuttee has decided to award an
wncrease of circa 2 5% in the base salares of the Executive
Drrectors for 2016, which 15 10 Line with the overall mcrease

of base salanies for the workforce The Committee continues

to monttor the complexaty of the responmbihitres undertaken,
the remuneration of staff generally, an element of market
companson and inflation trends from year to year The
Commuttee may consider further salary increases at subsequent
review dates as a result of analysis of these factors
The maxipmm annual bonus opportumty for 2016 wall remam at
the same levels as 2015, Performance share awards wall also be
granted at the same level ag 2015, 200% of salary for our CEOQ
and 190% for our other Executive Directors, which continues to
be below our shareholder approved policy maximum

In addition, the fees of the Chairman for 2016 were increased to
£190,000 (8.5% increase), the base fees of the Non-executive
Durectors were mcreased to £59,945 (3% 1ncrease) and
Commuttee Chair fees mcreased to £20,000 (21% ncrease) to
reflect their increased workload, regulatory responsibilities and
the size of the Group

Regastered No 03183415




Engagement with Shareholders and Best Practice
The Commuttee ensures it 1s up to date with the developmg
views of shareholders and investor representative bodies and best
practice Any views expressed by shareholders at general
meetings of the Company or otherwise will be considered by the
Commuttee as part of any review of the Pohicy The Commuttee
understands the importance and increasmg focus on clear and
transparent disclosure of remuneration outcomes demonstrating
the alignment of remuneration and performance and the
Commuttee believes 1t provides complete disclosure in this area

Role of the Commuttee During 2015

During 2015 the Commattee’s main areas of focus were on

= Reviewimng performance and agreeing the 2014 annual bonus
payments as well as the 2012 PSP awards vesangin 2015,

* Setimg the mdindual objectives for the 2015 annual bonus for
both the Exerutive team and Code Staff;

* Setting annual targets for the 2015 annual bonus scheme and
performance measures for the 2015 PSP awards,

* 2015 salary reviews,

* Rewiewing and approving the Remuneration Pohey Statement
1m relation to Code Staff for 2015 (and the hst of the
employees classified as Code Staff),

*+ Rermumeration policies and sk mibgation mcluding the
mmpact of Solvency II, and

= Updates on regulatory developments including the recent
publication by the European Banlang Authority on sound
remuneration policies and the potential tmpact of regulation
on the Company’s remuneratron policies

Regulatory Change

The Commuttee 15 closely monitoring developments m
remuneration regulahion from Eurcpean and UK authorities
Should there be a need to amend pohey or practice 1n 2017, 1n
hight of these regulatory developments, the Commttee wall
undertake consultaton with major shareholders in advance of

any proposed changes

Summary
The Policy supports our corporate objectives and the
remuneration received by the Executive Directors reflects the

strong performance of the Company and management

} hope that you will support the remuneration resolution to be
proposed at the next AGM Ifm the meantime you have any
questions regarding our Policy then my colleagues and I on the
Commuttee will be pleased to address them

Roger Yates
On behalf of the Remuneration Commutiee
22 March 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Thus Annual Report on Remunerat:on wall be put to an adwvisory
shareholder vote at the 2016 AGM Tke information on pages 85
to 99 has been audited where indicated

How the Committee Operates to set the
Remuneration Policy

The Commttee, on behalf of the Board, determnes the Policy
and the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors of
the Company and the Chasrman In addition, the Comruttee
maonitors the remuneration of the semor management team
(including the Grotp Risk Director and Ins semar colleagues in
the Group Risk Division) and employees classified as Code Staff
and oversees the operation of the Executive long term incentive
schemes and all employee share schemes

The membership and terms of reference of the Commuttee are
reviewed annually and the terms of reference are available on the

Company’s website

Membership of and Attendance at the
Remuneration Committee Meetings

The members of the Commuttee are Simon Jeffreys,

Patience Wheatcroft and Roger Yates There have been three (3)
Commttee meetings during the year and all the members
attended each of the meetings (details of attendance at those
meetings can be found on page 67)

Advisers to the Committee .

The Comnmttee 1s advised, on remuneration matters generally,
by independent remuneration consultants New Bridge Street
{NBS) NBS's appomtment as adviser to the Commttee 1s
reviewed anmally by the Commttee NBS1s a signatory to the
Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct, which requires its
advice to be impartral and NBS has confirmed to the Committee

1ts comphance with the Code

The total fees paid to NBS for the advice provided to the
Commttee during the year were £51,955 (excluding VAT)

Feesare charged on a ‘tume spent’ basis

NBS has not provaded any other servaces to the Company during
the year However, certam subsidrartes of Aon ple, the parent
company of NBS, have provided some mvestment adwisory
services to the Company and the fees for this work duning 2015
were £213,113 (excluding VAT) The Commuttee has been
advised of the basis on which NBS 15 orgamsed and managed as
part of the wider Aon orgamisation and the bass on which 1ts
staff are remunerated and 1s satisfied thatthe additional services
provided by other Aon group compames did notin any way
compromise the independence of advice provided by NBS to
the Comimnittee

ST JAMES’S PLACEPLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

The Commuttee also seeks internal support from the CEQ,
CFQ, Chawrman, Chairman of the Risk Commuttee, Group Risk
Director and the Company Secretary No Director 1s present at
any part of e meetmg of the Commrttee when thewr mdrvidual
remuneration or contractual terms are being discussed

Engagement with Shareholders

The Cormmyttee 1s updated on the latést views of major
shareholders (and thewr representative bodzes) through meetings
with ivestors (and thewr representative bodies) and from vanous
wrttten communications recerved, includmg published
gudehnes The Charrman of the Corarmittee 1s happy to meet
with shareholders on request to discuss any concerns regarding
remuneration 1ssues, should they arise

»
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How the Pohcy was Apphed in 2015
Bemuneration Payable m Respect of Performance in 2015 (Audited)

The following table sets out each element of rexsuneration for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 (or period thereof for
appomtments or cessations during the year)

1odoay o8ajeng I

Salary Annual  Longterm
& fees Benefits® bonus® mceentrves™ Pennion®? Qthert Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Directors
David Bellamy 2015 492,000 59,168 638,800 1,776,526 98,400 20,596 3,135,490
2014 489,667 57,867 701,100 2,259,547 97,933 — 3,646,514
Andrew Croft - 2015 356,000 41,292 498,400 1,184,411 71,200 19,380 2,170,683
2014 354,333 41,613 507,300 1,530,690 70,867 — 2,504,803
Ian Gascoigne 2015 356,000 63,523 498,400 1,184,411 71,200 — 2,179,534
2014 354,333 49,508 507,300 1,530,690 70,867 — 2,512,698
David Lamb®? 2015 356,000 48,754 498,400 1,184,411 71,200 22,544 2,181,309
2014 354,333 46,176 507,300 1,530,650 70,867 — 2,509,366
Non-executive Directors .
Sarah Bates (Charrman) 2015 175,100 3,365 178,465
2014 170,000 176,000
Tain Cormish 2015 77,460 7,829 , 85,285
2014 74,658 74,658
Simon Jeffreys 2015 74,680 1,397 76,077
2014 68,167 68,167
Patience Wheateroft 2015 58,200 1,788 59,988
2014 56,375 56,375
Roger Yates 2015 74,680 - 74,680
2014 61,938 61,938
. -
Nowee
()} BeneRts for the E: tve Directors comprise the entitl £ t company cat or cash equivalent, fuel, private health care, hife and critical #lness cover, permanent health insoranee and health

tereenmyg, and for fan Gascolgne s howsing allowance to E:il.lutewurklnglm the Com}nny’-twnmﬂnlnczﬁans and are generally the amounts which are returned for taxation parposes.
Benefits for the Ni Di =re for reitnb of taxsble travel expenses grossed up for the tax payable thereon

(1) As explained on page 97, balf of the annual bonus Is pald In cash, vrith the oth:rbzlfbdng used to purchase St James's Place shares which are subject to forfelture for 3 yearsunder the terms of the
Deferred Bonus Scheme.

{iii} The value of the long term incentives e the value of shares for the sward where the performance period ends in the year together with the value of the dividends that wonld have been reccived
durlng the three year performance perlod The figures for 2015 have heen calculated using the averaga of the S|P share price in the 3 moath period to 31 December 2015, belng £9.52, a5 the actual
vesting date dF the PSP awandis on 21 March 2016 The figeres for 2014 have been updated from the 3 month average figures teed In last year’s report (being £1,847, 115 for David Bellamy and
1,229,315 for Andrew Croft, lan Gascozgne and David Lamb} to take inte account the §]F share price on the 2ate of vesting on 15 March 2015, being £9 45

(i) Penston coutributions, being 20% of base salary, for all Dircetors were capped by legislation and so & non-peasionable salary supph was paid to the Exscutive Dhrectora in full for David
Bellamy, Andrew Croft and lan Gasteolgne and for the balance for Darld Lamb, who had a £49), OOOmnn{budmtorLgmmqp\nchue Group pension scheme

U] Thevalueufth:SAYEupdnn.l:urcbedhyDav[dB:llamynn‘i-Augusr.zmiwh:nth:midnmk:tpﬂneufShj‘mulPhoe:h:umﬁ'l’SS by Andrew Creofton 27 May 2015 when the
mid market price of §t, James's Place shares was £9 335 and by David Lar:b on 2 November 2015 when the mid-masket price of 5t James's Place shares was £9 64

(vi} David Lamb was 2 non-executive director af the Hend: Smmaller Companies | Trust ple during the year and was paud a fee of £21,750 ko 2015 10 connection with that role

(2014 £19,375)
(vai) Mikz Wilsan, 3 Former Dlrector of the Company, was pald £200,000 2 2015 {£200,000 in 2014} In respeet of hix role as Chaleman of the St James's Place Foundation, asnsting the Acadeny and

mentsring varjoos mersbers of the 5t. James's Place Partnership
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Details of Variable Pay Earned in the Year

Annual Bonus for 2015 Performance
The performance condrtions which applied to the bomus and the resulting payout were as follows.

Weighting Weighting Maxxmum Payout Payout

Meagure (Yaofsalary) (% of maximum) Threshold vahte Actual (%ofsalary) (% ofmaximum)
EEV cperating profit 75% 50% £513m £565m £660 2m 5% 50%
75% 50% Assessment by the Commttee of the 65% 43 3%

Strategc business plan objectives
performance of the Executive Directors

Total payout 140% 93 3%

In setting the operating profit target for the year it was assumed that the combined operating experence vanance and operating
assumption changes would have a peutral impact on the outcome for the year The actual outcome for the year mncluded a combined
positive xmpact to the operating profit from these two items of £122 2 mithon The Commuttee concluded that this positive cutcome
was as a result of management action duning the year and should therefore be included when assessing the bonus payout: for the year

Annual Bonus Strategic Targets Performance Assessment
As described 1n other parts of the Report and Accounts, the Company delivered strong performance m 2015 for our chents,

shareholders and other stakeholders The Comruttee considered these three groups when setting the strategic targets for 2015,
together with other objectives set out 1n the 2015 business plan In serving cur chents well, developing our employees and the
Partnershup for the future and striving to improve the effectiveness of our organisation, we will be best placed 0 meet our long-term
business objectives, and create addrtonal value for our shareholders We alse focus on the importance of safe and sustamable growth

through prudent management of risk and the highest standards of regulatory compliance

The Commuttee assessed how well the Executive team had performed 1n relation to the objectives set at the start of the year
The Committee did not place fixed weightings on the factors assessed, but made a judgement based on the Commuttee’s view of the
relative importance and 1mpact of those factors over the course of the year For some factors the Committee put 1n place quantitahve

metycs, and for others quahtative judgements were made, depending on the nature of the strategic objective

As regards chent satisfachion, the Commattee took mto account the following objectives
The Annual Wealth Account Survey results for 2015 were very strong with 95% of chients saying they would recommend SJP to

friends or contacts and 58% of those surveyed confirming they have done so already,

Chents continued to benefit from above average performance across the majority of funds and portfolios over a range of time
periods Across all ten year periods, the equity fund managers outperformed thear benchmark, on averzge, 82% of the time

Over the three and five year periods, the equivalent average outperformance rate was 75% and 74% respectively For the range of
esght Growth and Income portfohos available to chents, outperformance corpared to the relevant Asset Risk Consultants (ARC)
Private Client Index peer group ocourred m 85% of all three year periods on average,

The Group won a number of industry awards, further details of which are set out on page 49, many of which were voted on by

clents, and
The above factors, together wath strong service levels, generally contributed to excellent retertion of funds under management,

with 95% of existing funds being retained (see page 16 for further detmls)

In terms of strategic objectives designed to ensure the success of the business i the future, the Commuttee took into account

* The growthin the mize of the Partnership of 6 2% m 2015,
The success of the Academy 1n attraching surtable candidates to the courses run in 2015, the estabhishment of 2 new Academy

based 1n Solthull and 71 adwsers graduating from the Academy and jomnung the Partnership in 2015,
The high Jevels of retention for both employees and members of the Partnership, assisted by additional tramung end development

opportumires for the semor management team, the Partnership and the workforce generally, and
The continied improvemnents 1n the standard of decumentation n relation to new business submitted by the Partnership
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In addition to the above, the Commuttee assessed and noted the satuisfactory completion of the various strategic objectives set outn

the business plan, 1ncludmg
* Cortinumng the integration of the Henley Group mn Asia with a 60% increase 1 the number of advisersin Asa,
* Acqusiion of Rowan Dartington,
° Contmung positive engagement with the Group’s regulators and 1mplementing Solvency II,
* The completion of various objectives designed to enhance and strengthen the momtormg and mitagation of key regulatory risks

impacting the Group,
¢ Theantroduction of the new admimstration platform for certarn aspects of the busipess, although 1t was acknowledged that there

had been some inrtal challenges with implementation,
* Launching the new Money Management Account,
* The continuing development of the Group’s range of funds, the range of fund managers available to chents and the strengthening

of the Investment Cormmattee, and
* The ongoing success of the Group’s CSR objectzves, including raising a record £7 imllion for the Foundation and expzmdmg the

volunteermg opportunites available to employees

Takang all the above strategic objectives mto account, the Commuttee awarded 2 bonus of 65% of salary (87% of the maximum)
under the team performance element of the anmual bomis scheme, recogmising thata ]:ugh proportion of the strategic objectives were
graded as ‘outstandmg’ or ‘above stretch’ and that nearly all of the major business plan objectives had been satisfactorily completed

Notes
{)) The Commutee has the discretion to stale back the aunual bonus payable 1n respect of the strategic measures if 1t considers it mappropriate 1o the

context of the overall finanaal results of the Group The Commuttee reviewed the Group's performance and agreed that no scale-back was
aie
(i) Tberzr;mmea retains Lhe diserenion to amend each element of the bonus, up or down, within the overall cap of 150% of salary, to take into
account other relevant factors such as the Group’s performance compared to compenitor orgamysations or, for mstance, en exceptional positrve or
negative event which umpacts the Group The Commuttee remewed the Group's performance as well as competitors and the external market at the
end of the performance period and agreed that no adjustment was required
(i) Half of the bonus 15 pard 1n cash, with the remamder bemg 1nvested 1n the Company's shares and deferred for three years, under the Group's deferred

bonus plan
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Long Term Incentive Avwards

Vesting of Performance Share Plan (PSP} Awards (Audited)
On 31 December 2015, the awards made on 21 March 2013 under the PSP reached the end of their three year performance period

These wall vest on 21 March 2016, being the thurd anniversary of the date of grant The performance conditions which applied to the
2013 PSP awards, and the actual performance achieved against these condrtions, are set out m the table below

Avcrage annual adjusted EPS growth Average annual adjusted EPS growth

(including the unwind of the (excluding the onwind of the

TSR relative to the FISE 250% discount rate) 1m excess of RPL discountrate} :n excess of RPI
% afone % of one % of ane
third of thard of third of
avard award avard
Performance level hurdle Performance requiured vesting Performance required vesting Performance requred vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0% Below 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Threshold Median 25% At least 5% 25% Atleast 5% 25%
Suretch or above Upper Quartle or above 1060% 16% or above 100% 16% or above 100%
Actual achieved 23 out of 172 corpanies 100% 26% 100% 26% 100%

Above Upper Quartle
*  FISE 250, excluding Inw trusts and'comp tnthe FTSE oil, gas and mining sectors

Accordingly, the total percentage of the 2013 PSP awards vesting was 100%, whach resulted in the following awards vesting to-the

Executtve Directors
Total Value
number of  Percentage Number of shares
shares ofawards of shares vesting
Director granted weshng vesting (£000)"
David Bt’.]lamy 176,178 100% 176,178 1,677
Andrew Croft 17458  100% 117,458 1,118
Ian Gascoigne 117,458  100% 117,458 1,118
David Lamb 117,458 100%% 117,458 1,118

Note1 The desmed share price used to calealits the value of shares vesting was £9 52, beiog the 3 month average to 31 December 2015 (as the swards will not actually vest until 21 March 2616)
Note2 Up to 744 shares can be exercised by each Executive Director via s linked award under an approved chare option scheme, with an exercise price of £5 155 Hauch linked award is exereased, 2
numher of tharcs equrvalent to the galn achicved upon such excroise will be lapsed from the nuaber of Perfermance Share Plan shares noted, and the overall valne of shares vesting is therefore

unchanged Frem the number set ont abore,

Performance Share Awards Granted to the Executive Directors in 2015

Number of
S]P shares % of face
Average  overwhich vahie that

share price aveard was Facevalue  would vest
atdate of granted ofaward  atthreshold

Director Type of award Basts of award granted grant (Note 1) (£000) performance
Dawid Bellamy Nil cost option 200% of salary of £492,000 £9 8125 100,280 £984 25%
Andrew Croft Nil cost option 190% of salary of £356,000  £9 8125 68,932 £676 25%
Ian Gascoygne Nil cost option 190% of salary of £356,000  £9 8125 68,932 £676 25%
David Lamb N1l cost option 190% of selary of £356,000  £9 8125 68,932 £676 25%

Note!  The number of shares mwarded was calculated based on the average share price over » perlod of 3 deys prior to the date of grant on 25 March 2015, being £9 8125 per share The face value of
the award figure ir calrulated by multiplying the number of shares awarded by the average share prios Rgare of £9 8125
L}
PSP awards are structured as ml cost options and there 15 therefore no exercise price payable on exercise Dividend equivalents accrue
to the Executive Directors between the date of grant and exercise of the award {up to a maxamum of five years from date of grant),
but are released only to the extent that awards vest. Further details of the performance conditions which apply to the awards are set

outin Notes T and 2 on page 95

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 Registered No (3183415




89

Total Shareholder Return Performance
‘The graph below shows a companson of the Company’s TSR performance against the FTSE All-Share index over the last seven

financal years The Company considers this to be the most approprate comparative indext, given the broad nature of the index and
the compames within 1t

Total Shareholder Return

Source Thomson Reuters

This graph shows the value, by 31 December 2015, of £100 mvested m St James’s Flace on 31 December 2008 compared with the
value of £100 mnvested in the FTSE All-Share Index The other points plotted are the values at intervenmg financial year ends
4

Total Remuneration for the Chief Executive
The tahle below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive overthe last seven financal years The tatal

remuneration figure includes the annual bonus and long-term incentive awards which vested based on performance 1n those years
{and ending 1n that year for PSP scheme awards)

Year eadrng 31 Deceber

|

2009 2010 0m 2012 2H3 2004 2015
Total Remuneration £1,039,723 £1,495,600 £1,998,758 £2,410,380 £3,362,651 £3,646,514 £3,135,490
Annual Bonus (% of maxamum) 92% 96% 63% 46% 98% 95% 93.3%
LTIP vestmg (% of maxamum) 0% 57% 83% 87% 95% 96 37% 100%

The deemed value of the PSP award in the table above for 20151s £1,677,215 Of thus, £769,017 15 due to increases in the §]P share
price over the vesting period, beang an increase of 85%

The value of long-term incennve awards for 2015 has been calenlated using the average of the S]P share price m the three month
pertod to 31 December 2015, being £3 52, as the actual vesting date of the PSP award 15 on 21 March 2016 The 2014 figure for total

remuneration has been updated by substituting the three month average figure used to calculate the value of long-term mcentive
awards mn last year's report by a revised figure based on the SJP share price on the date of vesting on 15 March 2015, being £9 45

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

l UOTIEPINOS 908L] £ somuref *1Q l 110day o18e1en1Q

] UOTIBTLIOTUY IBTIIMNY ‘i ] SIUJUWBILIC TRIOWETLY ]




90

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The following table sets out the percentage changen profit, dividends and overall spend on pay in the year ending 31 December

2015, compared to the year ending 31 December 2014

2014 2015 Pe‘n:tnhg:

£'Mullion £allion change

Operating profit after tax 1879 2020 75%
Dividends 1207 146.5 21.4%
17 121.2 8 5%

Employee remuneration costs

The increase 1n the employee remuneration costs 1n 2015 was largely due to an increase in employee headcount, an mcrease to the
costs of share awards due to the headcount increase and the increase 1 the SJP share price

Percentage Increase in the Remuneration of the Chief Executive
The table below shows the percentage movement in the salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chuef Executive between the current

and previous financial year compared to that for the average Group employee

- - % change
2014 to 2015
Chief Executive
Salary —
Benefits {(Note 1) 22%
Bonus (1 8)%
Average per Employee
Salary 3 4%
Benefits 3 3%
Bormus 7 9%

Netc1  See Note (i) on page 85 for further details

Share Awwards
The tables below set out details of share awards that have been granted to individuals who were Directors dunng 2015 and whach had

yet to vest or be exercised at some pomnt during the year

Performance Share Plan — Awards Held m Return for Qualifying Services During 2015 (Audited)

Balanceat Balanceat
1 January Granted Lapsed Exercised 31 December

2045 m yeart m year®? m year? 2015 Dates from which exercasable
David Bellamy 253,970 253,970 - 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
2422200 8,795 233,425 - 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
176,178® 176,178 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
109,7820:0 109,782 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
100,280 100,280 26 Mar 2018 to 26 Mar 2021
Andrew Croft 169,025 165,025 - 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206% 5,853 155,353 - 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458% 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
73,1650 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
58,932 68,532 26 Mar 2018 to 26 Mar 2021
lan Gascoigne 169,025 169,025 - 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,2056® 5,853 155,353 - 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
73,16560 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
68,932 68,932 26 Mar 2018 to 26 Mar 2021
Dawnd Lamb 165,025 165,025 - 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206® 5,853 155,353 - 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458® 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
73,16500 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
68,932 68,932 26 Mar 2018 to 26 Mar 2021
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Notes:

@ These awards were made o6 26 March 2012 when the St. James’s Place share price was £3 733 The performante pertod is the three year perfod esding on 31 December 2014 The performznce

conditions, each in respect of one-third of the award, relate to {f) EPS (Iactudmg the impact of the auwind of the discount rate, s dearribed more fally oo page 323, (i) EPS excluding the mmpsct of

the safd tmwind aod {15} TSR compaved 1 the FTSE 250 Index, excluding i trmsts and J fnth:oﬂ,gnandmtnlngl:cmm'l'hgEPS:alemruntRPI*l-E%farZS%ofrhe
wward to vest and ends at RFI-+16% for 100% of the myard to vest, with pro rats vesting between the said pofntx, The TSR dliding seale Is between median and apper quartile, with 25% ofthe

TSR part of the sward vesting st medlan.

[in] These swards were made on 21 March 2013 when the St. Jumes's Place share price was £5 07 The
condltions, cach In respect of one-third of the award, relate to (7) EPS (including the fmpact of the unwind of the discount rate, 13 described more fully on page 32) (13) EPS excluding the impact of

the said unwind and @) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding b t trosts and comp i:ld:u:nﬂ,gnsandminlngmﬂzEPSmﬂelhrunRH+5%fm'25%nhhe

mmimvenandmdlar.H.'Fl'HG%Fofwoﬁoflhctw:rdmmt,tdthymnuvmagbmemthenﬂpmeheTSR:h.dmgsca!chbcmcnmedlmnndupp:rqun—h]c,wiﬂﬂs%oft.‘be
d share options) can be ised via a linked award underan

TSR part. of the sward vesting stmedfan. Up to 774 shares (beng the maximom valug under the £30k Inland Revenne cap on 'appr P

approved share gption scheme with an excrelse prics of £5 155

(@13 Thesc awards were made on 26 March 2014 when the St. Jarpes’s Placc share paice way £8 515 The performance perlod is the three year perlod ending on 31 December 2016 The three

conditions, each n respest of one-third of the award, relatz to (i) FPS (including the Impact of the unveind of the discount rate, s described mors Felly on page 32) (i) EPS excluding

the impaet of the safd snwind and (i) TSR compared ta the FTSE 250 Index, exrluding nmvestment trosts and companics In the ofl, gas and mining sectors. The EPS scale starts at RPI +5% for
459 of the aveard ts vest and ends at RPT £16%4 for 100% of the mward to vest, with pro rata vesting between the said polnts The TSR sliding scale is between median and upper quartile, with
25% of the TSR part of the sward vesting atmedian, Up to 3,054 shaves {befng the maximum value wnder the £30k Intand Revente cip on ‘epproved" thare optioms) can be excreised via n linked
wward eader i approved shire option scheme with an exercise price of £8 515

() Theseavards were made on 26 March 2015 when the St. Junes's Place thare pricc was £9 8125 The performance period is the three year period ecding on 3 December 2017 The three
performance conditions, each lnrespect of one.third of the wward, relate to (I} EPS (including the impact of the vowind of the discomnt rate, a5 described taore Fully on page 32) (ii) EPS excluding
thcimputaftb:ni\iunwinrlmd(ll!)'i‘SRmmp:dmtthfSESl-lSOlndu, loding b trusts and comy in the fl, gas and miningsectors The EPS scale starts at RPL +5% for
255 of the mward to vestand ends 4t R +16% lor 100% of the award to vest, with pro Tata resting between the sald pouats The TSR shding ccale Is between median and opper quartile, with
25% of the TSR part of the sward vesting at medizn

() Thess awards apsed due to the performanes conditian based &t EPS (more fully described in note (i) above) ot being fally satixBed and, asavesult, 3 63% of the sward lapsed at the end of the
pexformance period (8,735 shares lapsed for David Bellony and 5,853 thares lapscd for the other Exscutive Dircetors)

(+1} All fémr Directors excreited their 2011 and 2012 PSP wwardsin 2015

performance period is the three year perfod ending on 31 December 2015 The perfarmance

A

Deferred Bonus Scheme — Shares Held Durmg 2015 (Audzted)

The table below sets out detazls of the awards held by the Directors under the deferred element of the annual bonus scheme during 2015

11oday o1daeng

| wonepunog 208l 8saurel 19 l l

Balanceat Released Avwarded Balanceat
Director 1 January 2015 during year® durmg year® 31 December 201589 Vesting date
David Bellamy 49,563 49,563 - 26 Mar 2015
24,591 24,591 21 Mar 2016
33,924 33,924 26 Mar 2017
37,252 37,252 26 Mar 2018
Andrew Croft 35,813 35,813 - 26 Mar 2015
17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016
24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017
26,955 26,955 26 Mar 2018
Ten Gascorgne 35,813 35,813 - 26 Mar 2015
17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016
24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017
26,955 26,955 26 Mar 2018
David Lamb 35,813 35,813 - 26 Mar 2015
17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016
24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017
26,955 26,955 26 Mar 2018
Notes
The St. James's Place share price on the date of the award was £3 733 and

(& These deferred share awards were awarsled ca 26 March 2012, equal in value to the Executive's 2011 annual cash bonus
an the datc of relesse (26 Maxch 2015) was £9 435499

() These deferred thare awards were swarded on 26 March 2015, equal in value to the Executivs’s 2014
TheSt. James's Place shace price an 26 March 2015 was £9 41

(i) Ouctstanding xwards at the year-end relate to deferred sharg awards

asat the date of the 2014 award (26 March 2014) was £8 515
(v} Forther details of the deferred element of the snnul boous scheme are set ont on page 97 Dividends accrue to the Executive Divectors during the three year perlod while the sharesare subject

anoul cash bonts. These shares will be beld for a restricted period eading on 26 March 2018

awarded in 2013, 2014 and 2015 {see (if) above) The share price at the date of the 2013 award {21 March 2013) was £5 07 and

ta forfelrure.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

SAYE Share Option Scheme — Shares Held Durmg 2015 (idudited)
Details of the aptions held by the Directors in 2015 under the SAYE scheme and any movements during the year are as follows

Options Options
heldat held at
1 Jarmary Grantsd Lapsed Exercised 31 December Exercise

Director 2015 1n year myear 1n year 2015 price ‘Dates from which exercisable \
Dawid Bellamy 3,04C 3,040 — £2.96 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
Andrew Croft - 3,040 ' 3,040 — £2 96 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015

1,219 1,219 £738 1 May 2018 to 31 Oct 2018
Tan Gascorgne 3,272 3,212 £275 1 Nov 2015 to 30-Apr 2016 \

1,243 1,243 £724 1 Nov 2018 to 30 Apr 2019
David Lamb 3,272 ) 3,272 - £275 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016

1,243 . 1,243 £7 24 1 Nov 2018 to 30 Apr 2019 '

P

Note,
(At December 2015 the mid-market price for St: James’s Place chares was £10 08 The ranpe of prices between 1 Jamury 2015 and 31 December 2015 was between £7 67 and £20 23

Share Incentrve Plan — Shares Held Durmg 2015 (Audited)
The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the Share Incentive Plan during 2015

Balanceat Partnership Matching Dridend  Balanceat
1Janwary sharesailocated sharesallocated sharesallocated 31 December

Director 2015 during year durmgyear durmg year 2015 Holding penied (matchmg shares)
Andrew Croft® 642 642 26 Mar 2010 to 26 Mar 2013
325 325 26 Mar 2013 to 26 Mar 2016

152 i5 167 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018

Ian Gascoigne® 502 ! 502 26 Mar 2011 to 26 Mar 2014
210 210 26 Mar 2014 10 26 Mar 2017

152 i5 167 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018

Notes,
() 152 partoership sharcs were awarded on 26 March 2015 a¢  price of £9 812§ per share, 10 return for £1,500 betng deducted from Mr Crofts pre-tax alary A Farther 15 raatching shares were

awarded on the ssme date
(i) 152 partnership shares were swarded on 26 Maych 2015 ata price of £9 §125 per share, in retarn for £1,500 bang deducted [rom Mr Gascoigne's pre-tax salary A farther [5 matching shares were

awarded on the sune date .
(1) The partnership, dividend and matching shares will be held by an emplayee benefit trost on behalf of the Drrector The matching and dividend shares must be beld for w minimum peziod of three

years from the date of the sward
\

Between 31 December 2015 and 22 March 2016 there were no exerases or other dealings 1o the Company's share awards by

the Directors
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Share Interests and Shareholding Guidelines (Audited)
The Executive Directors are requured to build up a shareholding equivalent to 150% of salary, and a further 50% of salary 1n shares
and/or 1n one or more St James’s Place fund portfolics All of the Executive Directors have met the shareholding giidelme

Directors’ Interests in Shares

!

yaoday o1i8erea1q

Shares held Shares held % of base salary held
atl January at 31 December n §]P shares as at
Director 2015 2015 31 December 20150
David Bellamy 1,291,838 1,263,080 2,588%
Andrew Croft 785,980 890,569 2,522%
Tan Gascoigne 660,125 692,511 1,961%
David Lamb 381,162 461,345 1,306%
Sarah Bates 13,500 13,500
JTamn Cormush — -
Simon Jeffreys 18,364 18,364
Patzence Wheatcroft - 2,500 2,500
Roger Yates 10,000 10,000
Notes:

0 Calewlated using the mid market prace ut 31 Decamber 2015 of£10 08
(i) Theinterests ofthe Directors Inchde those of therr Connerted Parsons as defined in scction 96B(2) of the Flnancil Services and Markets Ast.
(itl) The tterests of the Fxecutlve Directors set ot above Inchude deferred bonns sehetue awarts held in trust for the Directors, detafla of which sre sct out or page 91 The interests of the Fxccutive

Directors abso include awards mnder the Share Incentive Plan, details of winch are sct out o1 page 32
@) The Campany's egieter of Directors’ Interests containg full details of Directars® shareholdings and any share awards under the Company's varions share schemes.

(¥} Dlsclasure of the Directars’ Interests in thare swards is ghren on pager 90 to 32 of the Remancratien Reportand also in Note 32 — Related Party Transactions.

Between 31 December 2015 and 22 March 2016 there were no transactions in the Company’s shares by the Directors

Executive Directors’ Shareholdings and Outstanding Share Awards

Outstanding Outstanding

Beneficiaily owned PSP awards SAYE options DBS avards SIP shares

at 31 December (performance (oo performance (oo pexformance {no performance

Executive Director 20150 condrtions)® conditions)¥™? conditions)™ condrtzons)®
Davnd Bellamy 1,263,080 386,240 - 95767 -
Andrew Croft 890,569 259,555 1,219 69,280 1,134
Ian Gascoigne 692,511 259,555 4,515 69,280 879
Dand Lamb 461,345 259,555 1,243 69,280 . —

Naotes
(i) Beneflichlly owned shares include those DBS wwards #ud SIP shares et cut tn cohunns {v) and () thove

(i) Detafly on the PSP awards are st out on pags 90
(ili} Detalls on the SAYE eptions ae set out on page 92,

(iv} Details on DBS swards are sct sut on page 91

(+) Denails om the STP chares are set out 0o page 92
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Dilution
Dilution hhamats agreed by shareholders at the tume of shareholder approval of the various long term meentive schemes allow for the

following
* Up to 10% of share camtal 1n ten years to be used for grants to employees and members of the St James's Place Partnership under

all share schemes1 e both the employee and ‘Partner’ share schernes, and
* Up to 5% of share capital m ten years to be used for grants to employees under discretionary schemes

~

The table below sets out, as at 31 December 2015, the number of new ordinary shares m the Company which have been 1ssued, or are
capable of being 1ssued (subject to the satisfaction of any appheable performance conditions) as a result of options or awards granted
under the various long term incentive schemes operated by the Company 1n the ten years prior to 31 December 2015

Number of new % of totalissned

ordimary shares share caprtal as at
Share scheme ' of 15 pence each 31 December 2015
SAYE schemes 4,302,173 0 82%
Executive share.schemes 10,833,954 206%
Partners’ share schemes 10,758,626 2 05%
Total 25,894,753 4.93%

In addition, as at 31 December 2015, the Group’s Employee Share Trust held 1,727,510 shares in the Company which were acquired
to satusfy awards made under the PSP, executive share option schemes and awards made under the Deferred Bonus Scheme to Insh
employees In addition, a further 621,001 shares are held to satisfy awards made mn 2015 under the Deferred Bonus Scheme

A further 954,533 shares, registered to employees under the terms of the Group’s Deferred Bonus Scheme, have been allocated
by the Group’s Employee Share Trust for awards made m 2013 and 2014 These shares are allocated to the relevant individyals on a
restricted basis whereby the recipients are not entitled to the shares until completion of the three year restricted period Further

details of the deferred bonus scheme are set out on page 97

Interests in Shares Held in Trusts
Certain Executive Directors and employees are deemed to have an mnterest or a potential interest as potential discretionary

beneficiaries under the St James’s Place Employee Share Trust As such, they were treated as at 31 December 2015 as being
mterested in 1,727,510 ordmary shares of 15p 1n the Company, such shares being held by § G Hambros Trust Company (Channel

Islands) Limted, the trustee of that trust

Statement of Shareholding Voting at AGM
At last year's AGM held on 14 May 2015, the Directors’ Remuneration Report recerved the following votes from shareholders

Remuneration Report

Total mmber of votes % of votes cast
For ' 393,469,563 9971
Aganst 1,161,913 029
Total 394,631,476 100%
Abstentions ; 4,571,521 —

How the Policy will be Applied for 2016

2016 Salary Review
The base salares of the Executive Directors are being increased in 2016

The current salaries as at 1 March 2015 and from 1 March 2016 are as follows
Salary from Salary from  Increasefrom
I March 2015 1 March 2016 1 March 2016

Director

Dawvid Bellamy £492,000  £505,000 2 6%
Andrew Croft £356,000  £365,000 25%
lan Gascoigne - £356,000  £365,000 25%
Dawvid Lamb £356,000  £365,000 25%
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Annual Bonus for 2016
The Executve Directors’ maxiraum bonus opportumty for 2016 wall be the same as for 2015, being 150% of salary Half of the

annual bonus will be determined by EEV operating profit end half by key strategc targets.

50% of the anmual bonus earned for performance m 2016 will be paid in cash and the remammg 50% will be deferred in SJP shares
for a three year pertod and subject to continued service

The EEV operating profit target set by the Commuttee 15 based on a shdmg scale to progressively reward incremental performance
'The EEV result 15 calcalated based on ‘best eshmate’ assumptions and any deviation or changes from these assumptions are reported
as an experienice vanance or an operating assumption change In setting the operating profit target for the year 1t 1s assumed the
combined operating experrence variance and operating assumption changes wal have a neutral impact on the outcome for the year.
In settng the 2016 EEV Operating Profit target, the Commttee mamntaned the new business and expense growth ebjectives at the
same level as m previous years However, 1t was recogmised that, i comparison to the 2015 operating profit target, the 2016
contribution to operatng profit from the unwind of the discount rate will be impacted positively, but margmally, by the higher
discount rate, due to the 0 2% merease in the UK ten-year Government gilt yreld from 5.0% to 5 2% during 2015.

The Board considers that the performance targets for the antmal bonus are commercally sensitive and is not disclosing them at this
time The performance metrics and performance against them will be disclosed 1 the 2016 Remuneration Report to the extent that

they do not reman commercally sensitve at that hime.

The team element of the 2016 annual boms wall be assessed by reference to key strategic targets based around the 2016 busimess plan,
mcluding elements relsing to chents, shareholders and other key stakeholders. Speafic objectives include: the dehvery of excellent
setvice to the Group’s clients as measured by surveys and other chent feedback, enbanmng the range of investment funds and
mamtamng strong Investment performance; the suceessful recrurtment and retention of high qualsty new Partners, successfully
implementing the next phase of the new admimstration system and transferring certan exasting assets onto the new system,
successfully controlling and mrtigating the materral rsks that could mmpact the Group, and mamntamning the Group'’s good relzhons

with 1ts shareholders and regulators

Performance Share Plan Awards for 2016
The Executive Diréctors will each recewve a PSP award m 2016 of 190% of salary, except for David Bellamy who will receive a PSP

award of 200% of salary

Awards wll be subject to a relatrve TSR performance condition for one-third of the award and earnings per share growth targets for
two-thirds of the award as follows

110day orforeng j

Average annual adjusted EPS Average annual adjusted EPS
growth (including theunvwind of the growth (excluding the uowind of the
disconnt rate) m excess of RFT disconnt rate) in excess of RPI
TSRrelative to the FTSE 51 to 150 (Note {) {Notc 2) {Note 2)
% of one Y ofone % of cne
thard of third of thard of
Performance level hardle Performancerequired swardvesting  Performancerequired awardvestng ~ Performance required award vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0% Below 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Threshold Median 25% At least 5% 25% At least 5% 25%
Stretch or above Upper Quartle or 100% 16% or above 100% 16% or above 100%
above
Hote 1 FTSE51 to 150, excluding | T d companiesin the FTSE o), gas producers and mining scetars Stralght line vesting occurz 1n between threshold and maximum vesting,
Note 2. The Brst EPS performance condition Is calcalated by reks to adjosted didated profit dfter tax on the EEV basls of accounting for both the life and it trust businesses {ona fally
diluted per share basis) Tlur.ifzctd&ed}wh&:mﬂm:&rmﬁmmﬂbemmmdﬂpﬁtmm‘ variance and any wmption change in the
ﬁmlyurnftb:pc&rm:m:pedoduthmﬁctmmnntmrhlnthewnudnfmmgmcntmdunymdnc:mdevmﬁmtorcported tngs due to stock market floctnatioas. H 3

ﬁhmmmdﬁ?shmﬂimpcwdbymkmzhtmmmbh&ewywamm:heimp:n ofany such movements an the witvind of the drseornt rate 10 the cxrrent year

‘[‘hemcdePSpaEu‘mmeenndldmu::lculw:di.nulmﬂ:rmymtbemstEPSmdxﬁon.mthnlﬁmherlijwtmmhmd:mmipwtﬁ:hnpuad!humnddthedhmntnm
Thlsadjutmgﬂtdiminammydhecthnpa:toflwckmnlm“huhtymd hanges In the ! ptions ut the whele three-year period of the performance condition

Straight line vesting ocrnre fn between threshold aad maxfmum vesting.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Fees for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors for 2016
The fees for the Charman and Non-executive Directors from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2615 are as set out in column 1 below
For 2016, the fees of the Chairman have been increased by 8 5%, the Non-executive Directors’ base fees have been ncreased by 3%

and the Commttee Charr fee mcreased by 21% m recognition of therr increased worldoad, regulatory responsibilities and the size of
the Group The 2016 fee Jevels are set out 1 column 2 of the table below

o) @ @

_ Fees from Fees from Pe:rqentage

1Januaryto 1 Janmaryto mcrease

31 December 31 December from

2015 2m6 2015

Chairman £175,100 £190,000 8.5%

Base fee £58,200  £59,945 3%

Committee Chair £16,480  £20,000 21%

Sentor Independent Director £2,780 £2,780 0%
Note. No commlittee merbershup fees are payable

Summary of Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The following table summarnses each element of the Pohcy, explammng how each element operates and how each part hnks to the

Corporate Strategy

Salary

Purpose and lmk to strategy mcluding
choice of performance metrics

To provide the core reward for the role.

Sufficient level to recrust and retwin individuals of the necessary cabibre, taking mto account
the sklls, expenience, demands ard complexaty of the role

Operation

Reviewed annually and fixed for 12 months commencang 1 March

Influenced by

—Role, expenience and performance of the mdividual,

— Company performance,

-- External economic conditions,

— Average change m broader worldorce salary,

— Pertodic benchmarkmng for each role aganst similar UK hsted compames; and

— Overzll policy, having regard to the factors noted, 15 normally to target salaries up to the

md market level

Maxamum opportumty

Salary increases (in percentage terms) will normally be linked to the average of the
workforce generally other than m exceptional circumstances such as where the increase
may be higher for a sgmificant change in responsibility, experience or mcrease 1 role or
the mze or complexity of the Group where increases may be phased

‘Where new jowners or recent promotees have been given a starting salary below mad-
roarket level, a series of mcreases above those granted to the wider workforce (in
percentage terms) may be awarded over the following few years, subject to sahsfactory

mdividual performance and development in the role

The base salaries for the Executive Directors from 1 March 2016 are set out i the Annual
Report on Rermuneration

Performance metrics

The Cormnmuttes considers all of the factors described 1n this table when decding how the
salary policy operates

ST JAMES'S PLACEPLC ANNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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Annual Bonus

Purpose and link to strategy mcluding
chorce of performance metrics

Rewards the achievement of annual financral and strategic business plan targets and
delivery of strategic objectives

Deferred element ards retention, encourages long-term shareholding, discourages excessive
risk taling and ahgns with shareholder mterests .

Performance metrics reflect the key performance drivers of the annual business plan,
achievement of which wall reflect performance in line with the Group's strategy

Operation

-

Performance measures, targets and weightings are reviewed anoually and setn line with
the annual busmess plan.

Bonus payments are determined by the Commttee after the year end, based on
performance agamst the targets set .

50% of any bonus payeble 1s paid in cash wath the remaiming 50% deferred mnto SJP shares,
the vesting of which is normally subject to a three year continuous service requirement

Dividends that accrue on the deferred shares are paid to the Executive Directors during the
three-year deferral period

All bonus payments are at the discretion of the Commuttee

The Cornmitiee has the overriding discretion to scale back payments under the strategic
part of the annual bonus if 1t deems them to be mappropriate n the context of the overall
financal results of the Company

The Commuttee has the overriding discretion to edjust the bonus cutcome up or down
(subject to the overall 150% maximurmy) to take account of factors such as 2n exceptional

posiive or negative event.

Annual banus payments mcluding deferred amounts are subject to clawback if there 15
found to have been a material xms-staterent, error or misconduct following the payment of
the bonus

Measamum opportunty

150% of base salary

Performance metrics

Performance measured over one year

At least half the bonus 15 based on financral measures reflecting the key priorihes of the
business for the relevant year

Up to half of the anmual bomus can be based on the achievement of key strategic objectives
set at the start of the year

Actual measures and weightings may change from year to year to reflect the business
priorites at that time

Details of performance criteria set for the year under review and performance agumst them
15 provxded 1n the Annual Report on Remuneration

20% of the annual bonus vests for threshold performance
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Performance Share Plan
Purpose and link to strategy wncluding  Incentivises the Directors to achieve supenor long term shareholder returns.

chorce of performance metrics

Provides long term retention

Focuses the Executives on longer term corporate performance and performance objectives.

A mix of three performance condrtions providesan appropriate balance of targets that both
mcentivise the Executives tp achieve stretching long-termn financial performance whale also
keeping therr wterests aligned to those of shareholders

Awards are granted annually with vesting on the thurd anmversary of the date of grant
dependent on the achievement of stretclung performance condihions measured over a
pertod of three financal years

Operation

Metrics and targets are set 1n line wath the busmess plan and are reviewed annually to
ensure they remam appropriate as well as the weighting between them.

Awards i 2015 and beyond will be made under the performance share plan, approved by
shareholders at the AGM 10 2014, and will have a post vesting holding period of two years
(net of tax) Dividend equivalents may accrue on awerds made between the date of grant

and the end of the two year post vestng holding period  These dividend equrvalents will be |,
released conly to the extent that awards vest

Sulject to claw-back 1n the event of a material misstatement, error or msconduct allowing
summary disssal.

The maxamum acnual award under the plan rules 15 250% of salary as at date of grant
although the Commttee will not mcrease above the 2015 award levels without prror
consulttation with the Comparty's major shareholders

Masamum opportunity

The PSP award levels for 2016 will be 200% of salary for the Chuef Executive and 190%% of
salary for the other Executive Directors (value of shares at date of award)

The vesting of awards P dependent on the achievement of three equally werghted
performance measures as set out below The Committee may choose alternatrve measures
and weightings between them if it deems 1t appropriate takang into account the strategic
objectives of the Company The vesting of at least one-third of the PSP award wall however
be determmed by & relative TSR target.

Performance metrics

The performance targets for the 2016 PSP awards will be based on

* EPS growth based on EEV adjusted profit,

¢ EPS growth as above but excluding the impact of the EEY unwind of the discount rate
(effectively excluding the mmpact of stock market movements on earmings), and

= Relatve TSR performance

For zach performance condition, a threshold and stretch level of performance 1s set
At threshold, 25% of the relevant element vests
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Pension ,
Purpase and hink to strategy meluding Helps recrut and retain Executives
choice of performance metrics

woday o18erene

Provides a discrete element of the package to contribute 10 post-retrement Lifestyle
Defined contribution pension scheme 20% of salary 15 paid mto the Group personal

Operation L
pension scheme for the Executzve or an equivalent cash amount via non-pensionable salary ——
supplement 1f the Executrve 15 affected by the pension cap “

Maxamum opportumty 20% of base salary "E‘

Performance metrics N/A 2

o
o
2
Other Benefits e

Purpose and Link to strategy including ~ Operate competitive benefits to help recrwt, retmn and support the well-being of g

choice of performance metrics employees - g

Operation ' Including, but not kimrted to: g
Company car (er salary supplement in heu), prrvate medheal insurance, hife, cribcal 1llness -
and death in service cover, relocation asnstance where necessary and the use of a driver for
business purposes
Participation in the Group's all employee SIP and SAYE schemes

Maxamum opportumty Benefit costs are mémtored and controlled and represent a small element of total
remnreration costs

Performance metrics N/A

Non-executive Directors® Fees

To attract high quality, experienced Non-executive Directors.

The Charrmoan 1s paid an all-encompassing annual fee, whach is reviewed perzodically by the
Commuttee

All Non-executive Directors recerve a basic annual fee for carrymg out thewr duties,
together with additional fees bemng pard i respect of Board Commuttees and other
responsialies, with fee levels reviewed periodically by the Board They may also be pad
addihonal fees (calculated at an appropriate day rate) in the event of exceptional levels of
additronal time bemg required, for instance 1n response to corporate developments

There is no prescribed maximum annual mcrease Reviews take mto account market datz
for umitar non-executive toles 1n other compames of a simlar suize and/or business to
St James's Place as well as the time computment of its Non-executive Directors

The Company's policy is to pay up to the mid-market level based on nipmlar ume
commitments of the charman and non-executives in sirmlar sized companies

l TIOMPININITT JIAN l | SIS TEIDURTLT ]

This report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on 1ts behalfby

RogerXYates
Charman of the Remuneration Commattes

22 March 2016
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" DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their Report and the Annual Report and
Accounts and the audrted consolidated financal statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 All ofthe
Durectors were in office throughout the finanaal year and up to
the date of signing this report.

For the purposes of compliance with DTR 4 1.5R(2) and DTR
41 8R, the requred content of the ‘Management Report’ can
be found 1n the Strategrc Report and the Directors’ Report,
mcluding the sections of the Annnal Report and Accourts
mcorporated by reference Speafic reference to CO, emissions
can be found on page 52

For the purposes of comphance with the UK Financal Conduct
Authonity’s Listing Rules (LR 9 § 4R), the informatien required to
be diusclosed by LR 9 8 4 can be found m the following sections'

Interest Caprtalised Not Appheable

Publication of Unaudsted Not Applicable

Fmnanoal Informanon |

Details of Long Term Incentive  The Directors’ Remuneration
Scheines Report on  pages 82 t0 99
‘Warver of Emoluments bya Not Applicable

Director

Warver of Future Emohuments ~ Not Applhicable
by a Director

Nor Pre-Emptive Issues of Not Apphcable

Equty for Cash

Hem (7) in Relation to Major Not Applicable
Subsidary Undertakings

Parent Participation m a Placng  Not Apphcable
by a Listed Subsidiary

Contracts of Egnlﬁcance Directars’ Report
Provision of Services bya Not Apphcable
Controlling Shareholder

Shareholder Waivers of Darectors’ Report
Dividends

Shareholder Waivers of Future  Directars’ Report
Dyvidends

Agreements with Controlling Not Apphecable
Shareholders

UK Corporate Governance Code 2014

Under the FCA Listing Rules, all UK hsted comparies must
state whether they have complied wath the provimons of the UK
Corporate Governance Code dated September 2014 (the *Code’)
throughout the year and, where they have not comphed, they are
required to explain such non-comphance The provisions of the
Code can ba found on the Financial Reporting Counail's
websmte, www frc orguk

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT ANDY ACCCUNTS 2015

The Compeny reviews its compliance with the Code on an
ongomg basis Detzils of how your Company has comphed with
the Code throughout the year are set out m the Corporate
Governance sections of theg Report Particular detail on those
principles from the Code which relate to remuneration 15
provided i the Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 99

Your Board consders that the Company has comphed wath all of
the provazmons of the Code during 2015

As outlined 1o the Risk and Risk Management section on page
40, processes for identifying, evaluating and maugging the risks
faced by the Group have been 1n place throughout the year under
review and up to the date of this report. They are regularly
reviewed by the Board, with the assistance of the Risk
Commuttee, and accord with the Guidance for Directorsin

C 2 3 of the UK Corporate Governance Code As outhmned in
the Corporate Governance Report on page 68, the Board has
undertaken a robust assessment of the prinepal risks faceng the
Group in accordance with the Guidance for Directorsin C 2.1.
of the UK Corporate Governance Code

Status of C(;mpany
The Company 15 registered as a public hmted company under
the Companies Act 2006

For details of the Company’s subsidianies and overseas branches,
please see page 170

The Directors

Board of Directors .

Details of the Dmectors as at 22 March 2016 and thear biographies
ate shown on pages 60 and 61 Brief particulars of the Drectors’
membershjp of the Board Committees are contzined 1 the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 64 to 62

Apporntment of Directors

The Company’s Artcles of Associatior requure that any Director
appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy must stand for
reappomntment at the next Annual General Meeting and that,

at each Annual General Meeting, all those Directors who were
elected or Jast re-elected at or before the Annual General

*  Mectng held in the third calendar year before the current year,

shall retire from office by rotation Directors can be removed
from office by an ordmary resoluhion of shareholders or in
certamn other arcumstances as set out i the Articles of
Assocation However, 1n accordance with the recommendations
of the Code, all of the Directors will retire by rotstion 2t the
Annua] General Meeting to be held on 4 May 2016

Before a Director 1s proposed for re-election by shareholders, the
Chawrman considers whether his er her performance continues
to be effective and whether they demonstrate commtment to
therole After careful conaideration, the Chairman 1s pleased to
confirm that, following the external Board evaluation referred

Registered No 03183415
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to on page 69, the Directors seelang re-election continne to
make a valuable contribution to the Board and cqubinue to
dedicate sufficient time to therr duties Your Directors each
bring sgmficant skll sets to the Board as a result of thear varied
careers and we beleve that this diversity is essential to
contributing to the appropnate mix of slalls and expertence
needed by the Board and 1ts commuttees 1o order to protect the
interests of the Company’s shareholders The Board therefore
recoramends to its shareholders that all the Directors retinng at
the forthcoming Anmual General Meeting be re-clected

Power of the Directors

The Directors are responsble for managing the busaness of the
Company and thewr powers are subject to any regulations of the
Articles, to the provizons of the Statutes and to such regulations
«asmay be prescribed by Spewal Resoluten of the Company.

The Company’s Articles of Assocation contain, for example,
specific provisions and restrictions concerning the Company’s
power to borrsw money They also provide that Directors have
the powet to allot urussued shares, up to pre-deterrmned levels
set and approved by shareholders m general meetngs. Ths also
apphes to the Directors allothng equity secunties otherwise
than 1n accordance with statutory pre-emption rules

Statement of Directors’ Rcsponsibilities
Thus statement 1s set out on page 105 The complete Corporate
Governance Report 1s set out on pages &4 to 69

Confhcts of Interest

The Company has in place procedures for the management of
Conflicts of Interest In the event a Director were to become
aware that they or any of their connected persons have an actual
or potential confhet of interest, they must disclose this to the
Board immed:ately The Board will then consder the potential
conflict of mterest based on 1ts partrcular facts, and decide
whether to warve the potential confhct and /or unpose
conditions on such warver if 1t beheves this to be m the best
mterests of the Company Internal controls also esast whereby
regular checks are conducted to ensure that the Directors have

cisclosed matenal mterests appropriately

Except as stated i the Directors’ Remuneration Report, no
Director has, or has had during the year under review, any
materal interest 1n any contract or arrangement with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries

Directors’ Service Agreements

The Company’s policy 1s that service contracts may be
termmated with 12 months’ notice from exther the Company

or from the Executive Director (except in certain exceptional
recrptment situations where a longer notice perod from the
Company may be set provided 1t reduces to a maximum of

12 months with a specified tume honit) Service contracts do not
contain a fixed end date Exécutive Directors’ service contracts
will be avatlable for mspectzon at the Company’s Annual General

101

Meeting to be held m 2016 The Company does not have
agreements with any Director or employee that would provide
compensation for loss of office or employment resulting froma
takeaver, except that provisons 1 the Company’s share schemes
may, in certain circamstances, cause share awards granted to
employees under such schemes to veston a takeover

Durectors’ and Officers’ Indemnity and Insurance

The Company has taken out msurance covering Drrectors and
officers agamnst habilrties they may incur in their capacity as
Drrectors or officers of the Cornpany and 1ts subsidiaries The
Company has granted indemmties to all of 1ts Directors (and
Directors of subsidiary companies) on terms consistent with the
applicable statutory provisions Qualifying third party mndemmity
provisions for the purposes of sectzon 234 of the Companies Act
2006 were accordmyly in force durmg the course of the financial
year ended 31 December 2015, and remain m force at the date of

thisreport.

Share Capital

Structure of the Company’s Capital

Asat 31 December 2015, the Company’s 1ssued and fully paid up
share capital was 524,665,212 ordinary shares of 15 pence each
All ordinary shares are quoted on the London Stock Exchange
and can be held in uncertficated form via CREST Detmls of the
movement m the 1ssued share capital during the year are
provided in Note 29 to the financial statements on page 162

Voting Baghts

At any General Meeting, on a show of hands, each member who
1s present 1 person has one vote and every proxy present who
has been duly appointed by 2 member entitled to vote ona
resolution has one vote. On 2 poll, every member who 15 present
mn person or by proxy shall have cne vote for every share of
which he 15 the holder

Forms appomting a proxy sent by the Company to shareholders,
m relation to any General Meeting, must be recerved by the
Company or their registrars not less than 48 hours before the
time appomnted for holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting

Restrictions on Voting Rights

If any shareholder has been sent a notice by the Company under
sechion 793 of the Companies Act 2006 and failed to supply the
relevant information for a peniod of 14 days, then the shareholder
may not (for 5o long as the default contmues) be enntled to
attend or vote exther personally or by proxy ata shareholders’
meehng, or to exercise any other nght conferred by membership
m relation to shareholders’ meetings

If those default shares represent at least 0.25 per cent of their class,
arry drvidend payable mn respect of the shares will be withheld by
the Company and {subject to certam hmited exceptions) no
transfer, other than an excepted transfer, of any shares held by the
member 1n cerhficated form wall be registered
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

Artacles of Asseciation
The full nights and obligations attaching to the ordinary shares of the Company are set out n the Articles of Association The Articles

tan be amended by a speaal resclution of the members of the Company and copies can be obtamed from Companies House Holders
of ordinary shares are eatitled to receive the Company’s Reports and Accounts, attend, speak and exercise voting rights, and appout

proades to attend general meetings

The Company proposes to amend 1ts Articles of Association at 1ts forthcoming Anmual General Meetmg. due to new requirements under
the Solvency Ii regulations 1n reletion to Tier 1 Instruments Full detauls ave contained m the Notce of Annual General Meeting

’

Restrictions on Share Transfers
There are restrictions on share transfers, all of which are set outm the Articles of Assomation Restrictions melude transfers made

favour of mare than four jorat holders and transfers held 1n certificated form. Directors may declme to recogmise a transfer, unless 1t
1510 respect of enly one class of share and lodged (and duly stamped) with the Transfer Office The Directors may also refuse to
register any transfer of shares held in certaficated form which are not fully paxd Directors may also choose to dechne requests for
share transfers from a US Person (as defined under Regulation S of the United States Securities Act 1933) that would cause the

aggregate number of henefical owners of 1ssued shares who are US Persons ta exceed 70.

The regzstmi:on of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods {not exceeding 30 days 1n any year) as the Directors
may from time to time determine in respect of any class of shares

The Compamy 13 not aware of any agreements between sharehalders that restrict the transfer of shares ar voting nghts attached to
the shares

Substantial Shareholders

As at 22 February 2016, the Company had been notified of the followmg interests disclosed to the Company under Disclosure and
Transparency Rule §

Holding at %held at Holding at % held at
Shareholder 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2015 22 Feb 2016 I2Feb 2016
Ameriprise Financial Tnc 28,184,508 538 28,184,506 538
The Capital Group Companies, Inc 27,174,893 5.19 27,174,893 519
FMRLLC 26,126,505 503 26,126,505 5.03
BlackRock, Inc 26,277,302 500 n/a n/a

The mterests of the Directors, their famihes and any connected persons in the 1ssued share caprtal of the Company are shown on page 93.

Results and Dividends
The consohdated statement of comprehensve income 15 on page 114 and profit after tax for the financal year attnbuteble to equty

shareholders mcreased to £202 0 mulhon from £187 9 million in the prior year The profit before tax reduced from £294 4 mullion

to £174.1 miliion in the current year, princpally due to the £88 7 milhon reductionin cbarges, from £111 § oulhon 1 2014 to

£22.8 mullion 1n 2015, deducted from Lafe Investment business i respect of poheyholder tax due to HMRC and included withmn profit
before tax, as explaned on page 28 This moverent was mamly driven by relatrve mvestment performance 1o the year, reflecting

the fact that, whalst the mvestment return was still posttive m 2015, 1t wes not as strong 2s1n the prior year The profit before tex

was also ympacted negatvely by the £21.7 million moverment tn DAC/DIR/PVIF mtangibles, which 1s explained on page 27, and the

£14 2 million increase in the charge from the FSCS levy in the year.

An interym dividend of 10 72 pence per share, which equates to £56.0 mlhon, was pad en 2 October 2015 (2014 8.93 pence per
share/£46 1 mulhon) The Directors recommend that shareholders approve a final dividend of 17 24 pence per share, which equates to
£90 5 mulhon (2014- final dinidend of 14 37 pence per share/£74 8 mullion) to be pad on 13 May 2016 to shareholders on the remster at

the close of business on 8 April 2016

In 2012, the Directors introduced a Dividend Renvestment Plan (DRFP), detmls of which are set out en page 198
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Authority to Purchase Own Shares

At the Annnal General Meeting 1n 2015, sharehalders granted
authority to the Directors for the purchase by the Company of 1ts
own shares This authomity wall expire at the end of the Anmual
General Meetng to be held m 2016, or 18 months from the date
granted, whichever 1s the earher During the year, the Company
did not purchase any of its own shares The Drectors will
propose the renewal of the authority to purchase its own shares
at the forthcoming Anmal General Meeting '

Employees
Detmls of the Company's approach to maintaining an
appropnately skalled and diverse workforce can be found m the

Strategnc Report on page 12

The Company 15 committed to attracting and retmming talented
people of both genders, and mdeed of diverse skalls and mund sets
10 the wider sense The Company has a policy of ensuring that
no disenmimation takes place with regards to 1ts job applicants
and employees Appomntments and promotions axe made based
on fair and conmidered judgements, wath the indsviduals beang
assessed on their merits and skali sets. We need to make sure we
are not unwittngly excluding any particular group from the
opportunites we can offer or depriving ourselves of people who
could brmg benefits to our commnnity

We strave to gave full and farr consideration to apphcations from
and promotions of disabled people, having regard to ther
particular aptitudes end abalities, and where appropriate, we will
consider modhfications to the working environment so they can
take up opportunities or enhance therr role We will similardy
make every effort i the event of an employee becoming 1ll or
disabled, for example, by arranging approprrate traming

We have also been looking at patterns of female participation
throughout the Group For mnstance, we have a shghtly hagher
level of female partiapation m the Partnership than 1s typical of
the financal advice mdustry (although it 15 still not very hagh),
and the level of female parbapation m other teams can vary
qurte s . We have also locked at the distribution of
salaries between male and female employees m particular pay
grades. Dunng the year, the Executive Board reaffirmed its
commtment to make further progress A budget for work has
been agreed, and a steering group set up, charred by Ian
Gascongne, to develop our approaches

We beheve that, by adopting best practice principles, we seek to
ensure that our responsibilinies are met as an equal opportumty
employer and that everyone can enjoy an environment free from
discrrmination of any sort

103

The raght to collective bargaming has not been exercased by any
of the Company's ernpl however, were they to do so, the
Company wonld ook to comply with due process

The Company considers 1t important to provide its employees
with a balanced work and home hife, and does not expect its
employees to work excessive hours.

The Company has a calendar of regular communication with
employees and this mchides 2 br-annual employee satsfacthion
survey, the most recent of which was conducted m 2014

The Company also offers a range of development options which

reflect bugmess priorites and offer employees the opportuntty to

g:r-owﬂleirarcmw:tﬂ:mthc Group Such opportunthes mchide

*+ An apprenticeship programme launched m 2012,

* Membership of the Institute of Customer Service,

* A rolling programme of Knowledge Development Meetings,

» Support for employees seelang externally recogmsed
professional qualifications, '

- M t development activities for those with the
anterest and ahility to develop their careersas leaders in the
busmess, and

* Speafic development programmes for the more specalist
roles within the Company’s Freld Management Team

The Company encourages employee involvement m jts
performance through the use of employes shave plans,

Bribery Act 2010

The Board 1s responsble for the oversight of the Company’s
anti-bribery, corruption end whistleblowing polices and
procedures Duning 2015, the Company carried out 1ts annual
review to ensure that 1t has adequate polices and proceduresin
place to prevent brabery and corruption. Ths ecluded reviewing
the Brbery Act Policy Statement, along with other related
pohaies and procedures, and providing trunng to exnployees
and Partners with regards to meney lanndermg, frand, bnbery
and corruption via an online tramimg programme, the
completion of whach is compulsory

The Company also operates 2 Whistleblowing pakicy, and
encourages employees, Partners and other interested parties to

advise, on an anonymons basis, the appropriate person m the
Company should they become aware of any Thekey
contact for Whistleblawnng 1s the Chair of the Audit Committee

Dunng 2015, no employees or Parmers were discplined or
daszmssed due to non-compliance with the Ant-Bribery and
Corruption polies and no fines were levied agatnst the
Company m relation to bnbery or corruption
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

The Bribery Act Pohcy Statement and the Whastieblowing
procedure are avanlable 1o 21} employees and Partners via the
Company’s intranet.

Significant Contracts and Change of Control

The Company has a rmmber of contractual arrangements
which 1t considers essentia] to the business of the Company,
Spetafically, these are commatted loan facibies from 2 nnmber
of banks and srrangements with third party providers of
administrative services

A change of control of the Company may ceuse some agreements
to which the Compary 15 a party to alter or terminate These
include bank feclity agreements and employee shave plas

The Group had commutted faclites totalling £175 0 mithon as
st 22 February 2016 which contain clauses which require lender
cansent for any change of control In addition, the Group
guarantees the obligations of loans made to Partmers
connection with facilties sgreed wrth vexious lenders totalling
£68 7xmlhion in aggregate Should consent not be given,

a change of control would trigger mandatory repayment of the
said faclitzes.

All the Company's employee share plans contun provisions
relaning to a change of control, Outstanding awards and options
mey vest and become exerasable on s change of control, subject
where appropriate to the satufaction of any performance
condriions at that time and pro-rating of awards

Political Donations

Tt 15 the Group'’s policy not to make any denations to poirtical
parties within the meaning of the definitions set cut in the
Political Parties, Elections and Referendurns Act 2000 and
sechions 362 to 379 of the Compames Act 2006 The Group did
not rmake any political donations during the year (2014. ml).

Annual General Meeting

The Cornpany’s Anmzal General Meeting wall be held on
Wednesdzay, 4 May 2016 at The Royal Aeronautical Society,
4 Harmilton Place, London W1J 7BQ at 11 00am

Going Concern

The Code provades that 1nits anpue] finanmal statements, the
Darectors should state whether they consider it appropriate to
adopt the gamyg concern basis of accounting 1o preparing them,
and :dent:fy any matersal uncertanties to the Company’s abihity
to conptinuze to do so over a period of at least twelve months from
the date of approval of the financial statements The Company’s
Viability Statement is set out in the Risk and Risk Management

section on page 42

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors
Likely to affect 1ts future development, performance and postion
are set out n the Strategic Report, as referred to on page 55

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

The financial position of the Company, 1ts cash flows, Liquidry
postion and borrowing facalmes are described i the Strategic
Report on pages 20 to 39 In addition, the Notes on pages 143
and pages 148 to 159 and the Risk and Risk Management section
on pages 40 to 47 include the Company’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing its capital, 1ts financial sk management
objectives, detaxls of its finencial mstruments and 1ts exposures

to credrt rsk and Hquidity

As shown on pages 35 10 39 of the Strategic Report, the Group’s
capntal position 1 strong and well in excess of regulatory
requrements The long-term nature of the business results in
considerable positive cash flows, anang from existing business
As a consequence, the Directors beheve that the Company 15
well placed to manage its business risks successfully

The Directors confirm that they are sansfied that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to continue in busmess
1 hne with the Viability Statement set out on page 42 For this
reason, they continue to adopt the gomg concern basis n
preparing the sccounts  Further information on the basis of
preparation of these accounts can be seen 1 Note 1 to both the
Consoldated Accounts under International Finanmal Reporting
Standards and the Parert Company Accounts under Financial *
Reportng Stendard 101.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the Dorectors, at the date of approval of this report,

confirms that

« So far as each Director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant andit
mformation of which the auditors are unaware, and

* Each Director has taken all steps thathe ought to have taken
as a Director to make humnself awzre of any relevant audit
mformetion and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1
aware of such information.

Thas confirmation 15 grven and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Compames

Act 2006

Independent Auditors

The audstors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have incrcated theyr
willmgness to continue 10 offics and a Resclution that they be
re-appomted untl the end of the 2017 Annual General Meeting
wall be put to shareholders at the Anrmal General Meeting on

4 May 2016

On bebalf of the Board

David Bellamy Andrew Croft

Chigf Executive Chisf Financial Officer
22 March 2016

———— —
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financal statements

1 accordance with appheable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financal
staternents for each financial year Under that law the Directoxs
have prepared the Group financa] statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union, and the Parent Company financal
staternents in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Umited Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law) Under Company Law the
Directors must not apprave the financal statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affawrs of the Group and the Compmyandofthcpmﬁtor]oss
of the Group for that perod. In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required to

*  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently; -

»  Make judgements and accounting estnates that are
reasonable and prudent;

* State whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Umon and
appheable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 1
the Group and Paremt Campaay financal statements
respectively, and

*  Prepare the financual statements on the going concern basis
unless 1t 15 mapproprate to presume that the Company wall
contynue 1n busmess.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficent to show and explain the Corapany’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme
the financia] position of the Company and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financal statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
TAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frand and
other pregularshes

The Darectors have chosen to prepare supplementary
nformaton 1n accordence with the European Embedded Value
Principles 1ssued i May 2004 by the Cluef Financial Officers
Forum, as snpplemented by the Addmonal Guidance an
European Embedded Value Disclosures wsued 1 Qctober 2005
(the EEV Princples). When coraphance with the EEV Principles
15 stated, those princaples require the Directors to prepare
supplementary iformation in accordance with the Embedded
Value methodalogy (EVM) contained m the EEV Prmaples and
to disclose and explain any non-comphance with the EEV
Guidance mclnded in the EEV Prancrples.

In preparing the EEV supplementary information, the Drrectors
have-

= Prepared the supplementary informaton m aecordance with
the EEV Prmnciples; -

Identified and described the business covered by the EVM;
Applied the EVM consistently to the covered business,
Determimed assumptions on a realistic bams, having regard to
past, current and expected future experzence and to any
relevant external data, and then apphed them consistently,
and

+ Made eshmates that are reasonable and consistent.

The Directars are responsﬂ?ilc for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financral information mcluded on the
Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
govexmng the preparation and dissermnation of financal
statexnents may dffer from legslation in other purisdictions.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are lsted 1o
the Board of Directors section of the Anmual Report, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge:

* The Group financial staternents, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
farr view of the assets, lubilities, financial posiion and profit
of the Group;

= The EEV supplementary information has been prepared m
accordance with the EEV principles issuzed i May 2004 by
the Chief Financal Officers Forum as supplemented by the
Additional Guidance on European Embedded Value
Disclosures 1ssued m October 2005 (the EEV Principles),

* The Strategc Report inclhudes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group, together with a description of the
principal 1isks and uncertaimties that it faces; and

* The Directors conmder that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are far, balanced and understandable and
provide the mformation necessary for sharehalders to assess
the Company’s posttion and performance, buaness model
and strategy !

By order of the Board

Ehzabeth Kellp

Company Secretary
22 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

REPORT ON THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opimon, St. James's Place plc’s Group financial statements

(the financial statements)

* pveatrue and fuir view of the state of the Group’s affairs as
at 31 December 2015 and of 1ts profit and cash flows for the
year then ended,

* have been properly prepared n accordance with International
Fiancal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Umion, and

+ have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of
the Compantes Act 2006 and Artdle 4 of the IAS Regulation

‘What we have audited

The financial statements, ncluded wathin the Annual Report

and Accounts 2015 (the Annual Report), comprise

» the consolidated statement of financal posttion as at
31 December 2015;

* the consalidated statement of comprehensive meome
for the year then ended,

« the consohdated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended,

» the consohdated statement of changes m equty for the
year then ended; and

»  the notes to the financal statements, which mclude a
sammary of agmificant accounting polictes and other
explanatory information.

Certamn required disclosures have been presented elsewhere
1 the Anmual Report, rather than 1 the notes to the financal
statements These are cross-referenced from the financal
statements and are 1dentified as sudited.

The finaneal reporting framework that bas been applied m the
preparation of the financie] statements 1s appheable low and
IFR Ss as adopted by the Furopean Umon

Our audit approach

Context

This year's audit focused on the core aspects of the business such
25 the recopmition of revenue, and existence and valuation of
financial investments Developments during the year mchided
1 particular the recogmtion and recoverability of deferred tax
assets on the winding up of SJP Partnershup and SJP 1330
Lumsted. With the Group’s outsoureed operahng model for
admpmistration, we also contimed to look at the valuation of
the prepayment asset held mn the balance sheet m relation to
the recently implemented admanistration platform

Overview
Materiality

*  Overall Group materahty represents 5% of profit before tax.

£8 5 ylhon, (2014- £15 million)

Audit Scope

* The Group 1s structured to reflect its vertically integrated
wsurance and wealth manapement business and operates
predomnantly within the United Kingdom

* The consohdated financial statements are a consohdation of
six financially sigmficant reporting entities, comprising the
Group's operating businesses and the St. James's Place Unit
Trusts

Areas of Focus
* Recogmtion of revenue

* Recoverability of deferred tax asset arising from storic
capital losses

* Valuation of the prepayment asset 1n respect of an
admumistration platform st an outsourced provader

» Existence and valuation of financal investments and
mvestment property.

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus )
‘We conducted our audit in accordance wath International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs (UK & Ireland})

We desgned our andst by determiming materiabty and assessing
the rsks of material misstaternent in the financial statements

In particular, we looked at where the Directors made subjective
yudgements, for example i respect of sigmficant accounting
estunates that mvolved making assumptions and considering
future events that ars wherently uncertamn As iz all of our andits
we also addressed the sk of management overnide of internal
controls, including evalusting whether there was evidence of bias
by the Directors that representad a risk of matenal misstatement
due to frand

The risks of material ymsstaternent that had the greatest effect
on our audst, including the allocation of cur resources and effors;
are dentified as ‘areas of focus' m the table below. We have

also set qut how we tatlored our audht to address these speafic
aress 1n order to provide an opimon on the financral statements
a5 a whole, and any comments we make on the results of our
procedures should be read i this context. This1s not a complete
st of all nisks identified by our aundit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

CONTINUED

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Recognition of revenue
See Note 2 to the financial statements for the Directors’ disclosure of

eritical accounting estimates and judgements in applyng accoumtmmy
pohcies for firther mformation

13As (UK & Ireland) presume there 1s a risk of fraud m revenue
recognihion because of the pressure m ent may feel to
achieve market expectations. In thus regard we focused on
transachions wiach included a judgementz element in ther
calculation, typical withia the e mnsurance industry, a5 set
out i Note 2 to the financel staternents.

We. focused speafically on the following
Deferral of income and acquisttion costs and amortisahon of

Deferred Income Reserve (DIR), and Deferred Acqusttion
Costs (DAC) under IFRS methodology In the year, the net
movement of DIR of £49 7 miilion was recognised as reverme
(see Note 4) and £32 1 rulhon of acquation costs were
deferred and £100 1 million of DAC was amortised
(see Note 6); and

* Classificanor of the Group's products between insurance and
mvestment business te enstire that mrvestment business 1s
depost accounted 1n the consohdated statement of financial

posttion.

We also considered the recogniion of mecome or costs wiuch
ey have a close relationship to earned msurance premiums and
fees, mn accordance with Auditing Practices Board Practice Note
20 — “The audst of insurers in the Uharted Kimgder’, such as
rewsurance costs The Group fully remsures the UK msurance
risk of its closed book of protection business and therefore we
focused on whether the £32.6 milbon of premium mcome
assoaiated wath thos bumness that was reversed out of the
conschdated statement of comprehensive meome was complete

‘We assessed the critical accounting estimates and judgernents

a5 sef out in Note 2 to the financal statements thathad a

direct tmpact on revente. Spectfically we

* substentvely tested the deferred incomne and acquisthon
costs and the amortisapon of DIR and DAC, inchiding
assessmg the future profitabihity of the products to whach
the imncome and acquustion costs related to ensure that
profitababity was suffizent to support the carrying value of
the deferred balances, and

= confirmed substartively the classrfication of the Group's
products between insurance and mvestment busmess to
check that imsyrance product revenue was appropriately
mcluded mn the conschdated statement of comprehensive
income and mvestment buaness (except for fees reluted to
mvestment contract managernent) was excluded.

We confirmed that there were no new remsurance
arrangements and agreed sample of premums ceded to
mvoice

Gur work on the above areas of judgement was supported by
controls testing and substentive procedures over a1l material
revenue streams mclu 3

* reconcbmg fees on investment business to confirmatory
documentation provided by the asset custodian, State
Street;

* testng mternal controls over the accuracy and -
occurrence of reventte recognised m the financal
Statements,

* obtamng and reating the International Standard on
Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3402 *Assarance Reports
on Controls at a Service Orgamsation” for International
Fanancal Data Services (IFDS), 1n particular focusing on
the controls designed to prevent and detect frand
operating over the Group umt trust buaness
admimstration system owned and operated by IFDS,

+ following mugration of certamn products to a new
2dministranen system also operated by IFDS, obtainimg
and reading an agreed upon procedures (AUP) report
prepared by an independent thard party for the Directors
m respect of the relevant controls, and

* testing a sample of journal entres posted throughout the
year to revenite aceounts that met speafic cterna to
1dent:fy unusual or irregular stems

There were no 1ssues 1n the ISAE 3402 report or AUP that
mmpacted our audst scope Overall, we noted no material
exceptians m our testing and found the yudgements taken by
the Directors to be reasornable.
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|74
:
Area of focus How our audit addressed the area of focus °I‘S;
Recoverabulity of deferred tax asset arismg  from hustoric caprtal losses We assessed the basis of the caprtal losses that gave rise to the =
See Notes 2 and I3 to the financtal statements for the Directors’ 2ddrnional £74.8 ymlhon deferred tax asset, and had PwC tax b
disclosure of determning the value of defersed tax assets fo forther specalists evaluate the advice recerved by management from 4
mformation external tax advisers.
An additional deferred tax asset of £74 8 millon was recogmsed ~ We considered the appheation of relevant taxation legislation r";
during the year fallowing mznagement’s mvestigation of historic and accounting standards around the recogniton of the il
capital losses arystallising within the Group cn the planned deferred tax asset as a whole B
winding-up of SJP Partnershup and SJP 1330 Linited (see Note g
13), bringing the total asset at the year end to £113 1 mlbon We exammed correspondence between the Group and -
HMRC to confirm that, on the evidence provided, the E
We focused an this tem due to the magnitude and complex capital losses are expected to be available l
nature of the balance, requnng techmcal knowledge of tax, and E
the judgements mvolved 1 forecasting future caprtal growth and We assessed the Group’s forecasts for the utibsation of the 8
geans 1n future years m Group comparies to offset against the losses against future capital gmns, including assessing the g
caprtal losses likehhood of such gains -1
‘We challenged the asset growth assumptions used by the
Directors 1 the calenlaton of forecast capital gams and
compared these to relevant benchmarks mehding for c
example average dividend yield and mdex growth versus RPI g
for relevant market mdices 3
5
We checked the mformation disclosed in the financal 8
statempents back to the supporting records and calculations

No issues were noted in the work performed.

Valuation of the prepayment asset 1n respect of the development ofa  Intesting whether the asset was valued appropriately and

new admmstration platform at an outsourced provader whether an ymparment was necessary we.

Ses the Report of the Audnt Commtize for further information and Notes * carnied out tests of detmls on the payments to IFDS

2, 16 and 26 to the financal statements for the Drrectors” diselosure of associeted with the new operational services agreement,

other recervables and payables + assessed the reasonableness of the assumphiens underlying
anagement’s discounted cashflow caleniating the

anticipated cost savings that support the valuation of the

prepaid cost asset 1n the conschdated statement of financial

postion.

-
-
=
=
o
2
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=
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The Group 1s charged costsby IFDS m respect of ensuring
operational readiness of a new pohcy admimstretion platform
These costs are recognised as a prepayment to be unwound over
the duration of the related service agreement wrth IFDS once
benefits are recerved from use of the system, and the balance of
the prepayment at 31 December 2015 was £87 9 milhon The
maxaroum prepayment that can be recogmised 1s capped at the
net present value of future cost savings

We also agreed the cost savings for 2015 to the new service
tariffs against the legacy platform tanff We sensitised the
mflation and discount rate assumptons as well as business
flow to determine the potenhal 1mpact of changes in these
vaniables on the present valne of future savings to check
whether they would affect the carryng value of the asset

Due to the nature and magmtude of the amounts ariaing from
thus year

the contractual terms the valoation of the prepayment asset was
an area of audit focus

\ WONETLIONTT U3 ‘

We noted no materal exceptions m our procedures and
we determned that the disclosure of the transacthons in the
financal staternents was appropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

CONTINUED

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Existence and valumtion of finanelal investments and wvestment

propexty
Sez Note 27 to the finavcal statement for the Directors’ dusclosure of
finaneial risk for further mformarion

Fmancial investments and 1vestment properties were an area of
focus for our testing, 1n particular the judgemental valuattons
of investment properties and dervatives, due to the magnrtude
of the balences

The Group cutsources mvestment custodian and valuation
actvities to State Street. Chr audrt procedures therefore
considered the evidence available over the relability of these
outsourced processes

‘We agreed the exastence of holdings of the financal
investieut portfoho 1o confirmatory documentation
recerved directly from mmdependent custodians as at year end.

‘We mdependently agreed the existence of a sample of
holdings of investruent properties at year end to the Land
Regster mawtamned by the Land Registry

‘We obtained and read the Internatonal Standard on
Assurance Engagements (JSAE) 3402 ‘Assurance Reports on
Controls at a Service Orgamsation’ for State Street’s Global
Fund Accounting and Custody operatons, which provided

a description of the systems and controls m place and

the results of testing of the operational effectiveness of

those controls.

Where appropriste we placed rebznce on the controls
described in the ISAE 3402 report over the valuation and
existence of the financral mvestments within the portfolio

‘We mdependently re-priced a samiple of dervative
1nvestments as at year end We also independently re-priced
a sample of equaty, fixed mcome and collective mvestment
scheme mvestments at the year end to complement our
controls rehance ‘We agreed our independent prices to
those provided by State Street

For mvestment properbes we tested the mputs to the
valuation process and tested the reasonableness of the rental
yield assumptons used by the Divectors in the valnation of
the portfohio by reference to industry accepted benchmarks

We found no maternal exceptions in our testng,
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How we tarlored the audit scope

We tatlored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an opindon on the financral
statements as a whole, taking unto account the geographic
structure of the Group, the accourhng processes and controls,
and the mdustry m which the Group operates The Group
outsources a large proportion of its back office admimustration
services to IFDS, Capita and Sfate Street, accordingly the
financially sgmficant busmess processes performed for the
Group by these outsourcer services providers were addressed
1 our andat.

The Group finamal statements are & consolidation mecluding
sux financially sigmficant busiess units, all of whach are subject
to an audit of ther complete financial information, comprising
the Group’s operatmng businesses and centrahsed functions

and the consohdated St James’s Place Ut Trusts The sx
financially mgmficant business umts requured an audat of thear
complete financial information due to theyr size and/or theyr

risk characteristics

In order to gam sufficient coverage of all financial staternent hne
tems we also carried out audit procedures on balances of certain
other entitzes that contributed over 5% to speafichne items

This scope provided us with gudit coverage (calculsted on an
absohute bass as a percentage of the total balances) 1n excess of
90% for each of Profit before tax, Reverme and Total Assets.

In establishing the overall spproach to the Group audat,

we determined the type of work that needed to be performed

at the business uruts by us, as the Group engagement team, T
component auditors from other PwC network firms operating
under our mstruction The Group team completed all work

on the financrally significant compenents with the exception

of St James's Place Internatiopal Plc (Eire) Lirmted based m
Dublin We determined the scope of wark for a component team
from PwC Ireland and mayntained regular eontact with them
during the course of therr work.

Together with addiional procedures performed at the
consolidated level, this scope of work gave us the evidence we
needed for our opimion on the consohdated financal statements

as a whole

Materiality

The scope of our audst wes influenced by cur applicaon

of matenality We set certain quantitztve thresholds for
materzality Thess, together with qualitanve consideretions,
helped us to deterrmne the scope of cur audit and the nature,
tuming and extent of our zudit procedures on the indrvadual
financial statement e 1tems and disclosures and m evaliating
the effect of msstatements, both indiv:dually and on the
financal statements as a whole

3 111

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiahty
for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Ovezall Group £8.5 mlkon (2014: £15 million)

mdtmalﬂ_.y

How we determined it~ 5% ofpmﬁt before tax

Rationale for Profit before tax 15 a generally accepted

benchmark apphied a.uditmg benchmark. Prior year
materiality was calculated based o

approxamately 8% of profit before tax
attributable to ghareholders” returns,
which was apprexmately 5% of profit
before tax.

Component materiality  For each component m our sudit scope,
we allocated a matenality that was less
than cur overall Group matenalty
The range of materialrty allocated across
components was between £4 0 malkon
and £7 0 mithon. Certam components
were audited to a local statatory audit
materiality that was also less than cur

overall Group materahty.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report
to them misstatements 1dentfied during our andst above
£0.425 mithon (2014 £0 75 millon) as well as musstatements
below that amount that, m our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.

Gomg concern

Under the Listmg Rules we are requred to review the
Directors’ statement, set out on page 104, in relahon to
gomng concern ‘We bave nothing to repart having performed

our review

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you
if we have anything material to add or to draw attention to
1 relation to the Directors” statement about whether they
considered 1t appropriate to adopt the gomg concern basisin
prepanng the financal statements 'We have nothing matenal
to add or to draw attenhon to.

As noted 1n the Directors’ statement, the Directors have
concluded that 1t 15 appropriate to edopt the gowng concern bams
mpr:parmgtheﬁnanmalstataments The gowng concern bass
presumes that the Group has adequate resources to remain m
operation, and that the Directors intend 1t to do so, for et least one
year from the date the financial statements were agned. As part of
our audit we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis 15 appropriate However, becanse notall future
events or condiions can be predicted, these statements are not 2

guarantee as to the Group’s abnlity to conhimue as a going concesD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Cousistency of other mformation

Compames Act 2006 opions

In our opmion

¢ the mformation given m the Strategic Report and thie
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
finaneal statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financral statements, and

* the mformation given in the Corporate Governance
Statement set out i the Governance section with respect

to internal control and nsk management systems and
about share capital structures is consistent with the
financial statements

ISAs (UK & Ireland) reportang
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are requred to report to youaf,

o our opmion-

= mformation in the Annual Report ' We have no exceptions to
1. repart

materially inconmstent with the

formation 1n the audrted financial .

staternents; or

apparently materially moorrect

based on, or reatenally mconsistent

with, our knowledge of the Group

acgmred mn the course of

performing our sudit; or

otherwise mzﬂeadug.

* the statement given by the ‘We have no exceptions to
Darectors on page 73 i accordance report
with provigien C.1 1 of the UK
Corporaté Governance Code (the
Code), that they consider the
Axnnual Report taken asa whole to
be far, balanced and
understandable and provides the
mformation necessary for members
to assess the Group's performance,
business model and strategy 15
materially mconsistent with our
knowledge of the Group acquired
1 the course of performing our
andit,

* The section of the Apmual Report W have no exceptions to
on page 70, as requured by Teport.
provision C 3.8 of the Code,
describing the work of the Andit
Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by
us to the Audrt Committee

5T. JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCQUNTS 2015

The Drrectors” assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the
principal nisks that would threaten the solrency or hqudity of
the Group

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are requred to report to yousf
we have anythung materdal to add or to draw attention ton
relation to
* the Drrectors’ confirmation on page  'We have nothing
100 of the Annual Report, in materzal to add or to
accordance with provision C 21 of  draw attenhon to
the Code, that they have carned out
a robust assessmuent of the princypal
risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency

or hqudrty.

* the disclosures 1n the Annual Report 'We have nothing
that describe those risks and explain  matenal to add or to
how they are being managed or draw attention to.

mutigated

= the Directors’ explanation on page  We have nothing
42 of the Annual Report, 1 material to add or to
accordance with provison C.2 2of  draw attenhion to
the Code, as to how they have
assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so
and why they consider that period to
be appropriate, and thear statement
as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be
able to contuue in operation and
meet 1ts iabhitres as they foli due
over the period of their assessment,
mcluding any related disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary '
qualifications or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
prnczpal nisks facing the Group and the Directors’ staternent in
relation to the longer-term viabihty of the Group Our review was
subsmnnaﬂj'lm 1n scope than an audit and only conssted of
makmg inquines and considering the Directors’ process
supportng their statements, checkang that the statements are 1n
ahgnment with the relevant previsions of the Code, and
considening whether the statements are consistent with the
Ikmowledge soquired by us in the course of performing qur sudst.
We have nothing to report having performed our review

Adequacy of mnfermation and explanations recetved

Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, ;n our opimion, we have not recerved all the information and
explanations we requre for our audit We have np exceptonsto

report arang from ths responsibibty




Drrectors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report o you
of, in our opinion, certamn dusclosures of Directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made We have no excephions to report

ansing from thus respenaibility.

Corporate governance statement

Under the Companues Act 2006 we are Tequired to report to you
if, in our opimon, a Corporate governance statement has not been
prepared by the parent compeny We have no exceptions to
report ansing from this responsibihity

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of
the Carporate Governance Statement relatmg to ten further
proviions of the Code 'We have nothmg to report having
performed our review

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully mn the Statement of Directors’
Responsibihities set out on page 105, the Directors.are
rcsponsl'ble for the preparation of the financal statements and for
beng satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Qur respopsibality 18 to audrt and express an cpmzon on the
financal statements in accordance with apphcable Iaw and ISAs

(UK & Ireland). Those standards requure us to comply with the
Aunditing Practices Board's Ethucal Standards for Audrtors

Thas report, inchxdng the opintons, hes been prepared for and
onlyfurthepgrentwmpany’smmbmasabodyinamordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames; Act 2006 and forne
other purpose We do not, in grving these opimions, accept ot
assume responsibiity for any other purpose or to any other person
towhomtbmrcportmshownormtowhoschmdsnmzycumc
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent m wrrhng

What an audit of finanaal statements involves

An audit involves obtmning evidence gbout the amounts and

dhsclosures 1n the financral statements sufficient to grve

reasonable assurance that the finanmal statements are free from

materral misstatement, whether cansed by fraud or error Thus

mcludes an-assessment of

= whether the accounting pohicies are appropriate to the
Group's circurstances and have been conustently apphed and
adequately disclosed,

+ the reasonableness of sgmificant accountng estroates made

by the Directors; and
= the overall presentzton of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work m these areas by assessing the
Directors’ judgements agamst avarlable evidence, formung
our own Judgements, and evaluating the disclosures mn the
financal statements

113

‘We test and examine informaton, using samphng and other
audrang techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions, We obtan
andit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or 2 combmation of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financal
mformation in the Annual Repart to 1dentify matenal
mnconsistencies wath the audited fnancial statements and to
wdennfy any information that 15 apparently materially mncorrect
based on, or materally inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit Ifwe
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
meonswstencies we consider the impheations for our report.

OTHER MATTERS

‘We have reported separately on the parent company financial
statemnents of St James’s Place ple for the year ended

31 December 2015 and on the information in the Directors’
Remuneration Report that1s described as having been audsted.

Jeremy Jensen (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewatechouseCogpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audnors
London

22 March 2016

[} “The matntenanes and trtegrity of the St. Jazoes's Place ple website {3 the responsthility afthe
Dibrestors; the tvark earried out by the snditrs docs oot involv: consideration of thess
matters uod, gly d 7 ponsibility for ay changes that way bave:
occurred to the Boanclal stetements since they wers initially presented oo the website,

(O] Whmwmmhmmmdmdﬂmﬁﬂ
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

dingly, th accept
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Year Ended YearEnded
31December 31 December
Note 2015 204
£Millica &'Millicn
Insurance premmum income : 347 574
Less premums ceded to reinsurers {32.6) (335
Net insurance premjum income 224 38
Fee and commuszion income 4 1,3335 1,201 0
Investment retorn 5 1,755.8 3,347%
Other cperating ncome 1.5 12
Net mcome 3 3,1129 4,573 2
Pohiey clarms and benefits
~ Gross amount (65.0) (58 8)
— Rewnsurers’ share 28.5 241
Net policyholder claims and benefits incurred (36.5) (347
Change 1n 1nsurance contract liabilities
— Gross amount 10.8 B0
—Reinsurers’ share {0.5) 212
Net change in insurance contract Habihties 10.3 132
Investment contract benefits 22 (1,762.5) (3,2344)
Fees, commussion and cther acqurstion costs (835.7)  (824.0)
Admimstration expenses (311.2) (1957
Other operating expenses 3.2 32
6 {1L,150.1) (1,022.9)
Profit before tax 3 1741 294 4
Tax atinibutable to pohicyholders’ returns 8 (228 (.5
151.3 1829

Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns
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YearEnded  YearEnded
3t December 31 December
Note 2015 2014
£Million £ pMillion
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1513 1829
Total tax expense 8 279 (106.5)
Less: tax attnbutable to policyholders’ returns 8 22.8 111 5
Tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 8 50.7 5.0
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2020 1879
Loss attributzable to non-controlling nterests (0.2) ©n
Profit attiibutable to equity shareholders 202 2 188 0
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 202.0 1879
L Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share S 38.9 366
Diluted earnings per share g 383 359
The notes and mformation below and on pages 119 to 173 form part of these finanmal statemnents.
Undexlying profit measure
Year Ended Yeur Ended
31December 31 December
Nate 2015 2014
£Milhan &"Million
Profit before tax attributable to sharcholders’ returns 151.3 1829
Adjustments. .
DAC/DIR/PVIF 12.4 (@3
Underlying profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ retrns 3 163.7 1736
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 202.0 1879
Adjustments
DAC/DIR/PVIE 4.8 (70)
Underlying profit and total comprehensive :ncome for the year 3 206.8 1809
Pence Pence:
Underlying basic earnings per share g 39.8 352
Underlying diluted earnings per share 9 39.4 346
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5
Attributable to Equaty Shareholders
Treasury Neow-
Share Share Shares Retamed Mase controlling Total
Note Capital Premmm Reserve Earnangs Reseryes Total Interests Equrty
£Mallion £¥ulhon £Millon £mlhon £Mulion £Million £Milhon £N¥hilinn
At 1 Jannary 2014 773 1422 (102 694 5 23 2061 - 9061
Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive meome
for the year 188 0 188 0 ©1n 1879
Dividends 10 (35 5) (95 5) {95 5)
Iesue of share capital a2 02 a2
Exerase of options 04 52 56 56
Consderation pard for
own shares (52 52 (5 2)
Qwn shares vesting charge 49 9 — -~
Retained earnings credit
m respect of share
option charges 11.0 110 110
At 31 December 2014 773 1474 (10 5) 7931 23 1,010 2 (©1) 10101
Prafit/(loss) and total
comprehensive income
for the year 202 2 202 2 ©2 2020
Drvdends 10 (130.8) (130 8) (130 8)
Issue of share capatal 29 D3 15 22 22
Exergse of optons 29 05 90 85 95
Consideration paid for
own shares (12 8) (128 (12.8)
Own shares vesting charge 47 “47 ~ -
Retaiped earnmgs credit
m respect of proceeds
from exeramse of share
options of shares held in
trust 01 01 01
Retained earmngs credit
1 respect of share
option charges 148 148 14.8
At 31 December 2015 78.7 158.3 (18.5) 874.6 2.3 1,095.4 (0.3) 1,095.1

The number of shares held w the Treasury Share Reserve 1s given in Note 29 Share Capital on page 162

Muscellaneous reserves represent other non-distributable reserves

The notes and information on pages 119 to 173 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 31 December

Not= 2015 2004
£Million £ Mallion
Asgsets
Goodwll 11 10.1 10.1
Intangble assets
—Deferred acquisrtion costs 12 ‘745.0 8130
— Acquired value of 1n-force bumness 12 33.6 368
— Computer software 12 4.3 77
793.0 8676
Property & equipment 8.0 7.9
Deferred tax assets 13 2259 152.8
Tavestment property 14 1,3449  1,0314
Investments
—Equities 37,960.8 34,7343
— Fixed income securntes 8,9340 683838
— Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,269.6 29617
— Derivative Financial Instruments 364.1 166 4
Resnsurance assets 20 85.0 855
Insurance and investment contract receivables 76 2 635
Other recervables 16 891.0 604 5
Cash & cash eqmvalem.'- 17 5,3251 £,1354
Total assets 59,2726 52,6945
Liabilities
Insurance contract habihties 19 463.5 474 4
Cther provimens - 21 154 114
Financial habihities
— Investment contracts benefits 22 43,1598 38,8512
— Borrowangs 23 1818 843
- Dermvative Financal Instruments 221.1 793
Defétred tax habihties 24 434.6 5198
Insurance and investment contract payables 459 50 4
Deferred meome 25 413.5 453 2
Income tax hiabilibes 296 328
Other payables 26 6608 4997
Net asset value attributable to unithelders 15 12,5564 10,6178
Preference shares 01 01
Total habilities 58,1825 51,684 4
Net assets 1,0951  1,0101
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 29 78.7 779
Share premium 1583 1474
Treasury shares reserve (18.5) (10 5)
Mascellaneous resexves 23 23
Retaned earmungs 874.6 7931
Shareholders’ equrty 1,0954 1,0102
Non-controlling iterests (0.3) on
Total equity 1,095.1  1,0101
Pence Pence
Net assets per share 2087 164 5

The financal statements on pages 114-to 173 were approved by the Board of Directars on 22 March 2016 and signed on 1ts behalf by

David Bellamy
Chuef Executive

Apdrew Croft
Chugf Fmancial Officer

The notes and information on pages 119 to
173 form part of these financal staternents
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\ OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended  YearEnded
31December 31 December
Notz 2015 2014
EMilhon £'Mllicn
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year - 174 1 294 4
Adjustments for.
Deprecuation 2.5 19
Armortisation of acquired value of m-force business 12 3.2 32
Amortisation of computer software 12 3.4 28
Share-basad payment charge 30 15.7 114
Interest income 23.9) (21.9)
Interest pad 4.4 3.8
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in deferred acquisition costs (pef) 12 68.0 75.8
Increase 1n mvestment property (313.5) (2987) ‘
Increase m investments (5,826.7) (5,734 1) |
Decrease/(increase) in remsurance assets 0.5 (21 3)
Increase 1n msurance and mvestment contract receivables {12.7) {13 6) ) ‘
Increase 1 other recervables (316.5)  (849)
(Decrease)/increase 1n mmsurance contract habilites {10.9) 80 {
Increase i provisicns 4.0 17
Increase 1o finapcial habilities (exciuding borrowings) 4,4504 51252
(Decrease)/increase 1n insprance and investment contract payables @5 123
Decrease mn deferred income (49.7) (754
Increase i other payables 164.0 603
Increase i net assets attnibutable to umst holders 1,938.,6 12,0824
Cash generated from operating activities 2704 1,4333
Interest receaved 239 2118
Interest pad {44 (3.8)
Income taxes paid (61.7) (35.5)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2282 141559 ¢
Cash flows from investing activites
Acquusihon of property & equipment “0) #0
Acqustion of mtangzble assets 12 - (18
Acqusiion of subsidiaries and other business combinations, net of cash acquired (0.8) (72
Net cash used in investing activities “.8 (130
Cash flows from financing activities ‘
Proceeds fror the issue of share capital 9.5 59
Cenmderation paid for own shares (12.8) 2
Proceeds from exarcise of options over shares held in trust 0.1 -
Additronal borrowings 175.0 -
Repayment of borrowings (79.1) (14 4) 0
Dividends paxd 10 (130.8) (95 5)
Net cash used in financing actinities (38.1) (1092 !
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents 1853 11,2937
Cash & cash equivalents at 1 January 51394  3,8457
0.4 -

Exchange paing on cash and cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December

lf
i
5,325.1 51394 l'

Exchange rate fluctuations result from cash held in the untt-hnked funds 1

The notes and information on pages 119 to 173 form part of these finanaal statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
St James's Place plc (the Company) 13 a company mcorporated and dormeiled m England and Wales

Statement of Comphance
The Group financual statements conschdate those of the Company and 1ts subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group)

The Group financal statements have been prepared and apﬁrovcd by the Directors in accordance with Internatonal Financal
Reporting Standards as adepted by the EU (zdopted IFRSs) and mterpretations 1ssued by the [FRS Interpretations Comrmttee
(IFRSIC) and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 that are apphcable when reporting under TFRS.

As at 31 December 2015, the following new and amended standards, which are relevant to the Group but have not been apphed m the
finaneial statements, were m 1ssue but not yet effective.

1AS 1 Arnendment — Disclosure Inthative
LAS 16 and JAS 38 Amendments — Clarificetion of Acceptable Methods of Deprecratzon and Amortisstion

IFRS 9 Financral Instruments
IFRS 10 and JAS 28 Amendments — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and 1ts Associate or Joint Venture

TERS 10, IFRS 12 and JAS 2§ Amendments — Investent Entities. Applympg the Consohdation Exception
TFRS 15 Revenne from Contracts with Customers

TFRS 16 Leases
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cydle

The adoption of the sbove standards s not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s results reported within the financal
stutements other than requirmg additaonal disclosure or alternative presentztion, however the impact of these standards will contimzre

10 be assessed.

The Group financial statements also comply with the revised Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Assomaton of British
Insurers i December 2005 (as amended 1 December 2006), to the extent that 1t 1s consstent with IFRS standards

Basis of Preparation
As discnssed in the Directors’ Report, the going concern basis bas been adopted m preparmg these financal statements.

The finanmal statements are presented 1 pounds Sterimg, rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand pounds They are prepared
on 2 historacal cost basis, except for assets dasmfied as investment property, available-for-sale financial assets and assets and habilrtzes

at fair value through profit and loss

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgerents, estimates and
assumptiops that affect the application of policzes and reported amounts of assets and hakihities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on hustorical expenience and various other facters that are believed to be reasonzble under-the
arcamstances, the results of which form the basis of malang the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabihties that are not
readily apparext from other sources Actual results may duffer from these estimates

The estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongomng basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmsed 1n the
yea:mwhmhtheemmatemrewsedxfthemmonaﬁectsonlythatyear, or in the year of the revasion and future years, if the reviaon

affects both current and future years

Judgements made by management 1n the apphication of IFRSs that have sigmficant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a sigmificant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed 1n Note 2

The financal statements are prepared m accordance with the Compames Act 2006 as apphcable to companses reporting under IFRS and
the accounting pohicres set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented mn these conschdated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

1. ACCOUINTING POLICIES continued
Summary of Sign.g‘imnt Accounting Policies

{8) Bams of Consolidation
The consolidated finanmal information meorporates the assets, babilities and the results of the Company and of 1ts subsidianies

Subsidraries are those entrties 1n which the Group is exposed to, or has nights to, varable retarns from 1ts involvement with the entity
and has the abilrty to affect those returns through 1ts power over the entity (mcluding umt trusts in whuch the Group holds more than
30% of the units). Assomates are all entities over which the Group has sgmificant influence but not control and are accounted for at
Fair value through the profit or loss The Group uses the acquisition method of accountmg to account for business combmations and
expenses all acquusition costs as they are mcurred The finaneial statements of subsidanes are inchaded 1 the conschdated financial

statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Accounting pohaies of subsidiartes have been

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with pohictes adopted by the Group

Any cortingent consideration to be transferred by the Group 1s recognised at fair value at the acquishion date Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent conmderation that 1s deemed to be an asset or Irability is recognised m accordance wath IAS 39 1n the

conschdated statement of comprehensive imncome.

The treatment of transacticns with non-contrelling interests depends on whether, a3 a result of the transaction, the Group alters
control of the subsidiary Changes in the parent’s ownership interest i a subsidiary that do not result 1n a Joss of control are
accounted for as equrty transachens, any difference between the amount by which the non-controlhing 1nterests are adjusted and the

farr value of the connderation paxd or recerved 15 recognised directly 1n equity and attributed to the owners of the parent entity
‘Where the Group loses control of the subsidrary, at the date when control :s lost the amonnt of any non-controllmg mterest 1 that

former subsidiary 15 derecogmsed end any investment retamed 1 the former snbsidiary 13 rerneasired 1o xts foar value, the gain or loss
that 1= recogmsed an profit or loss on the partial dispasal of the subndiary includes the gain or loss on the remeasurement of the

reteined mterest.

Intragroup balances, and any meome and expenses or unreahsed gains and losses ansing from infragroup transactions, are eliminated
in preparing the consohdated financz) statements,

(b) Product Clasaficabon
The Group’s products exe dassfied for accounting purposes a3 exther insurante contracts oF mvestment contracts

(1} Insurance Comrrzn:s
Insurance contracts are contracts that transfer sigmficant 1nsurance nisk. The Group's product range mcludes a vanety of term

assurance and whole of hfe protection contracts wvalving significant msurance risk transfer

(1d) Jovestment Contracts
Contracts that do not transfer sgraficant insurance nisk are treated as mvestment contracts The majonty of the bunness written by

the Growp 15 unit hinked investment business and 15 dassified as imvestment contracts

(c) Long Term Business

(1) Insurance Premum Revenue
For urt Imked insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue when the labilities ansing from them are recognised All

other premiums are accounted for when due for payment.

Investment contract premuurms are not mcluded o the statement of comprehengive mncome but are reported as deposits to mvestment
contract habihtses i the balance sheet

() Revenue from bavestment Contracts
Fees charged for services related to the management of mvestment contracts are recogntsed as revenue as the services are provided

Tnrtial fees, mcluding dealing margins from umit trusts, which exceed the level of recurring fees and relate to the future provison of
services, are deferred These are amortised over the anticipated penod in which servaces wail be provided

ST TAMES’S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOLINTS 2015




i

(i) Polrcy Clarms and Bensfits
For msurance contracts, death claums are accounted for on nonfication of death Cnitical iliness clains are accounted for when

admitted All other dmms end surrenders are sccounted for whep payment is due.

For wwvestment contracts, benefits pard are notincluded m the staternent of comprehensive moome but are mstead deducted from
mvestment contract liabilities The movement in mnvestment contract benefits within the statement of comprehensive income

prmcipally represents the investment return credited to pobeyholders

Expbat edvice charges are payable to St James's Flace distribution company by most chents who wish to recerve advice with their
nvestmentina St Jumes’s Place retatl investment product. St. James's Place facilitates the payment of these charges for the client, by
arranging withdrawals from the chent’s pohcy, whach are then recogmsed as meome to St. James’s Place distribution company A
proporten of the charge is then paxd to the St James’s Flace adviser (Partner) who provides the advice (see (g)(i) Expenses).

(iv) Acquustzon Costs
For msurance contracts, acqusihon costs coraprise direct: costs such as inrtial commussion and the indirect costs of obtainng and
processing new busiess Acquisihon costs which are mcurred during a financmal year, net of any impairment losses, are deferred and

then amortised on a straght Line basis over the period durmg whach the costs are expected to be recoverable and in accordance with

the madence of fature related margins

For mvestment contracts, only directly attnibutable ecquisiton costs, whch vary wath and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts, ave deferred, and only to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue These deferred

acqusihon costs, whach represent the contractual might to benefit from providing investment management services, net of any
mpairment losses, are amortised on 2 strayght line basis over the expected hfetune of the Group’s mvestment contracts All other
costs are recogmised as expenses when mcurred. Note, following the rmplementation of the Retail Distxibution Review (RDR} on
31 December 2012, the mrtal advice costs are no longer an acquisition cost hnked to the contractual nght to benefit from providing

investment MANAZEment services and so they are ro longer deferred

The period over wiich costs ere expected to be recoverable are as follows-

Insurance contracts 6 years
Investraent contracts: 12—14 years

(v) Insurance Contract LighiInties :

Insurance contract hablity provisions are determmed following an anmal actuarial investigation of the long-term fund m accordance
with regulatory requrements The provions are calculated on the bams of current informanon and usng the gross premium
vahuztion method The Group’s accounting pobezes for msurance contracts meet the mumirum specified requirements for habality
adequacy testing under IFRS 4, as they consider current estnates of all contractual cash fiows, and of related cash flow such as

daims handling costs
Insurance contract hahnlities can never be definitive as to their timing nor the amount of clawns snd are therefore subject to
subsequent reassessment on a regular bass

{v1) Investment Contract Liobulrties
All of the Group’s mvestroent contracts are umt Imked Unit hinked Lalalines are measured at fair value by reference to the value of

the underlymng net asset value of the Group's unitised investment funds, determuned on a bud value, at the reporting date An

allowanee for deductians due to {or from) the Company 1n respect of policyholder tax on caprtal gains (and losses) mn the Life assurance
funds 1s also reflected in the measurement of unit linked Labalities. Investment contract habulities are recogmsed when units are first

allocated to the policyholder, they are derecogmsed when units allocated to the policybolder have been cancelled.

The decision by the Group to designate 1ts unit linked habihttes as far value through the profit and loss statement reflects the fact that
the underlymg mvestment portfolio 1s roanaged, and 1ts performance evaluated, an a farr value basis

(v1z) Insurance and Investment Contract Recewvables and Payables
Insurence and mvestment contrdct recervables and payables are inrtially recogmsed at fawr value and subsequently at amortised cost,

usmg the effectrve interest method, less impairment losses
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES conhinued

(d) Rewnsurance
Remsurance premuums are accounted for when due for payment, and remysurance recoverses, in respect of insnrance contract

p
hahihties, are accounted for in the same period as the related claim  Amounts recoverable from remsurers mn respect of dams and
amounts payable m respect of future remnsurance premiums are reported as part of msurance and jovestment cantract receavables and

payables, respectavely

(e) Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income comprises
i} advice charges pmd by clients who wash to receive advice with their investroentin 2 5t James’s Place or third party retail

investment product,
1) commisston, due 1 respect of products sold on behalf of third parnes, and

1) fees charged for sexvices related to the mapagement of mvestment contracts

Adwice charges and commussion ere recogmsed 1 full on 2cceptance and inception of the assocated pohcy by the relevant produet
provider Where the product-provider retains the nght to dlawback of commussion on an indemmity basts, turnover on sale of these

products is recognised net of a provision for the estumated clawback.

Investment contract managerment fees are generally recogmised as revenue as the services are provided (see also accounting pohcy
Note (c) (i)

(f) Investment Return
Investment return comprses mvestment income and mvestment gamns and losses Investment mcome includes drvidends, interest and

rextal meome from investroent properties under operating leases Dividends are acerued on an ex-dividend bass, and rental income 15
recognised m the statement of comprehensive mcome on a straght-line basis over the term of the lease. interest, which 15 generated

on assets classified as fair value through profit or lass, 15 accounted for nang the effective nterest method.

(g) Expenses

{2) Partner Remimertion
Partner remuneranon comprises mrhal comymssion and inrial advice fees (IAF) (pawd for initial advice, at policy outset and within an

‘uranial peniod’), renewal commussion and renewal sdvice fees (payable on regular contributions) and fund fee commussion or ongeing
advice fee (OAF) (based on funds wnder management) Initial and renewal commission and advice fees are recopnised 1t Ene with the
assonated premum wcome, but intial colmmission on msurance and investment contvacts may be deferred s set outin accounting

policy (@) (). Fund fee commussion and ongoing advice fee are recogmsed on an accruals basis.

]

Comrmssion and advce fees m respect of some msurance and mvestment business may be paid in advance on renewal premmms and
accelerated by up to five years The unearned element of this accelerated remuneration 18 recogmused as an asset within other
receavables Should the contributions reduce or stop withm the mrtal penod, any unearned emount s recovered.

(1) Operating Lease Payments

Leases where a sigmficant proportion of the rsks and rewards of ownershup 1s retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive meome on a strayght-hne basis over the term
of the lease Lease mcentives recerved are recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the total lease

expense and are spread over the hfe of the lease

¢h) Income Taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprses current and deferred tax payable by the Group in respect of poheyholders and
shareholders Income tax 15 recognised m the statement of comnprehensse mncome except to the extent that it relates to ttems
recogmsed directly m equity, 1 whch case 113 recogmsed 1 equity

() Cwrrent Tex

Current tax 15 the expected tax paysble on the taxable income for the year, using tex rates enacted or substantzvely epacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment o tax payable i respect of previous years
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(&) Defarred Taz
Deferred tax 15 provided using the Lialhty method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liahIshes for financal reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following differences are not provided for
the mrtial recognrhion of assets or habilites that affect nexther accounting nor taxable profit, and dufferences relating to mvestments
subsidiaries to the extent that they wall probably not reverse i the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax prowided 1s based

on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrymg amount of assets and iabilhies, using tax rates enacted or
substentrvely enacted st the reportmg date

to the extent that 1t 1s probable that firture teoble profits will be available aganst which the asset

A deferred tax assetas recogmised only
reduced to the extent that 1t1s nO longu'probabletha:tthe related tax benefit will be realised.

can be utihsed. Deferred tax assets are

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to offset curTent tax assets against current tax
habilities and when the deferred tax assets and habibtaes relate to income taxes Jevied by the same taxation authority on exther the

taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 15 an intention to settle the balances on a net bams

() Pohicyholder and Sharebolder Tax )
The total mcome tax charge 18 a separate adjustment within the statement of comprehensive mncome based on the movement 1n current

and deferred income taxes m ct of mcome, pamns and expenses Thetotalcbargernﬂcctstaxmcmredonbeba]fofpohcyhaldmas
well as shareholders, and so 1t 18 useful to be eble to identify these separately Shareholder tax s estimated by malang an assessment of the
e&'ccﬁvemteofmxthatwapphmblemtheshareholdm,“aththeba]anmbeinguﬂtedastumrspect of pohcyholders.

s shareholders are recogmsed 1n the period m which the dividends are paid, and, for the final
by the Company’s shareholders at the Anomal General Meeting.

(1) Davidends Paid
Dmvidend distributions to the Corpany
divadend, are disclosed (but unpaid) when approved

() Intangable Assets
(1) Deferred Acqusion Casts
See accounting pohey (5) (1v)

(i1) Acqurred Value of In-force Busmess
The acquired value of in-force business n respect of nsurance business represents the present value of prefits that are expected to

emerge from msurance business acquired on business cormbnations, Tt is calculated at the time of acqumsiton using best estimate
actuanal assumptions for mnterest, mortahty, persistency and expenses, et of any imparmest losses, and 1t 13 amortsed on = straght
Iine bams as profits emerge over the anticzpated lives of the related coptracts in the portfoho An mtangble asset 13 also recognised i
respect of acquired investment management contrects représenting the far value of contractual nghts acquired under thase contracts
The acquired value of in-force busmess 1s expressed as a gross figure in the balance sheet with the assocrated tax included within
deferred tax habibties Tt 1s assessed for impairment at each reportng date and any movement 15 charged to the staterent of

comprebensive moime.

(i) Computer Software
Computer software 13 stated at cost less accurnulated arnorhsation and any recognised ympairment loss. The carrying value 1s

changes m circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

reviewed for mmparment when events or

Computer software 13 recognised as an imtangible asset during development with amortisation commencng when the software1s
operational Amortisation 15 charged to the statement of comprehensive mcome to admimstration expenses on & straght-hne basis

over four years, being the estmated useful life of the mtangble asset

() Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess

acqured entity at the date of acquisttion
15 greater than the cost of acquisrion, the excess 15 TeCOgmS

of the cost of an acquinition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the 1dentafiable net assets of the
Where the fujr value of the Group’s share of the 1dentifiable net assets of the acqured entity
ed immedately in the statement of comprehensive imcome.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued )
Goodwill 15 recogmsed as an asset at cost and 15 reviewed at Jeast anmually for imparment ¢r when circumstances or events ndicate

there may be uncertamty over this value Ifan mparment is identified, the carrying value of the goodwllis written down
mmmeduately through the statement of comprehensive meome and 18 not subsequently reversed At the date of disposal of a subgidiary,
the carrymng value of attributzble goodwillis mchuded 11 the calcnlation of the profit or loss on disposal except where 1t has been

Written o:&'d.lrecﬂytoresmesmthepast

(D) Investment Property . .
Investment properties, which are all held withm the unit linked fonds, are properties which are held to earn rental income and/or for

caprtal apprecation. They are stated at fur value.
An external, mdependent valuer, having an appropriate recogmsed professional quahfication and recent experience m the Jocahion
and category of property being valued, values the portfolio every month

The farr values are based an open market values, bewng the estimated amount for which a Property could be exchanged on the date of
valuahion between wiiling buyer and a wilhng seller in an arm’s length trausaction after proper marketing wherem the parties had

each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsnon

Any pan or Joss ansing from achangemfaarva.luelsrccogmsedmthcstatementof

comprehensive meome withan imvestment
come Reatal return from mvestment Property 1s acconnted for as described 1n accounting pohey (f)

1

(n) Denvative Finanmal Instruments
The Group uses derwvative financal mstrum
recogmised at fair value, based on observable market przces All changes 1n value are recognised within mvestment income i the
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() Financial Assets
Formal reviews to assess the recoverability of financal assets are carried out at each reporting date The recoverabality of such assets

15 measured and the asset is deemed 1mpaired 1f the projected future margins are less than the carrying value of the asset. If there 1s
any indication of wrrecoverability or ympairment, the asset’sTecaverable arnount 1s eshmated based on the present value of its

estimated firture cash flows

In relation to debt mstruments, impairment losses are reversed — through the statement of comprehensive mcome — 1f there1sa
change m the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does rot exceed the carrymng amount that would have been deterrmined, net of depreciation or amorhsation where

appheable, 1f no ymparrment loss had been recogmised

(g) Cash & Cash Equivalents .
Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call wrth banks, other short-term ighly liqmd investments, and bank

overdrafts to the extent that they are an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Cash & cash equuvalents held within it Iinked and unt trust funds are lassified at fair value through the profit and loss Al other
cash & cash equivalents are dassified as loans and receivables.

(1) Provisions
Provisons are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obhgation as a result of past events such that it 1s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a rehable eshmate of the amount of the
obhgation can be made. Provisions are measured as the discounted expected fiture cash flows taking account of the risks and

uncertanties assoaated with the speafic hability where appropriate

(s} Borrowmgs -
Borrowngs are measured imtially at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortised
cost. The difference between the proceeds and the redemption value 15 recogmsed 1 the statement of comprehensive mecome over the

borrowng pertod on an effective mterest rate basis. Borrowings are recogmsed on drawdown and derecogmised on repayment.

(t) Other Payables
Other paysbles are recogmsed wtially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective iterest method.

(1) Net Asset Value Attributable to Unzt Holders
The Group consclidates unit trusts m whch 1t holds more than 30% of the umts and exercises comrol The third party mnterests m

shese unst trusts are measured at far value, smee the underlymg investment portfolios are managed on a far value bass; and they are
presented in the balance sheet as net asset value attrbutable to unat holders Income atiributable to the third party mterests 15
accounted for within mvestment income, offset by a corresponding change in mvestment contract benefits

~
¢v) Employee Benefits

(1) Pension Oblgatrons
The Group operates a defined contribution personal pension plan for 1ts employees Contributions to this plan are recogmsed as an

expense m the statement of comprehensive income as mcurred. The Group has no legal or constructive obhgations to pay further
contrsbutions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current

and prior periods

{u) Shore-Based Payments
The Group operates a number of share-based payment plans. The fair value of equity instruments grented 1s recognised as an expense
spread over the vestung period of the mstrument whuch accords with the period for which related sexvices are provided, with a

corresponding increase 1n equity 1n the case of equty settled plans The total amount to be expensed 15 determined by reference to
the farr value of the awards at the grant date, measured uang standard option pricing models
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES coptinued
At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity mstruments that are expected to vest and 1t recogmses

the impact of the revinon of estimates, if any, in the statement of comprehensrve mcome, such that the amount recognsed
for employee services aré based on the number of shares that actually vest. The charge to the statement of comprehensive mcome 1s

not revised for any changes in market vesting conditions

(w) Share Captal
Ordinary shares are classified as equity ‘Where any Group Company purchases the Company’s equity share caprtal (treasury shares),

the consideration paid 1s deducted from equuty attributable to shareholders, as disclosed in the Treasury Shares reserve Where such
ghares are subsequently sold, rexssued or otherwise disposed of, any conaderation recerved 15 1ecluded 1 equty attnbutable to
shareholders, net of any directly attnibutable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects

(=) Foreign Currency Translation
The Group's presentation and the Company's functional currency 15 pounds Sterhing,

Foreign currency transactions are tyanslated into Stething using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transactions Monetary
assets and habilies denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and the

gan or Josses on translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Non-monetary assets and habaltties which are held at hustorical cost are translated using exchange rates prevaing at the date of
transaction, thase held at farr value are translated using exchange rates rubing at the date on which the fur value was determmed

(7) Segment Reportmg
Operating segments are reported 1 a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decimion maker.

The cluef operating decision maker, which 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the-operating
segments, has been 1dentified as the Execuhive Committee of the Board. ‘

{Z) Current anid Non-Current Disclosure
Assets which are expected to be recovered or settled no more than twelve months after the reportmg date are disclosed as current

within the notes to the financial statements. Those expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve mouths after the reportmg
date are disclosed as non-current

Liabilities whuch are expected or due to be settled no more than twelve months after the reporaing date are disclosed as current
within the notes to the financial statements Those habiliies which are expected or due to be settled more than twelve months after
the reporting date are disclosed as non-current.

t

(aa) Non-GAAP Measures
Included withm the financal statements are a oumber of non-GAAP measures, being underlymng probit before tax, EEV, EFS on the |

post-tax underlying profit and the post-tax cash result A definition of the non-GAAP meastres can be found wathin the Glossary and
reconciltations to IFRS on pages 115, 131, 132 and 137.

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES '

Judgements

The primary areas m which the Group has applted yudgement 1n applying accounting polices are in the dlassification of contracts [

between insurance and investment business and when applymg the concept of contrel to determmme winch entities are subsidianes ]
i
|
l

Classification of Contracts Between Insurance and Investment Busmess
Centracts with a significant degree of mnsurance risk are treated asmsurance Al other contracty are treated as mvestment contracts Ttis

thus clasafication that management consders to be a critweal judgement, however, due to the carrying value of the isurance contract
- labailtties wathun the Statement of Financal Posttion, manzgement does not consider msurance busness to be significant to the Group
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Subsidiaries .
Subsidiaries are those entihes 1n which the Group 1s exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its mvolverment with the entity
and has the ability to affect those retrns through 1ts power over the entity (ncludimg umt trusts in whuch the Group holds more than

30% of the umts)

Estrmates

The principal areas m. whith the Group apjlies accounting estumates are

 Determning the value of insurance contract habihhes ‘
* Decdmg the amount of management expenses that are treated as acquisthon expenses
o Amortsation and recoverability of deferred scquisiton costs and deferred mcome

* Determmmg the farr value, amortisation and reuovera}:ﬂlty of acquired m-force business.
* Determning the faxr value habality to poheyholders for caprtal losses m unit funds

* Determinimg the value of deferred tax assets

* Determinmg the far value of financial instruments abd mvestment property

* Deterrmmng the fair value of share-based payments

« Recoveralhty of St James's Place Partnership loans

* Measurement of prepad operational readiness costs

*  Far value estmation of assets acquived.

Estunates are also apphed in determiming the amotmt of deferred tax asset recogmsed on unrelieved expenses and the value of
other provisions

Measarement of Insurance Contract Lizhilites -
The asswmptions used in the calculation of msarance contract hzbilines that bave an effect on the statement of comprehensive income

of the Group are

» " The lzpse assumption, which 1s set prudently based on an investgaton of experience during the year

* The level of expenses, which 15 based on actual expenses in 2014 and expected long teym rates

* The mortakty and morbidity rates, which are based on the results of &n mveshgation of experience during the year

e The assumed rate of nvestment return, whachs based on current gilt yields

Greater detas] on the assumptions apphed 15 shown in Note 13.

Acquisthon Expenses
Certzin managemm with the level of new busness and have been treated as acquisttion costs Each Lize of costs has

ent expenses vary
been reviewed and 1ts vanability to new busmess vohumes estimated on the basis of the level of costs that would be incurred if new

business ceased

Amortisation and Recoverabibty of Deferred Acqusttion Costs (DAC) and Deferred Incorne (DIR)
Deferred acquisrtion costs ou investment contracts are amortsed on a straight-lime basis over the expected bfetime of the underlying

contracts. The expected hfetithe of the contracts has been estimated from the experienced termination rates and the age of clients at
incepton and maturity

Deferred imcome on ivestment contracts 15 amortised on a straight line basis over the expected hfetrme of the underlying contracts,
although on certamn contracts, the mxpactofwlymthdrawa] charges means the income 15 effectively recogmised over a shorter period.

Deferred acquyaition costs on Jnsurance contracts are amortised over the pericd during which the costs are expected to be
recoverable 1 accordance with the projected emergence of future margins

Deferred acquisthon costs relating to msurazce and investrment contracts are tested anmually for recoverablity by reference to
expected future mcome levels. Future moorae levels are projected using assumptions consistent with those underlymg our embedded

value calculztion
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

2, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES continued

Acquired In-Force Business

There have been no new business combmnations generatng acquuired 1n-force business during the year The acquired velue of the
1mn-force bumness 1s amortised on a bams that reflects the expected profit stream arising from the business acquired at the date of
scqustion This profit stream 15 estimated from the expenenced termination rates, expenses of management and age of the clients
under the indivadual contracts as well as global estimates of investment growth, based on recent experience at the date of acquisiion

The acquired value of in-foree busmess relating to insurance and ynvestment contracts is tested anmually for recoversbihty by
reference to expected future income levels

Valumg Caprtal Losses m the Unit Funds
In hine with IAS 12, the Group has recognised a deferred tax asset in relation to caprtal losses 1n the wnit funds at the reporting date

Thus asset has been tested for impairment against the level of caprtal gams realisheally expected to anse in future,

Much of the benefit of the deferred tax asset on capital losses in the untt funds wall be shared with poheyholders The poheyholder
mvestment contract hability has therefore been mcreased to reflect the fair value of this additional benefit The assumptions that have
a significant effect op the fair value of the haihty are as follows

The assumed rate of fuvestinent return, whch 15 based on current giit yields,
* The lapse assumption, which 1s set prudently based on experience during the year
* The assumed period for development of caprtal gawns, which 1s estimated from recert expenence

Determmng the Vahie of Deferred Tax Assets
In hine with IAS 12, the Group has recogmused deferred tax assets for future tax benefits that will accrue  The esset value has taken

ato consderation the hkelhood of appropriate future 1ncome or gains agamst which the tax asset can be uthsed In partrcular,
future mvestment mncome from the existing assets and new business wall be sufficient to unlise the nnreheved expenses, and capital
gams crystallising an the vnrt hoked funds will wtilise the caputal losses Fax assets 1n relahon io deferred income wall be utilised as
the underlying meome 1s recogrused

Deterrmming the Far Value of Financial Instrurnents and Investment Property

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Group categonses financial mstruments carried on the balance sheet at farr value using a three Jevel
bierarchy Finanoal mstruments categorised as leve] 1 are valued using quoted market prices and therefore there 1s mimimal
mudgement apphed 1n determming fur value However, the far value of financial instruments categorised as level 2 and, m particular,
level 3 18 determined using vahiahon techmques. These valuation techmiques involve management judgement and estimates, the
extent of which depends on the complexty of the mnstrument and the availability of market observable information. Further details of

these valzations are described 1n Note 27

Deterrmmnung the Fair Value of Share-Based P

In determmng the fair vahue of share-based payments and the related charge to the income statesnent, the Group makes assumptions
ghout the future events and market conditions In particular, judgement must be formed as to the hikely mumber of shares that wall
vest, and the foir value of each awerd granted Purther dersus of these assumptions used are desarnibed 1 Note 30

Recoverabihity of St. James’s Place Partnership Loans

Duning the normal conrse of business the Group provides loans to St. James's Place Partners 1 order to support the development and
growth of the 5t. James’s Place Partership The St Fames's Place Partmership loans are mmally recognised at farr vatue and
subsequently beld at amortsed cost less wnparment losses The recoveratlity of loans 15 measured and the asset 15 deemed fmpared
of the projected future margins are Jess than the carrymg value of the asset. The allowance for ymparment Josses on St James's Place
Partnership loans 1s management’s best estmate of fosses incurred in the portfoho at the staternent of financeal pomtion date
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Measurement of Prepaid Operattonal Readiness Costs

Included within prepayments are operational readiness costs relating to the pew admimistration service agreement which ave inrtially
recognised at the amounts advanced The prepeyment s expensed in line with the provimion of services under the service agreement
At each statement of financia] postian date, the value of the prepayment 1s assessed for impairment recogmsed against the present
vahie of the estimated future contract benefits In determunng the present value of the estimated future contract benefits, the crtieal
Judgements are the levels of future busimess that will be serviced, the anticipated future service tanffs, termmation fees payable and

recervable. under the contract and the rate used to disconnt amonnts to present valte,

Farr Value Estimation of Assets Acquired
In accordance with IFRS 3 Bumness Combmations, as of the acquisizon date, the Group recogmses, separately from goodwill, the

identifizble assets acquired, the habiities assumed and any non-controlling interest 1n the acquiree and clasafies the jdentifiable assets
acqured and irabalxhes assumed on the basis of the contractual terms, economic conditions, its operating or accounting pehces and
other pertent condrtions as they exst at the soquistion date The Group measures the :dentifiable assets acquired and the habihties

assumed at their acquisthon-date fair vahtes

3. SEGMENT REPORTING
IFRS 8 Operating Segruents requires operating segments to be 1dentrfied, on the bass of internal reports about components of the

Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board, in order to allocate resources to each segment and assess 1ts performance. The
Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are therefore as follows

1. Life business — offering pensions, protecton and mvestment products through the Group's hfe assurance subsidiaries

2. Umit Trust business — offexing umt trust investment products, mcluding ISAs, through St James’s Place Ut Trust Group Larnuted
and St. James’s Place Investment Adrmmstration Limsted.

3. Distribution busmess— the distribution network for the St James’s Place Iife and unit trust products as well as financial products
such as annurties, mortgages and stakeholder pensicus, from third party provaiders

The figures for segment incorne provided to the Board in respect of the distribution business relate to the distribution of the products
of thurd party providers only The figures for segment profit provaded to the Board take account of fees and commissions payable by
the hfe business and unit trust business to the distnbution business

4 QOther —all other Group activities

Separate geographical segmental information 15 not presented since the Gronp does not segment its busmess geographically Most of
1ts customers are based in the UK, as1s management of the assets In particular, the operation based 1 south east Asfa 13 ot yet

material for separate consideration

The income, profit and assets of these segments are set out over the next few pages.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

3. SEGMENT REPORTING contmued
Segment Income
Gross Inflows to Funds Under Management

CONTINUED

Gross inflows to funds under manggement 15 the mcome measure that is momtored on a monthly basis by the chief operating

decismon maker

Year Ended Year Endad
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

£ Millzo & Mlhon

Life business
Uit Trust busmess

6,110.0 51300
3,1300 2,750 0

Total gross inflows

9,240.0 7,880 0

Adjustments to IFRS basis

Lafe business

Exclude hife gross inflows

Insurance premmms recevable

Less. ipsuragce preymum meome ceded to remsurers
Fee mcome (management fees)

Net movement on deferred mcome

Investment retarn (primanly mn umt huked fands)
Unit Trust business

(6,110.0) (5,130.0)

54.7 574
(B26)  (33.5
5719 520.8

384 647

1L,531L.7 29146

(3,130.0) (2,750 0)
193. 170 0

Exclude unit trust gross mflows

Fee 1ncome (deahng profit and management fees) 3.4

Net movement on deferred income 113 10.7
Investment return 0.4 04
Distribution business

Fee and commaission sncome recervable 5133 4293
Other investment return 02 + 03
Other business '

Fee imncome recetvable 52 55
Investment return: on third party holdings in consohdated it trusts 216.8 4259
Other investinent return 6.7 59
Other operating mcome 1.5 12
Tota} adjustments (6,127.1) {3,306 8)
Net income (3,1129) 45732

All Eegment IMCome 18 generated by external custorners and there are no segment income transactions between operzling segments as

measured by gross inflows

Segment Profit
Four separate measures of profit are momtored on a monthly basis by the Board These are European Embedded Value (EEV) end
IFRS (both pre-tax), underlying profit before tax and post-tax cash result. Information as to the definition of these measures can be

fourd on pages 20 and 21 of the Financial Review and withm the Glossary on pages 201 to 203
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EEV Operatmyg Profit
EEV operating profit 1s mi

131

onxtored on a monthly basis by the Board. The components of the EEV operating profit are mcuded m more
Informaticn on the EEV basis within the Annual Report and Accounts on pages 186 to 196 A

detarl m the Supplementary
reconcihation of EEV operatmg profit to EFFRS profit before tax is shown below
EEV Result
Year Bnded Year Ended
3iDecember 31 Deceniber
2015 2014
£ Malliom £'Million
Lafe business \ 467.0 4670
Uit Trust business 2744 1777
Distribution business (21.2) (10.9)
Other business {60.0) (37 4)
EEV operating profit 660.2 596 4
Investment return varance (244) 80.2
Economuc assumphon changes 09 70
EEVY Profit before tax 636.7 6696
Adfustments to IFRS basis
Deduct: amortisation of 2oquired value of in-force (3.2 32
Movement in life valne of mn-force (net of tax) {187. @47
Movement m unit trust value of m-force (net of tax) (176.4)  (104.5)
_ Tax of movement 1n value of in-force (118.2) (136 9)
Profit before tax attributable to sharebolders® returns 151.3 1829
Tax atinbutable to _pohcyholder returns 228 "is
IFRS profit before tax 174.1 294 4
Cash Result
Year Ended Year Ended
_ 31 December 31 Devember
2015 2014
£Milban &'Milian
Lafe bumness 163.0 1462
Unit Trust business 56.4 481
Distnbution business (18.1) 85
COtber busmess {29.8) (207}
Cash result after tax 171.5 1651
IERS adjustments (after tax)
Share option expense (15.0) (114
Deferred acquimtion costs (DAC) (52.7) (58 6)
Deferred income (DIR) 43.9 680
Acquired value of in-force (PVIF) {2.6) {2 6)
Sterling reserves (1.8) (79
IFRS deferred tax adjustraents 58.7 348
IERS profit after tax 202.0 1879
Shareholder tax (50.7) GO
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 151.3 182.9
Policyholder tax 2.8 115
IFRS profit before tax 1744 294 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED
3. SEGMENT REPORTING controued
IFRS Result
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 24
£Miallion &'Million
Life business
— sharehclder 1629 1717
— pohicyholder tax gross up 22.8 ms
Unit Trust busmess 62.6 585
Distribution business {212 (10 3)
QOther business {60.0) 374
IFRS profit before tax 1741 2944
Underlying Profit
‘Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2004
TMnhon £ Malion
Life business 1742 1607
Unit Trust business 70.7 612
Dustribution business (21.2) (10.9)
Other business (60.0) (374
Underlying profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 163.7 1736
Adyjustments
DAC/DIR/PVIF (12.4) 93
Profit before tax attxibutable to shareholders’ returns 1513 182.5
Included within the EEV, IFRS profit before tax, post-tax cash result and undertymg profit are the followang
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Devember 31 December
2015 2014
£MiMion £ Million
Shareholder interest income 10.3 g8
Depreciatron 2.5 19
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Segment Assets
Funds under ement (FUM)

FIIM within the St. James's Place Group, rounded to the nearest £0 01 thon,

133

are momitored on a monthly bass by the Board

I December 31 Decomber
2015 2014
£Milhon & Mlicn
Laife business 43,380.0 35,200.0
Unat Trust business ) 15,2300 12,8000
Total FUM 58,610.0 52,000.0
Exclude third party holdmgs m non-consokidated unit trusts (2,497.1) (2,086.4)
Add balance sheet habilities i umt linked funds 06.3 480.
Adjustments for other balance sheet assets excluded from FUM
DAC 745.0 813 0
PVIF 33.6 36.8
Computer software 43 7.7
Goodwill i0.1 101
Property & equipment 8.0 7.8
Deferred tax assets . 225.9 192 8
Fixed 1ncome securities 83.1 833
Collective investment schernes 5327 sn7
Reinsurance assets 85.0 855
Insurance and investment contract recervables 76.2 635
Other recervables 412.5 292 6
Other recervables ehminated on consolidation (125.4) (94.9)
Cash & cash equivalents 2335 2743
Other adjustments 33.9 57
Total adjustments 667.6 694 5
Total assets 59,277.6 52,6945
4. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Year Ended Yexr Frded
31December 31 Deocmber
5 2014
£Milbon £ Mflbon
Adwice charges 4207 3404
Thurd party fee and commussion income 57.8 94 4
Lafe company mitial margm 30.5 263
Lyfe company management fees 5414 454 5
Ut Trust dealiny profit 16.2 16.0
Untt Trust management fees 147.4 122 4
Unit Trust other income 29.8 16
Movement in deferred mcome 49,7 75 4
Total fee and commission incoxae 1,333.5 1,201 0

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

|

] Rounpuno»r soerq s.saurel 1< 1 r wroday oiBorenig

SOUBIISAON)

=
=
=2
-
I
5
=
u
v
]
2
5
=
=
[
=
~
w

\ UOLIBTLIOIUY JUIN ‘\




134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED
5. INVESTMENT RETURN
Year Ended Year Ended
31December 31 December
05 2014
SMalliom £ Million
Dividend mcome 586.4 5053
Interest mcome 23.2 234
Rental income 60.4 508
Unit hnked funds cross holding mvestment mcome 471.7 4231
Net realised 562.1 3815
Net unreahsed (losses)/gains (164.8)  1,5371
Income attmbutable to thard party holggs mumt trusts 216.8 4259
Total inyestment return 1,755.8  3,3471
For further information on the mvestrent retrn see page 22 of the Finanmal Review
6. EXPENSES
The following items are included within the expenses disclosed i the statement of comprehensive meome.
Year Ended Yexr Fuded
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
EMiihion £'Milljon
Employee costs (see Note 7) 1212 1117
Depreciation 2.5 19
Amortisation of acquired value of mn-force busiess 3.2 32
Amortisation of DAC 100.1 1027
Amortiszhon of computer software 34 28
Deferral of DAC (321  (269)
Partner remuneration 518.5 455 4
Payment under operating leases 10.4 138
Fees payable to the Company’s andrtors and its assocyates for the andit of the Parent Company and
consohdated finanmal statements 0.2 01
Fees payable to the Company’s anditors and sts assocoates for other servaces
— The audst of the Company’s subsidianies (excludmng Ut Trusts) 0.5 03
—~ Audit of the Company’s Unt Trusts 0.3 03
~— Audrtrelated assurance services 0.5 02
7. EMPLOYEE COSTS
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Decetnber 31 December
M5 2014
£Million &'Million
Wages and salaries 92.0 84.2
Social secunty costs 10.3 101
Other pension costs in relation to defined contnbution schemes 6.8 60
Cost of share awards and options 121 114
Total employee costs 121.2 117
1,430 1,225

Average monthly mumber of persons employed by the Group during the year

The above mnformanon includes Directors’ remunerztion. Detals of the Directors’ remuneration, share optzons, pension entrtlements

and 1nterests in shares are disclosed m the Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 99
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8. INCOME TAXES
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£Milhon £ Million
UK corporation tax
— Current year charge 86.0 %962
— Adjustment 1 respect of prior year 07 (7 6)
Overseas taxes
— Current year charge 3.7 69
90.4 955
Deferred tax on unrealised caprtal gams and losses m unit hnked funds (50.0) 408
Dreferred tax or: unrelieved expenses 8.1 84
Deferred tax on recognition and usage of capital Josses arimng 1n the Group
— Capatal losses recognised 1 the year (74.8) (39 5)
— Utihisation in the year 121 59
— Adjustment in respect of prior year (L1 68
Deferred tax charge on other items (10.2) (133
Effect on deferred tax of changs m tax rate {4.5) -
Overseas deferred taxes on losses” 2.1 {19
(1183) 110
Total tax {credit)/charge for the year (27.9) 106 5
Attributable to:
— pohcyholders 228 1115
— sharehclders Go7) Go
(79) 1065

|
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Thcpnorymrad]mtmmtm__mntutmxabmmdndm a charge of £1 0 mmllion m respect of policyholder tax (2014~ £0 6 mlhan charge)

Inarmingatthcpmﬁtbeforctaxambutableto shareholders’ returm, nwneocmrymwﬁmatetbeamlysmofth:toﬁltaxcbarge
between that payable 1n respect of policyholders and that payable by shareholders. Shareholder tax 1s eshmated by making &3 assessment
of the eﬁer:trvemteofﬁxthat;sapphabletntheshmnholdm,withthebalancebemgtmatedaataxmmpectofpohcyhﬂldm

Year Ended Yexr Ended
31 December 31 December

Deferred tax 2015 2014

£'Million £ Million
Balance at 1 January 327.0 314 8
(Credut)/charge through the consolidated staternent of comprehensive ncame (118 3) 10
Anising on acquusthons during the year - 12
Balance at 31 December 208.7 3270

The deferred tax components to which movements above relate are disclosed in Note 13 Deferred Tax Assets and Note 24 Deferred
‘Tax Liabihitres.

Included wathin the deferred tax current year charge 15 a charge of £1 8 mullion (2014- £1 5 mulhon eredit) relating to share-based
payments Details of share-based payments are disclosed in Note 30 Share-based Payments.

The reduction m the corporation tax rate from 20% 1o 19% effective from 1 April 2017 and from 19% to 18% effective from 1 April
2010 have already been mcorporated mto the deferred tax balances as the changes were enacted in 2015, ..
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED
8, INCOME TAXES coptinued
YearEnded  YearEuded
31 December 3] December
Reconaliation of tax (credit)/charge 2015 2014
+Msllion £'Milhon
Profit before tax 174.1 294 4
Taxat 20 25% (2014 21 5%) 353 631
Effects of
Lower rates of corporate income tax 1n overseas subsidianies (1.4) 3 8)
Allowance for poheyholder tax m the calculation of shareholder profit 18.1 875
Recogrition and usage of Company capital losses ansing m the Group (74.8) (39 5)
Dhiferences m accounting and tax bases in relation to employee share schemes (5.4 Q.10
Disallowable expenses 3.0 09
Adjustment in respect of prior year (1.5) 02)
m tax rate (4.5) —
Other adyustments 33 02
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year {27.9) 106 5
Year Buded Year Ended
31 December 31 Decersber
Reconciliation of tax (credit)/charge 2018 2014
£ Millian, £ Mallion
Profit before tax 1741 254 4
Tax stmbufable to pohcyholders’ remrns* {22.8) (111 5)
Profit before tex attributeble to shareholders’ retarn 151.3 1829
Shareholder tax charge at corporate tax rate of 20 25% (2014 21 5%) 30.6 2025% 353 2L5%
Adjustm@nts:
Tax regme differences
Lower rates of corporation tax mn overseas subsidanes {14 (3 6)
- (1.4 (05%) (3 6) 2 0%)
Other
Recogmtion and usage of capatal losses ariong m the Group (74.8) (39 5)
Adpustment iz respect of prior year (1.5) 02
Dnfferences in accounting and tax bases m relanon to employee share schemes &4 21
Disaliowable expenses 3.0 09
Other 3.3 02
(75.9) #2.5%) 07 @22.3%)
Change m tax rate “.5) -
Shareholder tax credit (50.7) @3.5%) (50) @7
Policyholder tax charge 22,8 115
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year ' (27.9) 106 5

*  Taxattriburable to pabicyholder rotarns is equal to the policyholder tax chrarge.

In arriving at the profit before shareholder tax, 1t 18 necessary to estimate the analyss of the total tax charge between that payable i
respect of pobcyholders and that payable by shaveholders Shareholder tax 15 esumated by making an assessment of the effectove rate
of tax that s apphcable to the shareholders, with the balance berng treated as tax in respect of pohoyholders

Asnoted on page 28, 1n the second half of 2015, management completed the review of all hustoric Group compantes, a project that
sommenced a mumber of years agp During this process management :denhified further capital losses whach 1t 15 expected will be

athised over the next ten years, albext the actual rate of utihsation will depend on buaness
nvestment market condrtions Therefore a further deferred tax asset of £74 8 millionhas been established within the IFRS result.
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9. FARNINGS PER SHARE
' Year Foded Year Ended
31December 31 December
2015 2004
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 389 364
Diluted earmings per share 38.5 359
Undeﬂymgbamcmmmgspershm 398 352
Underlying dituted earnngs per share 394 346
The earnmgs per share (EPS) calculations are based on the following figures
YearEnded  YearEnded
31 Pecember 31 December
2015 2014
£Million £Millicn
Earnings
Profit after tax (for both basic and difuted EPS) 202.0 1879
Undexlymg profit after tax (for both basic aud diluted EFS) 206.8 1809
. Milon ‘Miltion
Weighte(i average number of shares
‘Weghted average number of ordinary shares i 1ssue (for basic EPS) 519.1 5140
Adjustments for outstanding share options 5.2 50
‘Weighted average number of ordinary shares (for diketed EPS) 524.3 523 0
10. DIVIDENDS '
The following divnidends bave been paid by the Group:
Year Ended YearEnded  Year Ended Yexr Ended
3 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
Pence per Prace per E'Million £Milon
Share Share
Final drvidend m respect of previous financial year 14.37 9.58 74.8 49.4
Interim dividend i respect of current financial year 10.72 8,93 56.0 46.1
Total dividends 25.09 18.51 130.8 5958
The Directors have recommended a final dindend of 17.24 pence per share (2014 14 37 pence) This amounts to £90 5 mlhon
(2014 £74 6 mlhon) and wall, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be pard on 13 May 2016 to those
shareholders on the register as at 8 April 2016,
11. GOODWILL
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Epillinn £'Million
Balance at 1 January 10.1 -
Addrhons - 101
Accumulated rmparrment loss N _ -
Balance at 31 December 101 10.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

11. GOODWILL conhmued
Goodwall is reviewed at least annually for impasrment or when circumstances or events incicate there may be uncertanty over this

value For the purposes of impairment testing, 100% of the goodwall 15 allocated to the 2ppropriate cash generating umt, beang Lafe

The recoverable amount has been based on a value in use calculation The calculation spphes en actuanally determned appraisal
value, based on the embedded value of the business The key assumptions used 11 the value 1n use caloulation are growth in volume of
new busmess at 15% and profitability 1n line with our other exsting wternational busness More mformation regarding the
assumpfions vsed 1 the embedded value of the busmess can be found on pages 191 and 192.

It1s considered that any reasonably possible levels of change in the key assumptions would not result i ympairment of the goodwall.

12. INTANGIBLE ASSEYS

Computer
software
& ather
Life Laife Uhut Trust Acquired specfic
bush ‘bosi busk value of software
—Imnsurance —investmaent ~investment m-force develop~
DaC DAQ DAC  Total DA busmess ‘ments Total
£Milhen £'Mulhion £Millon £vhilion £'Mallion £Million £Mllcn
Cost
At 1 January 2014 1072 1,146 0 2990 1,552.2 73.4 118 1,6374
Addmons 05 i72 9.2 269 — 18 287
At 3] December 2014 1077 1,163 2 308.2 1,579 1 734 136 11,6661
At 1 January 2015 107.7  1,163.2 308.2 1,579.1 73.4 13.6 1,666.1
Additions 0.5 22.6 9.0 321 - - 321
At 31 December 2015 108.2  1,185.8 317.2 1,611.2 73.4 13.6 1,698.2
Accumualated amortisation
At 1 Jauwary 2014 1087 4501 1076 6634 334 31 €829
Charge for the year 08 80 4 215 1027 32 28 1087
At 31 December 2014 106.5 5305 1291 766 1 366 54 808 6
At Jannary 2015 106.5 530.5 129.1 766.1 36.6 59 $08.6
Charge for the year 2.6 78.1 214 100.1 3.2 3.4 106.7
At 31 December 2015 107.1 608.6 150.5 866.2 39.8 9.3 915.3
Carrying value
At 31 December 2014 i2 632.7 179.1 8130 36.8 77 8575
At 31 December 2015 1.1 5772 166.7 745.0 33.6 4.3 7825
Current 105.5
Non-ctrrrent 6774
782.9
Qutstanding amortisation period
At 31 December 2014 Gyears Idyears 14 years 11 years 4 years

At 31 December 2015 6years 14years 14 years 10 years 4 years

Amortisation of deferred acquishion costs 15 charged within the fees, commssion and other acquusttion costs Itne 1n the staternent of
omprehensive ncome The amortsation of the acquired value of n-force business 13 charged within other operating expenses with
he amortisation of computer software and customer hst charged within admimstration expenses Amortisahon profiles are

eassessed annually
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13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

31 December 31 December

2035 2014

£Milhen £ Mallon

Lafe busmess — unrebeved expenses 571 653
Life business ~ defeyred income 4.4 184
Unit Trust business — deferred income 40.8 461
Capital losses available for future relief 1131 507
Employee share scheme costs 5.8 76
Future capntal allowances 30 25
Other 1.7 22
Total deferred tax assets 2259 152 8
Current 40.8 411
Non-current 185.1 1817
- 2259 192 8

Appropriate mvestment Income, gains or profits are expected to arise agamst winich the tax assets can be utilised. In particular-

+ Puture mvestment income over the next sx years from the exasting assets will be sufficent to utilise the unreheved expenses

«  Caputal gans crystalhng 1o the unt hnked funds will utihse the captal losses Tt1s anticipated that the losses wall be utilised:
within approximately ten years In the three years from 2013 to 2015 losses with a tax value of £29.0 mulhon have been utthsed,
indicating an average of approximately £10 0 milion per annum, which 1s consmstent with the prechcted usage.

+ Tux assets m relation to deferred mcame will be unhsed over the next 14 years as the underlymg income 15 recogrused

At the reporting date there were unrecognised deferred tax assets of £1 4 million (2014 £0 2 milhen) in respect of losses 1n
companies where appropriate profits are not considered probable m the forecast perzod. These losses primanly relate to our Asia
based busmesses and can be carried forward mndefinstely

During the year £12 1 malhion (2014 £167 mlhon) of deferred tax assets relating to capital losses have been utihsed and a further”
£74 8 milbon (2014: £35.5 mlhon) have been recogmsed It 1s expected that these losses wall be utilised over the next ten years,
albest the actual rate of utithsation wall depend on business growth and external factors, particularly investment market conditions.
The rate of uhlisation has been tested for sensitrvity to experzence and 1t is reslient to a range of reasonably forseeable scenarios

The reductians in the corporation tax rate from 20% to 15% effectrve from 1 April 2017 and from 19% to 18% effective from 1 Apral
3020 have been incorporated into the deferred tax balances as the changes were enacted m 2015

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

31 December 31 December
2015 2004

EMillion &' Milhon
1,031.4 7327

Balance at 1 Janmary

Addmops 2479 2542
Caprtalised expenditure on exsting properties 59 48
Disposals (14.3) “4e61)
Changesm farr value 4.0 858
Balance at 31 December 1,344.9 1,0314

Imvestment property 15 held within unit linked funds and 1s conmdered current.

Investment property 1s valued monthly by external chartered surveyors i accordance with the gidance issued by The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors The investment property valuation has been prepared using the ‘market approach’ valuation
techmque — using prices and other relevant mformation generated by market transachons mvolving dentical or cormparable

(2.e. surmlar) essets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

\
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY continued

The rental income and direct operating expenses recogmised m the statement of comprehenave income 1n respect of investmerrt

propertes are set out below All expenses relate to property generating rental income

Year Ended Year Ended

31 Decemmber 31 December

L 2015 2014

LMithen & Million

Rental income 60.4 508
5.8 62

Direct operating expenses

At the year end contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop mvestment property amounted to £9.0 milhon (2014, £2 2

milbion) and to dispose of investment property amounted to £ul (2014: £ml)

15, ASSETS HELD TO COVER LINKED LIABILITIES AND THIRD PARTY HOLDINGS IN UNIT TRUSTS
Inciuded withir the balance sheet are the followmg assets apd Liabilities which represent the net assets held teo cover lnked labihties
and those artrsbutable to third party holdungs n untt trusts (UTMI) The dufference between these assets and habihties and these

shown in the consohdated balance sheet represents assets and habihizes held outside the unit hnked fands and the UTMI

31 December 31 December
205 2014
R £Milhon &'MaThon
Assets
Investment property 1,344.9  1,0314
Investments
— Eqmties 37,960.8 34,7349
— Fixed income securties 8,850.9 6,7555
— Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemmes 2,7365 24401
— Currency forwards 33.8 383
— Interestrate swaps 13.5 103
— Collatemised mortgage obhiganons 2387 534
~ Fixed meome eptions - 124
— Index options 203 182
~ Cantracts for differences - 10.7 277
— Equuty rate swaps 16.1 -
- Foreygn currency options 22.8 —
— Total return swaps 6.6 -
—~ Other deravatrves 1.6 61
Other recervables 4784 3120
Other recervables elminated on conschdation 1255 94 8
Cash & cash equivaleats 5,091.6 4,8651
Totalassets 56,953.1 50,4002
Liabilities
Fnancal habilties
— Carrency forwards 168.6 283
— Interest rate swaps 5.9 51
— Faxed mcome options 6.1 97
— Index options 3.6 8.1
- Contracts for differences 4.3 189
— Equuty rate swaps 5.8 -
-~ Foreagn currency options 196 -
— Total return swaps 0z -
- Other denvatives , 7.0 9,2
Other payables 311.0 1837
Dther payables eliminated on consolidatzon 274.2 217.9
lotal liabilities 806.3 4809
Jet assets held to cover hnked hiabilities and third party holdings in unit trusts 56,1468 499183

Al
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Net assets held to cover hnked habihties and third party holdings in umt trusts are tonadered to have a matunty of up to one year
since they are actively traded and managed to facalxtate 1mmediate settlement

See accounting palicy (2) for further mformation on current and non-current disclosure

3{December 31 December
2015 2014

£ Milliem £'Million
43,159.8 38,8512

] TWOQEPUNOY 90EL] 8sanxef 18 l r 1rodan ordarenic

SOUBLIDACN

Investment cofrtracts

Net asset value attributable to unt holders 12,556.4 10,6178
Insurance contract babilites 376.5 3843
Consolidation adjustments 541 66.0
Net assets held to cover linked Lablities and third party holdings in unit trusts 56,1468 49,9193

16. OTHER RECEIVABLES .
31December 31 Deccmber
2015 2004
£Milhon £Millien
St. Jarnes’s Place Partnership loans 178.7 158.9
Prepaymests 114.2 62.5
Advanced Partner remuneration 275 251
Unit hnked funds and U'TMI (including outstanding secunty sales) 4784 3120
Umnt Trust dealing recesvables 35.5 32
Renewal income 26.8 291
Miscellaneous 29.5 138
Total other receivables 891.0 §04.6
Current 650.4 4537
Non-current 240.6 150.9
891.0 - 604.6

The fur value of loans and receivables included 1n other recervables 13 not matenally different from amortised cost St. James's Flace

Partnership loans are interest bearing (lnked to Bank of England base rate plus a margin), repayable on demand and secured agamst
the future renewal income streams of that Partner The St James'’s Place Partnership loans are shown net of & £3 0 mullion provision

(2014 £2.9 mlhon) During the year £1 2 milhon of the provision was utibsed (2014 £1 4 mithon utthsed) whilst new previsons
and adjustments to exshing provimons mcreased the total by £1 3 mlhon (2014 £0.5 mullion decrease)

Included within prepayments are operational readiness costs relating to the new admumstration platform bewng developed by our key

outsourced back-office administrahon provider Management have assessed the recoverabihity of this prepayment and 1t 1s believed
that any reasonably possible change 1n the assumphons applied within ths assessment would have no umpact on the carrying value of

the asset

Movement in renewal income
31 December 31 December

|
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2015 2014
£Malhion &'Milhan
At ] January 291 16 6
Reclagnfication® - 59
Addmions 14 95
Revaluation , (3.7) @9
Total renewal Income 26.8 291
*  Theprior year rechssification related to purchaced 5)P Partner ] fncome previcosly disclosed within miseellancons
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

16, OTHER RECEIVABLES contimued
The key assumptions used for the assessment of the fair value of the renewal 1ncome are as follows.

31 December 31 Decemnber

2015 2014

Lapse rate— S]P Partner renewal income®* 6%4-10% 6%-10%
Lapse rate — Non §]P renewal income#** 9%-32% 14%—-21%
5.0% 50%

Discount rute

** Fymre income streams age projected nmakmg tise of persistency assumptons derived from the Group's experienee of the busitess or, where insufficient data exdsts, from external indostry

cperit These p are revirered on an annm] basis,

These assumphions have been used for the analysis of each busimess combmetion dassfied withw renewal sncome.

17. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

31December 31 December

2018 2014

£Millron & Milhon

Cash at bank 233.5 2735

Cash beld by third parties — 0.8

Cash & cash equivalents held outside umt hnked and unit trust fupds 233.5 274.3

Balances held within nmit hnked and vrot trust funds X 5,091.6 48651

Total cash & cash equavalents 5,325.1 51394
All cash & cash equivalents are considered current

L m e aee -

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLCANMNUALREPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015




143

18. INSURANCE RISK .
Insurance rsk anses from ainherent uncertainties as to the oceurrence, amount and tming of msurance hatyimies The Group assumes

insurance rsk by 1ssuing insurance contracts under which the Group agrees to compensate the chent (or other beneficary) if a
spearfied future event (the insured event) occurs The Group msures mortality and morbidity risks but has no longewity risk as we
have never wrrtten any annwity business. The Group has a medm appetite for insurance rsk, only actively pursuing 1t where

financally beneficial, or in support of strategic objectzves.

RISK DESCRIPTION MANAGEMENT

Underwriing | Failure o price eppropristely | The Group ceased writmg new protection business in April 2011 Expenence1s
for ansk, or the impactof | monrtored regularly For most bumness the premum or deduchon rates can be

antr-selection. re-set. The Group has fully remsnred the UK msurance risk.
Epidenuc/ An unasually large number | Protecton is provided through reinsnrance. The Group has fully remsured the
disaster of claims ansing from a UX insurznce risk.
smgle cident or event.
Expense Adrmmstration costs exceed | Admimistration 1s cutsourced and a tariff of costs 1s agreed. The contract 1s
expense allowance monitored regularly to rationahse costs incurred. Tuternal overhead expenses axe
monrtored and dosely managed
Retention Loss of future profit due to | Retention of insurance contracts 1 closely monitored and unexpected experience
more chexits than anticipated |15 imvestigated Retention expenience has continued in Ime with assumptions
withdrawing thewr funds
19, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2015 2014
£Million &'MilHon
Balance at 1 January 4744 466 4
Movement 1o unit lmked habilihes (7.8) {107y
Movement m non-unit Imked habilities
—New busmess 0.2 02
— Esasting business 1.3) 71
— Other assumption changes 1.2) 69
— Experience variance (0.8) 49
Total movement 1n non-unit hinked kabilrhes 3.1 18.7
Balance at 31 December 463.5 4744
Unit hoked 376.5 3843
Non-unit hnked 87.0 201
463.5 44 4
I : 102.5 1067
Non-current 361.0 3677
463.5 414 4

Untt hinked Labslities move as a function of net cask flows mto policyholder funds and undertying investment performance of those funds

See accounting pohcy (z) for further information on the current and pon-current disclosure
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

19, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES contiued
Assumptions Used in the Calculation of Liabilities
The prmapal assumptons used in the caleulation of the habilities are

Assunsption Description
‘The valuation interest rate 13 caloulated by veference to the long term gt yaeld at 31 December

Interest rate
2015 and the specafic gilts backing the habilines The speafic rates wsed are between 1 7% and
2 2% depending on the tax regume (1 6% and 2 1% at 31 December 2014)

Mortality Mortality 1s based on Company expenence and 15 set at 72% of the TM/F32 tables with an
additonal leadmg for snokers There bas been no change since 20086

Morbidsty Morbidity 15 based on Company experience There has been no change during 2015 Sample

~ Critical (lness : annual rates per £ for a male non-smoker are. Rate
Age 2015 2014
25 , 0.000760 0.000760
35 0.001334 0.001334
45 0.003189 0.003189

Morbrdity Morbidity »s based on Company expenence There bas been no change durmg 2015. Sample

— Permaenent Health Insurance  annual rates per £ meome benefitp 2 for a male non-smoker are Rate
Age 2018 2014
25 0.00548 000548
35 0.01447  0.01447
e 0.03138 003138

Expenses Contract habihities are calculated allowing for the actual costs of admimsiration of the business.
The assumption has been amended to allow for chenges to the underlying asdrmimistranion costs.

Annual Cost

Product 2015 2014 .
Protection busness £36.01  £3498

Permistency Allowence is made for a prudent level of lapses within the caloulation of the liabilities The rates
have not changed1n 2015 Sample anunal Yapse rates are Lapses l
2034 & 2015 Yeard Year5  Yearid

Protection bustness T% 9% 8%

YARCCIT O AT BT M AWRMTAT T TOMDT A WT ACCAT AT AN C
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Sensitivity Analysis
The table below sets out the sensitivity of the profit an insurance business and net assets to changes mn key assumptions The levels of
sensitvity tested are consistent with those proposed in the EEV principles and reflect reasonsbly posmible levels of change m the
assumptions. The analysss reflects the change in the variable/assumption shown whnle all other vartables/assumptions ere left
tnchanged In practice variables/assaumptions may change at the same tame, as some may be correlated (for example, an increase m
imterest rates may also result 1n an increase n expenses 1f the increase reflects mgher mflation) It should also be noted that in some
Instances sensitivities are non-linear The sensitvity % has been applied to proportion the assumption & g. apphcation of a 10%
senstvity to a withdrawal assumption of 8% wall reduce 1t to 72%
Changein Chmngein
profit/(loss)  profit/fles) Changem  Clamgein

Chapgem  beforotax bedire tax net assets netassety

Senmtrvity analysis assnmphtion 2015 2014 2015 2014
% £Million £'Mallion £Milhion &"Million

Withdrawal rates -10% (1.0) an  ©9)  ©9
ense assuInptions -10% 0.3 03 03 03
Mortahty/morbidity -5% 0.0 00 0.0 0o

A change m nterest rates wall have no material ipact on insurance profit or net assets.

20. REINSURANCE ASSETS

Remsurers’ share of insurance contract kabilites

— Long term insurance contract hability 76.4 766
— Clauns outstanding 8.6 B9
Reinsurance assets 85.0 855
Current 24.2 245
Non-current 60.8 610
85.0 855

A reconaliation of the movement m the net remsurance balance 15 set out below
2015 2014
£'Malion £'Million
Rensurance assets at 1 Janoary 85.5 64.2
Remnsurance companent of net change m claims provision (0.3) 52
Reinsurance component of change m insurance habilrhes (0.2) 161
Reinsurance assets at 31 December : B5.0 855

The overall :impact of remsurance on the profit for the year was a net charge of £4 6 milhon (2014 credst of £11.8 mlhon)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

1

CONTINUED
21. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

. Total

provisions

EMillion

At 1 January 2015 11.4
Utihsed during the year 89
Additional provimons 129
At 31 December 2015 15.4
Current 8.5
Non-current - 6.9
154

Total provisions relste to the cost of redress for coraplamnts The provision 18 based on estimates of the total number of conplaints
expected to be upheld, the esttmated cost of redress and the expected tining of settlement.

As more fully set out m the summary of principal risks and uncertainties o pages 43 to 47, the Group could m the course of its
business be subject to legal proceedings and/or regulatory activity Should such an event arise, the Board would consider their best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation and, where appropriate and material, establish a provision Whale there czn

be no assurances that acrtumstznces won't change, based upon mformanon currently avalable to them, the Directors do not beheve
theye 15 any possble actvaty or event that could have a matenal adverse effect on the Group's financal postion.

Dunng the normal course of business, the Gronp may from time to fime provide guarantees to Partners, chents or other third
partes. However, based upon the mformation currently available to them, the Directors do not believe there are any guarantees
which would have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position, and so the far value of any guarantees has been assessed

as £ml (2014 £ml)

22. INVESTMENT CONTRACT BENEFITS . i
2015 2014

FMillaon £"Millfons
' 38,851.2 33,7175

Balance gt 1 January

Deposts 6,039.1 5,0228

Withdrawals (2,704.3) (2,176 8)
Investment contract benefits (principally representing investinent expense/mcome) 1,762.5 3,234 4

Less. mvestment contract benefits stmbutable to fund deduchons (571.9) (5208)
Less- unvestment contract benefits attmbutable to third party holdmgs in unit trusts (216.8)  {#259)

Balance at 31 December N 43,159.8 38,851.2
3,237.0 2,913 8

Current
Non-current 39,922.8 35,9374
43,159.8 38,8512

See accounting pohcy (2) for further information on the current and non-current disclosure
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23, BORROWINGS

I December 31 December
2015 2014
£Milhon £'Million

Bank borrowings 132.0 84.3
Lozn notes 49.8 -
Total borrowings 181.8 843
Current 1.0 297
Non-carrent 180.8 546
181.8 843

Durng the year a new £250 mllion revalving credst facality (repayable over five years with a variable interest rate) was entered mnto

with a group of UK banks The Group hes mitially drawn £125 rmllion under the fully-committed faclity.

In addition, during the year, the Group entered into 2 US Dollar §160 million prrvate shelf facility, The Group authonsed the 1ssue of
£50 mulkion of loan notes during the year mn relation to the aforementioned facality The notes were 1ssued m Sterhng, elmnating any

Group currency rsk. The notes are repayable over ten years with a vaniable interest rate

The Group also guarantees £77 2 mllion (2014 £93 9 mulhon) of dwect loans from Bank of Scotland, £44 8 milhon

(2014 £20 1 mulhon) of direct loans from Metro Bank plc and £19 4 milhion (2014 £ml) of direct loans from Santander ple to
members of the St. James’s Place Partnership drawn under total faliaes of £90 6 rmllion (2014~ £120.0 mullion), £76.0 malhon.
(2014 £40 0 mullion) and £25.0 malhon (2014 £nil), respectively In the event of default of amy individual Partner loan, the Group
guarantees to repay the outstanding balance of that Ioan These Partners’ loans are secured agamst the future renewal mncome streams

of that Partner
The farr value of the outstanding bank loans and guarantees are not matenally different from amortised cost.

24. DEFERRED TAX LYABILITIES
31 December 31 December

2615 2014
£Million £'Millien

On deferred acqusihon costs
— Lafe and pensions buaness 86.8 1150
— Untt trust buganess 310 35.8
On acquired value of 1n-force business 6.2 74
On renewal income 3.5 41
In yespect of umt lmked funds 364.8 3547
Other 2.3 28
Total deferred tax liabilities 434.6 515.8
Current 69.4 765
Non-carrent 385.2 443.3

434.6 5198

The deferred tax lisbibty on deferred acqusition costs 13 expected to crystallise over approxamately 14 years, on acquired value of
1 force busmess over ten years and on renewsal income over spproxamately 20 years The majority of the deferred tax on unreahsed

gmmmmcpectedtocrysmﬂmewermcyears. ,

The reductions 1 the corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% effecuve from 1 April 2017 and from 19% to 18% effectve from
1 Aprl 2620 have been meorporated mto the deferred tax balances as the changes were enacted in 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

25. DEFERRED INCOME
31 December 31 December
2015 20t4
£Million £'Million
Lafe bugmess 194.2 2326
Unit Trust business 219.3 2306
Total deferred income 413.5 463.2
c 930 1042
Noo-current o 320.5 3550
413.5 463 2

26. OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 December
2015 2004
£Million & Milbon
Accrals 1124 933
Unit Trust dealng payable 88.1 885
Unit Iinked funds and UTMI (ncluding outstanding security purchases) 311.0 1837
Mascellaneous 149.3 1342
Total othex payables 660.8 4997
Current 605.8 467.3
Non-current 55.0 324
660.8 4957

Included withm miscellaneous 13 a Contract Payment of £48 3 milhon (2014 £27 4 rmlhon) which 18 non-mterest bearing and
Tepayable on a straight-line bass over the ife of a 12 year service agreement commencng in 2017

27. AINANCIAL RISK

Risk Management Objectives and Risk Policres
The Group seeks to manage rask through the operation of unit hmked business whereby the policyholder bears the financal nsk. In

addxton, shareholder assets are mvested in hquid mvestments with & strong credit ranng,

Under IFRS 7, the Group is requared to analyse their exposure to the following risks-
* Credutrsk

+  Lagudity risk

+ Market sk

= Currencynsk

- 1
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Credit risk 15 the risk of loss due to a debtar’s non-payment of a loan or other bne of credat Credit rask also arses frorn holdings
of cash and cash equivalents, deposits and formal loans with banks and financal institutions The Group has adopted a risk averse
approach to such nisk and has a stated pohcy of not actrvely purswing or accepting credit nisk except when necessary to support.
other chjectrves.

MANAGEMENT

Shareholder funds are predominantly imvested 10 AAA rated unthsed money
market funds end deposits with approved banks Maxroum counterparty hmats

DESCRIPTION

Shareholders’ Loss of assets

assets
are set for each Company withan the Group and aggregate hmrts are also setata
Group level
Investent Loss of value of assets . These Labilities are matched by fixed mnterest securthes with mimmum AAA
matching of credut ratings or UK Government Gilts, maxmum cownterparty lnmats for such
pon-lnked holdings are agam set for each Company within the Group and at an aggregate
babilities Group level

Remsurance Falure of counterparty or Credit ratings ofpoteuﬁalrmnsum-smustmeetore.meed munmum specafied
counterparty unable to meet levels. Consideration 1s also grven to nize, nisk concentrations/exposures and
hablrtes ownership i the selection of remnsurers. The Group also seeks to diversmfy its
remsurance credit rask through the vse of a spread of remsurers

Partner loans Inability of Partners to repay |Loans and advances are managed i hne wath the Group's secured lending pohcy
and advances loans or advances from Loans are secured on the future renewal mcome stream expected from a

St. James's Place Partner’s portfoho 2nd Joan advances vary m relatton to the projected future
income of the relevant Partner. Outstanding balances are regularly reviewed and
assessed on a conservatyve bass Support is provided to belp Partners manage
thexr business appropriately Appropnate provision is made where there is
objective evidence of snpayrment

Liquidity risk is the rask that the Group, although solvent, esther does not have avarlable sufficient financal resources to enable 1t
to meet its obligations as they fall due, or can secure such resources only at excessive cost The Group 18 averse to hquidity rsk and
seeks to mmmse this risk by not actively purswing it except where necessary to support other objectives

RISK DESCRIPTION MANAGEMENT
Cash or expense | A sgmficant cash or expense The majonty of free assets ave mvested 1 cash or cash equivalents and the cash

requrement needs to be met posttion and forecast are momtored on a moathly basis. Also, the Group
at short notice. mamtmnsamargmofﬁ'eeasssrsmmofthemmmumreqmredsolvency
caprtal within 1ts regulated entines.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. FINANCIAL RISK continued
Market risk is the mmpact 2 fall 1n the value of equity or other asset markets may have on the business The Group adopts ansk

averse approach to market rask, with a stated solvency pohey of not actively pursmng or accepting market risk except where necessary
to support other objectives, However, the Group accepts the risk that the fall in equuty or other asset markets will reduce the Jevel of

annua]l management charge moome derived from pohcyholder assets and the risk of lower future profits

The table below summarases the main market risks that the business1s exposed to and the methods by winch the Gronp seeks to
mittgate them

DESCRIPTION MANAGEMENT

Chent halilses | Asaresult ofa reductionin | This risk 15 substannally mutipated by the Group's strategic focus on unrt-lnked
equrty values, the Group may | business, by not providing guaraniees to chents on policy values and by the

be unable to meet chent matchng of assets and habilities.

hahilities

Tax In adverse market conditions, | The tax posiion 15 monitored closely, i particular the size and sources of

when the Group 1sreabsing | relevant mncome streams
nvestment Josses rather than
gans, the working of the I-E
tax regime can lead to
short-term capatal
mefficencies, including the
defexral of the cash benefit
ansing from tax rehief on

expenses

Loss of future profit on Retention of mvestment contracts 1§ closely monrtored and unexpected
1mvestment contracts due to | expenence vanances are mvestigated. Retention has remained consistently strong
more chents than anticrpated | throughout 2015, desprte the challenmng economic enviranment and volatihity,
withdrawing their funds, and fund surrender rates have remained low at c.5%
particularly as a result of
poor mvestment
performance.

Retention

New business | Poor performance in the The benefits to chents of longer term equuty investment as part of a diversified
fihancial markets in absolute | portfolic of assets 15 fimdamental to our philosophy Advice and marketing
terms, 2nd relative to become even more ynportant when market values fall, and greater attention s
wflation, Jeads to easting | requred to support and give confidence to existing and futuve chests in such
and future chients rejecting | circumstances. This 13 taken account of by the Group m 1ts actrvities

anvestment 1n longer term
assets

Currency Risk
The Group 15 not subject to any mgmficant currency risk since all materzal shareholder financal assets and financial habihties are

denomnated 1 Sterlimg
!
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Categories of Finanaal Assets and Financial Liabilities
values of the Snancial assets and financial habilmes held 1n the Group's balance sheet are summarised in
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The categories and carrying
the table below
Financial Financal
nssersat habaliticsat Financial
Bair valne Eyir valne labilities
through, through measaredat
profitand Available  Loansand profitand  amortised
31 December 2015 losst forsale recefvables loss® cost Total
£Milion  EMillion  £Milion  £Milbon  £Miion  £Milhicn
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment properhes 1,344.9 1,344.9
Equities 37,960.8 37,960.8
Fixed mcome securies 8,934.0 8,934.0
Investment in Collective Investrent Schemes 3,269.6 3,269.6
Denvative financal istruments 364.1 364.1
Insurance & investment contract recesvables 76.2 76.2
Other recervables™
— 5t. James's Place Partnershap loans 178.7 178.7
— Renewal moome 26.8 26.8
— Other 543.4 5434
Total other receivables 26.8 722.1 7489
Cash & cash eqmvalr_nts 5,091.6 2335 5,325.1
Total financial assets and mvestment properties 56,965.0 26.8 1,031.8 58,023.6
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 43,159.8 43,159.8
Borrowings 181.8 181.8
Dervative financal instruments 2211 221.1
Insurance & mvestment contract payables 459 45.9
Other payables 660.8 660.8
Net asset vatue attributable to unit holders 12,556.4 12,556.4
Total financal Babilities 55,937.3 888.5 56,825.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED \
27. FINANCIAL RISK continued
Finametal Financnl
RIS AL inbibtics st Financhal
&ir valne hirvahue Habilities
through though  measared st
prafit and Avaflable Loans and prabt and amortised
31 December 2014 loss™ frsale  yectfvables Toxs™ cost Total

£Milfon  £Milhon  &Milion  £Millon  £MiBon  £Milhen
Financial Assets and Investment Properties

Investment properties 1,0314 1,031 4
Equsties 34,734 5 34,734 9
Fixed income securrtes 6,838 8 6,838 8
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 2,9617 2,9617
Derrvatve finaneal instroments 166 4 166 4
Insurance & mvestment contract repervables £3.5 635
Other receivables®

—St. James’s Place Partnership loans 158.9 158 9
—Renewal mncome 29.1 291
— Other 3250 3290
Total other receivables 291 4879 5170
Cash & cash eqmva]enm 4,865 1 2743 5,1394
Total financial assets and investment properties 50,598 3 291 8257 . 51,4531
Financial Liabilities

Investment contract benefits 38,851 2 38,851 2
Borrowings 84.3 843
Dermvative financial instruments 753 793
Insurance & investinent contract payables 304 504
Other payables 4597 4997
Net asset value atimbutable to wast holders 10,6178 10,617 8
Total financial liabilities 49,548 3 6344 50,1827

(1) Al nencis] sssess and lisbilities at fubrrabue throngh profle ar loas xre designated as sach upon Inttfa] recopnitian.
{2) Other ke 1 assets exalude prepay and d ! brtm other bl

The carrying value of the umt hnked investment contract hiabrhties may differ from the amount contractnally required to pay at
maturity. Maturity values of the financial hisbthtes vary with future policybolder mvestment and withdrawals as well as investment
return, coupled with the impact of caprtal losses in the funds The contractual value required to be paid to pohcyholders as at

31 December 2015 would be £9 6 miilhon lower than the mmvestment contract benefits stated above

T YAMBERIE DY A/ DY /1 4 ATATITAY DTOATT A RN A AT IRIEC A0
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Income, Expense, Gains and Losses Arising from Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The mcome, expense, gans and losses anang from Financial assets and financial habilities aye summansed 1n the table below

Financal Financal
assets at hakglities at Finanrial
Earr value farr value Habilsties
through throngh measured at
profitand Availahle Losnsand  profitand  amortised
Year Ended 31 December 2015 lnss® forsale reoeivables Ioss® st Total

£Malhon £Million EMillzon £Million £Malbon £Milben

Financial Assets and Investment Properties

Investment properties 4.0 74.0
Unit hnked assets 1,530.4 1,530.4
Fixed meome securrties (1) (LT
Investment 1 Collective Investment Schemnes 3.0 3.0
Other recervables
— St. James’s Place Partnershop loans ’ 59 59
— Renewal mcome (37) @G.7
Total other receavables 37 5.9 2.2
Cash & cash equivalents® ¢ 1.4 1.4
Total financial assets and investment properties 1,606.3 37 73 1,609.9
Financial Liabilities®
Investment cortract benefits ¢ 9739 9739
Berrowings 49 “«4
Other payables {0.7) 0.
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 216.8 216.8
Total financial liabilities 1,190.7 (5.1) 1,185.6
Financtal Firanchl
asicty ot Yabflities s Financia]
firvalos Sairvale Labilities
throngh toongh  measaredat
jrobtand Avallahle Loans and profitand amtrtised
Year Ended 31 December 2034 losy ™ for ale receivables loss™ cost Total

‘ l uonEpuUnos ey §eeurel 11¢ [ I 110dsy ofareng

OURILIZADR)

£'Mallicn £'Milhon &£"Million £"'Millicn £ Million £"Millon
Financial Assets and Investment Properties

Investment properties 858 B5 8
UInat hinked assets 33321 3,3321
Fixed income securities s 60 60
Investment 1 Collective [nvestment Schemes 27 27
Other recervables

— 5t James’s Place Partnerslup loans 60 60
~— Renewal income 29 29
Total other recervables 29 6.0 31
Cash & cash eqmvalents® 12 - 12
Total financial assets and investment properties 34266 (2.9) 72 3,4305
Financial Liabilities®

Investment contract benefits 2,2876 2,2876
Borrowings (38 38
Other payables

Net asset value attributable to umit holders 425 & 4359
Total financial Babilities 2,135 38) 2,097

() All Bratsctal assets and labilitice at fair valne throngh prefie or Joss are designated ns #uch wpan {nithi recognition.
(03] Themk;nkyn[&emm&mush&ﬂsheqﬂvﬂmhhindnﬂed‘ﬁlhinnnﬂhnbdmu
3 Nm:af&:chngehr]::ﬁirvﬂucofﬁnandallhhhdesufﬁrvﬂudnoﬂghpmﬁ:nrhainmﬂﬂublewdungumtbdraedltﬂsh
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. FINANCIAL RISK continued

Fair Value Estimation
Financual assets and Jiabilries, whach are held at fair value 1n the financial statements, are requared to have disclosed ther farr value

measurements by level of the following far value measurement
* Quoted prices (unadjusted) 1n actrve markets for :dentical assets or habilrties (Level 1)
* Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or labiity, erther directly (that s, as

prices) or mdirectly (that s, dersved from prices) (Level 2)
* Tnputs for the asset or Lability that are not based on cbservable market data (that 15, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and habilihes measured at farr value

Total
31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
£7Mallion £Miflkon £Milhon £Milhon
Financial assets and mvestment properties
Investment property 1,3449  1,3445
Equties 37,960.8 37,960.8
Fixed income securrties 8,934.0 8,934.0
Investment m Collective Investment Schemes 3,266.9 2.7  3,269.6
Dermvative financal mstruments . 364.1 364.1 ‘
Other recervables - 26.8 26.8
Cash & cash equivalents 5,091.6 5,091.6
Total financal assets and investment properties 46,319.3 9,298.1 13744 56,9918
Financial liabihties -
Investment contract benefits 43,159.8 43,159.8
Demivative financal instruments 221.1 2211
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 12,5564 12,556.4
Total financial Habilities 12,556.4 43,3809 55,937.3
Total
31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level3 balanes
£'Miltion £Mihon . £'Milllon £vhllien
Financial assets and investinent properties
Investment property 1,0314 1,034
Equrhes 34,7349 34,734 9
Fixed income securities 6,8388 6,838 8 '
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 2,931 8 299 29617
Denvative financial instruments 166 4 1664
Other receivables 291 291
Cash & cash equrvalents 4,865.1 4,865 1
Total financial assets and investment properties 425318 70052 1,0904 50,6274
Financial liabilities _
Investment contract benefits 38,851 2 38,851.2
Denvaive firancial mstruments 7913 79.3
Net asset value attributable o umt holders 10,617.8 10,617.8
Total financial Yabilities 10,6178 38,9305 49,548 3
1
P

The far vahue of financal mstruments treded m active markets 1s based on quoted bid prices at the reporting date, as described m the
accounting policy (m) These imnstruments are included m Level 1 Instrumients included in Level 1 coraprise primarily histed equity

nstruments

—— e -

B
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P

The Group closely monitors the valuation of assets 1 markets that have become less hqmd Datermining whether a market s active
requires the exerase of mdgement and1s d ined besed upon the facts and arcumstances of the market for the mstrument beang
measured Where 1t 15 determined that there 15 no active market, far value is established nong a valuation technique The techmques

apphed mcorporate relevant mformation avalable and reflect appropriate ad]usm:'mts for creflit and biqudity risks. These valuation
techniques maxumse the use of observable market data where 1t 18 avmlable and rely as hittle as possible on. entity specific estimates.
The relative werghtmgs given to differing sources of mformation and the determamanon of non-observeble nputs to valuston models

can require the exercise of signuficant judgement

If all sgmficant mputs required to far value an mstrument are observable, the instrument 15 included 1o Level 2 1 one or more of the
mgnificant 1nputs 18 not based on observable market data, the instrument 1s included 1 Level 3

Note that all of the resulting fair velue estmates are included 1n Level 2, except for certam equities and investments mm Collectve
Investment Schemes (CIS) and mvesrment properties as detalled below )

Speafic valuation techmques used to valus Level 2 fnancral assets and habilihes indlude
* The use of observable prices for 1dentical crrent erm’s length transactions.

Speaific valuation techmques used to value Level 3 financial assets and habilrties mclude ,

= The use of unobservable inputs, such as expected rental values and equivalent yields;
*  Other techmques, such as discounted cash flow and historic lapse rates, are used to determme faur value for the remaing

financal instruments

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year

Transfers mto and out of Level 3 Portfolios
Transfers out of Level 3 portfobos arse when mputs that could have a sgmficant impact on the mnstrument’s valuztion become market

observable, conversely, transfers into the portfolios arise when conmstent sources of data cease tb be avalable.

‘Fransfers 1n of certain equities and investments m Collective Investment Schemes (CIS) ocour when asset valuations can no lenger be
obtaned from an observable market price 1 & become illiquid, in hqmdation, suspended etc The converse 15 true if an observable

market price becomes available

Dunng 2015, £0 3 mullion relsting to CIS was transferred mto the Level 3 partfoho Duning 2014, £28 7 milhon relating to CIS and
£5.9 milhon relating to a reclassification within other recervables were transferred into the Level 3 portfoho.

Tke following table presents the changes m Level 3 financual assets at far value through the profit and loss
208 204
£Mihon £ Milion
1,0904 7506

Opeming balance

Transfer mnto Level 3 : 0.3 346
Addstons dunng the year 255.2 268 5
Disposed during the year (#1.7) 6 3)
Gams recogmsed in the mncome statement 70.2 830

Closing balance 13744 1,090 4

Total gains included m the statement of comprehensive mcome for assets held at the end of the reporting year-

015~ 72014
£Million &'Milbon

Realised losses (5-8) @7
Unreahsed gamns . 76.0 877
Gains recognised m the mcome statement 70.2 830
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. FINANCIAL RISK continued .
Additions inchude £253 § mulben of mvestment properties and £1.4 rarthon of renewal imcome  Gams recogmsed i the statement of

comprehensive mcome are included within imnvestment return for certamn equrties and mvestments in CIS and investment property,
and within administration expenses for the renewal meome.

The prncipal assets classified 25 Level 3 are investinent properties amounting to £1,344 9 milhon (2014 £1,031 4 yalhon)
Investment property 18 valued monthly by external chartered surveyors 1n accordance with the gwdance issued by The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors The mvestment property valustion has been prepared using the ‘market approach’ valuation
techmque — using prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable § e
suralar) assets The following mble sets out the uncbservable inputs utthised m the valuzhion of the investment properties.

Investment property classfication

31 December 2015 Office Industrial Retal & leasure AN
Gross ERV (per sq fi)*

Range £1475—£90.01  £3.00—£15.00 £5.00—£365.46 £3 00—£365.46
Weghted average £30.18 £6.59 £14.73 £13.22
True equivalent yield

Ranpe 3.7% —8.0% 5.4%--7.1% 4.7%—13.1% 3.7%—13.1%
Waghted average 54% 6.1% 6.0% 5.8%
3§ Dreccmber 2014

Gross ERY (per sq f)*

Range £1475-£92 51  £3.00-£1500 £530—-£35039 £3.00-£350.3%
Weaghted average £28.04 £6 25 £15 67 £11 98
True equrvalent yield

Range 3 8%-8 0% 57%~80% 43%—13.3% 3.8%—133%
Weaghted average 5.7% 6.6% 6.1% 6.1%

*  Eguivalent rents] value {per square fot)

Sensitivity of Level 3 Valuations
" The valuation of certamn equities and iovestraents m CIS are based on the latest observable price available Whlst such valuations

2re sengitve to estimates, 1t 15 beheved that changng the prace apphed to a reasonably possible alternative would not chenge the far
value sgmificantly

The valuation of renewal mcome is based on discounted cash flows and historc lapse rates The effect of applying reasonably possible
alternetive assumptions of 2 movement of 160bps on the discount rate and a 10% movernent 1o the Yapse rate would resultin an
unfavourable change 1n valuation of £3.0 mallion and a favourable change in valuation of £3 6 nullon, respectively,

The mivestment property valuation has been prepared using the ‘market approach’ valuation technique — using prices and other
relevant information generated by market transactions inrvolving ydentical or comparable (¢ e sumilar) assets The follovwnng teble sets
out the effect of applying reasonably possible alternative assumpmons to the valuation of the wvestment properhes Any change m the
value of investment property 15 matched by the assocated movement 1z the pohcyholder libility and therefore would ndt mmpact on
the shareholder net assets

, Effect ofreasonable possible
alternative assumptions

Carrying  Favourzble Unfavourable

Investment property
significant unobservable inputs value changes changes
£Malhon £Millzon £Malhon
31 December 2015 Expected rental value/Relatrve yield 1,344.9 1,469.3 1,235.2
}1 December 2014 Expected remtal value/Relatve yield 1,031 4 1,125 5 9478

FARLT AN £ MATemy m1 wTRrrl ¥ e T 2 LR & YR P A
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Credit Risk
The following table sets out the masxamum credit nsk exposure and ratings of financial and other assets which are perther past due or
impawed and susceptible to credat rask .
Tpat huked
fandgand
thard party
hnld-lng; m
31 December 2015 AAA AA A BEB Unrated uwmt trusts™ Total
£Milhen £Mallion £Milhon £Mllion £'Million £Milhon £Milhon
Equities ' 37,960.8 37,960.8
Fixed mecome securities 39 79.2 8,850.9 8,934.0
Investment 1n Collective Investment
Schemes® 531.0 1.7  2,7369 3,269.6
Denvative financa] mnstruments 364.1 3641
Insurance & mvestment contract recervables 76.2 76.2
Amounts due from reinsurers
— Claims outstanding 8.6 8.6
— Reinsurers share of long term mnsurance
contract liabihties 76.4 76.4.
Total amount due from remsurers 85.0 85.0
Other recervables 270.5 478.4 7489
Cash & cash eqmva.lents 221 177.8 25.4 8.2 233.5
Total 534.9 186.3 177.8 25.4 3566 50,3911 51,672.1
{1) Credit risk relating to unit linked und wnit trust funds Is bore by the policyboler/umit belder
@ 1 oFsherchold in Calleceive I Sdb refrs to fn nnitised moncy market fands held for the longer term.
The table below sets out the comparative credst nsk analynsas at 31 December 2014
Un: Hoked
funds and
third party
holdings m
31 December 2014 ARA AA A EBB Unrated  unit truste® Tota!
£MisTlson &'Milhon £Million &"Miltion £ Million £ Million £'Milon
Equities 34,7349 34,7349
Fixed mcome securities 2.4 809 6,755.5 6,838.8
Investment 1n Collectrye Investment
Schemes® 517.3 413 24401 2,961.7
Dermvative finandial mstruments 166 4 166.4
Insurance & mvestment contract recervables &35 635
Amounts due from reinsarers
— Clayms outstanding 89 89
— Remsurers share of long term msurance
contract habilites 766 76 6
Total amount due from remsurers 855 85.5
Other recarvables 2050 3120 5170
Cash&casheqmvalenm LYR:) 212 4 1.5 86 48651 5,1394
Total 5137 218 2 2124 is 2814 49,2740 50,5072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

27. FINANCIAL RISK coptiued

Financial Assets that are Father Past Due or Impaired
Loansto St James's Place Partnersip of £178 7 milhon (2014 £158.9 majbon) are net of an impamrment provisien of £3 0 rllion

(2014 £2 9 mlhon) {see Note 16). The value of the loans that are past due but not imparred 1s not conmdered to be materml and has
therefore not been aged. The factors considered m determimng the nmparment include default history, the nature or type of the
Partner loan, exposure levels to mdividual Partners and whether the mdividual Partner is active or has left

The movemnent m the 1mpa1r;:ne_fnt provision will reflect ntihsafion of the existing provision during the year, but the overall cost of
impaired loans (including new provisions) recognised within admimstration expenses m the statement of comprehensive 1ncoroe

durmg the year was a charge of £1 4 mallion (2014 £0 9 mallion)

There are no other finsncial assets that are ampaired, would onginally have been past due or umpaired but whose terms have been
renegotiated, o are past due but not nnparred.

Contractual Matarity and Liquidity Analysis
. The following table sets cut the contractual matunty analyms of the Group’s financra] assets and fnancial habihines as at
31 December 2015.
Total ex.
wmt  Unithnked
Imked  fundsand
fundsand  third party
Uptel 1-5 OverS  gtherumxt holdmgyin

31 December 2015 year yeass years holders ot brosts ¥ Total
EMilizon £Millzon £Milhon £'Mallion £MIhon £Mallion
Financial Assets
Equutes - 37,960.8 37,960.8
Faxed ancome securrhes 40.7 42.4 831 8,B509  8,934.0
Trvestment i Collectve Investment Schemes 5327 5327 2,7368  3,269.6
Derrvanive financal mstraments — 36441 364.1
Insurance & mnvestment contract recervables 76.2 76.2 76.2
Other receavables
~ St. James's Place Partnership loans 622 105.1 11.4 178.7 178.7
—Renewal isncome 26.8 26.8 26.8
— Other 29.5 -29.5 513.5 543.4
Total ather recervables 118.5 1051 11.4 2350 513.9 748.9
Cash & cash equivalents 233.5 233.8 50916 5,325.1
Total financial assets 1,001.6 105.1 53.8 1,160.5 55,518.2 56,678.7
Finanaal Liabilities
lnvestment contract benefits — 43,155.8 43,159.8
Borrowings 1.6 126.7 54.1 181.8 - 181.8
Denvatrve finanaal mshuments — 221.1 . 2211
Insurance & mvestment contract payables 45.9 45.9 459
Other payables 296.3 5.2 483 349.8 311.0 6608

Total financial habilities 343 2 131.9 102 4 3775 43,6919 44,2694
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The table below sets out coraparative contractual maturity and hqudity analyss s at 31 December 2014

Total ex,
umt Unit Imked
Tmked funds and
funds and thind party

Uptol -5 Qver 5 other umt baldrngs m
31 December 2014 yesr years yeans holders  unittmsts Total
&' Millon &' Million £ Millicn £ Million £ Milhon £'Mithon
Financial Assets
Equrties — 347349 34,7349
Fixed income securities 274 n7 44 2 833 67555 6,8B388
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 5173 5173 24444 25617
Dernvative financial instruments - 166 4 166 4
Insurance & mvestrnent contract recervables 635 635 63.5
Other recexvables

— 5t. James's Place Partnership loans 540 94 4 105 158 9 1589
— Renewal mncome 291 291 291
— Other 24 4 244 304.6 3230
Total other recervables 107 5 54 4 105 212 4 304.6 5170
Cash & cash equivalents 274 3 2743  4,8651 5,1394
Total financial assets 990 0 106 1 547 1,150 8 49,2709 504217

Financial Laabilities
Investment contract benefits — 38,8512 38,8512
Borrowings 297 504 42 843 843
Dervative financmal mstruments - 793 793
Insurance & mvestment contract payables 504 504 504
Other payables 2851 10.3 206 3160 1837 4997
Total financial liabilities 3652 607 24 8 4507 39,1142 39,5649

. Hnmddunhmmmdndedudcudtuakzdfnndundmtmmﬂmubl:mmlthnldu:mdnmedmhneammityut‘upmmeyeuﬂnnethemmpmdlngunklhhdhnhhﬂum
ble and transfersble oo d d In practice the \ tles of the ,belongu'tlnnuneyur.bmthemajmqofusenheldwithintb:mlthnk:danduni;mfmﬂ:m

highly Hquid snd the Group eleo actively monitors Fond iquidity

Sensitivity Analysis to Market Risks

The majonty of the Group’s business 1s unit linked and the direct associated market risk 15 therefore borne by pohicyholders (although
there 15 a secondary impact as shareholder mcome 15 dependent upon the markets) Financial assets and habiities held outside unthsed
funds primanly consist of fixed imterest securities, umis 1p money market funds, cash and cash equavalents, and other assets and
habilties The fixed interest securties are held to match non hinked hablies and the lizbihty values move breadly i line with the
matching asset values such that fair value interest rate risk 1s immatenal, although there 1s some residual risk due to imperfect
matching Cash heldin unihsed money market funds and at bank 15 valued at par and 15 unaffected by movement 1n interest rates

Other assets and Liabihihes are aumlarly unaffected by market movements

As a result of these combined factors, the Group’s financal assets and Liabahties held outside umtised funds are not materially subject
to market risk, and movements at the reporting date 1 Interest rates and equity values have an immatenial impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and equity Future profits from annual management charges may be affected by movements in interest rates and

equity values
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED .

28. CAPYTAL MANAGEMENT AND ALLOCATION

It15 the Group’s pohcy to maintein a strong capital base 1n order to

* Protect clients’ mterests,

* Meet regulatory requirements,

* Protect creditors’ interests, and

* Create shareholder value through support for business development

Within the Group, eack subsidiary manages its own capital in the context of 2 Group capital plan  Any capital in excess of planned
requirernents 1s returned to the Group's parent, St. James's Place ple, normally by way of dividends The Group capital position 1s
monytored by the Finance Executive Conirmittee on behalf of the St James’s Place plc Board

i)

The Group's policy 1s for each subsidiary to hold the ngher of
* The capital required by any relevant supervisory body uphfted by a specafied margin to absorb changes, or
* The capital required based on the Company’s internal assessmnent

For our msurance compames, we hold capital based on our own wnternal assessment, albent recognising the regulatory requirement
For other regulated cornpanses we generally hold capital based on the regulatory requirement uphfted by 2 specafied margin

The followng entihes are subject to regulatory supervision and have to mamntain 2 mmunurm level of regulatory capital

Entity Regulatory Body and Jurisdichon

St James's Place UK ple PRA & FCA. Long-term msurance business

St James's Place International ple Central Bank of Ireland. Lafe msurance busmess

St James’s Place Umt Trust Group Limited FCA UCITS Management Company

St. Jarnes's Place Investment Admimstration Lamited FCA Investment Firm

St James’s Place Wealth Management (PCIS) Lirted FCA Securities and Fatures Firm

St Jamres's Place Wealth Management plc FCA Personal Investment Firm

BFS Financal Servaces Limaited FCA- Personal Investment Firm

LP Financial Management Limited FCA Personal Investment Firm

PFPTime Limited FCA Personal Investment Firm

St James's Place (Hong Kong) Linmted { formerly The Henley  Securites and Futures Commussien {(Hong Kong)
Group Limted) A Member of The Hong Kong Confederation of

Insurance Brokers
St. James's Place (Singapare) Private Lirmted (formerly Henley Monetary Authonity Smgapore. A Member of the Assocration of
Group Pte Lumted) Fmancial Advisers
St Jemes’s Place Trust Company Jersey Lumited Jersey Fananaial Services Commission

. Inaddrion, the 5t James's Place Group 13 regulated as an Insurance Group, subject to the Insurance Group’s Directive (IGD), and
with the PRA as the lead regulator

O
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Asan msurance group, St James’s Place 1s subject to the new Solvency Il regulations, which were implemented on 1 January 2016.
More information about the impact of the implementation of Solvency I 1s mcluded m the Financial Review on page 35 The overall
capital position for the Group at 1 January 2016, assessed 1n the standard formula bass, 13 presented in the following table

1 January 2016 Group
£Million
IFRS tota] assets 59,2776
Less Solvency II valuation adjustments and umt hnked habilitres (58,555 2)
Solvency Il net assets 722 4
Management Solvency Buffer (MSB) 2023
Excess of free assets aver MSB 5201
Solvency II VIF 2,306 6
Rusk margin (624 0)
Standard formula SCR (A) (1,595 8)
Sub-total 868
Solvency II Free Assets (B) 809.2
Solvency Il ratio ((A+B)/A) 151%

An overall internal caprtal assessment 15 required for insurance groups This 1s known as an ORSA (Own Rask and Solvency
Assessment) and 15 described m more detail i the section on Risk and Risk Management on page 41

The capital requirement and the associated solvency of the Group are assessed and momitored by the Finance Executive Committee,
a Commuttee of the St James’s Place plc Board The regulatory requiremnents for the remaning compames within the Group are
essessed and monitored by the relevant subsidiary boards

Although there has been a sigmficant change 15 the approach to assessing ‘required capital’ durmg the year (as a result of Solveney II),
there has been no material change in the level of capital requuired, or 1o the Group’s management of capital All regulated entines
exceeded the mmmum solvency requirements at the reporting date and during the year

Capital Composition
The prmapal forma of caprtal are included 1n the followmmg balances on the consolidated statement of financial posihon

31December 31 December

2015 2014

£Mullion £ Malbon

Share capital 78.7 779
Share premium 158.3 147 4
Treasury shares reserve (18.5) (10 5)
Mascellaneous reserves 23 23

Retaned earnngs 874.6 7931
Shareholders’ equity 1,0954  1,010.2
Non-controlling interests {0.3) 0.1

Total equity 1,0951 1,010 1

The above assets do not all qualify as regulatory capital The required mimmurn regulatory capital and analysis of the assets that
quahfy as regulatory capital are outhned 1n Section 6 of the Financial Review on page 35, which demonstrates that the Group has met

1ts inteynal capital objectives The Group and 1ts individually regulated operations have complied with all externally and nternally
mmposed capital requirements throughout the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED
29. SHARE CAPITAL
Number of

Ordinary Shares Share Capital
£Milhon
At 1 January 2014 515,215,983 773
— Exeraise of options 4,231,408 0¢
At 31 December 2014 519,447,391 779
— Issue of share capital 206,366 -
— Exercise of options 5,011,455 0.8
At 31 December 2015 524,665,212 78.7

The total authorised number of ordinary shares 13 605 mulhion (2014 605 mulhon), with a par value of 15 pence per share
(2014 15 pence per share) All 1ssued shares are fully pad

Included 1o the 1ssued share capital are 3,309,971 (2014 3,760,585) shares held 1 the Treasury Shares Reserve with a nominal
value of £0 5 tmlhon (2014 £0.6 Tmlhon) The Treasury Shares are held by a subsidiary undertaking, St. James's Place Managemem

Services Limited

The number of shares reserved for 1ssue under options and contracts for sale of shares, mcluding terms and condittons, 1s :ncluded
within Note 30.

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group operated a number of different equity settled share-based payment

arrangements, which are aggregated as follows

SAYE plan — this 1s a standard HMRC approved scheme that 15 available to all employees where 1ndividuals may contribute np to

£250 per month over three years to purchase shares at a price not less than 80% of the market price at the date of the mvitation

to participate

Share incentive plan (SIF) — thus is an HMRC approved scheme whuch 15 available to all employees where individuals may mvest up

to an annual homt of £1,500 of pre-tax salary in SJP shares, to which the Company will add a further 10% If the shares are held

for five years then they may be sold free of ncome tax or CGT

Executive deferred bonus schernes — under these plans the deferred element of the annual bonus 15 used to purchase shares

at market value 1n the Company The shares are held by the Company until vesting after three years and, m addinon to the

performance targets, which apply prior to any enttlement being granted, further performance conditions may also apply

on vestin

Executrveg performance share plan — the Rermmeration Committee of the Group Board may make awards of performance shares

to the Executive Directors and other senior managers Two-thirds of shares awarded to Directors are subject to an earnings

growth condition of the Group and one-third of shares awarded to Directors are subject to a comparative total shareholder retirn

(T5R) condition, both measured over a three year period Further mformation regarding the vesting condihions of the earmngs

growth and tota] shareholder return dependent portions of the award 1s given in the Remuneration Report on page 98 Awards

made to senior managers are largely only subject to the earnings growth condition of the Group

Partner share option schemes — these were offered to the Partners of the St James's Place Partnership and vest over three to saix

years subject to satisfying personal sales related perfermance criterza. The last award under these schernes was made i 2007

* Partner performance share plan — a new scheme was launched m January 2008 whereby Partners are entitled to purchase shares
the future at nommal value (15 pence) The number of shares the Partners are entitled to purchase will depend on thewr personal
business volumes in the year of the award and validation over the following three years

* Partner & Adviser chartered plan —a new sclieme was launched durmg 2015 whereby Partners and Advisers are entitled to
purchase shares in the future at nomanal value (15 pence) The number of shares the Partners are entitled to purchase wall depend
upon achieving speaific professional qualifications and thewr personal sales production in a specafied 12 month period and vahdation
over the following three years The first award under these schemes will be made 1 2016

Registered No 03183415
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Share options outstanding under the varous share option schemes, together with shares due under the deferred bonus schemes at

31 December 2015, amount to 7 1 malhon shares (2014: 11 9 mulhon) Of these, 1 1 muthon (2014. 3 § mllion) are under option to
Partners of the St James’s Place Partnership, 4 7 rmullion (2014 6 9 milhon) are under option to executves and sepior management
(includimg 1 5 mulhon (2014 2 7 milhon) under option to Directors as disclosed mn the Remuneration Report on pages 90 to 92) and
1 2 mifhon (2014 1 5 mlhon) are under option through the SAYE and SIP schemes These are exercisable on a range of future dates

1oday orfereniq

The teble below summarses the share-based payment awards made m 2014 and 2015

174

Share Exccutrve Exgcutrve ::

Incentive Deferred Performance §

SAYE Plan Bonus Share Plan 2

Awards in 2014 a_-;

Date of grant 25 March 26 March 26 March 26 March B

Number granted 281,243 4,639 555,428 889,357 o

3

Awards in 2015 E

Date of grant 25 March & 26 March 26 March 26 March B

25 September g
Number granted 637,327 5,245 629,572 724,370

Contractual hife 3 § years 3 years 3years 3 5-6 years —-—
“ Vesting conditons 3 year saving 3 year saving 3 years’ 3 years’
perrod pered service and service and

achievement achievement g’

of personal of earmings =

targets and TSR ﬁ

10 SCIne targets E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS conhnued

CONTINUED

Financial Assumptrons Underlying the Calculation of Fair Value
The farr value expense has been based on the fur value of the instruments granted, as calculated using appropnate derrvative priang
medels The table below shows the weighted average assumphons and raodels nsed to calculate the grant date fur value of each award

Share Execrtive Execuhve
Incentive Deferred Performance
SAYE Plan Bonus Share Plan
Valuation model Black Black Black Monte
Schales Scholes Scholes Culo
Awards in 2014
Fair value (pence) 23243 85158 8515 608 B/851 5%
Share price (pence) 845.0 8515 8515 851 59
Exerase price (pence) 6770 00 0.0 00
Expected volanhty (% pa)® 29 N/A N/A 29
Expected dividends (% pa) 19 N/A N/A® N/A
Rask-free interest rate (% pa) 12 N/A N/A N/A
Volatility of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 20to 62
Correlation with competitors (%) N/A N/A N/A 20
Awardsin 2015
Fair value (pence) 263 3/161 4@ 9730 9790/9825 979 0™
Share price (pence) 990 0/836 6 9790 9790 979 09
Exercise price (pence) 7380/724 0 00 00 00
Expected volatiity (% pa)® 25/25 N/A N/A 25
Expected dnadends (% pa) 24/30 N/A N/A® N/A
Rask-free mterest rate (% pa) 0709 N/A N/A N/A
Volatility of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 18to 48
Correlanon with competitors {¥5) N/A N/A N/A 20
Notes:
{1} Expected volatility Is based on ap atlyslt of the Company's historle share price valatility over a perlod (typically three or five years) which {s with the expected term of the options
or the awards.
(D In2014azd 2015, the vesting period for the SAYE plan was three years The vesting period zeay be extrnded by wp to dx menths in erder to catch up on missed eontributions
defired bnns sthomes and no dvidead yicld assmaption is therefore

(3} Dividends payable on the shares during the restricted period are puid out doring the restricted periad for the

required,

() Theawards made under the excoutive performance share plan sre dependent upon earnings groveth in the Campany (two-thirds of the award) sod o total sh

der return of a comy group

of companfes (one-third of the awxrd) This resalts in having two fabr salves for each of the avards made = the table above, the fivst being in relation to the companitor total sharcholder retorn and

the second relating to the Company's earnlops growth.

(5) Awards were made under the executive performance share plan on two separste occasinas during 2015 (2014 thres)

(6) There were no awards made in 2014 or 2015 for the exccutive thare option sch
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 Decemb 31 December 31 Deeember 31 December
2015 2015 2014 2014
Number of Weghtedaverage Nunber of Weighted average
options exercise price options exerase price
SAYE
Qutstanding at start of year 1,458,774 £3.86 1,487,337 £2.92
Granted 637,327 £7.30 281,243 £6.77
Forfeited (88,461) £5.52 (75,141) £4 17
Exercised (845,052) £2.82 (234,665) £2.43
Qutstanding at end of year 1,162,588 £6.15 1,458,774 £3.68
Exercisable at end of year 108,103 £2.75 - —
Executive Share Options
Outstanding at start of year 54,270 £2.43 135,444 £2 22
Granted - - - -
Forfeited - — - -
Exercised _(54,270) £2.43 (81,174) £2 08
Qutstanding at end of year - - 54,270 £2.43
Exercisable at end of year - - 54,270 £243
Partner Share Options
OQutstanding at start of year 3,407,365 £291 5,172,671 £2 81
Granted - - - -
Forferted - - (11,262) £175
Exercised (2,261,139) £2 69 (1,754,044) £263
Qutstanding at end of year 1,146,226 £3.35 3,407,365 £2 51
Exeraisable at end of year 1,146,226 £3.35 3,407,365 £291

The average share price during the year was 521 5 pence (2014 766 1 pence)

The SAYE plan options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had exercise prices of 275 pence (108,103 oplions}), 383 pence
(209,692 options), 677 pence (237,868 options), 738 pence (253,587), 724 pence (353,338) and a weighted average remaining

. contractual Iife of 11 years

The options outstandmg under the Partoer shere option schemes at 31 December 2015 had exercise prices ranging from 313 pence
to 465 pence and a weighted average remarmng contractual Iife of D 6 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
Share Incentive Plan (m] cost option ~ no proceeds on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended
K 31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Nnwmhber of Number of
opirons options
Outstanding at start of year 23,069 19,611
Granted 5,245 4,635
Forferted (879) (555)
Exercised (2,543) (626)
Outstanding at end of year 24,892 23,069
Exerasable at end of year 3,711 10,005
Executive Performance Share Plan (nu cost option — no proceeds on exercise)
Year Ended Yeur Ended
31 December 31 Decernber
2015 2014
Number of Number of
OPth ophum
Outstanding at start of year 5,212,411 5,168,598
Granted 724,370 889,357
Forferted (45,272) (225315
Exercised (2,502,018) (620,229)
Outstanding at end of year 3,189,491 5,212,411
Exerasable at end of year 310,188 1,447,642
Partner Performance Share Plan (15 pence nommal share vahue option — 15 pence per share on exercise)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Number of Number of
optrons opticns
Outstandrng at start of year 95,500 131,000
Granted — -
Forferted - -
Exercised (80,500) {35,500)
Outstanding st end of year 15,000 95,500
Exercisable at end of year 15,000 65,000

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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Executive Deferred Bonus (1 cost option —no proceeds on exercise) Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Number of Namber of

shares shares

Outstanding at start of year 1,676,958 2,210,882
Granted 629,572 555428
Forferted (26,339) (15,678)
Exerased (704, 657) (1,073,674)

1,575,534 1,676,958

(f)utstandmg at end of year
Exerasable at end of year -

Early Exerase Assumptions

The follow:ng allowance has been made for the impact of early exercise once options have vested

1 SAYE plan —all option holders are assumed to exercise half-way through the six month exermse wandow

2 Executive, sales management and partner share option scheres — it 1s assumed that 10% of option holders exercise their options
each year irrespective of the level of the share price For the remamder 1t 1s assumed that one-half wall exercise their options each
year if the share price 15 at least 3320 above the exercse price. .

Allowance for Performance Conditrons

The executive performance share plan mcludes a market based performance condition based on the Company’s total shareholder
return relative to an imdex of comparator compames The impact of thus performance condrtion has been modelled using Monte Carlo
simulation techniques, which involve running many thousands of simulations of future share price movements for both the Company
and the comparator ndex For the purpose of these smulations 1t 15 assumed that the share price of the Company and the comparater
index ere 20% (2014 20%) correlated and that the comparator index has valatilities ranging between 18% pa to48%pa

(2014 20%pa to 62%pa)

The performance condition 1s based on the Company’s performance relative to the comparator index over a three year period
commenaing on 1 January each year The fair value calculations for the awards that were made m 2015 therefore include an allowance
for the actual performance of the Company’s share price relative to the index over the pertod between 1 January 2015 and the various
award dates

Charge to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
The table below sets out the charge to the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income 1n respect of the share-based
paymment awards

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
£Mallion £'Milion
Share-based payment expense 157 114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

31, FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2015, the Group had annual commitments under non-cancelleble operating leases in connection with the rental of

office buldings and office equpment with varying lease end dates ranging from 2016 to 2041 The followng table represents the
future aggregate lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

31 Detember 31 December

2015 2004+

£Million £Malbon

Within one year 140 126
Between two and five years 50.1 387
In more than five years . 674 286
1324 799

Total financial commtments

*  Representnd to refloct the total lease commutment over the term of the lease agreement.

Asat 31 December 2015, there was £0 1 malhon (2014~ £0 1 mulhon) of fiture munymum sublease payments expected to be received
under non-cancellable sub-leases.

32, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions wrth St. James’s Place Unit Trusts
In respect of the non-consolidated 8§t James’s Place managed unit trusts that are held as investments 1n the 5t James's Place Life and

pension funds, there was income recogmsed of £10 1 tillion (2014 £3 0 milhon ncome) and the total value of transachons with
those non-consolidated unat trusts was £43 0 milbon (2014 £47 4 million) Net management fees receivable from these wnit trusts
amounted to £22 3 mulhon (2014 £20 7 mihon) The value of the investment into the non-consolidated unit trusts at 31 December

2015 was £176 5 mallion (2014 £130 7 mllion)

Transactions with Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel have been defined as the Board of Directors and members of the Executive Board Committee

The remuneration paid to the Board of Directors of St. James's Place 15 set out in the Remuneration Report on page 85, in addinion
to the disclosure below

The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the Deferred Bonus Scheme, the Performance Share
Plau, the Executive Share Option Scheme und the SAYE Share Option Schemes, together with details of the Directors’ mterests n
the share captal of the Company

The remuneration paid to key management personnel 1s as follows
3(December 31 December

2015 014

£Milhon £'Millon

Short-term employee benefits 3.2 29
Post-employment benefits 0.4 04
Other long term benefits L6 16
Share-based payment 16 15
68 64

The charge to the statement of comprehensive mcome 10 respect of the share-based payment awards made to the key management
personnel of St. James's Place during 2015 was £3 7 omllion (2014 £3 6 mullion)
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The total value of St James’s Place funds under management held by related parties of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
£20 4 million (2014 £16.2 million) The total value of St James’s Place plc dividends paid to related parties of the Group during

the year wis £1 3 mlhon (2014. £0 6 milhon)

Commussion, advice fees and remuneration of £1,729,564 (2014 £1 ,639,654) was pad, under normal commercial texms, to
St James's Place Partners and employees who were related parties by virtue of bemng connected persons with key management
personnel The outstanding amount payable at 31 December 2015 was £93,423 (2014 £123,100)

OQutstanding at the year end were Partner loans of £449,934 (2014 £420,039) due from St. James’s Place Partners who were related
parties by virtue of beang connected persons with key management personnel During the year £88,702 (2014 £ml) was advanced
and £74,696 (2014- £90,302) was repaid by Partners who were related parties. St. James’s Place Partnership loans are interest
bearing (lnked to Bank of England base rate plus 2 margin), repayable on demand and secured agamst the future renewal income
streams of that Partmer

At the start of the year, related parties of key management personnel held 176,740 (2014: 177,029) shares and options under
various St James’s Place plc share option schemes During the year 23,413 (2014 28,993) shares and options were granted, 1,235
(2014 1,757) options lapsed, 113,568 (2014 ) options were exercised and ml (2014 25,548) shares were released

33. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Unconsolidated Structured Entities
The Group operates wvestment vehicles, such as umt trusts, primanily to match urat holder liabihttes The investment vehicles are

prantanly financed by mnvestments from umt holders Note Z sets out the judgements wnherent 11 determimng when the Group
controls, and therefore consohdates, the relevant investment vehicles

The majontty of the rsk from a change 1n the value of the Group’s mvestment mn unconsolidated umt trusts 1s matched by a change

1 pohcyholder habihities However, the maxamum exposure to loss is equal to the carrying velue of the mvestment, with the
balance being included within investments in Collective Investment Schemes. At 31 December 2015, the total net asset value of

unconsolidated umt trusts i which the Group held a beneficial interest was £2,702 4 muthon (2014 £2,235 0 milhon)

The followmg urut trusts are not consolidated within the Group financial statements, however, the Group does act as the manager of
these unit trusts

Net agaet valne asat
% of cwnership interest 31 December

Natureof Measurement

Name of entity 2015 2014  relabionship method 2015 014

£ Mallzon £'Million

St. James’s Place Property Umt Trust 0.00 000 Manager of N/A 8592 6200

umt truast

5t James'’s Place UK High Income Umnit Trust 9.64 8 10 Managerof Fairvalue 1,843.2 16150
umit trist through
profit
or loss

27024 2,350

As at 31 December 2015 the value of the Group's mterests in the indrvidual unconsohdated umt trusts were £ml (2014, £ml) 1n
St James’s Place Property Umt Trust and £177 7 milhon (2014 £130 8 milhon) 10 St James'’s Place UK Hagh Income Unit Trust

~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

33. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES continued

Associates
The following umit trusts are not consolidated within the Group financal statements, however, they do meet the cntena of an assocate
Net asset value asat
% of ownership mterest 31 December

Natureof Measrement

Name of entity 2015 2014  relationship mecthod 2015 2014

£Malion £'Mibon

St. James'’s Place UK High Income Unit Trust 9.64 810 Managerof Farvalue 1,843.2 1,6150
untt trust through

prefit or loss

1,8432  1,6150

34. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Principal Subsidiaries:

St James's Place Investments plc¥
St James’s Place Wealth Management Group plc¥
St James's Place UK plc

Investment Holding Companjes

Life Assurance

5t James's Place Intermational ple {meorpomted 1n Ireland)
Unit Trust Management St James's Place Unit Trust Group Limited
Unit Trust Administration and ISA Management 5t James's Place Investment Admymstration Lamited
Distribution 5t James’s Place Wealth Management ple

Management Services St James's Place Management Services Limited**
St James’s Place Acqusthon Services Limuted

IFA Acquisitions
Asza Distribution St James’s Place International Distnbunon Linnted

*  Dirertly held by St. James's Place ple
#% The Company also operates » branch in the Repablic of Irelind

The Company owns esther directly or indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capitel of the above-named subsidienes, as
such they have been appropnately consohdated

Due to ongoing solveucy requirements, there are restnchons on the amount of distributable reserves withm the hife assurance, unit
trust and financial services operating compamies of the Group which restricts thexwr ability to transfer cash dividends to the Company

Included below 1s a full List of the ennties within the St James’s Place ple Group.
Andst

Country of
Entity Cowpany number mneorparation Principal activity excmption
Angha Finaneal Limited 3835743 England & Wales  Non-trading Yes
Australian Expatriate Services Larnited 1954254 Hong Kong Overseas Distribution No
BFS Finanaal Services Larmited 4609753 England & Wales  Financmal Advice Yes
Chapman Associates Limited 3047530 England & Wales  Financal Advice Yes
Chaprman Hunter Group Limoted 6034452 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
E'W Smuth & Co Independent Financial Advisors 4088394 England & Wales  Financial Advice No
Limyted
G M B Fnancal Services Limated 4074782 England & Wales  Non-tradmg Yes
Lansdown Place Group Holdings Lumiyted 6390547 England & Wales  Holding Company _ No
Lopsystemn Limited 1503794 England & Wales Non-trading No
LP Auto Envolment Solutions Laimited 8257531 England & Wales  Pension Auto-enrolment  No
LP Financial Management Limited 2195886 England & Wales  Investment Advice No
LP Holdeo Limated 8323278 England & Wales  Holding Company No
Lansdown Place Wealth Management Limited £458948 England & Wales  Financial Advice No
MHS (Holdngs) Lumuted £59935 England & Wales Non-trading Yes
Nascent Life Lunited IR325783 Ireland Non-trading No
PFPTime Ltd 4047197 England & Wales  Financal Advice Yes
SJP AESOP Trustees Limited 4089795 England & Wales Normmnee Company Yes
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Country of Audrt
Entity Company number Imcorporation Principal activaty exemption
SJPC 2000 Limted SCD13363 Scotland Non-trading No
SJPC Corporate Investments Linuted 1476292 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
St James's Place (Hong Kong) Lumited 275275 Hong Kong Overseas Dastribution No
St James’s Place (PCP) Lymited 2706684 England & Wales  Tramsacts and Services S]JP No
Income Streams
St James's Place (Properties) Lumited 6890166 England & Wales Non-trading Yes
St James’s Place (Shanghm) Limited 310000400640051 China Overseas Distnbution No
St Jarnes’s Place (Singapore) Private Limited 200406398R Singapore Financal Advice No
St. James's Place Aoquisizon Services Limited 7730835 England & Wales  1FA Acquisthons Yes
St James's Place Chent Solutions Limited 5487108 England & Wales  Pohcy Administration Yes
St James's Place Corparate Secretary Lamited 9131866 England & Wales ~ Corporate Secretary Yes
St James's Place DFM Holdings Limsted 9687687 England & Wales  Non-trading No
St. James’s Place European S arl B77427 Luxembourg Non-trading No
St. James's Place International (Hong Kong) 2207694 Hong Kong Life Assurance No
Lirmited
St. Jarnes's Place International Assurance Group 2727326 England & Wales  Holding Company No
Lirpted
St James's Place International Distnbution B798683 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
Lirmited ,
St James’s Place International ple 185345 Ireland Life Assurance No
St James’s Place Investrent Admimstration 8764231 England & Wales  Umt Trust Admunistration No
Lymuted and ISA Manager
St James’s Place Investment Trust Limted 209445 England & Wales  Holdmg Company Yes
St James's Place Investments plc 1773177 England & Wales  Holding Company Yes
St, James’s Place Management Services (Asia) 2293151 Hong Kong Management Services No
Lamited
St James's Place Management Services Lunted 2661044 England & Wales ~ Management Services No
St James’s Place Nominees Lumted 8764214 England & Wales  Nomunee Company Yes
St James’s Place Partnershup Limited 425649 d & Wales Non-tradmg No
St James's Place Partnership Services Limited 8201211 England & Wales  Treasury Company No
St James's Place Reassurance (2009) Lamuted 6718989 England & Wales  Non-trading No
St James's Place S A B17089 Luxembourg Nop-trading No
St James's Place Trust Company jersey Limuted 98624 Jersey Trustee Services No
St. James's Place UK plc 2628062 England & Wales  Life Assurance Ne
St. Jemes's Place Umt Trust Group Lumited 947644 England & Wales  Unat Trust Management  No
St. James's Place Wealth Management (PCIS) 6604824 England & Wales  Secunities and Futures Firm No
Lamuted
St James's Place Wealth Management {Shanghx) 1511517 Hong Kong Overseas Distribution No
Limited
St. James's Place Wealth Management Group plc 2627518 England & Wales  Holding Company No
St James's Place Wealth Management International 201323453N Singapore Holding Company No
Pte Ltd
St. James’s Place Wealth Management plc 4113955 England & Wales UK Distnbution No
THG Wealth Management Limuted 8077989 England & Wales UK Distnbution Yes

Where mdicated above, the subsidianes of St. James’s Place plc have taken advantage of the exemption from stattory audit granted
by section 479A of the Compames Act 2006 In accordance with section 479C, St James's Place plc has therefore guaranteed all the

outstanding habilihes as at 31 December 2015

All Group companies have an accounting reference date of 31 December, except for PFPTime Ltd (04047197)and G M B Fiancial
Services Lumited (04074782) which have an accounting reference date of 24 January

Unless otherwise stated, the tax residency of each subsidary 1s the same as the country of mcorporation

100% of the ordimnary share capital 15 held for the above submdiaries with the exception of LP Holdco Lumited (08323278) and
Lansdown Place Group Holdings Linuted (06390547) where 92 4% and 43 32% ordinary share capital 1s respectively held
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

CONTINUED

34. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS conhmmed

In addition, the Group financal statements consolidate the followmng unit trusts, all of which are registered 1n England and Wales

St James's Place Allshare Income Unit Trust

St James's Place Alternative Assets Unit Trust

St James's Place Balanced Managed Umt Trust

St James's Place Continental European Uit Trust

St James’s Place Corporate Bond Umit Trust

St James's Place Drvermfied Bond Unit Trust

St James’s Place Emerging Markets Equty Umt Trust
St. James’s Place Equity Income Unit Trust

5t. James's Place Ethrcal Umit Trust

St James’s Place Far East Unit Trust

St James’s Place Gilts Umt Trust

St James's Place Global Emerging Markets Unit Trust
St James's Place Global Equity Income Unit Trust

5t James's Place Global Equrty Unit Trust

St James’s Place Global Unit Trust

St James's Place Greater European Progressive Unt Trust
St James's Place High Octane Unit Trust

St James's Place Index Linked Gilts Unit Trust

St James's Place Internztional Corporate Bond Unit Trust
St James's Place International Equity Unut Trust

St james’s Place Investment Grade Corporate Bond Unrt Trust
St James’s Place Managed Growth Unrt Trust

St James's Place Money Market Unit Trust

St James’s Place Mult Asset Unst Trust

St James’s Place North American Uit Trust

St James’s Place Strategic Income Uit Trust

St James's Flace Stratege Managed Unit Trust

St. Jamed’s Place UK & General Progressive Unt Trust
St. Jarnes’s Place UK & International Income Unit Trust
St James's Place UK Absolute Return Unst Trust

St. Jarnes's Place UK Growth Unst Trust

St James's Place UK Income Unat Trust
St james's Place Worldwide Opportumtes Unit Trust
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After the reporting period end, the Group received regulatory approval for the change in control and completed its acquisition
of 100% of the voting equity mterests of Rowan Dartington Holdings Lrmited and 1ts subsidiaries Consequently, as of the date
that change of control was obtaned, Rowan Dartington Holdings Limsted and 1ts subsidiaries will be consohdated into the 2016
Group results The acquisinon 15 1n hne with the Group’s strategic objective of broademing the business model and expanding the

client proposttion
Rowan Dartington Group
The net assets, fair value adjustments and consideration for these acqusitions are estmated below
Fair value
Bookvalue adjustment Total

' £Million £Mallion £Million
Financial assets 73 308 381
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 13
Financial habihties 67 ()] (124
Total 19 251 270
Consideration
Jmtial consderation 200
Deferred consideration 71
Contingent copsideration 74
Total consideration 34.5
Goodwill Ta5

Goodwill comprses the vahie placed on the experzence and expernse of the Rowan Dartington management team within the

discretionary fund management sector

It 15 expected that the connngent consideration wall be pad m full wath no changes to the amount mutully recogmsed; however,
should the target mumber of Investment Executives not be met, the contingent constderation will decrease on a pro-rata bams down to

a value of £ml
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinon

In our opmion, St, James’s Place plc's parent company financal

staternents (the ‘financial statermnents”)

+ gve a true and far view of the state of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2015;

* have been properly prepared m accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pructice, and

» have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of
the Compames Act 2006

What we have audited

5t James’s Place plc's financal staternents comprise

+» the balance sheet of the parent company as at
31 December 2015, and

s the notes to the financal statements, which include a
summary of sgmficant accounting pohcies and other
explanatory information

Certamn requured disclosures have been presented elsewhere
m the Anmual Report, rather than mn the notes to

the financal statements These are cross-referenced from
the financial statements and are 1dentified as andited

The financral reporting framework that has been apphed n the
preparation of the financal statements 1s apphcable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accdunting Practice), mcluding FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’”.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Consistency of other information

Compames Act 2006 opiicn

In our opumon, the information given m the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report for the financal year for which
the financal statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financial statements

ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

(“ISAs (UK & Ireland)’) we are required to report to you if, 1n

our optnion, mformation 1n the Annual Reportis

+ materally nconsistent with the mformation in the audited
financal statements, or

« apparently materally incorrect based on, or materzally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the parent company
acquired m the course of pexforming our audit, or

+ otherwise musleading

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsbility

Adequacy of accounting records and information and

Explanaﬁons recerved

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you

1f, 1n our opinzon

- we have not recerved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or

«  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audst have not been
received from branches not wisited by us, or

» the financial staternents and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be sudited are not 1n agreement with
the accounting records and returns

‘We have no exceptions to report ansmg from thus responsibihty

Durectors’ remumeration

Directors’ remuneration report — Compames Act 2006
opmion

In our opunion, the part of the Directors” Rermumerstion Report
to be sudited has been properly prepared m accordance with the
Compamnes Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Ccmpa.me’s Act 2006 we are requred to repert to you
of, 10 our opimon, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
specfied by law are not made We have no exceptans to report
arsing from this responslity.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Respongsibilities set out on page 105, the Directors are
responsble for the preparatnon of the financal statements
and for being sansfied that they gve a true and far view

Qur responmbl.hty 15 to audit and express an opimon on the
financial statements in accordance wrth appheable law and ISAs
(UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board'’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thas report, including the opmions, has been prepared for

and only for the parent company’s members asa body 1n
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act
2006 and for no other purpose We do not, 1n giving these
optrions, accept or assume responsibihity for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom ths report s shown or into
whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent i wriing.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

CONTINUED

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT contued

What an audit of finandial statements involves

‘We conducted our audit 1n accordance with ISAs (UK &

Irelandy An audit mvolves obtaimng evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements suffizent to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from

matenal rmsstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Thus

mncludes an assessment of

* whether the accounting policies are approprate to the parent
company’s arcumstances and have been consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed,

= the reasonableness of mgnificant accounting estimates made
by the Drrectors; and

* the overall presentation of the financal statements,

We primarily focus our work 1n these areas by assessing the
Directors’ judgements against avalable evidence, formmng our
own judgements, and evaluanng the disclosures 1n the financal
staternents

We test and examine information, using sarnpling and other
sudibing techmques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We ebtan
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combmation of both

I addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
mformation in the Annual Report to identify materal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
idennify any nformation that 1s apparently materially mncorrect
based on, or materially mcongistent with, the kmowledge
acquired by us 1n the course of performing the audit If we
become aware of any apparent matersal misstatements or
mconmstencies we consider the implications for our report

OTHER MATTER
We have reported separately on the Group financal statements
of St James’s Place plc for the year ended 31 December 2015

Jeremy Jensen (Senior Statutory Auditer)
_for and on behalf of PricewoterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
22 March 2016

() The maintenance and integrity of the St. James’s Place ple webate Is the respansibility of the
Directors, the work carried oat by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
mstters and, aceardingly, the suditors sccept no responsibility for aay changes that may have
ocrurred to the finuaciul statcments dnte they wete inlfthlly presested on the websdte

(8) Legislation fn the United Kingdom g ing the preparation and dlssemination of
statements mazy differ from Jegistation In other jurisdictions

Remstered N NRIR2A16
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

177

31 December 31 December
Note 2015 204
£Million £'Million
Fixed assets
Investment 1 submdiaries 2 352.8 4021
Current assets
Amonnts owed by Group undertakungs 242.1 106 7
Current habihties
Corporation tax habilies (0.7) 09
Net current assets 241.4 106 3
Net assets 554.2 508 4
Equity
Share capital 3 78.7 779
Share premium 4 158.3 147 4
Share option reserve 4 107.3 926
Miscellaneous reserves 4 0.1 01
Retained earmings 4 249.8 190 4
594.2 508 4

Total sharcholders’ funds

The financial statements on pages 177 to 182 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2016 and signed on Ity

bebalf by

David Bellamy
Chief Execunive

Andrew Croft
Chief Financial Qfficer

The notes and 1nformation on pages 178 to 182 form part of these financal statements
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUINTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation
St James’s Place ple (‘the Company’) 15 a lmosted hability company mcorporated in England and Wales and whose shares are publicly

traded The Company offers a range of insurance, mvestment and other wealth management services through 1ts submdianes, which
are incorporated i the UK, Ireland and Asa

The financual statements have been prepared under the istorcal costs convention, on a going concern basis and mn accordance with
Financal Reporting Standard 101 (FRS 101} ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' and the Compantes Act 2006

The preparation of financial statements in comphance with FRS 101 requires the use of certan aribical accounting esimates It also
requires management to exerase judgement 1 applying the Company'’s accounting pohoes No significant aceounting judgements
have been made

Farst Time Application of FRS 100 and FRS 101
In the current year the Group has adopted FRS 100 and FRS 101 In previous years the financm] statements were prepared i

accordance with apphicable UK accounting standards

Thus change m the basis of preparation has not materally altered the recognition and measurement requirements previously applied in
accordance with UK GAAP Consequently, the princpal accounting pohicies are unchanged from the prior year The change in basms
of preparation has enabled the Group to take advantage of all of the available disclosure exemptons permitted by FRS 101 1n the
financial statements, the most sigruficant of which are summansed below There have been no other material amendments to the

disclosure requirements previously applied m accordance with UK GAAP

FRS 10! — Reduced Disclosure Exemptions
The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101
* The requurements of IFRS 7 Financal Instruments- Disclosures

* The requirernents of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
* The requirerent in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present comparative mformation m respect of

paragraph 79{2)(xv) of IAS 1
* The reqmrements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 1€, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D, 111 and 134136 of IAS 1

Presentaton of Finanicial Statements
* The requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
* The requrements of paragraph 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
= The requrements 1n IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered mto between two or more
members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which 15 a party to the transaction 1s wholly owned by such a member
* The requirersents of paragraphs 130(f)(w), 130(f)(), 134{d) to 134(f) and 135(c) to 135(e) of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, provided
that equivalent disclosures are included 1n the conschdated financial statements of the group m whach the entity 15 consohdated

In publishung the Parent Company financia] statements, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption m Section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual meome statement and related notes that form part of these finanaal statements.

The Comparny 15 not required to present a statement of comprehensive income

Going Concern
The Company 15 non-trading and has positive net assets, therefore the Company continues to adopt the going concern basis 1

preparing these financial steternents
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Significant Accounting Polices
The following principal accounting pohaes have been apphed consistently to all the years presented.

(2) Investment Return
Investment return compnses dividends fram subsicharies, which are accounted for when recerved

(b) Taxation
Taxation 1s based on profits and 1ncome for the year as determined in accordance with the relevant tax lepslation, together with

adjustments to provisions for prior years

(©) Investment 1n Subsidiaries
Investrnents 1n subsidianes are carried at cost stated after any impairment losses, phus the cost of share awards granted by the

Company of 1ts own shares

{d) Recervables
Receivables are mtially remgmsed at farr value and subsequently held at amortised cost less impanrment losses

(e} Amounts Owed to Group Undertalangs
Amonunts owed to Group undertalangs mally are recognised at faxr value and subsequently held at amortised cost

(f) Impasrment Losses
Non-financal assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested anmually for imparrment Assets that are subject to

amorhsation are reviewed for impairment when circumstances or events indicate there may be uncertainty over this value An
imparment loss 15 recogmsed for the amount by whach the asset’s carrymg amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount 1s the lngher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use

2. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

I f gonepOnod 90811 g.souref 10 1 yoday o1Berene I

POUBUIIAON

2015 2014
£Mllion £'Million
Costat I January
Investment i Group undertakings 3114 311 4
Share options gra.nted by Company 92.6 812
404.0 3926
Additions in the year
Investment m Group undertakings - -
Share options grantzd by Company 147 - 114
14.7 114
Cost at 31 December
Investment 1n Group undertalangs 3114 M4
Share options granted by Company 107.3 926
418.7 404 0
Impairment in value
Investment 1 Group undertakings ~ (659) (19
Net book value at 31 December 352.8 4021

The Directors bebeve that the carrying value of the investments 15 supported by therr underlying net assets

During the year St James's Place Partnership Lumited and St. James’s Place Investments plepaid dividends to 5t James's Place ple of
£42 0 pulhon and £37 3 mullion respectively Overall there was a £64 0 mllion net decrease in the underlying net assets of these
subsidiaries, resulting in the movement mn ‘mparment m value’ from £(1 9y mallion to £(65 2) mallion
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

2, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES contimued
Prncipal Subsidiary Undertakings at 31 December 2015

St James's Place Investments plc
St James’s Place Wealth Management Group plc

Life Assurance St. James’s Place UK plc
St James's Place Internattonal ple (sncorporated in Irelend)*

Investment Holding Companies

Umt Trust Management 5t James’s Place Unit Trust Group Lamted
Unit Trust Adminstration and ISA Management St. Jemes’s Place Investment Admimstration Limited
Distribution . St James's Place Wealth Management plc
Management Services St James’s Place Management Services Limuted**
IFA Acquusitrons St James's Place Acqusition Services Lamated

Asia Distribution St. James’s Place International Distibution Limited

*  The Company operates a branch in Singapore
*+  The Coropany operates s branch in the Republic of reland

The Company owns erther directly or mdirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiarres
A full List of the St James's Place Group subsidhary undertakings can be found on pages 170 to 172 of the St James’s Place Report and
Accounts

All of these compames are registered 1n England and Wales and operate principally m the United Kingdom except where otherwise
stated

Due to ongomg solvency requirements, there are restrictions on the amount of distributable reserves wathun the bfe assurance, umt
trust and financial services operating companies of the Group wiach restricts their ability to transfer cash divadends to the Company

3. SHARE CAPITAL

Mumber of Called np

Ordinary Shares Share Capital

£palhon

At 1 January 2014 515,215,983 773
— Exercise of options 4,231,408 06
At 31 December 2014 519,447,391 779
— Issue of shares 206,366 -
~ Exercase of options 5,011,455 08
At 31 December 2015 524,665,212 787

The total autharised mumber of ardinary shares 1s 605 mallion (2014 605 mithon), with a par valuc of 15 pence per share
(2014 15 pence per share). All issued shares are fully pad.

5,217,821 shares were 155ued 1n the year at 4 nommal value of £0 8 muilion, for which the Company recesved consideration of
£11 7mithon

AR NYIR =

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 h:]

=meco —— =




181

4. RESERVES
Share
Share Retained Opuon Misc.
Premmum Earmings Reserve Reserves Total
E'Malliem £Million £ Millvon EMillion £ Mallon
At 1 Janmary 2014 142 2 1443 812 01 3678
Profit for the financial year 1416 141 6
Dmdends (95 5) (95 5)
Issue of share capital
Exerase of options 52 52
Cost of share options expensed 1o subsidiary 114 114
At 31 December 2014 1474 190 4 926 01 4305
Profit for the Fpancial year 190 2 1902
Dividends (130 8) (130 8)
Issue of share capital
Issue of share caputal 1% 19
Exerase of options a0 90
Cost of share options expensed 1n subsidiary 147 147
At 31 December 2015 1583 249.8 107.3 0.1 5155

As at 31 December 2015 the total distributable reserves of the Company were £249 8 million (2014 £150 4 mlhon) Information on
the Company's divdend pohcy can be found wathin the Capital Management section of the St James's Place Group Report and

Accounts on page 39

5. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The total audit fee 1 respect of the Group 13 set out 1n Note € on page 134 of the consolidated financal statements The audit fee

charged to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 15 £1,000 (2014. £1,000)

6. DIVIDENDS
The following ddends have been paid by the Group.

Year Ended YearEnded Year Ended Year Ended
31D b 31D ber 3D ber 31D b

| UONEDUNOS 99014 Esomel "1 | | jrodoy oﬂale.uq

SOUBIWLIDADN)

2015 2054 2015 2014
Pence per Poxeper  £'Malhon &' Million

share share
Final dividend 1n respect of previous financal year 14.37 958 74.8 494
Interim dividend in respect of current financal year 10.72 893 560 461
Total 25.09 18 51 130.8 955

The Directors have recommended 2 final dividend of 17 24 pence per share (2014: 14.37 pence) This amounts to £30 5 million
(2014. £74 6 mllion) and wll, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 13 May 2016 to those

shareholders on the register as at § Apri] 2016
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
At the year end the following related party balances existed

31Decexber 31 December
2015 2014

£ Mallion £ Myllion

Investments in Group companzes .
St James's Place Partnership Limited — 420
St James’s Place Wealth Management Group plc 194.9 1803

152.9 179 8

St James's Place Investments ple

St James’s Place DFM Holdings Limited
Introgroup debtors

St James’s Place Investments plc 238.8 1067
St James's Place Management Services Limited 14 -
St James’s Place International Distribution Limited 1.9 -

Dunng the year, the Company recewved £254 9 million (2014, £142 0 milhion) divadends from subsidiary undertakangs.

The total value of St James's Place funds under management held by related parties of the Campany as at 31 December 2015 was
£20 4 milhon (2014 £16 2 millon) The total value of dividends paid to releted partres of the Company durmg the year was £1 3

mulhon (2014 £0 6 malhon) .

The following wholly-owned subsidiaries of St. James's Place plc bave taken advantage of the exemption from statutory audst granted
by section 479A of the Comparnes Act 2006 In accordance with section 479C, St James’s Place plc has therefore guaranteed all the

outstanding hiabites as at 31 December 2015 of

Angha Finencial Lsmuted (3835743)
BFS Financial Services Limmted (4609753)

Chapman Associates Limited (3047530)

Chapman Hunter Group Lirmited (6034452}

G M B. Finenaal Services Lamated (4074782)

MH S (Holdings) Lumited (559995)

PFPTime Ltd (4047197)

SJP AESOP Trustees Lyrmted (4089795)

SJPC Corporate Investments Limted (1476292)

5t James's Place (Properties) Lamited (6890166)

St James’s Place Aequintion Services Lumited (7730835)

St. James’s Place Chent Solutions Lamuted (5487108)

St James's Place Corporate Secretary Limited (9131866}

St James's Place International Distmbution Limited (8798683)
St James’s Place Investment Trust Lumted (209445)

St. James’s Place Investments plc (1773177)

5t James'’s Place Nommees Limited (8764214)

THG Wealth Management Limited (8077989)

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLIUIMENTS
The Directors’ responsibilities relate primarily to the trading cornpantes of the Group and accordmgly their costs are charged to

those companies and none are met by the Parent Company Dasclosure of the Directors’ emoluments 1s made within the

Remunerahon Report on page 85

9. COMPANY INFORMATION
Ta the opimion of the Directors there 1s not considered to be any ulzmate controlhng party

Copues of the consohidated financral staternents of St James's Place plc may be obtamed from the Company Secretary, St James's
Place ple, 5t James’s Place House, 1 Tetbury Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershure, GL7 1FP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE
DIRECTORS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC

REPORT ON THE GROUP SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

QOur opinion

In our opinon, St James's Place ple (the ‘Group”)
Supplementary Financal Staternents — European Embedded
Value Bass (the ‘supplementary financia] statements’) for the
year ended 31 December 2015 have been properly prepared, in
all matertal respects, 1 accordance with the European
Embedded Value (EEV) basis set out1n Note I —Rasis of
preparation

Emphasis of matter — Basis of preparation

In formng our opmion on the supplementary financial
statements, which 1s not modified, we draw attenticn to Note I
— Bags of Preparanon which explains that, as permmited by the
edditional gmdance 1ssued m October 2015 by the European
Insurance CFO Forum, the supplementary financial statements
have been prepared making po allowance for the impact of
Solvency I regulatory requrements

What we have audited

The St James’s Place plc’s supplementary financal statements

comprise

» the consohdated statement of financal postion, European
Embedded Value Banis as at 31 December 2015,

+ the conschdated statement of ncome, European Embedded
Value Bams for the year then ended,

= the consolidated statement of changes in equity, European
Embedded Value Basis as at 31 December 2015 for the year
then ended, and

* the notes to the supplementary financral statements, which
should be read 1n conjunction with the Group’s finanaal
statemnerts

The financial reporting framework that has been apphed m the
preparation of the supplementary financial statements 1s the EEV
basis set out 1n Note [— Baus of preparation.

In applying the EEV basis, the Directors have made 2 number
of subjective Judgements, for example 1n respect of agnificant
acoounting estimates. In makang such estimates, they have
made assumptions and consdered future events as set outin
Note Ill - Assumptions

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explamed more fully m the Directors’ Responsiblioes
Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the supplernentary financal statements m accordance with the
EEV basis set out in Note ] — Basis of preparation.

Our responstbility 1s to audt and express an opimzon on the
supplementary financal statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Audtting (UK and Ireland)
(ISAs (UK & Ireland)) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards

for Auditors

Thos report, mcluding the opimion, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s Directors 2s a body 1 conformty with
the methodelogy and disclosure requirements contamed an the
document ‘Supplementary Reporting for Long Term Insurance
Business (the Evropean Embedded Value Method)’ 1ssued by the
CFO forum, m agcordance with our engagement letter dated

8 January 2016 and for no other purpose We do net, 1n giving
this opumon, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom thus report 1s shown or
mto whose hands 1t may come, mncluding without limrtatien
under any contractual obligations of the Company, save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

What an audit of financial statements involves

‘We conducted our audit 1n accordance with 1SAs (UK &

ireland) An andtt mvolves obtaming endence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficent to give

reasonable assurance that the financal statements are free from

material misstatement, whether caused. by fraud or error. Thas

mcludes an assessment of

* whether the accounting policies are appropruate to the
Group’s arcumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed,

* the reasonableness of mgnaficant accounting estimates made
by the Directors, and

» the overall presentation of the financal statements

“We primanly focus our work in these areas by assessing the
Directors’ judgements agminst available evidence, formang our
own judgements, and evalnating the disclosures in the
supplementary financial statements

_____&;_D_]ih-_vnﬂ Nin 303447
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We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techmques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions ‘We cbtain
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addinon, we read all the financal and non-financal
information 1n the Annnal Report and Accounts to :dentify
materal inconsistencies with the andited supplementary financal
staternents and to 1dentify any mformation thatis apparently
materally meorrect based on, or matenelly inconsistent wath,
the knowledge acquired by us 1n the course of performmg the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for
our report

I [ nonEPUNOY S0BLY 8,swef 11q l r yzoday oi8aenie 1

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants
Londen o
22 March 2016 2
Notes: [+]
) The appl yintertm Boancfalfofbration is publiched on the website of St Jamey's g
Place Ple, wew.gip.co uk. The malotenanes aod tntegricy of the St. Jumey's Place ple website g
[+]

Is the responsibility of the Dorectors, the weork carried oot by the suditurs docs not iovolve
consideration of these matters and, acoordingly, the anditors lclxptmruponﬁhﬂilyﬁ#my
chmgu&nmqhnmmdwtkﬁmndﬂmmum:hqwmmdaﬂy
preseated on the webaite,

)] Legishmntntheﬂnimdkhgdnmgwmmngthpep-nhﬂnmdd&uﬂmﬂmufﬁmndﬂ
statements my differ from [egishtion fa other furiidictions.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME .
EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS'

The foliowng supplementary mfermation shows the result for the Group adepting a European Embedded Value (EEV) baas for

reporting the results of its wholly owned hfe and unit trust businesses

Year Ended Yerr Ended
31 Devember 31 December

Notw 2015 2014

£ Million £'Million,

Lafe business 467.0 4870
Unst Trust business 2744 1777
Distribution business (21.2) {10
Other (60 0) 374
EEV operating profit 660.2 5964
Investment return variances (24.4) 802
Economic assumphnon changes 0.9 70)
EEY profit before tax 636.7 669 6

Tax

Life busmess (82.2) (1041)
Urut Trust business (1.7 (394)
Dismbution business 3.1 21
Other 14.3 88
Corporation tax rate change 47.8 -
(68.7) (1326)

EEV profit after tax 568.0 537.0
EEV profit attnbutable to non-controlling iterests (0.3) N}
EEV profit attnbutable to equity share holders 568.3 5371
EEV profit on ordinary activities after tax 568.0 537.0
Pence Pence

Basic earnings per share vl 109.4 104 5
Diluted earnings per share Vi 108.3 102 7
Operating profit basic earmngs per share ¥i 103.3 931
A'2! 102.8 918

QOpevating profit diluted earrungs per share

The notes and informaation on pages 182 to 196 form part of this supplementary mformation
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

|

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
208 2014

£mllion £' Million
34172 2,964 1

saodayy o18s1801¢

Opening equity on an EEV basis

EEV profit after tax for the year 568.0 5370

Issue of share capital 1.7 58

Retaned earmings credit in respect of share option charges 14.8 110

Retaimed earnings credst i respect of proceeds from exercise of share options of shares held m trust 0.1 -

Dmidends paxd {130.8) (95 5)
Constderation paid for own shares (12.8) 2
Closing equity on an EEV basis 3,868.2 3,4172

The notes and mformation on pages 189 to 196 form part of this supplementary information

| ( woyepunog a0e s.sourel g ( l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

31December 31 December
2048 2014

£M:llion £'Malbon

Assets
Goodwill 10.1 101
Tntangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs 745.0 813 0
Value of long-term buaness in-force
— long-term wsurance 2,0129 1,8253
— umt trusts 787.6 6112
Computer software 4.3 77
3,559.9 3,26713
Property & equipment 3.0 79
Deferred tax assets 2259 192.8
Investment property 1,344.9 1,031 4
Investments 50,528.5 44,701 8
Reinsurance assets 85.0 855
Insurance and investment contract recervables 76.2 635
Other recervables . 891.0 604 6
Cash & cash equivalents 53251 51394
Total assets 62,044.5 55,094 2
Liabilities
Insurance contract habilres 463.5 474 4
Other provisions 15.4 14
Financial habilrbes 43,562.7 39,014 8
Deferred tax habilities 428.4 8124
Insurance and investment contract payables 45.9 504
Deferred mcome 413.5 463 2
Income tax habilihes 29.6 328
Other payzbles 660.8 4937
Net asset value attributable to unit holders - 12,556.4 10,6178
Preference shares 0.1 01
Total liabilities 58,176.3 51,6770
Net assets 3,8682 34172
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 78.7 779
Share prernium 158.3 1474
Treasury share reserve (185) (10 5)
Miscellaneous reserves 23 23
Retaned earnings 3,6474  3,2001
Total shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 3,868.2 34172
] Pence Pence
Net assets per share 737.3 6579

The supplementary mformation on pages 186 to 196 was approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2016 and signed anits
behalf by-

David Bellamy Andrew Croft The notes and 1nformation on pages 189 o 196
Cluef Executive Chief Finoncial Officer form part of this supplementary wnformation
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

I. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The supplementary information an pages 186 to 196 shows the Group's results 2s measured on 2 EEV basis This mcludes results for

the Life, pension and 1nvestment business, and also the umt trust busmess The valustion 15 undertaken on a basis deterrmived m
accordance with the EEV Princaples 1ssued in May 2004 by the Chuef Financial Officers Forum (CFO Forumy), a group of chief
financal officers from 19 major European msurers as supplemented by the Additional Guudance on EEV Disclosures 1s5ued I
October 2005 (together ‘the EEV Principles’) with the exception of new business Conastent with prior reporting perods, the value
of incremental premums to exstng business 18 treated as new busness 1n the year of increment, rather than at the outset of the

policy This approach better reflects the way the Group manages its business

In recognition of the late finahsation of the Solvency Il requirements, the CFO Forum 1ssued additional gumdance m October 2015 noting
thear view that the Embedded Value does not require an allowance for Solvency Il and its assocated consequences. The EEV basis has

therefore been prepared assuming the firture contmuation of the regulatory solvency requirements as they applied at 31 December 2015

The treatment of all other transactions and balances 15 unchanged from the primary financial statements on an IFRS basis The EEV
bams recogmises the long-term nature of the emergence of shareholder cash returns by reflecting the net present value of expected

future cash flows

Under the EEV methodology, profitis recogmsed as 1t 13 earned over the life of the products withmn the covered business The
embedded value of the covered busiriess 1s the sum of the shareholders’ net worthn respect of the covered business and the present

value of the projected profit stream

II. METHODOLOGY

(a) Covered Business
The covered business 15 the life, pension and mvestment business, mcuding umt trost busmess, undertaken by the Group

(b) Calculatzon of EEV on Existing Business
Profit from exasting business comprnises the expected return on the value of n-force busimess at the start of the year plus the :mpact of

any changes in the assumptions regarding future operating expenience, plus changes in reserving basis (other than economic
assumption changes), plus profits and losses caused by dufferences between the actual experience for the year and the assumptions
used to calculate the embedded value at the end of the year

Dunng the period a new contract for admimustration has been completed with our third party admimstrator which, after a period of
development, will reduce future expenses The expected fiture 1mpact 1s a modest increase to the EEV, apphed as an operating
assumption change on the EEV at the end of the year.

(c) Allowance  for Risk

The allowance for risk i the shareholder cash flows 15 a key feature of the EEV Principles The EEV Principles set out three man
areas of allowance for risk an the embedded value

* The nisk discount rate,

+  The allowance for the cost of financial options and guarantees, and

* The cost of holding both prudential reserves and any addrtronal capital required

The reported EEV allows for r2sk via 2 sk discount rate based on a bottom-up market-consistent approach, plus an appropriate
additional margin for nop-market risk. The Group does not offer products that carry any sgmficant financal guarantees or options

(d) Non-Market Risk
Best estimate assumptions have been established based on avalable information and when used wathin the market conmstent

calculations provide the primary evaluation of the impact of non-market nsk However, some non-market operational risks are not
symmetric, with adverse expenence having a lugher impact on the EEV than favourable expertence Allowance has been made for
thus by mereasing the nsk discount rate by 0 73% (2014 0 76%)
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

CONTINUED

II. METHODOLOGY continued

(e) The Risk Discount Rate
A market-consistent embedded value for each product class has been caleulated

In principle, each cash flow 15 valued usimg the discount rate applied to such a cash flow 1n the capital markets However, m practice
where cash flows are esther independent or move hnearly with market movement, 1t 15 possible to apply & mmphfied method known as
the ‘certainty equivalent’ approach Under thus approach all assets are assumed to earn the risk free rate and are discounted using that
r1sk free rate A market-conmstent cost of holding the required caprtal has also been caleulated

As part of this approach, an appropnate adjustment has been made to reflect the fact that the vahue of tax relef on expenses does not
move: hipearly with market movements Finally, an additional allowance for non-market rsk has been made by increasing the discount

rate by 0 73% (2014 © 76%)

For presentational purposes, a nisk discount rate has then been calculated which under the EEV bazis gives the same value determuned
above This provides an average risk discount rate for the EEV and 1s described in relation to the risk free rate Thas average risk
discount rate has also been used to calculate the pubhished value of new business

(f) Cost of Requured Capital
In hght of the results of internz! analyms, the Directors conmder that the minimum regulatory capital provides adequate capital cover
for the nsks inherent in the covered business The required capital for the EEV calculations has therefore been set to the optimised

mmmum regulatory caprtal

The EEV 1nciudes a reducton for the cost of holding the required capital No allowance has been made for any potential adjustment
that the mvestors may apply because they do not have direct control over their capital Any such adjustment would be subjective, as
daffevent investars will have different views of what, if any, adjustment should be made

(g) New Busmess

‘With the exception of expenses, the new business contribution arsing from reported new business premiums has been calculated
using the same assumptions as used 1o the EEV at the end of the financal year The vahue of contractual meremental premums to
exasting busmness 1s treated as new business i the year of the increment, rather than at the outset of the policy This approach better

reflects the way the Group manages its business

The vahte of new business has been established at the end of the reporting year and has been calculated uang actial acquisition costs,
The new contract for admmstration cornpleted with our third party admimstrator 15 expected to reduce future expenses. The
redncton m future expense has been apphed to the total EEV at the end of the year, and the new busmess contrbution for business

wrttten during the year therefore reflects the previous tanff

{h) Operating Profit
Operating profit 15 determined as the mcrease in the embedded value over the year excluding market-related impacts such as the

effects of economic assumption changes and investment varances and grossed up for shareholder tax

1) Tax
The EEV includes the present value of tax reltef on Iife assurance expenses calculated on 2 market-consistent basis This caleulation
takes 1nto account all expense and income amounts projested for the in-force business @including any carred forward unutihsed rehef
on expenses)
In determuming the market-consistent value an approprate allowance 1s made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief cn
expenses does not move linearly with market movements

When calculating the value of new business, prienity 1s given to reheving the expenses relating to that business
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1. ASSUMPTIONS

(a) Economic Assumptions
The prinmpal economuc assumMptions used within the cash flows at 31 December are set out below
Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

2.1% 1.9%

Rusk free rate
Inflation rate 27% 2 9%
Rusk discount rate (net of tax) 5.2% 5.0%
Future investinent returns
— (alts 2.1% 19%
— Equities 5.1% 4.9%
— Ut hnked funds
— Capital growth 1.3% 15%
— Drndend mcome 3.1% 27%
—Total 4.4% 4 2%
Expense wflahon 3.2% 37%

The nisk free rate 1s set by reference to the yield on ten year gilts Other mvestment returns are set by reference to the risk free rate

The inflation rate 15 derrved from the imphat inflation m the valuation of ten year mndex-hnked gilts Thus rate 15 mcreased to reflect
Iigher increases 1n earmings related expenses

(®) Experience Assumptions
The principal experience assumptions have been set on a best estimate basis. They are reviewed regularly

The persistency assumptions are derved from the Group’s own experience and reflect our best estimate of expenence over the long
term Where sufficent data does not exst, external industry expenence may be used As a result of the review completed 10 2015,
our approach to modellng future lapse rates on pensions business has been developed to allow for the duration of the pohcy, m
addition to age of the chent, as a further nsk factor affecting future experence We have also updated our assumptions to allow for
retention of pension business beyond age 75 following changes announced 1n the March 2014 budget regarding the removal of the
requirement to purchase an annuity by this age We will contunue to monstor any change 1n policyholder behaviour arusng from the
pension freedom changes also announced n the March 2014 budget and the development of future expenience To aid ivestors who
wish to make their own judgement about these changes, we have included a pensions persistency senmtrvity separately in our analyss

on]:age 194

The expense assumptions mclude allowance for both third party admmstration costs and corporate overhead costs meurred m
respect of covered business The corporate costs have been apportioned so that the total maintenance cost represents the anticipated
ongoing expenses, including systems development costs, whch are expected to anse 1 future years in meeting the pohey serviang
requirements of the m-force business Asa result of pood progress with the investment programme at our key outsource provider to
enhance our ‘back office’ systems, and the commencement of the migration business to the new admimistration system, we have now
reflected the benefit from these changes in the ongoing expense assumphons viaa change 11 operating assumption This1s apphedasa
change 1n operating assumptoens to the total EEV at the end of the year and does not therefore feed into the reported new business

contnbution

Mortality and morbidity assumptions have been set by reference to the Group’s own experience, published industry data and the rates
set by the Group's reassurers
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN

EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

CONTINUED

II1. ASSTIMPTIONS continued,
(c) Tax

The EEV result has been calenlated allowing for tax and has been grossed up to a pre-tax level for presentation 1n the profit and loss
account The corporation tax rate used for this grossing up 15 18 6% (2014- 20 19%) for UK Ife and pensions busmess, 12 5% (2014
12 5%) for Irish hfe and pensions bumuess and 18 8% (2014 20 2%) for vt trust business Puture tax has been determmed
assumng a continuation of the current tax legislation The reduction 1 tax rates for UK and unit trust business reflects the changes

10 tax rate enacted in the year

IV. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT
(a) Life Busmess

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Depember
Noe 215 2004
£Maithon £'Mallion
New business contribution 1 265.5 2337
Profit from exasting business
Unwind of discount rate 136 3 144 9
Experience vanances 83.2 781
Operating assumption changes (22 8) 30
Investment mnecome 48 73
EEV operating profit 467.0 4670
Investment return variances (25.0) 61 8
Economuc sssumption changes 1.1 {3 3)
EEV profit before tax 4431 525§
Tax (82.2) (1041
Corporation tax rate change 38.1 -
EEV profit after tax 399.0 4214
Note ! New business contriburtion after tax is £226 7million (2014- £187 6 millon).
(b) Unat Trust Business
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 05 2014
£Milhon £ Million
New bustness contribution 1 1752 1394
Profit from existing busmess
Unwind of discount rate 36.1 371
Experience variances (5.1} 04
Operating assumption changes 669 -
Investment mncome 1.3 08
EEY operating profit 2744 1777
Investment return variances 0.6 184
Econemic assumption changes ©2 @37
EEY profit before tax 274.8 192 4
Tax 517) (354
Corporation tax rate change 97 -
EEV profit after tax 232.8 1530

Note 1 New bosiness contribution after tax 15 £142 2 milhon {2014~ £110 B million)
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Note 1 New buzness contribution after tax is £358 9 million (2014 £298 4 million}

(d) Detailed Analysis

In order to better explan the movement in capital flows, the components of the EEV p

174
g
a8
£
a3
[¢]
YearEnded  YearEnded z
31December 31 December 9
- Note 2015 2004 2

£Mithon £'Millon
New business contributicn 1 440.7 3731 —
Profit from existing business o
Unwind of discount rate 1724 1820 ‘f_’
Expenence variances 781 785 E
Operating assumpton changes 44.1 30 a
Investment 1ncome 6.1 81 :
EEV operating profit 7414 6447 g
Investment return varmances (24.4) 802 ‘:
Economic assumption changes 0.9 (70) ]
EEV profit before tax 717.9 717.9 E
Tax (133.9) (143 5) g
Corporation tax Tate change 47.8 - =]
EEV profit after tax 631.8 5744 —r__
)
:
g
)
4]

rofit for the year ended 31 December 2015 are

shown separately between the movement 1n TFRS net assets and the present value of the in-force business (VIF) in the table below All
figures are shown net of tax
Movement —
inIFRS Movement  Movement
Net Assets m VIF m EEV =
EMdhon  &Milon  £'Milbon g
New business contribution (673) 4262 358.9 g
Profit from exasting business 257.5 (257.5) - ::’-
Unwind of discount rate - 140.7 140.7 z
Expenence variances (17.4) 55.0 37.6 a|
Operating assumphon changes 5.6 29.4 35.0 H
Investment return 49 - 4.9 L
Investment return variances 02 (196 (198 ‘
Economtc assumption changes 0.3 1.1 0.8
Maiscellaneous 19.2 (57.1) (379)
Corporation tax rate cha.tiga - 47.8 47.8
EEV profit after tax 2020 366.0 568.0

‘ UONIRULICIUT ST ‘]
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

CONTINUED *

IV. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT continued
The comparatwve figures for 2014 are as follows

inIFRS Movement Movement
Nct Azyets in VIF in EEV

£'Malhon £'Milbon £'Milhon

New business contribution 49 3) 3477 258 4

Profit from ecasting business 2367 (236 7} -
Unwind of discount rate - 1455 145 5
Experience variances 277 213 450
Operating assumption changes (1.4 40 26

Investment return 66 - 66

Investment return varances on 643 642

Economic assumption changes (E)) 47 {5 6)

Miscellanecus (31 3) 76 @37

EEV profit after tax 188 O 3490 5370

V. EEV SENSITIVITIES
The table below shows the estimated impact on the combined Iife and umit trust reported vahie of new business and EEV to changes

n key assumptions The sensitvines are specafied by the EEV prinaiples and reflect reasonably possible levels of change In each case,
only the indicated 1tem 15 varied relative to the restated values

Change m

European

Change m new bunness Embedded
contribution Value

Note Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax

£Malhon £Mallion £N¥lhors

Value at 31 December 2015 440.7 3589  3,868.2

100bp reduchon in nisk free rates, with corresponding change in fixed interest asset

values 1 (5 6) @7 (261

10% reduction m withdrawal rates 2

Pensions 177 14 4 853

Cther 229 18.7 1279

Total 406 331 2132
10% reduction 1 expenses 3 73 60 297
10% reduction in market value of equity assets 4 - - {371 2)
5% reduction in mortabty and morbidity 5 - - —
100bp 1ncrease 1n equity expected returns 6 - - —
100bp 1ncrease 1n assumed mflation 7 (77 6 3) (34.3)
Notzt Thisis the key economic basis dhange seositivicy The besiness modc] iy relatively insencitive to change In econsmicbasls. Nete thet the sensitivity assumes a corresponding change in 1)

frvestment retoyns but so change in infhation

Nite 7 The 10% reduction is applied to the lipserate, For ingtanee, 1§ the lapae rate Is 354 then » 10% sensithvity reduction would reflecta change 107 2%

Motz 3 The new butiness contribotion within the EEV does not reflect furure expense levels that would apply under the new sdministration contract.

Note 4 For the purposcs of this required scasttivity, all unit linked funds sre synzmed to be favested in equities The actiz] mix of wessts varics and in tecent years the propartion invested directly o
UK and overzeas equities hay exceeded 70%

Note 5 Assumes the benelit of lower experience Is passed on to ehents and reassurers at the earliest opportunity

Note 6 Asa market-consistent approach s med, equity expected returns only affect the derived disconnt rates and not the conbedded value or

Note 7 Asrumed inflation Is set by reforence to ten year index linked gilt yields,

ribution to grofit from new busfness

Change

European

Change mnnew business  Embedded
contribution Value
Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax
EMihon £'Mailron £'Mailion
452 2713

100bp reduction 1n risk disconnt rate 585

Although not directly relevant under a market-consistent valuation, this sensrtrvity shows the level of adjustment which would be
requered to reflect differing investor views of risk
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VI. EARNINGS PER SHARE =
YearEnded  YearEnded H
31 December 31 Decemmber =
2015 2014 A4
Pence Pence
Basic earmings per share 109.4 1045 —
Diluted earnings per share 108.3 1027 o
Operating basic earmngs pe share 103.9 931 2
Operating diluted earnings per share 102.8 515 ]
B Q
The earnings per share calculations are based on the followang figures 5
Year Ended Year Ended 8
31 December 31 December b3
2015 2014 §‘
£MiZlon £Million 5
Earnings 2
Profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 568.0 5370 .
Operating profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 539.2 478 4 —
Malhon Million -
Weighted average number of shares g
Weighted average number of ordmary shares in 1ssue (for basic EFS) 519.1 5140 g
Adjustments for outstanding share options 5.2 90 B8
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (for difuted EFS) 524.3 523.0 8
VIL RECONCILIATION OF IFRS AND EEV PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND NET ASSETS —
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3} Decomber
2015 2014
£Mullon £ Milkon
IFRS profit before tax 174.1 294 4
Fax attributable to policyholder returns (22.8) (111 5)
Profit before tax atributable to shareholders’ returns 151.3 1825
Add back. amortisation of acquired value in-force business 3.2 32
Movement 1n hfe value of in-force (net of tax) 187.6 2417
Moverent 1n umt trust value of m-force (net of tax) 176.4 104 5 —
Tax gross up of movement 1 value m-force 118.2 136 9
EEV profit before tax 6367 6696 §
31 December 31 December !
2015 2014 .
£nilhion £Mllion i
TFRS net assets 1,095.1 1,0101
Less: acqmired value of in-force (33.6) (36.8)
Add deferred tax on acquired value of in-force - 6.2 74
Add Dfe value of m-force 2,012.9 11,8253 —
Add unst trust value of m-force 787.6 611 2
EEV net assets 3,868.2 34172
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

CONTINUED

VIIL. RECONCILIATION OF LIFE COMPANY FREE ASSETS TO CONSOLIDATED GROUP EQUITY AND
ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENT IN FREE ASSETS ,

31 December 31 December
2015 2004

£Milhon £Milhon

Life company estimated free assets 298.9 2783

Estimated required hfe company solvency capital 52.1 489

Other subnidiaries, consohdation and IFRS adjustments 744.1 6829

TFRS net assets 1,095.1 10101

31December 31 December

2005 2014

£'Million £'Milhon

Life company estimated free assets at 1 January 278.3 2349
Investrment 1 new busmess (341 {26 8)

Profit from exosting business 2039 1639
Davadends paxd (150.0) (100 0)

Investment return 4.0 59

Movement 1n requared solvency capital (3.2 04

Life company estimated free assets at 31 Decerhber 2989 278 3
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANALYSIS OF NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Analyny by Nomber of Shares Holders % Shares Held %
1959 2,410 4313 907,723 017
1,000-5,999 2,253 40 32 6,691,479 128
10,000-99,99% 604 1081 19,507,747 372
100,000 and above 321 574 497,558,263 94 83
5,588 10000 524,665,212 10000

2016 FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Ex-drvrdend date for final drndend Thursday, 7 April 2016
Recard date for final dividend Frday, 8 Apnl 2016
Anpnouncement of first quarter new busmess Tuesday, 26 April 2016
Annual General Meeting Wednesday, 4 May 2016
Payment date for final dividend Friday, 13 May 2016
‘Wednesday, 27 July 2016

Announcement of Interim Results and second quarter new business
Ex-drvidend date for interim dividend

Record date for intertm divnidend

Payment date for interim dividend

Announcement of third quarter new business

Thursday, 1 Seprember 2016
Fruday, 2 September 2016
Friday, 30 September 2016
Tuesday, 25 October 2016

The above dates are subject to change and further mnformation on the 2016 financal calendar can be found on the Company's webstte,

www.sjp.co.uk

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The Directors introduced a Dividend Reanvestment Plan (DRP) during 2012 If you would prefer to receive new shares instead of
cash drvidends, please complete a Drvidend Reimbursement Plan (DRP) mandate form, which 15 availzble from our Regstrars,

Computershare Investor Services PLC Their contact details are on page 199

SHARE DEALING

A telephone share dealmg service has been established with the Registrars, Comnputershare Investor Services PLC, which provides

shareholders with a simple way of buying or selling St James’s Place plc shares on the London Stock Exchange If you are interested in

thas service, telephone 0370 703 0034

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

If you would hke to have access to sharehaolder commumications such as the Annual Report and the Nobee of Geperal Meeting
through the internet rather than receive them by post, please register at www etreenk.com /stjamesplace

An internet share deahng service 15 also available Further information gbout this section can be obtamed by loggmg on to

www computershare com /mvestor/sharedealing

ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015
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HOW TO CONTACT US AND ADVISERS

HOW TQ CONTACT US

Registered Office
St James’s Place House
1 Tetbury Road
Cirencester
Gloucestershire

GL7 1FP

Tel 01285 640302
www gp co uk

Chairman
Sarah Bates
email ¢/o hiz kelly@sjp.co uk

Chief Executive
Dawid Bellamy
emal david bellamy@sjp.co uk

Chief Financial Officer
Andrew Croft
emal andrew croft@syp co uk

Company Secretary
Lz Ke]]y
email bz kelly@sjp co uk

Cuastomer Service

Mike Karn

Tel 01285 878140

emal ke karn(@sp co vk

Analyst Enquiries

Tony Dunk

Tel 020 7514 1963

email tony dunk(@s)p co uk

Media Enquiries

Bell Pottanger

Tel 0203772 2566

email SJP@Bell-Pottinger com

ADVISERS

Bankers

Banlkk of Scotland
150 Fountambndge
Edinburgh

EH3 SPE

Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchill Place
Londen

E14 SHP

The Royal Bank of Scotland,
135 Bishopsgate

London

EC2ZM 3UR

Brokers

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
25 Bank Street

London

El4 5]P

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
2 Xang Edward Street

London

EC1A 1HQ

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
7 More Londorn Riverside

London

SE1 2RT

Registrars & Transfer Office
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavihions

BndgwaterRoad

Bristol

BS13 8AE

ematl web queries(@computershare co uk

Tel, 0370 702 0197

www camputershare com
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ST. JAMES’S PLACE
PARTNERSHIP LOCATIONS

\

UNITED KINGDOM

1 ABERDEEN
Mark Wylhe
mark wylhe@sjp co uk
0122 420 2400

2 GLASGOW
Ross Cameron
ross cameron{@syp co uk
0141 304 1700

3 EDINBURGH
Steve Herkes
steve herkes@s)p co uk
0131 459 9200

4 NEWCASTLE
Philip Pringle
philip pringle@sp o vk
0191 260 5373

5 BELFAST
Keith Willett
keith wallett@syp co uk
028 3072 6500

6 LEEDS
Rachard Balmforth
nichard balmforth@sp co uk
0113 244 4054

7 MANCHESTER
Frank Gorne
frank gorme(@s)p co uk
0161 834 9480

8 LIVERPOCL
John Renan
john ronan{@sp co uk
0151 224 8700

9 NOTTINGHAM
Andy Marks
andy marks@gp couk
0115 924 2859

10 SOLIHULL
Sean McKillep
sean mckllop@sp co uk
0121 733 6733

1 WITHAM
Paolo Payne
paolo paync(@sp co uk
01376 501947

12 NEWBURY
Chnis Faerber
chns faerber@syp co uk
01635 582424

13 BRISTOL
George Hills
george hlls(@s)p co uk
01454 618700

14 PICCADILLY
Damien Bradbury
damaen bradbury@sp co vk
020 7399 6889

ELSTREE \
Mark Newman

mark newman{@gp co uk
020 82074000

CITY

Roger McKibhin

roger mekibbin@sgp co uk
0207638 2400

HAMILTON PLACE
Mick Brett

mek brett@s_]'p co uk

020 7495 1771

KINGSWAY

Ryan McDonald

ryan mcdonald@spp co uk
020 7744 1600

15 WESTERHAM
Mk Froggatt
nick froggatt@sp co uk
01959 561 606

16 SOLENT
Ian Grant
ian g'mnt@qp couk
01489 881400

ASIA

ST. JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

17 SHANGHAI
Oliver Wickham
Shanghai info(@s)p asta
+86 21 6045 2688

18 HONG KONG
Mark Rawson
Hongkong info(@sjp asia
+-852 2824 1083

19 SINGAPORE

Nigel Preston

Singapore nfo@s)p asiz
+656536 0121
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GLOSSARY

Adviser or Emancial Adviser
An individual who 15 authonsed by the FCA to provide
finanmal advice

Administration Platform, also Bluedoor

A new client-centric admimstration system, beang developed i
conjunction with our third party outsourced admumstration
provider, IFDS

Capita

A provider of business process outsourcing and integrated
professional support service sohitons, which 15 our thard party
outsourced provider, responsble for the adminustration of our
Dubhn-based Jife msurance company, SJPI

Cash Result

A post-tax mezSure of emergence during the year of cash available
for paying a drndend The measure reflects underlying cashflows
consistent with the TFRS results, but without adjustment for
intangibles mcluding DAC, DIR, PVIF and deferred tax The
result also reflects any reserving constraint imposed on an
insurance company m the Group byts local statutory salvency
regume , 0o allowance 15 made for the cost of share options.
The cash result should not be confused with the IFRS cash flow
statement-which 1s prepared in accordance withIAS7

Chief OPerating Decisicn Maker
The Execative Commuttee of the Board which1s responsible for
allocating resources and assessing the performance of the

operating sefments

Client Numbers
The number of indrviduals who have receved advice from 2
St James’s Place Partner and owna St James’s Place wrapper

Client Advocacy

The Company requests feedback from chents each year through
a survey distributed with the annual Wealth Account Advocacy
1s measured by the response to the question “Would you
recommend SJP services to others?’. The potential responses
disungush between “Yes, and have done so already’, ‘Yes, but
have yetto do s0’ and ‘No’

Chent Retention

Chient retention 15 assessed by calculating the proportion

of chents at 1 January n the year who remain as a chent
throughout the year and are sull a chent on 31 December of

the same year

Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC)

An mtangible asset requred to be established through the
apphcation of IFRS to our long-term business The value of the
asset 13 equal to the amount of all costs which accrue in hine with
new business volumes The asset 1s amortised over the expected
hfetime of the busipess

Deferred Income (DIR)

Deferred mcome which arises from the requirement in IFRS that
mit1al charges on long-term finanmal mnstruments should only be
recogmsed over the hfetiree of the busmess The imtial amount
of the balance 15 equal to the charge taken

Earnings Per Share
Non-GAAP earnings per share measures, both banc and diluted,
are calculated based o IFRS profit after tax

European Embedded Value

A value determined m accordance wath the EEV Principles
1ssued 1 May 2004 by the Chaef Financal Officers Forum, as
supplemented by the Addrhonal Guidance en EEV Disclosures
1ssued 1n October 2005 (together ‘the EEV Prmnciples”) The
EEV recognises the long-term nature of the emergence of
shareholder cash returns by reflecting the net present value of
expected future cash flows

Field Management Team
The team of managers within St James's Place with day to day
rasponsxbxhty for support and supervanon of the Partnership

Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)

One of the two bodies (along with the PRA) whach replaced the
Financal Services Authonty from T April 2013 The FCA1sa
company himited by guarantee and 15 mndependent of the Bank of
Englend It1s responsble for the conduct of busimess regulation
of all firms (including those firms subject to prudential
regulation by the PRA) and the prudential regulation of all
firms not regulated by the PRA The FCA has three statutory
objectives securing an appropriate degree of protection for
consumers, protecting and enbancing the mtegnty of the UK
finanaial system, and promonng effective competrtion in the
interests of consumers.

Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS)
The FSCS 13 the UK’s stetutory compensation scheme for
customers of authorised financial services firms This means that
the FSCS can pay compensation if a firm 15 unable, or1s hkely to
be unable, to pay claxms against 1t. The FSCS is an independent
body, set up under the Finanoal Services and Markets Act 2000
(FSMA), and funded by a levy on ‘authorised financal services
firms’. The scheme covars deposts, insurance policies, mnsurance
brokering, mvestments, mortgages and mortgage arrangement

Funds under Management (FULM)

Represents all assets actively managed or admmrustered by or on
behalf of the Group, mduding all hfe insurance and umt trust
assets, but not assets managed by third parties where we have
only mtroduced or advised on the business Assets managed by
Rowan Dartington will count as funds under panagement when
the acquation 1s complete
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GLOSSARY

CONTINUED

Gross Inflows

Total new funds under management accepted in the period New
funds accepted by Rowan Dartington wall also count for Gross
Inflows when the acqusition 18 complete

International Financial Data Services (IFDS)

A pravider of investor and policyholder, admunistration and
technology services TEDS 13 our thard party cutsourced
provider, responsble for the admimstration of our UK Life
msurance company, SJPUK, our unit wrust manager, SJPUTG,
and our wivestment admimstrabon company, SJFTIA

International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

These are accounting regulatons desgned to ensure comparable
preparation and disclosure of staternents of finanaal position,
and are the standards that all pubhcly bsted companses 1n the
European Union are required to use

Investment Management Approach (IMA)

The IMA 15 how St James’s Place manages chents’ mvestments
It 1s managed by the St. James's Place Invéstment Commuttee,
which in turn 1s advised by respected independent investment
research consultancies, led by Stamford Assocates The
Investment Comrnittee 15 responsible for identafying

fund managers for our funds, selecting from fund management
firms all avound world They are also responsble for monttonng
the performance of our fund managers, and, if carcumstances
should change and 1t becomes necessary, then they are
responsible for changing the fund manager as well

Net Inflows

Gross mflows less the amount of funds under management
withdrawn by clrents during the same period The netinflows 1s
the growth 1o funds under management not attributable to
nvestinent performance

Policyholder and Shareholder Tax

The UK tax regime faczlitates the collection of tax from hfe
insurance policyholders by making an equvalent charge within
the corporate tax of the company. This part of the overall tax
charge, which 15 attributable to policyholders, 15 called
pobicyholder tax The rest ¢ shereholder tax,

Profit Before Shareholder Tax

A profit measure whuch reflects the IFRS result adjusted for
policyholder tax, but before deduction of shareholder tax
‘Withun the financral statements the full tatle of this measure 1=
Profit before tax attributsble to shareholders’ returns

T JAMES'S PLACE PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA)

The PRA 13 a part of the Bank of England and 1s responsible for
the prudentral regulation of depoait taking wnstitutions, nsurers
and major mvestment firms The PRA has two statutory
objectives to promote the safety and soundness of these firms
and, speafically for msurers, to contribute to the securing of an
appropriate degree of protection for poheyholders

Purchased Value of In-Force

An mtangible asset established on takeover or acqustion,
reflecting the present value of the expected emergence of profits
from a portfehio of long-term business The asset 15 amertised 1n
hine with the emergence of profits

Registered Individuals (RT)

Anindividual who 1s registered by the FCA, particularly an
individual who s regstered to provide financial advice See also
Adwiser and §t James's Place Partner

Rowan Dartington

A wealth mapagement busness providing mvestment
management, advisory stockbroking and wealth planmng
services During 2015 5t James’s Place announced the mtention
to acquire Rowan Dartington to enhance the offering to clients
and Partners In early 2016 change of control has been granted
by the FCA and completion wall follow shertly

Solvency I

New insurance regulations designed o0 barmonise EU msurance
regulation whach became effective from 1 January 2016. The key
concerns of the regulation are to ensure robust risk management
n msurance compames and to use that understanding of psk

10 help determane the right amount of capital for European
insurance companies to hold to ensure their ongoing viabihty in
all but the most severe stressed scenarios

St. James’s Place Foundation

The independent grant making charity established at the same
tume as the Company i 1992 More information about the
Foundation can be found on page 56 or on the website

www sjpfoundation co uk

St. James’s Place Partner

A member of the St James’s Place Partnership Speafically,
the indridual or business that 1s registered as an Appomted
Representative of St James's Place on the FCA webste

5t James's Place Partner businesses vary in size and structure
Many are sole traders but there are also a growimg number of
busmesses employmg many advisers

e Dt 33T mmene




1
St. James’s Place Partnership
The collective narne for all of our advisers, who are Appamted
Representatives of St. James's Place

State Street

State Street s a global financial services holding company
offering custodian services, mvestment management services,
and investment research and tradmg services State Street1s
responsible for the custody of the majonity of the 5t James’s
Place assets, and also provides other mvestrent management

S&rvices

Underlying Cash Result .
Trmng variances m cash emergence, parhcularly due to tax and
insurance reserve impacts, will mpact the regular development
of the cash result The underlymg cash result 15 adjusted for
these items, and therefore provides the most useful measure
which the Board reviews (in comunction with Group solvency)
when determmng any proposed divadend to shareholders

The underlying cash result should not be confused with the IFRS
cash flow statement whach 1s prepared 1n accordance with 1AS 7
An EPS measure 1s also calculated on this basis

Underlying Profit
A profit measure, based upon Profit before sharebolder tax, but

adjusted to remove the mmpact of movements 1 DAC, DIR and
PVIF balances and associated tax balances. An EPS measure 15
also caleulated on this basis
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ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC
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